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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143
Accounting For Asset Retirement Obligations

Overview?

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations” (ARO’s). SFAS No. 143 changes the way companies recognize and
measure legal retirement obligations that result from the acquisition, construction and
normal operation of tangible long-lived assets. In general, companies will be required to
recognize much sooner any legal liability associated with the future retirement of
tangible long-lived assets.

SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002 (January 1,
2003 for calendar year companies). Asset retirement obligations must be recognized as
a liability and measured at fair value. The cost associated with the recognition of the
asset retirement obligation is capitalized as part of the related asset’s book cost and is
depreciated over the expected life of the asset.

The asset retirement obligation is initially recorded at fair value, so the increase in that
liability causes accretion expense (similar to interest) to be recognized each period as
an operating expense in the income statement.

SFAS No. 143 does not grandfather any current accounting for existing obligations.
Companies will convert to the new standard and recognize the cumulative effect of
initially applying the statement as a change in accounting principle. The amount to be
reported as a cumulative effect adjustment in the statement of operations is the
difference between the amounts, if any, recognized in the statement of financial position
prior to the application of SFAS No. 143 and the net amount that is recognized in the
financial statements by applying the new Standard. Any asset retirement obligations
that are currently reported as part of accumulated depreciation will be reversed as part
of the cumulative effect adjustment.

Scope

The scope of SFAS No. 143 is set forth in paragraph 2 of the Statement: “This
Statement applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible

1 The methods, processes, and procedures contained in this paper are intended to illustrate and provide examples for
one or more analytical models by which certain Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO'S) could be evaluated. This
material is intended neither to exclude the validity of other models, nor to be an exhaustive and comprehensive
presentation of all valid models. The models described in this paper may not be applicable to particular situations
and are not necessarily recommended for the reader's specific application. It is the conclusion of the authors that
each entity assessing ARO's should consult with its auditor, accountants, and legal counsel.
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long-lived asset” (emphasis added). The obligations included within the scope of the
standard are those associated with the retirement of a long-lived asset that result from
the acquisition, construction, or the normal operation of a long-lived tangible asset. An
ARO liability should be recognized if it meets the definition of a liability in FASB
Concepts Statement No. 6, “Elements of Financial Statements.” In assessing whether
an ARO meets this definition, an entity should determine if:

a) It has a present duty or responsibility to one or more other entities that
entails settlement by probable future transfer or use of assets,

b) It has little or no discretion to avoid a future transfer of use of assets, and
c) An obligating event has already happened.

What does this mean and how does a company determine if a long-lived asset is within
this scope definition? Only assets that are defined as tangible and long-lived are
included. There has been much discussion concerning what constitutes a tangible long-
lived asset. While there is no clear definition given, examples of tangible long-lived
assets include items such as generation plants, mines, gas mains and compressor
stations, substations, transformers, buildings, capacitors, lines, poles, streetlights and
fee property. Examples of assets that are not tangible long-lived assets include
software, organization costs, and goodwill. A company must then determine if any legal
obligations exist that are associated with the retirement of these long-lived assets.
Retirement is defined as other-than-temporary removal of a long-lived asset from
service. It includes sale, abandonment, recycling, or disposal in some other manner.
However, it does not include the temporary idling of a long-lived asset.

Identifying ARO’s and measuring the liability is the most critical part in the adoption of
SFAS No. 143. It is recommended that utilities form working teams and include
representatives from legal, accounting, financial, operations and other business units as
deemed necessary. These teams will need to define very specifically what the scope of
SFAS No. 143 is for their company and how the review of what is within the scope will
take place. This entire process should be well documented.

Basically the determination of whether assets are within the scope of SFAS No. 143 is a
review of legal obligations past and present that relate to the purchase, construction,
development, or normal operation of the asset. Utilities have substantial tangible long-
lived assets, many of which were constructed over several decades. As a result, a
significant amount of work may be required to identify the legal obligations associated
with utility assets. Also an obligation may result from only a portion of an asset (e.g.,
disposal of PCBs from a transformer) and only that portion must be recognized under
the Standard. For purposes of SFAS No. 143, a legally enforceable obligation can result
from:

a) A government action, such as law, statute, or ordinance,

b) An agreement between entities, such as a written or oral contract,

c) Conduct, which would obligate the promisor to perform under the doctrine of
promissory estoppel.
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To identify ARO'’s, the legal department may perform a review of codes, statues,
regulations, ordinances and typical obligating documents including contracts, permits,
certificates of need, etc. It is important to establish ground rules to prevent the review
from becoming impossible in size. Start with a definition of tangible long-lived assets
and a list of those assets that meet the definition. It is important to give this definition to
the legal team and any area assisting on this project because the areas outside of
accounting may not be cognizant of useful lives. For areas where there is a large
magnitude of similar documents, use of a sampling technique may be employed.
However, it should be noted that if the result of the sampling does not produce evidence
of a legal obligation, one might want to include an ARO disclosure if there could be an
obligation, albeit remote, in the contracts not sampled. An example of such a document
is the easement associated with distribution property.

By assessing plant assets and reviewing documents including contracts, licenses,
leases, etc., the team can develop potential ARO’s. Although the chance of determining
that a legal obligation has accrued under a doctrine of promissory estoppel is small, the
team should consider potential areas where such liability might arise. The review of
promissory estoppel is difficult, and varies state by state. The recommendation is to
identify relationships or other documentation that employees know about or have in their
possession. Companies may query their corporate communications archives, and staff,
company counsel, and field personnel, where necessary, to identify conduct that may
involve the doctrine of promissory estoppel. An inventory questionnaire may be used to
assist with the field review. The discovery of a promise alone is not enough to create a
retirement obligation through promissory estoppel. A determination must be made that a
third party relied upon such a promise to its detriment and that a court is likely to order
equitable relief.

Many utilities have included removal costs in depreciation rates or some other rate
recovery mechanism. For ratemaking purposes, the collection of depreciation expense,
including the salvage, and gross removal cost should remain intact. If customers have
been paying for the cost of removal through rates, they may have a reasonable
expectation that the utility will expend the costs to remove the asset at the end of its
useful life. The inclusion of a cost of removal component in depreciation rates, in and of
itself, does not constitute a legal obligation to remove or dispose of the asset under the
doctrine of promissory estoppel. However, promises made by utilities in rate case
proceedings or the specific orders issued by regulatory bodies in rate cases could be
evaluated as a potential legal obligation. This determination is a legal question that
should be evaluated with the assistance of legal counsel. Barring any legal obligations,
the inclusion of removal costs in depreciation rates does not constitute an ARO.

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 143, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
as applied by utilities included an accrual of many estimated removal costs over the life
of the asset and to classify the accrued removal cost liability as a part of the provision
for accumulated depreciation. If all or a portion of asset retirements are not included in
the scope of SFAS No. 143, GAAP continues to allow the accrual of the removal cost
liability over the life of the asset. GAAP generally does not address where regulatory
assets or liabilities should be recorded. Accordingly, the removal cost liability related to

5
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these types of assets that is recorded in accordance with rate recovery need not be
reclassified as a regulatory liability. If an asset does fall under the scope of SFAS No.
143 and a company is subject to SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation,” any removal cost related to that asset currently classified as a
part of the provision for accumulated depreciation should be removed and replaced with
an ARO liability in accordance with SFAS No. 143. Additionally, for SFAS 71
companies, any cumulative effect adjustments and/or any ongoing differences between
the application of removal costs in a regulated environment and SFAS 143 should be
recorded as a regulatory liability or asset.

To summarize, the scope of the final statement includes only liabilities for legal
obligations that compel the owner to remove or dispose of the asset or of some
component at retirement. If the “company has a legal obligation to perform
decontamination activities when the plant ceases operations” (A12), then there is an
ARO related to that plant. A conceptual framework for the ARO includes:

a) A legal requirement to remove an asset or component part must exist first
before any ARO is recognized for removal costs. However, if there is no legal
obligation to remove a component, then no ARO is required. For example, if
an exhaust stack is retired in place at a production facility and there are no
legal requirements to remove the stack, there is no ARO. Conversely, if there
is a state requirement to remove any structure over 25 feet upon cessation of
service, then there likely is an ARO.

b) A legal obligation may exist to dispose of a component part of an asset: “Any
legal obligations that require disposal of the replaced part are within the
scope of this Statement” (A9). For example, there may not be a legal
requirement to remove a component part, but the component part may wear
out or be removed for other reasons. In this case, the removal cost of the
asset would not constitute an ARO. However, there may be legal
requirements to dispose of the component part once it has been removed.
The legal requirement to dispose of the component would constitute an ARO
(A15).

c) All ARO liabilities must meet the liability criteria in FAS Concepts Statement
Number 6, “Elements of Financial Statements.” Only present (current)
obligations meet these criteria.

The Standard identifies examples of potential ARO’s including landfill closure and
nuclear decommissioning, however, there are probably more in existence. The following
are examples of types of assets that may be within the scope of SFAS No. 143 and
circumstances that may or may not create an ARO:

1. Nuclear Production

a) Final Nuclear Decommissioning — a company has a legal obligation
to perform decontamination activities when the plant ceases
operations. Contamination results from the normal operation of the
plant and a liability should be recorded. A company needs to review
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contracts, licenses, operating agreements, leases, etc. to assess
their extent of liability. In addition to obligations surrounding
contamination, there may be legal requirements to return the plant to
a “greenfields” state. These costs are usually identified in required
decommissioning studies. If the legal obligation is determined to
include only the contaminated portions of the plant, then adjustments
to the entire decommissioning study will need to be made to reflect
only those portions as an ARO.

Nuclear Fuel Storage Faciliies — a company needs to review
associated documents, which surround this asset. It is generally
assumed that the federal government will bear the responsibility for
spent nuclear fuel when it is finally removed from the plant site. The
removal of the storage facilities for spent nuclear fuel (i.e.,
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installations) after the spent fuel
has been removed will be the obligation of the company. This
obligation would create an ARO and may be included already in final
decommissioning. If no storage facilities currently exist but they will
be required when the spent fuel pool reaches capacity, the removal
obligation of such facilities would need to be considered when
assessing an entity’s obligation when the obligating event has
occurred.

Interim Retirements - an asset retirement obligation may exist for
component parts of the larger system. The retirement of this
component part may happen prior to retirement of the entire system
and may constitute an obligation separate from the final retirement or
decommissioning. An example is a steam generator that needs
replacement prior to the end of the life of the unit. An obligation
associated with the disposal of a second steam generator will occur
at the time of replacement of the generator (resulting in the irradiation
of a second generator). The cash flow of the removal obligation to
dispose of the second steam generator may be linked with the final
decommissioning of the plant (e.g. if the replaced steam generator is
left on site and factored into the decommissioning study) or can be
reflected in a new ARO. Since it will probably be included in future
plant decommissioning estimates, recording as a change in the
existing ARO cash flow will simplify future accounting. Not all interim
retirements will create an ARO. The recommendation is that a
company will need to assess interim retirements individually as to
frequency and materiality to determine when an ARO should be
recognized and also what costs should be captured as an ARO.

An example of this follows: Entity A has a highly contaminated
nuclear asset with a cost of removal of approximately $2 million. $.8
million is for labor and supplies needed to remove the asset and $1.2
million is for the “special” disposition costs for disposing of the
contaminated asset. Because this is an interim retirement, the
recommendation is that only the $1.2 million of disposition costs be
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accounted for in the ARO. For interim retirements such as these, it is
generally assumed that there is no legal obligation to remove the
asset, only a legal obligation to dispose of the asset. In contrast,
when the plant is closed and the replaced asset is being removed, it
is generally assumed that the entire $2 million of costs be included in
the ARO due to the legal obligations associated with closing the
plant. In a similar example, suppose the labor and supplies to
remove the asset are $1.98 million and the disposition costs are only
$.02 million. In this example a company may choose not to record
any ARO based on immateriality. Each company will need to address
its own specific materiality thresholds.

2. Steam Production

a) General — after reviewing legal documents, which include easements,
licenses, leases, etc., a company may discover they have no legal
obligations associated with asset retirement. Alternatively, a
company may discover legal obligations associated with assets such
as intake structures, ash ponds, underground storage tanks, coal
piles, tanks used to accumulate hazardous waste, or coal mines. In
some instances, there is no legal obligation to remove an asset or
restore the land. In another instance, an existing law or a lease on
the land may require decommissioning of the plant or components of
the plant.

b) Environmental Obligations — a company may have certain
environmental obligations. If these environmental obligations result
from environmental law, contract, or other agreement or license that
require the remediation of an obligation at a specific point (e.g., a
specific time after ceasing operations or at retirement), then they are
legal obligations. An ARO results only from environmental
remediation liabilities arising from the normal operation of the power
plants. A company may have some liability associated with the
retirement and removal of a segment of the power plant such as ash
ponds or intake structures. Asbestos to be removed as part of an
asset retirement is subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 143 and
the cost of removal should be included in determining the obligation.
If asbestos clean-up is performed prior to the asset retirement then it
should be accounted for in accordance with the guidance of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement
of Position (SOP) 96-1, “Environmental Remediation Liabilities.”

c) Shared Assets — some generating facilities are co-owned or have
many joint owners. Co-owners should cooperate to the extent
possible regarding consistent treatment of SFAS 143. For example,
a situation may arise here one party defines an ARO and the other
owners do not. In this situation, it would be helpful for the company
to review the circumstances behind why the one of the companies
chose to recognize an ARO. There could be instances where one
company has made commitments and the other company will need
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to have their legal staffs decide whether or not this promise could be
construed as their obligation, as well. However, legitimate
differences may occur between joint owners. Differences in the
amount of the estimated ARO may occur, but different judgments
about whether an ARO exists should be rare.

Hydro Production

a)

b)

Federal Government — many hydro dams are operated under
governmental water rights or flowage rights licenses issued by the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). These licenses
may not have explicit terms stating that a company is responsible for
removal or closure costs related to the ultimate retirement of the
dams. These dams have an extremely long useful life if operated and
maintained properly and it is often presumed that the asset will be
operated into perpetuity. Since removal of the dam property is not
required under current operations, there is no ARO arising from the
FERC licenses. But that may not always be the case. If the plant will
be decommissioned, an application to FERC would be made and if a
FERC order is issued, and the utility starts the surrender application
process, then an ARO would be created. Also, if a dam is structurally
impaired and legally, it must be removed, an ARO is created.

State Government — although the dams and spillways are controlled
by Federal licenses, there may be additional requirements placed on
the facility by the state or local agencies. A review of such
requirements may produce an ARO even though the review of the
Federal license did not.

Electric Transmission And Distribution

a)

b)

Transmission and Distribution Lines — a company may have transmission or
distribution lines that operate under property easement agreements. Most
utilities hold perpetual easements. Whether or not the easement is perpetual,
a company, in general, operates the transmission and distribution lines as if
the assets will be operated in perpetuity. If a perpetual easement were to be
released, a company may have a legal obligation to remove the lines, or in
some instances, a state may require removal if the entire line is retired. A
legal obligation may exist if the contract for the easement requires removal of
the lines at a given point. In both instances, legal counsel should be consulted
to determine whether a legal obligation exists. The issue of whether these
types of obligation can be measured is dealt with in the next section.

Interim Retirements - there are interim retirements of transmission and
distribution (T&D) plant that are components of the system occurring annually
that may have retirement obligations associated with them. These may be
due to environmental or other contractual agreements. Examples of these
would be wood poles and electrical equipment containing PCB'’s, such as
transformers and capacitors. However, where a utility intends to remove
PCB’s and return the unit to service, the PCB removal might constitute
maintenance cost rather than an ARO since it is not related to the retirement
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of an asset. The disposal of treated wood poles may be regulated under state
law and may require special handling and disposal. These retirements need
to be addressed for frequency and materiality to determine when the interim
retirement would fall within the scope of SFAS No. 143.

5. Gas Transmission and Distribution

a)

b)

Gas Transmission and Distribution Mains and Services — a company may
have a gas transmission or distribution system that operates under
property easement agreements. The company would usually hold
perpetual easements. If an easement were to be released, the company
may not have an obligation to remove the system but would allow a
retirement in place. In this case, no ARO is required. Gas pipelines
containing PCBs must meet certain requirements prior to abandonment or
when removed for disposal. These requirements may trigger an ARO. In
some instances, a state may require removal if the entire line is retired. In
this case the line would have an ARO. Generally, a company operates the
gas transmission and distribution system as if the assets will be operated in
perpetuity. A legal obligation may be construed to exist due to the
easement requiring removal of the lines or, if material, a requirement to cut
and cap the line at retirement. The issue of whether these types of
obligation can be measured is dealt with in the next section.

Interim Retirements - there are interim retirements of components of gas
transmission and distribution assets occurring annually. Some of these
may have retirement obligations due to environmental or other contractual
reasons. Generally, replacing sections of pipe or other interim replacement
of gas assets will not create an ARO as long as the replacement will satisfy
any material legal removal requirements (e.g., cutting and capping pipe).
Environmental-related disposal requirements, if any, should be addressed
based on materiality and timing.

6. Other Long-Lived Assets

a)

b)

Underground tanks could be considered as a retirement obligation. In
some instances, state requirements create an obligation when the tanks
are initially installed. In other cases, there are no legal obligations
surrounding the disposal of the tanks until the entity does something with
the land the tanks are on. (i.e., sells the property). In this latter case, a
legal obligation would exist, but the ARO may not be reasonably
determinable. There still may be no obligation if the clean-up is performed
under SOP 96-1.

Coal mines could possibly be considered an ARO with regard to potential
closure and/or site reclamation requirements. If the assumption is made
that the mines are the assets and they are reclaimed in 12-18 months,
there may not be an ARO as the mines would not be considered long-lived
assets. If the mines were open for longer periods and there are legal
reclamation requirements, then the reclamation at these mines may
constitute an ARO.

10
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7. Lease Obligations

a) SFAS No. 143 applies to companies that incur retirement obligations
including companies that lease assets to others. There may be costs
associated with a lease that should be recorded as an asset retirement
obligation.

b) An obligation to remove leasehold improvements at the end of the lease
may be an ARO under the Standard if the landlord can contractually
require the lessee to remove the leasehold improvements at the end of the
lease. The timing of the recognition of the ARO is when the obligating
event occurs (i.e., when the improvements are made that may later be
required to be removed).

c) Obligations of a lessee imposed by a lease agreement or by a party other
than the lessor that meet the definition of either minimum lease payments
or contingent rentals in paragraph 5 of FASB Statement No. 13,
“Accounting for Leases” are not within the scope of SFAS No. 143.

8. Remediation Responsibilities

a) SFAS No. 143 does not apply to obligations resulting from improper
operation of an asset or a system. Environmental damage that requires
immediate clean-up resulting from improper operations (e.g., an oil spill)
would probably be liable under SOP 96-1 and not subject to the Standard.

b) If the clean-up is delayed and can be completed with the system
retirement, it is determined as due to proper operations and is an obligation
under SFAS No. 143.

Measurement

Once it is determined that an asset retirement obligation falls within the scope of SFAS
No. 143 - the next step is measurement of the liability. The amount of the liability would
initially be measured at fair value. An entity shall recognize the fair value of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable
estimate of fair value can be determined. If a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot
be made in the period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability shall be
recognized when a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. In subsequent
periods, an entity would recognize any changes in the amount resulting from the
passage of time and revisions to either the timing or amount of estimated cash flows.

The initial measurement of the liability will be at fair value (i.e. the amount that an entity
would be required to pay in an active market to settle the asset retirement obligation).
The guidelines require a fair value measurement even though some entities may
perform the retirement activities using internal resources. If quoted market prices are
not available, an estimate of fair value can be calculated using valuation techniques
such as the expected present value method. SFAS No. 143 states “a present value
technique is often the best available technique with which to estimate the fair value of a
liability.” If a present value technique is used to estimate fair value, estimates of future

11
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cash flows used in that technique must be consistent with the objective of measuring
fair value. FASB Concepts Statement No. 7, “Using Cash Flow Information and Present
Value in Accounting Measurements,” discusses two present value techniques: a
traditional approach, in which a single set of estimated cash flows and a single interest
rate (a rate commensurate with the risk) are used to estimate fair value and an
expected cash flow approach, in which multiple cash flow scenarios that reflect the
range of possible outcomes and a credit-adjusted risk-free rate are used to estimate fair
value. The expected cash flow approach will usually be the only appropriate technique
for an ARO. In estimating the probability of estimated cash flows, if the probability is
evenly distributed around the estimate, no further probability assessment is required.

For periods subsequent to the initial measurement, entities are required to recognize
changes in the liability resulting from the passage of time and from revisions in the
timing or amount of estimated cash flows. Changes resulting from the passage of time
will increase the carrying amount of the liability over time and will be recognized as an
operating cost rather than as interest expense in the financial statements. Entities will
use the effective interest method and the credit-adjusted risk-free rate for interest
allocation to the liability. The objective of the method is to recognize a level effective
interest rate that is equivalent to the entity’s risk-free rate (rate of zero coupon US
Treasury bonds) adjusted for the entity’s credit standing. The credit-adjusted risk-free
rate may be adjusted as a result of the amount of funding that has been provided to an
external nuclear decommissioning trust based on its relationship to the related ARO.

Revisions in the timing or amount of estimated cash flows are to be recognized as
changes in the carrying amount of the liability and the related capitalized asset and are
to be measured using the current credit-adjusted risk-free rate for upward revisions, or
using the credit-adjusted risk-free rate applied in the initial measurement for downward
revisions. Such increments to retirement assets and liabilities will have to be tracked
and accounted for separately. The tracking of layers would be similar to the multiple
years cash flows demonstrated in Appendix A — “Multiple Year Cash Flows”.

The statement requires a company to recognize the present value of its total estimated
cash flows as a liability with a corresponding increase to the related long-lived asset.
Use of cost- accumulation-based estimated engineering studies or removal cost studies
might be discounted at the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate to record the
initial value of the liability, plus cumulative unrecognized interest accretion if the liability
occurred in the past. The cumulative effect adjustment for unrecognized depreciation
and accretion expense may be recoverable/refundable in rates and, therefore, a
company may recognize an additional regulatory asset/liability rather than a cumulative
adjustment to the income statement.

In developing expected retirement cash flows, most entities will use the expected
present value method due to the non-existence of an active market for settling ARO’s.
Removal costs should be based on gross removal costs instead of net. The estimated
salvage value is included in determining the depreciation base of the asset. Therefore,
the estimated salvage should be excluded from the cash flows used to estimate the
ARO. When an entity uses the expected present value method, the entity would need to
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incorporate assumptions into its cash flows that would reflect the assumptions that third
parties would be required to consider in order to take on the settlement of the obligation.
Such third party or market assumptions include the following:

a) The costs that a third party would incur in performing the tasks
necessary to retire the asset,

b) Other amounts that a third party would normally include such as
inflation, overhead, equipment charges, profit margin, and advances in
technology,

c) The extent that a third party’s costs or timing would differ due to
different future scenarios and relative probability,

d) The market risk premium that a third party would demand for them to
take on the risks (similar to a contingency factor).

An example would be two entities using nuclear decommissioning studies to determine
an ARO for their nuclear power plants. In one case, Entity A intends to decommission
their plant using internal resources. Entity B had planned to have their decommissioning
performed by a third party. Both entities reflected their intentions in their
decommissioning studies. In developing their ARO, Entity A would add assumptions
about profit margins, overheads and other third party costs to their ARO estimate,
similar to Entity B. Failure to include certain third party costs would be inconsistent with
SFAS No. 143.

Some general guidelines for determining whether to recognize an ARO and
corresponding examples are described below:

a) When it has been established that a liability exists, a cash flow can be
determined and there is a high or medium probability of the settlement date -
as is the case for nuclear decommissioning costs - a liability must be
recorded. Cash flows are estimated by cost-accumulation-based engineering
studies and the settlement date is provided by the license date.

b) When it has been established that a liability exists - a cash flow can be
determined but there is a low probability of the settlement date - the
measurement will reflect the low probability in the expected cash flows. An
example would be the removal of an asset when the retirement is indefinite.
Removal costs and a corresponding estimate of cash flows could be
obtained. However, since retirement is indefinite, no reasonable estimate of
the timing can be made. If a reasonable estimate can be made of the timing,
that probability estimate should be used in the expected cash flow analysis to
determine the ARO to be recorded.

c) When it has been established that a liability exists - a cash flow cannot be
determined and there is not a reasonable estimate of the settlement date - no
liability is recorded but disclosure of the ARO is required. In subsequent
periods, the ARO must be re-evaluated until sufficient information exists to
determine a reasonable estimate of fair value. Generally, mass assets such

13



Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 33 of 1053
Charnas

as transmission and distribution assets have indeterminate estimated cash
flows and settlement dates.

An entity shall disclose the following information about its asset retirement obligations:

a) A general description of the asset retirement obligations and the associated
long-lived assets,

b) The fair value of assets that are legally restricted for purposes of settling
asset retirement obligations,

c) A reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of
asset retirement obligations showing separately the changes attributable to
(1) liabilities incurred in the current period, (2) liabilities settled in the current
period, (3) accretion expense, and (4) revisions in estimated cash flows,
whenever there is a significant change in one or more of those four
components during the reporting period.

If the fair value of an asset retirement obligation cannot be reasonably estimated, that
fact and the reasons why must be disclosed. For the year of adoption, pro forma
disclosure is required for the amount of the liability for asset retirement obligations as if
SFAS No. 143 had been applied for all periods affected.

Calculation Process Overview

This section is intended to provide some general guidelines for the calculation and
measurement of ARO liabilities. The calculation of estimated cash flows and present
values, accretion, and depreciation with corresponding amounts needed for journal
entries will be illustrated. Examples for subsequent cash flow increases and decreases
will also be shown. An example footnote disclosure for interim retirements for regulated
companies is illustrated and the assumptions used for the multiple cash flows found in
Appendix A are summarized. Some general guidelines for the calculation and
measurement of ARO liabilities are as follows:

a) Estimates must be based on current active market pricing or prices for similar
valuation, not at a cost using internal labor resources.

b) If removal will take longer than one year, estimated cash flows should be
determined for each year.

c) The accretion schedule and present value depreciation schedules should be
prepared individually for each cash flow, rather than as a sum total.

d) If variable removal options exist, probability analysis should be done to
determine the appropriate cash flows. Also, if there is a potential license
extension, inflation factors should be applied to cash flows for the time
periods added.
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e) Re-evaluation of estimated cash flow: for increases in estimates, current risk-
free rates should be used; for decreases, the risk free rate in effect when the
original liability was calculated would be used.

f) If more than one generating unit is at a facility, depending on timing, each unit
may carry its own ARO. Additionally common-area removal costs are
presumed to be included with the final unit being removed. This could result in
a layering effect on the books.

g) Exclude salvage value from cash flow estimates.

h) New asset calculations would still apply except there would be no
accumulated depreciation or accretion to date when placed in service.

. Calculating Expected Cash Flows

Assumptions — for this example, the expected cash flows are based on the
components of the cost of removal including labor, overheads, contractor's mark-
up, and market risk-premium. The overhead rate is 80% of labor, a profit margin
based on contactor's mark-up of 20%, and a market risk premium of 5%. The
asset was placed in service on January 1, 1995 and has an estimated useful life
of 20 years; the implementation date is January 1, 2003. Inflation from the time
the asset was installed until the date of retirement is 4%. Removal expenditures
will take place in the year 2014. The credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 6.5% is used
to compute the expected present value. The cost of removal liability accrued to
date for a non-regulated company or the cost embedded in accumulated
depreciation for a regulated company is assumed to be $500,000.

Labor $200,000
OH & Equipment: (80% x 200,000) 160,000
Contractor’s Mark-up: (20% x (200,000 + 72,000
160,000))

Expected Cash Flows Before Inflation $432,000
Inflation Rate 4%
Inflated Cash Flows: 432,000 x (1 + 4%) ~ 20 946,565
Market Risk Premium (5% x 946,565) 47,328
Total Expected Cash Flows $993,893

Inflated Cash Flows: Cash Flows x (1 + rate) ™ #years
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2. Calculate the Present Value of the Estimated Cash Flows

Using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate, the future expected cash flows are present
valued to the point where the liability was incurred. In this example the asset life
is assumed to be 20 years.

Expected Cash Flow $993,893
Credit-Adjusted Risk-Free Rate 6.5%
Present Value 282,064

Present Value (Cash Flow / (1 + rate) ™ #years)
3. Calculate Accretion Schedule using the same risk-free rate

The present value is accreted over the life of the asset at the specific rate so at
the end of the term the total equals the future expected cash flows.

Annual Liability
Present Accretion Balance
Value
1995 282,064 18,334 300,398
1996 300,398 19,526 319,924
1997 319,924 20,795 340,719
1998 340,719 22,147 362,866
1999 362,866 23,586 386,452
2000 386,452 25,119 411,572
2001 411,572 26,752 438,324
2002 438,324 28,491 466,815
2003 466,815 30,343 497,158
2004 497,158 32,315 529,473
2005 529,473 34,416 563,889
2006 563,889 36,653 600,541
2007 600,541 39,035 639,577
2008 639,577 41,572 681,149
2009 681,149 44,275 725,424
2010 725,424 47,153 772,576
2011 772,576 50,217 822,794
2012 822,794 53,482 876,275
2013 876,275 56,958 933,233
2014 933,233 60,660 993,893

Annual Accretion = Present Value x Credit-Adjusted Risk-Free Rate
Liability Balance = Present Value + Annual Accretion
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4. Calculate Depreciation Expense Schedule

Present Value of the asset retirement cost is depreciated over the life of the

asset.

The total at end of the asset’s life must equal the Present Value.

Year Depreciation Expense
1995 14,103
1996 14,103
1997 14,103
1998 14,103
1999 14,103
2000 14,103
2001 14,103
2002 14,103
2003 14,103
2004 14,103
2005 14,103
2006 14,103
2007 14,103
2008 14,103
2009 14,103
2010 14,103
2011 14,103
2012 14,103
2013 14,103
2014 14,103
Total 282,064

Depreciation Expense = Present Value of $282,064 / 20 years (estimated useful

life)

5. Create Expense Worksheet (combine above schedules)

Annual accretion and annual depreciation of the Present Value are added
together to get the total new expenses. A total line can be inserted into the
worksheet to accumulate totals to date for use in the journal entry at
implementation.

Annual Annual
Accretion Depreciation Total
Expense Expense Expenses
1995 18,334 14,103 32,437
1996 19,526 14,103 33,629
1997 20,795 14,103 34,898
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Annual Annual
Accretion Depreciation Total
Expense Expense Expenses
1998 22,147 14,103 36,250
1999 23,586 14,103 37,689
2000 25,119 14,103 39,223
2001 26,752 14,103 40,855
2002 28,491 14,103 42,594
Totals
to Date 184,751 112,826 297,577
2003 30,343 14,103 44,446
2004 32,315 14,103 46,418
2005 34,416 14,103 48,519
2006 36,653 14,103 50,756
2007 39,035 14,103 53,138
2008 41,572 14,103 55,676
2009 44,275 14,103 58,378
2010 47,153 14,103 61,256
2011 50,217 14,103 64,321
2012 53,482 14,103 67,585
2013 56,958 14,103 71,061
2014 60,660 14,103 74,763
Total 711,831 282,062 993,893

Annual Accretion Expense + Annual Depreciation Expense = Total

Expenses

6. Summary of Journal data

Sample journal entries are shown in Appendix B. Information needed for journal

entry consideration is shown below:

Asset Retirement Liability (ARO) = PV

element

Asset Retirement Liability (ARO) = Accretion

to date element
Additional Accumulated depreciation = PV
depreciated thru 2002
2003 Depreciation Expense = PV
depreciation per schedule
2003 Accretion expense = per schedule

Amount
282,064

184,751
112,826
14,103

30,343
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7. Subsequent Cash Flow Increases

Increases in cash flows must use the current risk free rate.

Original Cash Flow Estimate 993,893 Year
2002
Original Risk- Free Rate used 6.50% Year
2002
Subsequent Revised Cash 1,493,893 Year
Flow 2003
DELTA Increase in Cash Flow 500,000 Year
2003
Current Risk Free Rate 7.50% Year
2003

New Layer of ARO

Incremental Increase 500,000
Present Value (500,000.00 / (1+7.5%) 209,927
N2)

PV Calculation = incremental cash flow / (1+rate)# Remaining years
(1995 + 20 years = 2015, 2015 - CY 2003 = 12 yr. Remaining)

New Layer of Accretion/Depreciation
Accretion Expense
Accretion expense is calculated using the new credit-adjusted risk-free rate in

effect at the time of the change in estimate (2003). The rate in effect in 2003 is
7.50%.

Annual Liability

Year Present Accretion Balance
Value Expense

2003 209,927 15,745 225,672
2004 225,672 16,925 242,597
2005 242,597 18,195 260,792
2006 260,792 19,559 280,351
2007 280,351 21,026 301,377
2008 301,377 22,603 323,981
2009 323,981 24,299 348,279
2010 348,279 26,121 374,400
2011 374,400 28,080 402,480
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Annual Liability
Year Present Accretion Balance
Value Expense
2012 402,480 30,186 432,666
2013 432,666 32,450 465,116
2014 465,116 34,884 500,000

Annual Accretion = Present Value x New Credit-Adjusted Risk-Free Rate
(209,927 x 7.5%)
Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense is calculated over the remaining life of the asset (12
years).

Year Depreciation Expense
2003 17,494
2004 17,494
2005 17,494
2006 17,494
2007 17,494
2008 17,494
2009 17,494
2010 17,494
2011 17,494
2012 17,494
2013 17,494
2014 17,494
Total 209,927

Annual Depreciation Expense = Present Value / Remaining Life of Asset
($209,927 /1 12)

Subsequent Cash Flow Decreases

Decreases in cash flow estimates must use the rate applied to the asset at the
time the original ARO was calculated.

Original Cash Flow Estimate 993,893 Year 2002
Original Risk- Free Rate 6.50% Year 2002
used
Subsequent Revised Cash 793,893 Year 2010
Flow

DELTA Decrease in Cash (200,000) Year 2010
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Flow
Original Risk-Free Rate Used 6.50% Year 2002
New Layer of ARO
Incremental Decrease (200,000)
Present Value (-200,000.00 / (1+6.5%) (145,976)

/\5)

PV Calculation = incremental cash flow / (1+rate)# Remaining years
(1995 + 20 years = 2015, 2015 - CY 2010 =5 yr. Remaining)

New Layer of Accretion/Depreciation
Accretion Expense

Accretion expense is calculated using the original credit-adjusted risk-free rate in
effect at the time of implementation. The rate in effect in 2002 is 6.50%.

Annual Liability

Year Present Accretion Balance
Value Expense

2010 (145,976) (9,488) (155,465)
2011 (155,465) (10,105) (165,570)
2012 (165,570) (10,762) (176,332)
2013 (176,332) (11,462) (187,793)
2014 (187,793) (12,207) (200,000)

Annual Accretion = Present Value x Original Credit-Adjusted Risk-Free Rate
(145,976 x 6.5%)

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense is calculated over the remaining life of the asset (5 years).

Year Depreciation Expense
2010 (29,195)
2011 (29,195)
2012 (29,195)
2013 (29,195)
2014 (29,195)
Total (145,976)

Annual Depreciation Expense = Present Value / Remaining Life of Asset
(145,976 / 5)
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Calculating Multiple Year Cash Flows — (See Appendix A)

Assumptions used for the calculation of multiple year cash flows in Appendix A are
shown below:

Nuclear Plant Dismantlement Schedule
e Assumptions
0 40 Year Life
0 4 years of estimated cash flows
o Placed in Service 1990
o Discount/Accretion Rate is 5%
e Estimated Annual Cash Flows
e Accretion Schedules
e PV Depreciation Schedules
Summary of Data for Journal Entry Consideration

Journal Entry Accounting for Regulated and Unregulated Operations

The purpose of this section is to provide accounting guidance on journal entry
preparation for both regulated and unregulated operations resulting from the
implementation of SFAS No. 143 including implementation, monthly journal entries
subsequent to implementation, settlement of the obligation, and the retirement of the
initial asset.

The impact on regulated entities resulting from SFAS No. 143 (implementation to
settlement) will be income neutral and will be reflected as a regulatory asset/liability on
the balance sheet as long as the recovery/refunding of the regulatory asset/liability is
probable under SFAS No. 71. To the extent such recovery/refunding is not probable,
there will be an impact on the income statement.

Journal entries from the example in Appendix B are shown for illustrative purposes.
See Appendix B for “Unregulated and Regulated Operations — ARO Journal Entry
Assumptions.”

Unregulated Operations

1) Journal Entries Required at Implementation: there are a number of journal entries
required at implementation to properly reflect the effect of SFAS No. 143. These journal
entries are:
e To record the initial fair value of the ARO asset and ARO liability,
e To record the effect of depreciation on the ARO asset from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation (offset is cumulative effect),
e To record the effect of accretion on the ARO liability from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation (offset is cumulative effect),
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e To record the reversal of gross cost of removal liability accrued to date (offset is
cumulative effect), if any

e To record taxes on the net cumulative effect on income (offset is cumulative
effect).

Consolidated Entry at Implementation

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Lona Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064
COR Liability Accrued to Date 500,000
Cumulative Effect Adjustments 111,333
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 112,826
ARO Liability - (New Account) 466,815
Taxes Payable 91,090

To record the Implementation of EAS 143

Individual Entries

To record the initial fair value of the ARO asset and ARO liability

Upon implementation of SFAS No. 143, the ARO liability (in current dollars) must be
future valued at the anticipated inflation rate to when the projected cash outflows will
occur and adjusted for a market risk premium as required by the Statement. The ARO
liability must then be present valued back to when the liability was first incurred using
the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. This present value of the future cash flows
at the time the liability was first incurred is the ARO asset, which is to be depreciated
using a systematic and rational allocation method. This amount is also the initial ARO
liability before any accretion on the ARO liability to date of implementation and beyond.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

Long Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064
ARO Liability - (New Account) 282,064
To record the initial present value of ARO liability

The ARO asset is valued at the present value of the liability at the time the liability is incurred.

The offset ARO Asset is the ARO Liability at implementation

To record the effect of depreciation on the ARO asset from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation

The ARO asset must be depreciated using a systematic and rational allocation method.
This adjustment to the cumulative effect is for the accumulated depreciation that would
have been recorded if the asset had been established at the time the ARO liability was
incurred to date of implementation of SFAS No. 143.
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DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Cumulative Effect Adjustment 112,826
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 112,826

To record cumulative effect of ARO depreciation

Assumes the ARO Asset is depreciated over the same life and method as the asset for which
the ARO is attached.

The total depreciation that would have been incurred if the asset was established at the time the
liability was incurred and depreciated to date is reflected as a Cumulative Effect of an Accounting Change.

To record the effect of accretion on the ARO liability from the time the liability
was incurred to implementation

The ARO liability must be accreted to the final future value of the ARO liability at the
company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. This adjustment to the cumulative effect is for
the total life to date accretion that would have occurred if the ARO liability was
established and accreted from the time the ARO liability was incurred to date of
implementation of SFAS No. 143.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

Cumulative Effect Adjustment 184,751
ARO Liability - (New Account) 184,751
To record cumulative effect of accretion expense

The ARO liability must be accreted to the anticipated cash outlay

The total accretion expense that would have been incurred if the liability was accreted from the time
the liability was incurred to date is reflected as a Cumulative Effect of an Accounting Change.

To record the reversal of gross cost of removal liability accrued to date

Any gross cost of removal liability accrued to date must be reversed from the balance
sheet and offset against the cumulative effect.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

COR Liability Accrued to Date 500,000
Cumulative Effect Adjustment 500,000
To record the reversal of COR liability accrued to date

The COR liability currently reflected on the Balance Sheet must be fully reversed.

The offset will be a Cumulative Effect of an Accounting Change.

To record taxes payable or receivable on the net cumulative effect

The tax effect (based on the company'’s effective tax rate) of the cumulative effect must
be reflected. Note: the deferred tax effect (based on the combined statutory tax rate) of
the associated cumulative book versus tax timing difference must be reflected but is not
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illustrated here. Deferred taxes need to be reflected at the combined statutory tax rate
equal to the cumulative book and tax timing recognition on an ongoing basis.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Cumulative Effect Adjustment (tax effect of total adjustments) 91,090
Taxes Payable 91,090
Tarecord taxes payable on cumulative effect

2) Monthly Journal Entries Subsequent to Implementation: there are a number of
journal entries that are required each month to properly reflect the effect of SFAS No.
143 on operations. These journal entries are:

e To record annual depreciation expense,

e To record annual accretion expense.

To record annual depreciation expense

Depreciation expense on the present value of the future cash flows at the time the
liability was first incurred (ARO asset) must be recorded using a systematic and rational
allocation method.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Depreciation Expense 14,103
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 14,103
To record annual depreciation expense for 2003

Assumes the ARO Asset is depreciated over the same life and method as the asset for which
the ARO is attached.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Depreciation Expense 250,000
Accumulated Depreciation 250,000
To record annual depreciation expense on $5,000,000 asset_for which ARO is attached

The $5,000,000 asset for which the ARO is attached is already in the G/L systems and is shown for illustrative purposes.

To record annual accretion expense

The ARO liability must be accreted at the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Accretion Expense (New Account) 30,343
ARO Liability - (New Account) 30,343
To record annual accretion expense for 2003

The liability at implementation must be accreted to the anticipated cash outlay.

3) Settlement of the obligation and the retirement of the initial asset: there are a number
of journal entries that are required at the time the asset for which the ARO is attached is
retired and the settlement of the ARO obligation is made to properly reflect the effect of
SFAS No. 143 on operations. These journal entries are:
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e To record retirement on asset for which the ARO is attached,
e To record retirement of ARO asset,
e To record gain or loss on settlement of ARO liability when liability is extinguished.

To record retirement on the asset for which the ARO is attached

The asset for which the ARO is attached is retired. Any gain or loss is to be reflected on
the company’s income statement. No gain or loss was assumed for this example.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

Accumulated depreciation 5,000,000
Fixed Asset 5,000,000
To record retirement of asset for which ARO is attached

The original asset for which the ARO is attached must be retired and any gain / loss reflected.

To record retirement of an ARO Asset

When the ARO asset is retired the difference between any cash inflow (none for ARO
assets) and the net book value of the ARO asset is to be reflected as a gain or loss on
the company’s income statement.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 282,064
Long Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064
To record the retirement of ARO asset

The ARO Asset must be retired from the G/L Systems and any gain or loss reflected.

To record gain or loss on settlement of an ARO liability

When the ARO liability is settled, any gain or loss resulting from the difference between
the ARO liability currently reflected on the balance sheet and the total actual cash
outflow to settle the liability must be reflected in operations. Any gain or loss should be
reflected when the last cash payment is made and the gain or loss can be accurately
calculated.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
ARO Liability - (New Account) 993,893
Cash/Accounts payable 900,000
Gain / Loss on ARO Settlement - (New Account) 93,893

To record the gain on settlement of ARO liability

A new account must be established to record any gain or loss from settlement of ARO Liability.
The gain / loss is calculated by the difference between what is accreted on the liability and the cash outlay.
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Regulated Operations

The impact on regulated entities resulting from SFAS No. 143 (implementation to
settlement) will be profit and loss neutral and will be reflected as a regulatory
asset/liability on the balance sheet as long as the recovery of the regulatory
asset/liability is probable under SFAS No. 71. Overall, the journal entries required at
implementation, subsequent to implementation and settlement are primarily the same
except that during implementation any cumulative effect that would have occurred in an
unregulated environment would be reflected generally as a regulatory asset/liability in a
regulatory environment to the extent the differences in ARO expense for SFAS No. 143
and ARO expense for ratemaking purposes will be reflected in rates. Any effect on
earnings going forward from implementation that would have been realized in an
unregulated environment would be reflected as a regulatory asset/liability in a regulated
environment.

1) Journal Entries Required at Implementation: there are a number of journal entries
required at implementation to properly reflect the effect of SFAS No. 143. These journal
entries are:
e Torecord the initial fair value of the ARO asset and ARO liability,
e To record accumulated depreciation on the ARO asset from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation (offset is regulatory asset/liability),
e To record accumulated accretion on the ARO liability from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation (offset is regulatory asset/liability),
e To record the reversal of gross cost of removal liability accrued to date (offset is
regulatory asset/liability).

Consolidated Entry at Implementation

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Long Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064
COR Liability Accrued to Date 500,000
Regulatory Asset / Liability (New Account) 202,423
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 112,826
ARO Liability - (New Account) 466,815
To record the Implementation of SFAS 143

Individual Entries

To record the initial fair value of the ARO asset and ARO liability

The journal entry to record the initial present value of the ARO asset and the ARO
liability at implementation is the same for both regulated and unregulated entities.

Upon implementation of SFAS No. 143, the ARO liability (in current dollars) must be
future valued at the anticipated inflation rate to when the projected cash outflows will
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occur and adjusted for a market risk premium as required by the Statement. The ARO
liability must then be present valued back to when the liability was first incurred using
the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. This present value of the future cash flows
at the time the liability was first incurred is the ARO asset to be depreciated using a
systematic and rational allocation method. This amount is also the initial ARO liability
before any accretion on the ARO liability to date of implementation and beyond.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

Long Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064

ARO Liability - (New Account) 282,064
To record the initial present value of ARO liability

The ARO asset is valued at the present value of the liability at the time the liability is incurred.

The offset ARO Asset is the ARO Liability at implementation

To record the effect of depreciation on the ARO asset from the time the ARO
liability was incurred to implementation

As with unregulated entities, the ARO asset must be depreciated using a systematic
and rational allocation method. The total accumulated depreciation that would have
been recorded if the asset were established at the time the ARO liability was incurred to
date of implementation of SFAS No. 143 is reflected as a regulatory asset/liability on the
regulated entity’s balance sheet rather than as a component of the cumulative effect.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 112,826
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 112,826

To record accumulated depreciation on ARO assets

Assumes the ARO Asset is depreciated over the same life and method as the asset for which
the ARO is attached.

The total depreciation that would have been incurred if the asset was established at the time the
liability was incurred and depreciated to date is reflected as a Regulatory Asset.

To record the effect of accretion on the ARO liability from the time the liability
was incurred to implementation

As with unregulated entities, the ARO liability must be accreted to the final future value
of the ARO liability at the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. The accumulated
accretion that would have occurred if the ARO liability was established and accreted
from the time the ARO liability was incurred to date of implementation of SFAS No. 143
is reflected as a regulatory asset/liability on the regulated entity’s balance sheet rather
than to the cumulative effect.
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DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 184,751
ARO Liability - (New Account) 184,751
To record accumulated accretion on ARO liability

The ARO liability must be accreted to the anticipated cash outlay

The total accretion expense that would have been incurred if the liability was accreted from the time
the liability was incurred to date is reflected as a Regulatory Asset.

To record the reversal of gross cost of removal liability accrued to date

The gross cost of removal liability accrued to date must be reversed from the balance
sheet (accumulated depreciation) and offset against the regulatory asset/liability.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

Accumulated Deprecation 500,000
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 500,000

To reclassify existing Cost of Removal to requlatory asset/liability

The COR liability currently reflected on the Balance Sheet must be fully reversed from the reserve.

The offset will be a Regulatory Liability.

2) Monthly Journal Entries Subsequent to Implementation: there are a number of
journal entries that are required each month to properly reflect the effect of SFAS No.
143 on operations. However, no depreciation on the ARO asset or accretion on the
ARO liability is reflected on the regulated entity’s income statement, but rather these
adjustments are recorded to the regulatory asset/liability on the balance sheet as the
effect of SFAS No. 143 is income neutral as long as recovery is probable under SFAS
No. 71. The entries to reflect both depreciation and accretion expense are originally
made to the appropriate expense category. However, the monthly amounts are then
adjusted from the expense category to a regulatory asset/liability. These journal entries
are:

e Torecord annual depreciation expense,

e To record annual accretion expense.

To record annual depreciation expense

The present value of the future cash flows at the time the liability was first incurred
(ARO asset) must be depreciated using a systematic and rational allocation method.
The difference between the depreciation being recovered in rates and the depreciation
for the ARO will be recorded as a regulatory asset/liability on the balance sheet.
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DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Depreciation Expense 14,103
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 14,103

To record annual depreciation expense

Assumes the ARO Asset is depreciated over the same life and method as the asset for which
the ARO is attached.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 14,103
Depreciation Expense 14,103
To reverse annual depreciation to regulatory asset/liability (Utility is I/S Neutral)

The monthly depreciation expense must be reflected against a Regulatory Asset so that all effects
of FAS 143 are Income Statement neutral.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Depreciation Expense 250,000
Accumulated Depreciation 250,000
To record annual depreciation expense on $5,00,000 asset_for which ARO is attached

The $5,000,000 asset for which the ARO is attached is already in the G/L systems and is shown for illustrative purpose

To record monthly accretion expense

Every month, the ARO liability must be accreted to the final future value of the ARO
liability at the company’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. The amount accreted is to be
reclassified to a regulatory asset/liability on the balance sheet.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Accretion Expense (New Account) 30,343
ARO Liability - (New Account) 30,343
To record annual accretion expense on ARO liability

The liability at implementation must be accreted to the anticipated cash outlay.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 30,343
Accretion Expense 30,343
To reverse annual accretion expense to requlatory asset/liability (Utility is I/S neutral)

The monthly depreciation expense must be reflected against a Regulatory Asset so that all effects
of FAS 143 are Income Statement neutral.

3) Settlement of the obligation and the retirement of the initial asset: there are a number
of journal entries that are required at the time the asset for which the ARO is attached is
retired and the settlement of the ARO obligation is made to properly reflect the effect of
SFAS No. 143 on operations. However, no gain or loss on the settlement of either the
ARO asset or the ARO liability is reflected on the regulated entity’s income statement,
but rather these adjustments are recorded to the regulatory asset/liability on the balance
sheet as the effect of SFAS No. 143 is profit and loss neutral as long as recovery of the
regulatory asset/liability is probable under SFAS No. 71. These journal entries are:

e To record retirement on the asset for which the ARO is attached,

e To record retirement of ARO asset,
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e To record settlement of ARO liability.

To record retirement of ARO Asset

When the ARO asset is retired the difference between any cash inflow (none for ARO
assets) and the net book value of the ARO asset is to be recorded to a regulatory asset
on the company’s balance sheet.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Accumulated Depreciation of ARO Asset - (New Account) 282,064
Long Lived Assets - ARO - (New Account) 282,064
To record the retirement of ARO asset

The ARO Asset must be retired from the G/L Systems and any gain or loss reflected.
The gain / loss is recorded to a Regulation Asset / Liability.

To record retirement on the asset for which the ARO is attached

When the asset for which the ARO is attached is retired any gain or loss is to be
reflected as a regulatory asset/liability or in the provision for accumulated depreciation,
or income statement depending on the asset and the regulatory accounting related to
that asset.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
Accumulated depreciation 5,000,000
Fixed Asset 5,000,000
To record retirement of asset for which ARO related

The original asset for which the ARO is attached must be retired and any gain / loss reflected.

To record settlement of the ARO liability

In a regulated environment, when the ARO liability is settled, the difference between the
ARO liability currently reflected on the balance sheet and the total actual cash outflow to
settle that liability must be recorded to a regulatory asset/liability on the balance sheet.
This adjustment should be made when the last cash payment is made and the
difference between the ARO liability on the balance sheet and total cash outflows can
be accurately calculated.

DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT
ARO Liability - (New Account) 993,893
Cash/Accounts payable 900,000
Regulatory Asset/Liability - (New Account) 93,893

To record the gain on settlement of ARO liability

The gain / loss is calculated by the difference between what is accreted on the liability and the cash outlay.
The gain / loss is recorded to a Regulation Asset / Liability.
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Other Considerations (Unregulated and Regulated Operations)

e The original asset for which the ARO is attached, the ARO asset and the ARO
liability must be linked within the General Ledger Systems.

e The original asset for with the ARO is attached, the ARO asset and the ARO liability
must be retired at the same time and any gain or loss recognized upon settlement
(unregulated).

e Corporate systems should be programmed to record monthly depreciation and
accretion expense so that manual entries are not required.

e Accretion on the ARO liability and depreciation on the ARO asset will stop upon
settlement.

(See Appendix B for Unregulated and Regulated Operations — ARO Journal Entry
Assumptions)

Financial Statement Disclosure
Requirements of the Standard

The final stage of implementing SFAS No. 143 is the complying with disclosure
requirements. The statement contains two disclosure requirements found in
paragraph 22 which are:

An entity shall disclose the following information about its asset retirement
obligations:

(a) A general description of the asset retirement obligations and the
associated long-lived assets,

(b) The fair value of assets that are legally restricted for purposes of
settling asset retirement obligations,

(c) A reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying
amount of asset retirement obligations showing separately the
changes attributable to (1) liabilities incurred in the current period,
(2) liabilities settled in the current period, (3) accretion expense,
and (4) revisions in estimated cash flows, whenever there is a
significant change in one of more of those four components during
the reporting period.

If the fair value of an asset retirement obligation cannot be reasonably
estimated, that fact and the reasons therefore shall be disclosed.

The second disclosure requirements involves a transition disclosure
requirement found in paragraph 27:

An entity shall compute on a pro forma basis and disclose in the

footnotes to the financial statements for the beginning of the
earliest year presented and at the end of all years presented the
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amount of the liability for asset retirement obligations as if this
Statement had been applied during all periods affected.

The pro forma amounts shall be computed using information current at the
time of adoption, current assumptions and current interest rates. It
appears that this transition disclosure is a one-time measurement since
the ongoing disclosure would replace this information going forward.

Appendix B of SFAS No. 143, titled “Background Information and Basis for
Conclusions,” provides some background information but does not provide any
additional guidance on disclosure. If an entity does not have assets that fall within the
scope of this Standard, there is no disclosure requirement.

For those entities with assets that fall within the scope of the Standard, the source of
information will obviously be available from the measurement, calculation process, and
journal entry process described previously. Without specific guidance, the content and
format of the disclosure will likely evolve over time. For many, the disclosure may take
the form of a separate footnote. The content and style of disclosure will likely vary
depending on such individual circumstances as the number or types of assets or the
related obligations, differences in measurement approaches, consolidations of
companies and business segments, and the materiality of the details. Other
circumstances affecting this disclosure for the gas and electric utility industry will be
related to application of SFAS No. 71, and the final conclusions by FERC in Docket
RMO02-7 that may involve changes in the Uniform System of Accounts to accommodate
SFAS No. 143.

Other transitional disclosure requirements

Until the Statement is implemented, there is a disclosure requirement for adoption of
new accounting pronouncements (SAB 74). Basically, an entity is to provide qualitative
or quantitative information, when available, about the expected impact of
implementation, updated quarterly.

Other related disclosure impacts

Disclosure

Additional disclosure issues exist beyond the requirements of the Statement such as
other notes to the financial statements involving property, depreciation, or estimates.
Current and proposed disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) should also be reviewed for additional SFAS No. 143 related disclosures.

Impairments

SFAS No. 143 will result in an increase in the carrying amount of an asset equal to the
calculated asset cost. As a result, a test of impairment and recoverability should be
performed in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."
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Record Keeping Issues

The Edison Electric Institute (EEI) and The American Gas Association (AGA) do not
support specific regulations related to record keeping requirements for ARO’s. As
companies develop strategies and methods for the implementation and on-going
reviews required for the Standard, various methods may evolve over time on how
ARO'’s will be determined and measured. Because of this, EElI and AGA believe that
companies should be allowed flexibility for maintaining the associated records. Basic
accounting guidelines require that companies maintain sufficient, detailed records in
order to support information provided in financial statements.

EEI and AGA have developed some suggested record keeping guidelines that may help
companies develop their own policies. They are as follows:

1) Documentation of communications with Business Units/Functions. The initial
documentation of these discussions should be very detailed and thorough. Each
year, a review of this documentation should be done to determine any changes,
new issues, etc.

2) Documentation of the due diligence analysis provided by the legal department as
to what is considered a legal obligation and why. This should also include
discussions surrounding issues that were ultimately not determined to be legal
obligations and why. The legal department should then perform an annual
review for any changes, new issues, etc. This should also include a review of the
Business Units/Functions documentation referred to in item 1) above.

3) Support for all items associated with the calculation of the ARO including, but not
limited to, the following:
e Third-party written estimates and related assumptions, or
e Internal cost estimates including assumptions for profits or mark-up,
overheads, market risk premium, etc.,
Timing of cash outflows,
Inflation rate,
Risk-free credit rate,
Estimated retirement dates,
Amortization schedules for interest accretion expense,
Depreciation schedules.

4) Support for ARO transactions and balances included in the regulatory asset and
liability accounts.

5) Periodic Audits - Companies should conduct regular audits for ARO’s subject to
SFAS No. 143. Companies should prepare written audit instructions that ensure
the following:

e A methodical review of company assets, plus the authorities that might
impose ARO'’s,
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e A procedure for sampling voluminous, repetitive records (e.g., form
contracts, easements),

e Arecord of the audit itself, including:
o0 personnel and records reviewed,

assets reviewed,

authorities reviewed with respect to each asset,

legal determination made as to each authority ,

basis of any cost calculations.

© O 0O
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Nuclear Plant Dism antlementSchedule

40 Year Life PresentValue at 5%

Placed in Service 1990
2030 400,000,000.00 56,818,272.92 40 years
2031 500,000,000.00 67,640,801.10 41 years 40 Years
2032 600,000,000.00 77,303,772.68 42 years
2033 200,000,000.00 24,540,880.22 43 years

1,700,000,000.00 226,303,726.91
Year Liability Bal 1/1 Accretion Liab Bal12/31 Year-End Accretion Exp Deprec. Exp Total Expens
5.0% Unit1 O riginal PV 56,818,272.92
1990 56,818,272.92 2,840,913.65 59,659,186 .57 1990 2,840,913.65 1,420,456 .82 4,261,370 .4
1991 59,659,186 .57 2,982,959.33 62,642,145.89 1991 2,982,959.33 1,420,456 .82 4,403,416.1
1992 62,642,145.89 3,132,107.29 65,774,253.19 1992 3,132,107.29 1,420,456 .82 4,552,564.1
1993 65,774,253.19 3,288,712.66 69,062,965.85 1993 3,288,712.66 1,420,456 .82 4,709,169 .4
1994 69,062,965.85 3,453,148.29 72,516,114.14 1994 3,453,148.29 1,420,456 .82 4.,873,605.1
1995 72,516,114.14 3,625,805.71 76,141,919 .85 1995 3,625,805.71 1,420,456 .82 5,046,262.5
1996 76,141,919.85 3,807,095.99 79,949,015 .84 1996 3,807,095.99 1,420,456 .82 5,227,552.8
1997 79,949,015 .84 3,997,450.79 83,946,466 .63 1997 3,997,450.79 1,420,456 .82 5,417,907.6
1998 83,946,466 .63 4,197,323.33 88,143,789.96 1998 4,197,323.33 1,420,456 .82 5,617,780.1
1999 88,143,789.96 4,407,189.50 92,550,979 .46 1999 4,407,189.50 1,420,456 .82 5,827,646.3
2000 92,550,979 .46 4.,627,548.97 97,178,528 .44 2000 4,627,548.97 1,420,456 .82 6,048,005.8
2001 97,178,528 .44 4,858,926 .42 102,037,454.86 2001 4,858,926 .42 1,420,456 .82 6,279,383.2
2002 102,037,454.86 5,101,872.74 107,139,327.60 2002 5,101,872.74 1,420,456 .82 6,522,329.5
TTLS to D ate 50,321,054.638 18,465,938.70

2003 107,139,327.60 5,356,966.38 112,496,293.98 2003 5,356,966.38 1,420,456 .82 6,777,423.2
2004 112,496,293.98 5,624,814.70 118,121,108.68 2004 5,624,814.70 1,420,456 .82 7,045,271.5
2005 118,121,108.68 5,906,055.43 124,027,164.11 2005 5,906,055.43 1,420,456 .82 7,326,512.2
2006 124,027,164.11 6,201,358.21 130,228,522.32 2006 6,201,358.21 1,420,456 .82 7,621,815.0
2007 130,228,522.32 6,511,426.12 136,739,948 .43 2007 6,511,426.12 1,420,456 .82 7,931,882.9
2008 136,739,948 .43 6,836,997 .42 143,576,945.86 2008 6,836,997 .42 1,420,456 .82 8,257,454 .2
20009 143,576,945.86 7,178,847.29 150,755,793.15 20009 7,178,847.29 1,420,456 .82 8,599,304.1
2010 150,755,793.15 7,537,789.66 158,293,582.81 2010 7,537,789.66 1,420,456 .82 8,958,246 .4
2011 158,293,582.81 7,914,679.14 166,208,261.95 2011 7,914,679.14 1,420,456 .82 9,335,135.9
2012 166,208,261.95 8,310,413.10 174,518,675.04 2012 8,310,413.10 1,420,456 .82 9,730,869.9
2013 174,518,675.04 8,725,933.75 183,244,608.80 2013 8,725,933.75 1,420,456 .82 10,146,390.5
2014 183,244,608.80 9,162,230.44 192,406,839.24 2014 9,162,230.44 1,420,456 .82 10,582,687.2
2015 192,406,839.24 9,620,341.96 202,027,181.20 2015 9,620,341.96 1,420,456 .82 11,040,798.7
2016 202,027,181.20 10,101,359.06 212,128,540.26 2016 10,101,359.06 1,420,456 .82 11,521,815.8
2017 212,128,540.26 10,606,427 .01 222,734,967.27 2017 10,606,427 .01 1,420,456 .82 12,026,883.8
2018 222,734,967.27 11,136,748.36 233,871,715.63 2018 11,136,748.36 1,420,456 .82 12,557,205 .1
2019 233,871,715.63 11,693,585.78 245,565,301 .42 2019 11,693,585.78 1,420,456 .82 13,114,042.6
2020 245,565,301 .42 12,278,265.07 257,843,566.49 2020 12,278,265.07 1,420,456 .82 13,698,721.8
2021 257,843,566.49 12,892,178.32 270,735,744 .81 2021 12,892,178.32 1,420,456 .82 14,312,635.1
2022 270,735,744 .81 13,536,787 .24 284,272,532.05 2022 13,536,787 .24 1,420,456 .82 14,957 ,244.0
2023 284,272,532.05 14,213,626.60 298,486,158.65 2023 14,213,626.60 1,420,456 .82 15,634,083 .4
2024 298,486,158.65 14,924,307.93 313,410,466.59 2024 14,924,307.93 1,420,456 .82 16,344,764.7
2025 313,410,466.59 15,670,523.33 329,080,989.92 2025 15,670,523.33 1,420,456 .82 17,090,980.1
2026 329,080,989.92 16,454,049.50 345,535,039 .41 2026 16,454,049.50 1,420,456 .82 17,874,506.3
2027 345,535,039.41 17,276,751.97 362,811,791.38 2027 17,276,751.97 1,420,456 .82 18,697,208.7
2028 362,811,791.38 18,140,589 .57 380,952,380.95 2028 18,140,589 .57 1,420,456 .82 19,561,046.3
2029 380,952,380.95 19,047,619.05 400,000,000.00 2029 19,047,619.05 1,420,456 .82 20,468 ,075.8
2030 400,000,000.00
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Year

90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
2000
2001
2002
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2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031

Liability Bal 1/1

7,640,801
1
4,573,983
8,302,682
2
6,328,707
0,645,142
5
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,936,269
104,933,083

110,179,737
.33
.54

115,688,724
121,473,160

127,546,818
133,924,159

140,620,367.
.85
14

147,651,385
155,033,955

162,785,652.
170,924,935,
.32
44

179,471,182
188,444,741

197,866,978.
43
81

207,760,327
218,148,343

229,055,761,
.05
.50

240,508,549
252,533,976

265,160,675
.09
.54

278,418,709
292,339,644

306,956,626 .
11
01

322,304,458
338,419,681

355,340,665
.32
.23

373,107,698
391,763,083

411,351,237
27
.23

431,918,799
453,514,739

476,190,476.
.00

500,000,000

,022,841.
.21
.37
,217,816.
.31
.68
, 177,399
.80
.29

.10

15

49

81

46

57
.50

48

90
54

51

00

32

77

07

40

19

Accretion

5.
82,040.
51,142,
28,699,
15,134,
10,890.
16,435,
32,257,
58,869.
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46,654,
08,986.
84,436.
73,658.
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8,973,559
9,422,237

9,893,348.
37
.19

10,388,016
10,907,417

11,452,788.
45
.82

12,025,427
12,626,698

13,258,033.
45
.23

13,920,935
14,616,982

15,347,831.
91
.05

16,115,222
16,920,984

17,767,033.
92
.16

18,655,384
19,588,154

20,567,561,
.96
.96

21,595,939
22,675,736

23,809,523

377,340.
696,207.
,031,018.
382,569.
751,697.
,139,282.
8,546,246.
12
.07

X
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78

93

05

77

34

25

87

81

Liab Bal 12/31

71,022,841

74,573,983,
37
49

78,302,682
82,217,816

86,328,707
.68
81

90,645,142
95,177,399

99,936,269
.29
46

104,933,083
110,179,737

115,688,724,
.54
57

121,473,160
127,546,818

133,924,159
140,620,367

147,651,385,
14
.90

155,033,955
162,785,652

170,924,935,
179,471,182,
44
51

188,444,741
197,866,978

207,760,327
81
.00

218,148,343
229,055,761

240,508,549
.50
.32

252,533,976
265,160,675

278,418,709
.54
17

292,339,644
306,956,626

322,304,458
01
.07

338,419,681
355,340,665

373,107,698.
.23
40

391,763,083
411,351,237

431,918,799
.23
19

453,514,739
476,190,476

500,000,000.

.15

21

31

80

33

.50
.48

85

54
32

43

05

09

11

32

217

00

Year-End

Unit 1
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

TTLS to Date
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
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Accretion Exp

Deprec. Exp

Original PV 67,640,801.10
3,382,040.05 1,649,775.64
3,551,142.06 1,649,775.64
3,728,699.16 1,649,775.64
3,915,134.12 1,649,775.64
4,110,890.82 1,649,775.64
4,316,435.37 1,649,775.64
4,532,257.13 1,649,775.64
4,758,869.99 1,649,775.64
4,996,813.49 1,649,775.64
5,246,654.16 1,649,775.64
5,508,986.87 1,649,775.64
5,784,436.22 1,649,775.64
6,073,658.03 1,649,775.64
59,906,017 .48 21,447,083.27
6,377,340.93 1,649,775.64
6,696,207.98 1,649,775.64
7,031,018.37 1,649,775.64
7,382,569.29 1,649,775.64
7,751,697.76 1,649,775.64
8,139,282.64 1,649,775.64
8,546,246.78 1,649,775.64
8,973,559.12 1,649,775.64
9,422,237.07 1,649,775.64
9,893,348.93 1,649,775.64
10,388,016.37 1,649,775.64
10,907,417.19 1,649,775.64
11,452,788.05 1,649,775.64
12,025,427 .45 1,649,775.64
12,626,698.82 1,649,775.64
13,258,033.77 1,649,775.64
13,920,935.45 1,649,775.64
14,616,982.23 1,649,775.64
15,347,831.34 1,649,775.64
16,115,222 .91 1,649,775.64
16,920,984.05 1,649,775.64
17,767,033.25 1,649,775.64
18,655,384.92 1,649,775.64
19,588,154.16 1,649,775.64
20,567,561.87 1,649,775.64
21,595,939.96 1,649,775.64
22,675,736.96 1,649,775.64
23,809,523.81 1,649,775.64

37

41 Years

Total Expense
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9
10
10
11
11
12
12
13
13
14
14
15
16
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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Appendix A — Multiple Year Cash Flows
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Accretion Exp

Deprec. Exp

Original PV 77,303,772.68
3,865,188.63 1,840,566.02
4,058,448.07 1,840,566.02
4,261,370.47 1,840,566.02
4,474,438.99 1,840,566.02
4,698,160.94 1,840,566.02
4,933,068.99 1,840,566.02
5,179,722 .44 1,840,566.02
5,438,708.56 1,840,566.02
5,710,643.99 1,840,566.02
5,996,176.19 1,840,566.02
6,295,985.00 1,840,566.02
6,610,784.25 1,840,566.02
6,941,323.46 1,840,566.02
68,464,019.97 23,927,358.21
7,288,389.63 1,840,566.02
7,652,809.11 1,840,566.02
8,035,449.57 1,840,566.02
8,437,222.05 1,840,566.02
8,859,083.15 1,840,566.02
9,302,037.31 1,840,566.02
9,767,139.17 1,840,566.02
10,255,496.13 1,840,566.02
10,768,270.94 1,840,566.02
11,306,684.49 1,840,566.02
11,872,018.71 1,840,566.02
12,465,619.65 1,840,566.02
13,088,900.63 1,840,566.02
13,743,345.66 1,840,566.02
14,430,512.94 1,840,566.02
15,152,038.59 1,840,566.02
15,909,640.52 1,840,566.02
16,705,122.55 1,840,566.02
17,540,378.67 1,840,566.02
18,417,397.61 1,840,566.02
19,338,267 .49 1,840,566.02
20,305,180.86 1,840,566.02
21,320,439.90 1,840,566.02
22,386,461.90 1,840,566.02
23,505,784.99 1,840,566.02
24,681,074.24 1,840,566.02
25,915,127.96 1,840,566.02
27,210,884.35 1,840,566.02
28,571,428.57 1,840,566.02

38
42 Years

Total Expense
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Year

1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

003
004
005
00
00
00
00
1

o

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o o o o
W N NN NN RNDNNDNDER PR B PP PP e

2031

2032
2033

Liability Bal 1/1

24,540,880

25,767,924

27,056,320
28,409,136

29,829,593,

31,321,072
32,887,126
4,531,482
6,258,057
8,070,959

1,973,233

6,275
8,589
1,018
3,569
6,248
9,060
2,013
5,114
8,369
1,788
5,377
9,146
3,104
7,259
1,622
6,203
1,013
6,064
111,367
116,935
122,782
128,921
135,367
142,136
149,243
156,705
164,540
172,767
181,405

190,476
200,000

© 0 O N NN o o oo~ DN

©

10
10

3
3
3
39,974,507
4
4

48
26
72
,66
14
,55

26
97
47
,89
79
13

,337.
,304.
,419.
,590.
,270.
,483.
,857.
,650.
,783.
,872.
66 .
79.

9
4
7
3
6
4
,582
1
4
2
6
1
0

2

0
2
4
5
8
1
0

33

94.
19.

95

90.
00.

o M OO B OO N P O W ®O© oo M~NDN
N O N N O N W N o O B © O w NN W

O B~ O N © D W o
O 0 O P O W W w

.2

2

.4
.4

2

.9
.5
.9
.0
.9
.9
.3
4,071,894,

~N ©® o P o
= N w o

BN

2
3
4
6
8
5
9
2
7
2
2
2

[

Accretion

1
1
1
1

L I I e e S N

5

P © N OB NP © 0o 0w
o o1 o 0 kB 01 O U1 P N O N

O P N W N O PR P ON WO~~~

23

w
(=2}
N

,581
,810
,050
,303
,568
,846
,139
446

3,774,
9,463.
0,936.
8,483.
2,407,
3,027,
0,679.
5 13.
8,498.
9
8
7
5

94.
39.
06 .
66 .
15.
70.
79.
13.
74.
92.
32.
89.
,768,393.
,106,813.
, 462,153
,835,261.
,227,024.
,638,375.
,070,294.
,523,809.

o Ul Ul 0O NO R NWRE WS

.0 %
,227,04 4.
,288,396.
,352,816.
,420,456 .
491,479,
,566,053.
,644,356.
, 726,574,
,812,902.
,903,548.
,998,725.
,098,661.
,203,594.

o O N o
NN P

~N o A O ®©®EFE W o o
O N O ©O U Ul W g o

Ul N WO, O N U © N ©

oo N
w o N

= 01 ©® kO
o b~ © © -

w o
o N

© N o ©
© o o -

o~
N oo

Liab Bal12/31

1
1

I e N e

5

o M P © 0o MNP © 0

©W 0 00 N N N o o o oo oo

96
01
06
11
16
22
28
35
42
49
56
64
72
81
90
00

, 767,924
,056,320.
,409,136
,829,593
,321,072.
887,126
,531,482
,258,057
,070,959
, 974,507
,973,233
,071,894
,275,489

,589,264.
,018,727
,569,663
,248,146.
,060,554
,013,582
, 114,261,
, 369,974
, 788,472
, 377,896
, 146,791
,104,130
,259,337.
,622,304
,203,419
,013,590
,064,270
, 367,483
935,857
,782,650.
,921,783
, 367,872
,136,266
243,079
, 705,233
,540,494.
, 767,519,
,405,895.
476,190
,000,000.

.23

44

46
.28

95

.59
92
07
92
92
.32
.98
73

22

43
.80

99

.34
.06

16

22
.93

57

40
97

52

40
.62
.60
.13
.64
.82

71

24
41
.03
.33
.29

96
71
69
48
00

Year-End

Unit 1

TTLS

19
19
19
19
19
19
19
19
19
19
20
20
20

90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
00
01
02

to D ate

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

20
20

03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33

Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 58 of 1053
Charnas

Accretion Exp

Deprec. Exp

Original PV 24,540,880.22
1,227,044.01 570,718.14
1,288,396.21 570,718.14
1,352,816.02 570,718.14
1,420,456.82 570,718.14
1,491,479.66 570,718.14
1,566,053.65 570,718.14
1,644,356.33 570,718.14
1,726,574.15 570,718.14
1,812,902.85 570,718.14
1,903,548.00 570,718.14
1,998,725.40 570,718.14
2,098,661.67 570,718.14
2,203,594.75 570,718.14
21,734,609.52 7,419,335.88
2,313,774.49 570,718.14
2,429,463.21 570,718.14
2,550,936.37 570,718.14
2,678,483.19 570,718.14
2,812,407.35 570,718.14
2,953,027.72 570,718.14
3,100,679.10 570,718.14
3,255,713.06 570,718.14
3,418,498.71 570,718.14
3,589,423.65 570,718.14
3,768,894.83 570,718.14
3,957,339.57 570,718.14
4,155,206.55 570,718.14
4,362,966.88 570,718.14
4,581,115.22 570,718.14
4,810,170.98 570,718.14
5,050,679.53 570,718.14
5,303,213.51 570,718.14
5,568,374.18 570,718.14
5,846,792.89 570,718.14
6,139,132.54 570,718.14
6,446,089.16 570,718.14
6,768,393.62 570,718.14
7,106,813.30 570,718.14
7,462,153.97 570,718.14
7,835,261.66 570,718.14
8,227,024.75 570,718.14
8,638,375.99 570,718.14
9,070,294.78 570,718.14
9,523,809.52 570,718.14

39

43 Years

Total Expense

1,797,762
1,859,114
1,923,534
1,991,174
2,062,197
2,136,771
2,215,074
2,297,292
2,383,621
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2,669,379
2,774,312
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Appendix A — Multiple Year Cash Flows

Summary of Data for Journal Entry Consideration
January 1, 2003
Long-lived asset increase (asset retirement cost)
Accumulated Depreciation on the Books (To date Decommission Fund + Fund Eamings Tttls)
Cumulative-effect adjustment DR = UNDERFUNDED CR = OVERFUNDED
Accumulated Depreciation
ARO liability

Total
December 31, 2003

Depreciation exp annual 2003
Accumulated dep annual 2003

Accretion exp annual 2003
ARO liability 2003

Total

Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 59 of 1053

Charnas
Debit Credit
226,303,726.91 Present Value
Calculated YE 2002
271,685,417.71
71,259,716.06 PV Depreciated through 2002
426,729,428.56 Accretion to Date PLUS PV
497,989,144.62 497,989,144.62
5,481,516.62 Per schedule summed 2003 from each schedule
5,481,516.62
21,336,471.43 Per schedule summed 2003 from each schedule
21,336,471.43
26,817,988.05 26,817,988.05

40
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Appendix B — Unregulated and Regulated Operations ARO Journal EA#{PAssumptions

Implementation Date:

Date Asset was placed in service;

Asset Useful Life:

Retirement Date:

Future Value (Inflation) Rate:

Discount Rate (Credit-adjusted risk-free rate):

Contractor's Mark-up:

Market Risk Premium

COR Liability Accrued to Date or Cost embedded in Accumulated Depreciation:
Cash Payment to settle ARO on 12/31/14:

Depreciation is calculated based on:

Accretion is calculated by using the credit-adjusted risk-free rate
Original Asset Value (for which ARO is attached)

Corporate tax rate:

Initial Measurement of the ARO liability at 01/01/03

Labor

Overheads & Equipment (80% X $200.000)
Contractor's Mark-up (20% X ($200,000 + $160,000)
Expected Cash Flows Before Inflation

Expected Cash Flows Adjusted for Inflation
Inflation Factor assuming 4% for 20 years ($432,000 X (1 + 4%) ~ 20)
From 01/01/95 to 12/31/14

Market Risk Premium ($946,565 X 5%)
Total Expected Cash Flows (1)

Present Value using the credit-adjusted risk-free rate ($993,893 /(1 + 6.5%) ~ 20) (2)

01/01/03
01/01/95
20
12/31/14
4%

6.5%
20%

5%
$500,000
$900,000
20

6.5%
$5,000,000
45.0%

$200,000
$160,000
$72.000

$432.000

$946,565

$47.328

$9903.893

$282.064

NOTE:

date (assuming 01/01/03 in this example) to 12/31/14 at a rate of 6.5%. G/L Systems should be programmed to calculate

(2) The initial ARO liability as of 01/01/03 and the capitalized asset cost is to be provided. No GL calculation will be required.

(1) The amount represents the future value of the ARO (i.e., the anticipated liability amount (expected cash flow) when the asset is
removed. This is the amount that the current liability ($282,064+$184,751 = $466,815) would accrete to every month from implementation

the monthly accretion from the original liability ($466,815) to the expected cash flows at 12/31/14). Total final liability is $993,893.

ADDITIONAL CONFIGURATION REQUIREMENTS:

1. There must be a way to link the original asset ($500,000) and ARO asset ($282,064) and the liability ($466,815 to $993,893)
2. The original asset, ARO asset and ARO liability must be retired at the same time. The accretion on the ARO liability stops
upon settlement.
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LG&E Energy LLC

Supporting Papers
FIN 47 Implementation

December 31, 2005
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Executive Summary

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations
(SFAS No. 143). LG&E Energy LLC and associated Companies (the Company) adopted
SFAS No. 143 as of January 1, 2003.

SFAS No. 143 resulted in a significant accounting change for the Company and its
regulated utilities. The standard changed the way companies recognize and measure
legal retirement obligations that result from the acquisition, construction and normal
operation of tangible long-lived assets. A legal obligation is an obligation that a party is
required to settle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance, or contract.
Please refer to the Appendix A for the “SFAS No. 143 Supporting Papers”
document for details (executive summary, journal entries, etc) of the
implementation of SFAS No. 143. A binder is also kept in Property Accounting
Department which contains this same document as well as detailed attachments.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 143 (FIN 47). FIN 47 clarifies that the term “conditional asset
retirement obligation” as used in SFAS No. 143 refers to a legal obligation to perform an
asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation
to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists
about the timing and/or method of settlement. An entity is required to recognize a
liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of
the liability can be reasonably estimated. Stated otherwise: While the initial
implementation of SFAS No. 143 required the accrual of an asset retirement obligation
(ARO) liability for legally required removal costs, AROs were not recorded for legally
required disposal costs related to assets which themselves were never legally required to
be retired. Therefore, even though a legal requirement may have existed to dispose of
items such as asbestos once the building was leveled, there was no legal requirement to
level the building (it could be abandoned in place), and so no ARO was recorded under
SFAS 143. FIN 47 has provided interpretative guidance around this issue which will
result in the establishment of AROs for these “conditional” obligations based on the
premise that, barring intervening circumstances, the building containing the asbestos will
be removed from service as a result of its eventual deterioration. The ability of an entity
to indefinitely defer settlement of an ARO does not relieve the entity of the obligation.
Implicit in this conclusion is the belief that no tangible asset will last forever (except
land).

As a result of the issuance of FIN 47, the Company has established additional AROs.
The accounting treatment for the establishment of these additional AROs under FIN 47
remains the same as AROs set up under SFAS No. 143. LG&E and KU evaluated the
| impact of this pronouncement and have identified a list of possible AROs including:
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asbestos, PCBs and other contaminants, hydro generation, treated poles, manholes, tires,
water pump structures and various gas storage and distribution assets.

FIN 47 is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005
(December 31, 2005 for the Company). The cumulative effect of initially applying FIN
47 will be recognized as a change in accounting principle. Pro forma disclosures are
required in the footnotes to the financial statements for the beginning of the earliest year
presented and at the end of all years presented for the amount of the liability for AROs as
if FIN 47 had been applied during all periods affected.

[Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Analysis,
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Analysis of FIN 47, which began in second quarter 2005, was a coordinated effort of
accounting, legal, environmental, operations and senior management personnel. Much of
the preliminary work required to identify possible assets which might fall within the
scope of FIN 47 had been completed during the original implementation of SFAS No.
143.  Various documents from the SFAS No. 143 implementation were reviewed
including the legal review memo prepared by the Legal Department and the SFAS No.
143 Executive Summary prepared by Property Accounting. A list of assets was compiled
based on the review of these documents and included assets specifically (asbestos, treated
poles) mentioned in FIN 47.

A general overview of assets identified by functional group follows.

Overview

KU and LG&E have certain electrical equipment containing PCBs, such as transformers
and capacitors, which require special disposal. Although, both companies undertook a
program in the 1980s to replace this PCB impaired equipment, plant and distribution
personnel were utilized to determine if additional ARO liabilities existed, in accordance
with FIN 47. The review found that distribution transformers, containing PCB oil, were
remediated prior to the enactment of FASB 143 and that necessary AROs for PCB
contaminated oil related to GSUs (Generator Step-Up Transformer’s) and oil storage
tanks were established under FASB 143. No additional AROs are needed, under FIN 47,
related to PCB oil.

Batteries are used in substation areas to power equipment when electricity is shut down at
generating facilities. Steve Legler, Fred Jackson, Bryan Baker, Russell Baker and Sam
Carr provided the estimates of disposal, in accordance with FIN 47. The implementation
ARO liability for 14 locations averages $1.019 each. The total estimated costs, from all
sources, associated with the disposal of the batteries are considered immaterial for
purposes of FIN 47 and thus no ARO liability is being established.

Remediation of lead paint is an environmental issue. Steve Legler offered guidance in
this area. Steve indicated that there are several ways to remediate the lead paint. The
| cost of the remediation varies greatly with the method selected. _As pSinee-there-are-ne
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cost of remedlatlon would be expensed as mcurred A Hisnotreasonable-to-estimatea
-scenario does not currently exists that
would require an ARO liability for lead paint. Therefore, no ARO liability for lead paint

will-be-setupis being established.

Generation
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Neither LG&E nor KU identified a legal obligation to demolish steam generating plants
or restore the land to “green field condition” when a power plant is decommissioned.
The utilities’ past practice has been to secure retired generating sites in a safe manner and
abandon the plant in place. Although no legal obligation exists for the generating units as
a whole, a potential ARO was identified for the removal and disposal of asbestos
contained in the generating plants. All of the Company’s steam generation plants, with
the exception of Trimble County, were constructed before 1980. Asbestos is commonly
found in assets constructed prior to 1980. Some asbestos abatement has been performed
in the past years, but based on discussion with representatives from the various plants, it
was determined that much asbestos remained to be abated. Several meetings were held
with plant personnel to determine the best method of quantifying asbestos removal and
disposal costs associated with generation assets. Ultimately, the group determined that a
reasonable estimate could be made based on quotes received from NEC, a reputable
company experienced in asbestos abatement. Accordingly, an ARO was established for
asbestos at the applicable generating plants.

Inquires were also made of generation personnel to determine if any legal liabilities exist
with regard to coal docks and bridges and tunnels. No additional legal liabilities were
identified by the Legal Department. Accordingly, no ARO will be established for these
items.

Hydro Generation
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A
LG&E operates its Ohio Falls plant under a 30-year licensing agreement with the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers. This agreement requires the dam to be restored to the Corps’
specifications upon abandonment of the plant. The Company has renewed the licensing
agreement with the Corps of Engineers continually since the plant’s construction and
expects to renew the agreement continually at each expiration date. FThe Corps has not
indicated the specifications required upon abandonment of the plant. As no
spemﬁcatlons have been made the current ARO liability estimate for this item would be
§ A e i atified and as such no

ARO l1ab1hty is bemg estabhshed

KU owned the Lock 7 and Dix Dam hydro facilities during 2005. Lock 7 was sold as of
December 29, 2005 thus negating the need of an ARO liability. A legal review of the
hydro license for Dix Dam found no specific legal obligation upon the final
decommissioning of the plant. It should be noted, however, that permitting authorities,
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particularly FERC, have significant inherent discretion in setting conditions to permit a
surrender of a permit. These conditions are based upon the specific facts, issues and
concerns at the time of decommissioning. FERCs requirements upon abandonment
cannot be reasonably quantified and as such no ARO liability is being established.

An ARO will be established for Ohio Falls asbestos abatement. Documentation from
Dan Kremer, Manager Commercial Operations, regarding Asbestos abatement at Ohio
Falls is based on actual removal cost of Unit 7 in 2005 plus additional costs associated
specifically with Ohio Falls.

An ARO will be established for Dix Dam asbestos abatement. Documentation from Sam
Carr, Manager Commercial Operations, regarding Asbestos abatement at Dix Dam is
based on analysis provided by Dave Beck.

General Facilities
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Per discussions with Jerry Grant, Manager-Office Services, and Karan Kapp, Senior
Budget & Cost Analyst, Facilities, many office buildings, service centers and business
offices owned by KU and LG&E contain asbestos. Jerry and Karan were able to identify
which facilities contained asbestos based on a comprehensive facility survey which had
been undertaken earlier in 2005. Based on this information, an estimate for asbestos
removal and disposal was calculated using estimates from reputable vendors and industry
standards. The Excel model constructed by Karan Kapp to calculate this estimate was
also provided to Transmission, Distribution and Gas in order to facilitate estimates for
asbestos in those areas. An ARO for facility asbestos will be established.

Electric Transmission and Distribution

A review of the electric transmission substations was completed by Transmission
personnel for asbestos. It was estimated that 10 LG&E transmission substations and 69
KU transmission substations contain asbestos in the roofs, floor tiles or insulation. An
estimate was prepared based the asbestos model developed by Karan Kapp. An ARO
will be established for the removal and disposal of asbestos.

A review of electric distribution substations was completed by Distribution personnel for
asbestos. A detailed review was undertaken for LG&E substations and it was estimated
that approximately 66 substations contained asbestos in the roofs, floor tiles or insulation.
For KU, it was estimated that 10% or 47 substations contained asbestos. The asbestos
exposure for KU’s substation is limited primarily to wiring as the buildings themselves
are constructed of metal. Estimates were prepared based on the asbestos model
developed by Karan Kapp. AROs will be established for the removal and disposal of
asbestos.
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LG&E and KU own transmission and distribution lines that operate under perpetual property
easement agreements. These easements do not generally require restoration of the right of
way or removal of the property. Therefore, no legal liability exists to remove poles and
attached cross arms. However, there are environmental regulations which require the proper
disposal of treated poles and cross arms into a different section of the landfill. Upon
investigation it was determined that treated poles are disposed of at the same costs as disposal
of untreated utility poles in the main section of the landfill. No incremental costs of disposal
exist, and accordingly an ARO is not required under FIN 47.

Gas

LG&E owns a gas transmission and distribution system that operates under perpetual
property easement agreements. If an easement were to be released, the Company does
not have an obligation to remove the system but retires it in place. However, the
Company does have a legal obligation to purge the gas and cut and cap the pipes upon
abandonment. Peter Clyde, Group Leader Engineering & Planning used a completed
large scale 2004 main replacement project from 2004 for the basis of his estimate to
calculate an ARO for cutting, capping and purging of gas pipes. An ARO has been
established based on Peter’s estimate.

LG&E operates wells in its gas storage system that must be plugged if abandoned, per
Kentucky mines & minerals law/regulations. The estimated cost of plugging the 593
wells is $10.9 million in total. Because LG&E intends to operate the wells perpetually
and the retirement date is indeterminate, no ARO was established under SFAS 143. With
the additional guidance from FIN 47 regarding the assumption that no asset will last
forever, an ARO will now be established as part of the FIN 47 implementation.

LG&E also operates 4 above ground gas compressor stations under perpetual lease
agreements. The ground leases for the Muldraugh KY, Cedar Fields IN, and
Brandenburg KY (Riggs and Doe Run sites) were reviewed for contractual obligations.
A 1946 letter of agreement to the Brandenburg KY (Riggs site) lease requires LG&E to
"return it to lessor on the expiration of this lease in approximately the same condition as
found at the present time." The estimated cost to dismantle and remove the Brandenburg
station is $65,000.

Beyond the above, the leases did not contain any required actions upon abandonment
except an obligation to pay $1 to terminate the lease itself. (Additionally, under the
Muldraugh lease, LG&E is permitted, but not required to remove equipment. Facilities
left after termination become government property.)

Based on the review of the agreements an ARO will be established for the Brandenburg
KY (Riggs site) compressor station only.

A review of the compressor stations, gas regulator stations and city gate facilities
revealed various amounts of asbestos. Estimates for removal and disposal were
formulated by personnel in the Gas Storage and Gas Control Departments. These
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estimates were based on the asbestos model developed by Karan Kapp and modified as
necessary. An ARO will be established for these costs consistent with asbestos amounts
identified in other lines of business.
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Executive Summary

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.

LG&E Energy Corp. and associated Companies (the Company) intend to adopt Statement
143 as of January 1, 2003.

Statement 143 results in significant accounting change for the Company and its regulated
utilities. The standard changes the way companies recognize and measure legal
retirement obligations that result from the acquisition, construction and normal operation
of tangible long-lived assets. A legal obligation is an obligation that a party is required to
settle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance, or contract.

Prior to Statement 143, the Company’s regulated utilities accrued retirement and removal
costs as a component of depreciation expense. SFAS 143 prohibits this approach for
assets within its scope. Asset retirement obligations (AROs) must now be recognized as a
liability and measured at fair value. The cost associated with the recognition of the asset
retirement obligation is capitalized as part of the related asset’s book cost and is
depreciated over the expected life of the asset.

The asset retirement obligation is initially recorded at fair value. In each subsequent
period, the liability is increased through the recognition of accretion expense. Much as
depreciation expense allocates the cost of installing an asset over its useful life, accretion
expense allocates the cost of removing an asset over its useful life. Accretion expense
appears as an operating expense in the income statement.

At adoption the Company must recognize the cumulative effect of applying the statement
as a change in accounting principle. The amount reported as a cumulative effect
adjustment in the statement of operations is the difference between the amounts
recognized in the statement of financial position prior to the application of Statement 143
and the net amount that is recognized in the financial statements by applying the
standard. Asset retirement obligations that are currently recorded by the regulated
utilities as part of accumulated depreciation will be reversed as part of the cumulative
effect adjustment.

The Company expects to book significant ARO assets and liabilities related to its
regulated utilities. However the Company expects the standard to be revenue neutral for
its utility operations through the application of SFAS 71, Accounting for the affects of
Certain Types of Regulation. (See Appendix H, pg. 21)
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Planning

The Company began planning for SFAS 143 in the 4 quarter of 2001. A four-stage
implementation timeline was developed consisting of analysis, planning, implementation
and adoption stages.

The planning stage involved developing the proper approach, reactions and strategies. It
also involved communication with regulators, outside auditors and industry members and
associations to evaluate consistency with the industry.

During 2001 and 2002 the Company participated in numerous industry and regulatory
forums to gain an understanding of the standard and to ensure consistency with the
industry. These forums included:

EEI Asset Retirement Obligations Seminar — October 2001

EEI Roundtable Discussion on Accounting for AROs — March 2002
EEI — FERC Accounting Liaison meeting April 2002

FERC Technical Conference — May 2002

AGA/EEI ARO Seminar — July 2002

EEI - FERC Accounting Liaison meeting October 2002

Through its participation in these forums the Company has developed an understanding
of the standards’ technical requirements consistent with the industry. The Company
advocated this understanding before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission at the
EEI - FERC Accounting Liaison meetings in April and October 2002. On April 9, 2003
the FERC issued Final Order No.631 ‘Accounting Reporting and Rate Filing
Requirements for Asset Retirement Obligations” in Docket No. RMO2-7-000. The Final
rule was consistent in all material respects with the company’s understanding of SFAS
143.

The Final Rule in effect revises the FERC chart of accounts to accommodate FAS 143
accounting. Specifically it establishes new balance sheet accounts for the ARO assets
and liabilities. It also establishes new income statement accounts for accretion and
depreciation expense. In addition, the NOPR grants utilities the authority to transfer
removal costs previously accrued under regulatory accounting practices to the new
liability accounts. Thus, all ARO assets within the scope of SFAS 143 will be subject to
the new FERC accounting procedures. Current regulatory depreciation practices remain
in place for all non-ARO assets. Because the Final Rule provides for the establishment of
regulatory assets and liabilities when companies meet the requirements of SFAS 71, the
Company expects SFAS 143 to be revenue neutral for its regulated entities.
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Analysis

The analysis stage, which also began in first quarter 2002, was a coordinated effort of
accounting, legal, environmental, operations and senior management personnel. The
determination of whether assets are within the scope of Statement 143 is essentially a
review of legal documents past and present that relate to the purchase, construction,
development, or normal operation of the asset. The Company has numerous tangible
long-lived assets that were constructed over many decades. Thus, significant effort and
resources were required to identify the legal obligations associated with plant assets.

The Company addressed the analysis stage from both a legal and operations perspective.
First, a working group was assembled representing legal, accounting, environmental and
operating personnel. This group was trained on the standard, including what qualified as
an ARO and how to identify qualifying AROs, prior to the identification process

The legal department was then asked to perform a review of legal documents including
laws, statutes, contracts, permits, certificates of need and right of way agreements.
Operations personnel were asked to identify and quantify known retirement and removal
activities undertaken within their group for review as a potential ARO. The
environmental group was asked to identify any environmental regulation that obligated
the company upon disposal of an asset.

Through this process, a preliminary inventory of ARO assets was quantified for each
functional group and the relevant legal requirement was documented. Preliminary results
by functional group are as follows.

Generation

Neither LG&E nor KU identified a legal obligation to demolish steam generating plants
or restore the land to “green field condition” when a power plant is decommissioned.

The utilities’ past practice has been to secure retired generating sites in a safe manner and
abandon the plant in place. Although no legal obligation exists for the generating units as
a whole, both utilities identified AROs associated with component assets when a
generating plant is decommissioned. These AROs primarily arise from environmental
regulation.

The preliminary inventory of steam generation obligations were identified, in part, based
on the Company’s recent experience with the retirement of its Pineville generating unit.
The Pineville generating unit failed in early 2002 and was retired from the Company’s’
books. Because the failure and retirement occurred prior to the implementation of SFAS
143 it was not within the scope of the statement. However, based on that experience,
operating personnel developed an inventory of potential AROs and actual third party
decommissioning costs related to steam generating assets. Potential AROs identified
included:
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Holding pond remediation

Coal and limestone storage pile remediation

Boiler water remediation

Oil storage tank remediation

Removal and disposal of underground storage tanks

Empty and remediate all above ground hazardous material storage
Remove and remediate all mercury sources

Drain generation step up transformers and wrap in nitrogen blanket
Ground water monitoring

In addition to the potential AROs suggested by the Pineville experience, the evaluation
included a search for potential AROs that were not pertinent to Pineville, but might relate
to another facility. Each power plant manager was asked to evaluate the retirement
activities necessary at their location to identify potential AROs specific to that location.

Once generation personnel developed the inventory of potential AROs, the
Environmental Department was asked to document the regulatory requirement giving rise
to the obligation, When no environmental obligation was found the legal department was
asked to review the potential ARO to determine if any legal obligation existed. Through
this process, the Company was able to establish a definitive legal/regulatory obligation
for each ARO included in the final inventory.

The Company’s findings based on actual experience at Pineville and the input of power
plant managers are consistent with the industry white paper published by the Edison
Electric Institute (EEI) in August 2002.

Hydro Generation

LG&E operates its Ohio Falls plant under a 30-year licensing agreement with the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers. This agreement requires the dam to be restored to the Corps’
specifications upon abandonment of the plant. The cost of this restoration is estimated at
$8 million. The Company has renewed the licensing agreement with the Corps of
Engineers continually since the plants’ construction and expects to renew the agreement
continually at each expiration date. Therefore, because the hydro plant has an
indeterminate retirement date no ARO liability is being established at this time.

KU owns two hydro facilities, Dix Dam and Lock 7. Estimated decommissioning costs
for these plants are $1.3 million and $3.4 million respectively. However, a legal review
the hydro licenses found no specific legal obligation upon the final decommissioning of
these plants. It should be noted, however, that permitting authorities, particularly FERC,
have significant inherent discretion in setting conditions to permit a surrender of a permit.
These conditions are based upon the specific facts, issues and concerns at the time of
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decommissioning. In the case of Lock 7, a study determined that it was likely that
surrender of the FERC permit would involve both removal of generation equipment and
demolition of station down to water line. Because no specific legal liability was
identified and the retirement date is indeterminate no ARO liability is being established at
this time.

Electric Transmission and Distribution Plant

In general, the Company and the industry operate its transmission and distribution (T&D)
lines as if the assets will be operated into perpetuity. Even if the utility were to cease business,
it is more likely than not that another energy company would simply takeover the lines.

LG&E and KU own transmission and distribution lines that operate under perpetual property
easement agreements. These easements do not generally require restoration of the right of
way or removal of the property. If an easement were to be released, the company would retire
the equipment in place and maintain it in a safe manner.

However, there are components of T&D that have retirement obligations associated with
them due to environmental or other contractual agreements. KU and LG&E have certain
electrical equipment containing PCBs, such as transformers and capacitors, which require
special disposal. Both companies undertook a program in the 1980’s to replace this PCB
impaired equipment. Thus the companies have few if any obligations related to PCB
contamination. The retirements related to these assets were addressed for frequency and
materiality to determine if the interim retirement would fall within the scope of SFAS

143 as described below.

Per Mike Toll Manager Transmission Planning and Substations, there are no legal or
environmental requirements for disposal of station transformers. Other substation
equipment such as bushings may have some obligation related to PCB contaminants. If
so, this equipment must be disposed of per EPA regulation. However the cost, less than
$20K per year, is immaterial. In 2002, the Company disposed of four assets at a cost of
$17K. The 2002 activity was higher than normal according to Mike Toll. In addition,
specific assets impacted are not identifiable until failure or replacement.

Per Andre Johnson, Team Leader Environmental and Transformer Services, PCB
contaminated line transformers must be disposed of per environmental regulation. The
company disposes of PCB contaminated line transformers through a third party vendor.
LG&E costs were approximately $10K in 2002. KU costs were approximately $42K in
2002. Based on 2002 disposals the cost of this activity on an annual basis is immaterial.
In addition, specific assets impacted are not identifiable until failure or replacement.

Both utilities determined that the retirement of T&D generation step up transformers are
within the scope of SFAS 143 since a final retirement date and decommissioning costs
could be reasonably estimated. These transformers are located at the generating stations
and subject to certain environmental requirements upon final retirement of the generating
units. No other AROs were identified related to interim T&D retirements.
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In summary, LG&E and KU have identified certain T&D obligations related to the final
retirement of generating units. No other material retirement obligations were identified
for Electric Transmission and Distribution. In addition, the Company’s T&D system as a
whole is being operated as a perpetual asset. Therefore, the retirement date is
indeterminate and no ARO can be calculated. This position is consistent with both the
EEI white paper and industry practice.

Gas Transmission and Distribution Plant

LG&E owns a gas transmission and distribution system that operates under perpetual
property easement agreements. If an easement were to be released, the Company does
not have an obligation to remove the system but retires it in place. The Company
operates the gas transmission and distribution system as if the assets will be operated into
perpetuity. Even if the utility were to cease business, it is more likely than not that
another energy company would takeover the lines.

However, LG&E operates wells in its gas storage system that must be plugged if
abandoned, per Kentucky mines & minerals law/regulations. Because LG&E intends to
operate the wells perpetually and the retirement date is indeterminate, no ARO has been
established. The estimated cost of plugging the 546 wells is $17 thousand per well or
$9.2 million in total.

LG&E also operates 4 above ground gas compressor stations under perpetual lease
agreements. The ground leases for the Muldraugh KY, Cedar Fields IN, and
Brandenburg KY (Riggs and Doe Run sites) were reviewed for contractual obligations.
A 1946 letter of agreement to the Brandenburg KY (Riggs site) lease requires LG&E to
"return it to lessor on the expiration of the this lease in approximately the same condition
as found at the present time." The estimated cost to dismantle and remove the
Brandenburg station is $48 thousand.

Beyond the above, the leases did not contain any required actions upon abandonment
except an obligation to pay $1 to terminate the lease itself. (Additionally, under the
Muldraugh lease, LG&E is permitted, but not required to remove equipment. Facilities
left after termination become government property.)

Because the review of the agreements revealed no legal obligations, other than for the
Brandenburg/Riggs site, no AROs are being established. In addition because the
Brandenburg/Riggs site is operated as a perpetual asset with an indeterminate retirement
date no ARO is being established for that site. However the estimated costs of the
Brandenburg/Riggs contractual obligation is being disclosed in the footnotes to the
financial statements.
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In summary, LG&E has identified certain immaterial obligations related to the abandonment
of its gas storage wells and the Brandenburg compressor station. No other AROs have been
identified for Gas Transmission and Distribution. Because the system is being operated as a
perpetual asset and the retirement date is indeterminate no AROs are being established. The
amount of the potential obligation at the Brandenburg site is being disclosed in the footnotes to
the financial statements. This position is consistent with both the EEI white paper and
industry practice.

Cash Flow Modeling

Concurrent with the identification of potential AROs, the company has developed a cash
flow model to calculate and comply with the various recognition and measurement
provisions of the standard. (See Appendix A) The model calculates:

1. The amount of the ARO asset and liability to be established as of the original in

service date

Annual accretion expense from the original in service date

The cumulative ARO liability at the transition date

Depreciation expense on ARO asset from the original in service date

Cumulative depreciation on ARO asset at the transition date

Depreciation and Removal cost related to underlying asset from the original in

service date

7. Regulatory asset/liability due to the difference between regulatory and GAAP
accounting methods

Ak

Inputs to the model are as follows:

1. Asset original cost — Original installation costs per company fixed asset records.
This is the basis for determining removal costs previously accrued through
regulatory depreciation.

2. Regulatory depreciation rate- Depreciation rate established in Company’s most
recent depreciation study.

3. Salvage rate- Calculated rate based on net salvage data from Company’s most
recent depreciation study. This represents the removal cost component of
regulatory depreciation rates.

4. GAAP depreciation rate- the regulatory depreciation rate less the salvage rate.

This represents depreciation allowable under SFAS 143. This rate is applied to

the ARO asset and the underlying tangible asset going forward.

In service date- Original asset in service date per company fixed asset records.

6. Retirement date- Estimated retirement date based on Company’s most recent
depreciation study.

7. Discount rate-Current corporate utility bond index rate for A rated issuers as
reported by Bloomberg. 6.61 % as of December 2002.

8. Inflation rate- 30-year Treasury bond rate less 30-year inflation adjusted bond rate
as reported by Bloomberg. 2.1% as of November 2002.

e
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9. ARO in Current $- Estimated fair market cost to settle obligation today

Accounting Systems

Based on the guidance issued in the FERC Final Order, the Company believes that
significant software modifications are not necessary to implement SFAS 143. Because
the number of AROs is limited, the company expects to track AROs with its current
accounting system and spreadsheet applications. The Company’s chart of accounts and
accounting systems were modified to reflect the new income statement and balance
sheet accounts established in the FERC NOPR.

Accounting Procedures

The FERC Final Order on SFAS 143 requires that the Company keep subsidiary records
and supporting documentation for each asset retirement obligation. The Company must
record the identity and nature of the legal obligation, the year incurred, the underlying
asset giving rise to the obligation and supporting computations related to the
measurement of the obligation. The Company has revised its accounting procedures to
comply with the FERC requirements as follows.

Initial ARO Establishment-

1. ARO Asset-Upon establishment of an ARO, an asset equivalent to the present
value of the retirement obligation is established in the appropriate FERC plant
account of the ORACLE fixed asset module. The fixed asset records shall
include a description of the ARO asset including the underlying tangible asset #,
the amount of the asset, the FERC plant account, the location code, the original
in service date and the estimated retirement date

2. Underlying Tangible Asset-The ARO asset is linked to the underlying tangible
asset in existing records by referencing the asset number of the underlying asset
in the description field of the ARO asset.

3. ARO Liability-An offsetting liability is established in account 230 by creating a
distinct and separate project for each ARO liability in the ORACLE project
accounting module. The project accounting records shall include a description of
the ARO liability, the related ARO asset #, the underlying tangible asset #, the
amount of the original liability, the location code, the ARO inception date and
the expected settlement date

Depreciation

1. ARO Asset - Depreciation expense related to the intangible ARO asset is
charged to account 403.1, “Depreciation for Asset Retirement Costs”. A
corresponding credit is charged to Account 108.1 “Accumulated Reserve for
Depreciation of ARO Assets”

2. Underlying Tangible Asset - Depreciation expense related to the underlying
tangible asset is charged to account 403 “Depreciation Expense.” A
corresponding credit is charged to Account 108 “Accumulated Provision for
Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant”.
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3. Depreciation rates — The depreciation rate approved by the Public Service
Commission for regulatory accounting purposes is applied to the underlying
asset. However, because SFAS No. 143 does not allow the accrual of removal
costs through depreciation for assets within its scope and because the Company
qualifies for SFAS 71 treatment, a regulatory asset or liability will be established
to record the difference between depreciation allowed by regulators and that
allowed by GAAP.

The depreciation rate allowed by GAAP is applied to the ARO asset going
forward. The GAAP rate is the rate approved in the Company’s most recent
depreciation study less the net salvage component.

Accretion
1. Accretion expense — Accretion expense is charged to account 411.10, “Accretion
Expense”. A corresponding credit is charged to Account 230 “Asset Retirement
Obligations”
Cumulative Effect adjustment
1. The cumulative effect adjustment is established by a debit to account 435
“Extraordinary Deductions”. Offsetting credits are charged to account 230,
“Asset Retirement Obligations” for the accumulated accretion and to Account
108.1, “Accumulated Reserve for Depreciation of ARO Assets” for accumulated
depreciation. (The cumulative effect adjust is equivalent to the total accumulated
accretion and depreciation expense that would have been accrued if the liability
had been established at the time the liability was originally incurred, less any
removal costs accrued through regulatory depreciation)

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

1. Regulatory Assets —Pursuant to SFAS 71, depreciation and accretion expense
related to the ARO asset and liability is offset with a regulatory asset. The
regulatory asset is established by a debit to account 182.3, “Regulatory Assets”.
A corresponding regulatory credit is established in account 407.4 “Other
Regulatory Credits”. (See Appendix I)

2. Regulatory Liabilities — Pursuant to SFAS 71 previously accrued removal costs
in excess of that allowed under SFAS 143 is offset with a regulatory liability.
The regulatory liability is established by a credit to account 254, “Regulatory
Liabilities”. A corresponding debit is established in account 407.3 “Other
Regulatory Debits”

Settlement
1. Gain on Settlement — Gains resulting from the settlement of an asset retirement
obligation are charged to account 411.6, “Gains from Disposition of Utility
Plant”
2. Loss on Settlement - Losses resulting from the settlement of an asset retirement
obligation are charged to account 411.7, “Losses from Disposition of Utility
Plant”(see Appendix H)
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Identifying Removal Costs Currently Recorded

The Company estimated the amount of removal costs related to AROs recorded in its
accumulated reserve. The estimate is based on data from the Company’s most recent
depreciation study. Based on that study the Company determined the removal cost
component inherent in each depreciate rate. That removal cost component is applied to
the original cost and in-service date of the underlying asset to estimate the removal cost
accrued for the specific asset. The estimated removal costs related to ARO assets was
removed from the accumulated reserve pursuant to the FERC Final Order No.631
‘Accounting Reporting and Rate Filing Requirements for Asset Retirement Obligations”.

Subsequent to the Company’s implementation of SFAS 143 the FERC issued its Final
Order No. 631. The order required Companies to estimate the cost of removal embedded
in the accumulated reserve for non-ARO assets and to segregate those cost within
Account 108 for reporting purposes.

Pursuant to that Order, the Company contracted for an independent analysis of non-ARO
removal costs to be performed in conjunction with its 2003 depreciation study. That
analysis was completed and in December 2003 a journal entry was prepared segregating
those removal costs within FERC Account 108 “Accumulated Provision for Depreciation
of Electric Utility Plant”.

Implementation

In the implementation stage which began in the 3" quarter 2002, t the company;
Identified removal cost previously accrued

Determined ARO asset write-ups

Quantified regulatory assets/liabilities

Modified accounting Systems

Revised Accounting Policies

Communicated with Regulatory Agencies

Discussed implications with the Tax Department

Drafted required financial footnotes and disclosures

A S RN

Obtained final management approval

[S—
=

. Obtained final verification that all regulatory requirements have been identified

—_—
—_—

. Verified consistent application across all assets

—_—
\S)

. Verified that all obligations identified are included in the calculations

[S—
(98]

. Verified that obligations exist for all assets included

—_—
N

. Ensured compliance with the final FERC order

—
|9,

. Reviewed final product with PriceWaterhouseCoopers
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Adoption
The company adopted SFAS 143 effective January 1, 2003.
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Introduction

“This Interpretation clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in FASB Statement
No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, refers to a legal obligation to perform the asset
retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event
that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement
activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement.
Thus, the timing and (or) method of settlement may be conditional on a future event.”

This white paper has been written with an eye toward the Electric and Gas utility business. It is intended
to assist one in doing the investigation and review necessary to properly recognize and disclose any new
asset retirement obligations resulting from the adoption of this Interpretation. Each company will need to
work through their particular issues and review all assumptions with their legal staff to assure proper
representation of this topic. At first glance, this Interpretation can appear overwhelming. But one needs
to approach this in a thoughtful and reasonable manner that represents the intent and purpose of the
Interpretation without getting so lost in the details that the accounting becomes impossible to maintain
within a cost effective manner. Without careful thought to the intent and the process to achieve it, the
accounting for this Interpretation may not be manageable as the issue moves throughout time.

FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations provides a complex process for
determining recognition criteria, measurement procedures, and accounting and disclosure requirements
for the financial implications of an obligation related to the future retirement of existing property.
Because FIN 47 represents clarification of a limited, but important, concept within the broad scope of
accounting for asset retirement obligations, this document is limited to discussing compliance within this
new interpretation. It is beyond the scope of this document to attempt to provide a comprehensive
discussion of all the provisions of FASB Statement No. 143.

Another white paper was prepared by EEI and AGA shortly after SFAS 143 was issued. This white paper
is supplemental to that earlier one. The following terms and acronyms are used throughout this
document.

Term or Acronym Description

ARC Asset Retirement Cost (Plant Asset)

ARO Asset Retirement Obligations

FERC Order 631 Accounting, Financial Reporting, and Rate

Filing Docket No. RM02-7-000,
Requirements for Asset Retirement Obligations

FERC Order 552 Revision to Uniform Systems of Accounts
to Account for Allowances under the Clean
Air Act Amendments of 1990 and
Regulatory-Created Assets and Liabilities
and to Form Nos. 1, 1-F, 2 and 2-A

FIN 47 or Interpretation FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for
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Term or Acronym Description
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
FSpP FASB Statement of Position
SAB 99 SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 99,
Materiality
SFAS 71 FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation
SFAS 143 FASB Statement No. 143, Acounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations

Reasons for an Interpretation

Diverse accounting practices have been developed with respect to the timing of liability recognition for
legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset when the timing and (or)
method of settlement of the obligation are conditional on a future event. For example, some entities have
recognized the fair value of the obligation prior to the retirement of the asset with the uncertainty about
the timing and (or) method of settlement incorporated into the liability’s fair value. Other entities,
however, have recognized the fair value of the obligation only when it is probable the asset will be retired
as of a specified date using a specified method or when the asset is actually retired.

The Interpretation clarifies that an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a
conditional ARO when incurred if the liability’s fair value can be reasonably estimated. The Interpretation
clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of the
ARO. This clarification should improve the relevance, reliability, and comparability of the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

The FASB believes application of the Interpretation will result in a more consistent recognition of
liabilities relating to AROs, in more information about expected future cash outflows associated with
those obligations, and in more information about investments in long-lived assets because additional asset
retirement costs will be recognized as part of the carrying amounts of the assets. At the January 26, 2005
meeting, the FASB addressed a request to reconsider the entire concept of recording AROs (see FASB
Board minutes at www.fash.org/ board meeting minutes/ board meeting minntes.shtpl). This discussion provides
significant insight to the FASB’s expectations and considerable support for the role of management’s
judgment and reasonableness in the recognition of AROs. In summary, the FASB essentially establishes
what disclosure is expected whenever there is an ARO while also narrowing the circumstances in which
the measurement could be avoided.

Sufticient Information

In SFAS 143, the term refirement is defined as the other-than-temporary removal of a long-lived asset from
service. The term retirement encompasses sale, abandonment, recycling, or disposal in some other manner.
The term does not encompass the temporary idling of a long-lived asset.
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e “If an entity has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation, it must recognize a liability at the time the liability is incurred. An asset
retirement obligation would be reasonably estimable if (a) it is evident that the fair value of the
obligation is embodied in the acquisition price of the asset, (b) an active market exists for the
transfer of the obligation, or (c) sufficient information exists to apply an expected present
value technique.” This is from paragraph 4 of the Interpretation.

e The Interpretation states that when the method of settlement and settlement date have been
specified by others such as in a law, regulation or contract, the entity has sufficient information
to apply an expected present value technique. Therefore the ARO would be reasonably
estimable and a liability must be recorded. The only uncertainty in these situations is whether
performance will be required.

From paragraph 5a, “uncertainty about whether performance will be required does not defer
the recognition of an asset retirement obligation because a legal obligation to stand ready to
perform the retirement activities still exists”, and that uncertainty does not prevent the
determination of a reasonable estimate of fair value. There are two possible outcomes in
situations in which the only uncertainty is whether performance will be required—the entity
will be required to perform or the entity will not be required to perform.

If there is no information about which outcome is more probable, paragraph A23 of SFAS
143 requires 50 percent likelihood for each outcome to be used until additional information is
available. In certain cases, determining the settlement date for the obligation that has been
specified by others is a matter of judgment that depends on the relevant facts and
circumstances.

e In situations where the date and method of settlement are not specified by others, if
information is available to reasonably estimate (1) the settlement date or the range of potential
settlement dates, (2) the method of settlement or potential methods of settlement and (3) the
probabilities associated with the potential settlement dates and potential methods of
settlement, the FASB believes sufficient information is present to apply an expected present
value technique. Therefore, the ARO would be reasonably estimable and a liability must be
recorded.

Information that is derived from an entity’s past practice, industry practice, and management’s intent can
ysp p > Yy P > g

provide a basis for estimating the potential methods of settlement. Entities must take into account only

the methods of settling the obligation that are currently available to the entity.

The ability of an entity to indefinitely defer settlement of an ARO does not relieve the entity of the
obligation. Implicit in this conclusion is the belief that no tangible asset will last forever (except land) and,
accordingly, the asset retirement activities will eventually be performed. Furthermore, the ability of an
entity to sell the asset prior to its disposal does not relieve the entity of its present duty or responsibility to
settle the obligation. The sale would cause the buyer to assume the obligation, in turn affecting the sales
price.
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Change in the Way Disposal is Viewed

The FASB believes that if a current law, regulation, or contract requires an entity to perform an asset
retirement activity; there is an unambiguous requirement to perform the retirement activity even if that
activity can be indefinitely deferred. As noted above, no tangible asset will last forever (except land) and,
accordingly, the asset retirement activities will eventually be performed. Therefore, the obligation to
perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and
(or) method of settlement.

e A law or entity’s promise may create a duty or responsibility, but that law or promise in and of
itself may not be the obligating event that results in an entity having little or no discretion to
avoid a future transfer or use of assets.

e SFAS 143 states that the obligating event is the acquisition, construction, or development and
(or) the normal operation of the long-lived asset when a law or promise exists that creates a
duty or responsibility relating to the retirement of the asset. At this point, the obligation
cannot be realistically avoided if the asset is operated for its intended use.

All companies are subject to federal and state solid waste disposal requirements for non-hazardous
materials and refuse'. These laws require such materials to be disposed in a licensed public landfill with
other household garbage. Although there is no legal obligation to retire assets under these solid waste
laws, these retired and dismantled assets must be transported to licensed public landfills. Companies
regularly incur monthly expenses for use of these public landfills for disposal of non-hazardous materials
and refuse (i.e. garbage) which in most cases would cover disposal of non-hazardous retired assets.

The scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47 focuses on “special” requirements for disposal of retired assets that
would add incremental costs to the retirement of those assets above what a company expenses monthly
for non-hazardous material and refuse disposal. This is evidenced by the reference to “special”
requirements in the examples to FIN 47 and the proposed FSP on SFAS 143 relating to the European
Union (EU) Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment that requires EU members to adopt
legislation for environmentally sound disposal of electrical and electronic waste equipment.

This white paper assumes that even though some legal obligation may exist to dispose of non-hazardous
materials and refuse resulting from retirements of fixed assets, the disposal costs for non-hazardous
materials and refuse may be inconsequential for many assets and may not add significant incremental costs
to the asset retirement activities. A company may decide that there is not a legal obligation for removal
whereby an asset is disposed within the cost boundaries of the standard garbage fees and only incremental
charges above this standard may constitute a removal obligation. Moreover, the incremental charge
associated with additional service may be considered part of the standard costs. To illustrate this analysis
with an example, consider the following removal activities typical for a treated and a non-treated pole:

! These rules federal and state regulations are governed under Subtitle D of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
Subtitle D regulates garbage, refuse, sludge from waste treatment plants, non-hazardous industrial waste and other discard
materials including solid, semi-solid and liquid materials resulting form commercial and industrial activities (e.g.
demolition debris, mining waste, oil & gas waste).
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Pole Removal Example

Non-
treated Treated
1. Labor to removal the pole and haul it to the yard $75 $75
2. Grinding the pole into small pieces (not required by 0 10
regular landfill)
3. Transporting the pole to the landfill 15 15
4. Landfill Fees 10 40

The costs to remove and transport the pole, for both types of pole, would not be considered an ARO in
this example. The landfill fees for the treated pole would be considered an ARO, but one would need to
determine if the incremental cost would be the ARO basis or would one use the total cost. If the landfill
accepting the treated pole is different than the one accepting the non-treated pole, the total cost would be
used and if the same facility then the incremental would be applicable. Lastly, the cost to grind the pole
would be considered part of the ARO, as this cost is not incurred for non-treated poles.

As always, a full review of the company position on this issue is paramount to defining the magnitude of
potential AROs. Each company needs to decide if these laws constitute a legal obligation in respect to the
SFAS 143 and the Interpretation. In instances where the legal requirement relates only to the disposal of
the asset subject to the ARO, the cost to remove the asset is not included in the ARO. However, if there
were a legal requirement to remove the asset, the cost of removal would be included.

Date of Obligating Event

There has been some discussion around when the obligating event occurs. Quickly, most would point to
the in-service date of the asset if a law, regulation, or contract creating the obligation was in place before
the in-service date. Similarly, one would choose the date the law, regulation, or contract created the
obligation if it came to be after the in-service date. However, SFAS 143 refers to obligations that “result
from the acquisition, construction, or development and (or) the normal operation of the long-lived asset”.
One could question if this infers the purchase of material during the construction process or to inventory.
Whereby, the company may have incurred a legal obligation before the in-service date of the asset.
Timing of the recognition of the ARO, as discussed in paragraphs 3-10 and B32-B41 of SFAS 143, is
when all the following criteria are met:

e The obligation meets the definition of a liability in paragraph 35 of Concepts Statement 0.
e A future transfer of assets associated with the obligation is probable.

e The amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated.

During construction of long-lived assets, such as a steam generating plant, legal obligations to eventually
retire the plant may be incurred and measurement of those obligations may be prudent during the
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construction phase. It is important to remember that the obligating event has to have already happened to
create a liability. In the case of a nuclear power facility, the obligation to remove the facility may not exist
until the facility is operated and contamination occurs. Thus, the contamination constitutes the obligating
event. Along with these two instances provided, work performed on leased property also may create a
legal obligation during the construction phase. Furthermore, the amount of the liability may grow in
subsequent periods as the construction of the asset continues. These changes, in the amount of the
original estimate, may need to be recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability.

Another example may be a treated pole purchased to inventory. One could argue that the obligating event
has occurred at the purchase of the pole even though it is held for a time in the inventory account before
moving through construction work in progress to plant in-service. The assumption presupposes that the
manufacturer treated the pole before the company purchased it. The scenario would change if the
company treats its poles itself. This component can add more complexity to an already multifarious
process.

The definition for the obligating date needs to be fully thought out and clear as to the materiality of and
the ability to recognize the obligation before the in-service date. One may likely conclude that the
obligation will be flagged during construction or when in inventory only for those exceptionally large
items. Otherwise, the in-service date will prevail. For any decision, either for this section or for others
throughout this document, one needs to assure that it is legally reviewed and representative of
management’s judgment as to the correct application of the Interpretation and SFAS 143.

Indefinite Life

FIN 47 does not eliminate the recognition of an indefinite life, but rather distinguishes uncertainty from
indefinite. The first sentence in paragraph B22 of the Interpretation provides specific guidance in three
clauses where FASB considers an ARO is reasonably estimable, “if information is available:

1. “To estimate the settlement date or the range of potential settlement dates,”
2. “The method of settlement or potential methods of settlement,” and (ezphasis added).
3. “The probabilities associated with potential settlement dates and methods of settlement.”

The third clause would seem to imply that the probable service lives and estimated net salvage developed
from utility depreciation studies could lead to the conclusion that an ARO is reasonably estimable.
Paragraph B19 through B27 also provided more specific language than originally addressed in SFAS 143,
which substantially narrowed the circumstance that would lead to a conclusion that an ARO is not
estimable.

The current utility industry position, prior to the release of this Interpretation, is that a company cannot
calculate an ARO for the ultimate retirement of its distribution and transmission systems because each
system has an indefinite life. A depreciation study develops probabilities of life and net salvage for a large
group of similar assets, and that many cycles of replacements occur to the group or system. An example of
the distinction between a “group of similar assets” versus a “system”; a power line or gas line between two
points will probably have multiple retirements and replacement additions (items in a group), particularly if
a portion of the line is moved for any reason, but the line itself generally continues long afterwards (as a
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system). In addition, it is part of a larger group of assets when life analysis is done; all similar power lines
or gas lines are considered together. In other words, the probable lives in a depreciation study are on the
interim retirements and additions to the line, and not representative of the probable life of the line (or the
system). Further, it has been suggested that retirement of the system would invoke other accounting
pronouncement governing status as an ongoing entity, impairment of an asset, or accounting for
discontinued operations.

Accordingly, sufficient information may not be available to reasonably estimate the ARO liability on the
ultimate retirement of transmission or distribution property. The industry also does not believe that an
ARO should be calculated for such interim retirements when there is not an obligation for that specific
interim retirement or when a company cannot reasonable estimate when a specific interim retirement with
an obligation would take place. The third characteristic of a liability is that the transaction or other event
obligating the entity has already happened. One does not know what portion of a distribution or
transmission system will be retired until an event such as a gas leak, storm damage, or a road widening
requires work on the asset, making it difficult to estimate the costs and timing. This generally is corrected
or recorded in the same accounting period so no liability would be accrued.

However, FIN 47 provides further interpretation of FAS 143 that may require a reassessment of the
indefinite life concept. Example 1 specifically addresses this mass asset system versus individual asset
contrast and cleatly attempts to close the loophole that a system has an infinite life, therefore no ARO can
be measured. FIN 47 requires that the fair value of an ARO be recognized when it can be reasonably
estimated. It also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair
value of an ARO. For some utilities, data derived from their most current depreciation study possibly
could be a potential source to provide information to calculate an estimated ARO for distribution and
transmission assets that constitute an entire system. This data is used to recover property costs (including
removal cost) for regulatory purposes and also may serve as a platform for calculating the expected ARO
liability. Depreciation study data is used in the Snapshot example within the Mass Assets, Electric and
Gas section of this paper.

An argument also can be made that depreciation study data does not provide sufficient information to
estimate a reasonable ARO liability. Depreciation data is utilized to provide for matching of existing
property cost with the customer benefiting from that property cost. It is not designed, in concept, to
provide an estimated liability for the permanent removal of the entire distribution and transmission
system. The assumption is the entity will continue to be a going concern. As such, depreciation study data
may need to be used cautiously as it may not be an appropriate mechanism to use when calculating all
ARO liabilities. Discarding the depreciation study data, no data may be available to reasonably estimate
the ARO liability.

Given this quandary, the indefinite life concept currently used by most utilities may continue in effect for
the ultimate retirement of the system, but the individual assets comprising the system may not have
indefinite life. Again, it was very clear that a “do nothing” scenario might not be a defendable position
and that material obligations should be recognized or disclosed if a legal retirement obligation applies to
the interim retirement of a system and the timing and method of settlement can be reasonably estimated.
Any conclusion needs to be supported with full documentation and justification for the indefinite life
choice and should be disclosed.
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Materiality

FIN 47 cleatly states, “The provisions of this Interpretation need not be applied to immaterial items.”
However, many immaterial items may constitute, in aggregate, a material item. Determination of
materiality is company specific and often an issue-specific routine. It should be defined and documented
for each segment of the business. Along with the materiality threshold, a company should define the way
in which assets will be summed to test materiality. It is assumed that the test will be for balance sheet
materiality, as most utilities will offset any income statement effect with regulatory accounting. When the
ARO does impact the income statement, an income statement materiality test may be used. For example,
one must decide if distribution assets will be combined with nuclear assets in determining materiality.
Perhaps a company will sum all asset obligations relative to a segment of the utility business keeping the
nuclear AROs separate from the distribution calculation. Defining the materiality test to a lower level
than function should be a decision based on propriety and not with the intent of avoiding this
Interpretation.  Additional guidance on materiality can be found in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s SAB No. 99.

For those companies that have more than one legal entity, the materiality should be done at the individual
legal entity and not at the consolidated level. Now, one legal entity may have an ARO and another may
not for the same class of assets because of the variety in the rules and regulation as well as the difference
in size of the companies. This white paper does not advocate a consolidated materiality review of AROs
where multiple legal entities exist within the corporation. The obligation is clearly the responsibility of the
originating legal entity and it should be maintained at that level. However, the disclosures may be more
detailed on the utility reports and summarized at the parent level.

Decision Tree

In general, a more substantive review of regulations, laws, and contract obligations will be required to
assure that conditional AROs are properly recognized. Each company will need to assess its particular
facts and circumstances as the same general situation may play out differently depending on the legal
documents and company policies that surround it. To help facilitate this review, a decision tree for
analyzing each situation is provided below.

Decision Tree Notes
1. Paragraph 3 of FIN 47 advises to include all legal obligations to perform an asset retirement
activity, even those in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a
future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to
perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the
timing and (or) method of settlement.

Paragraph B7 of the Interpretation states, “As used in Statement 143, a legal obligation is an
obligation that a party is required to settle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute,
ordinance, or written or oral contract or by legal construction of a contract under the doctrine
of promissory estoppel.”

2. Paragraph 4 of the Interpretation references paragraph 17 of FASB Concepts Statement No. 7,
Using Cash Flow Information and Present 1V alne in Accounting Measurements, which states, “If a price
for an asset or liability or an essentially similar asset or liability can be observed in the
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marketplace, there is no need to use present value measurements. The marketplace assessment
of present value is already embodied in such prices.”

3. Paragraph 3 of the Interpretation reiterates the SFAS 143 requirement that the fair value of an
asset retirement obligation be recognized when the obligation is incurred—generally upon
acquisition, construction, or development and (or) through the normal operation of the asset.

4. Present value techniques are discussed in paragraphs 39—54 and 75-88 of Concepts Statement
7. These techniques, which incorporate uncertainty about the timing and method of
settlement into the fair value measurement, should be used when the fair value of the liability
cannot be estimated based on the acquisition price or on an observable market price.

5. For example, specified in a law, regulation or contract (Paragraph 5a of the Interpretation).
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Decision Tree

1
Identify all asset retirement obligations. Q

}

Determine if entity has sufficient information
to reasonably estimate the fair value of the
ARO.

}

Is it evident that the fair value of the obligation
is embodied in the acquisition price of the
asset?

No

Does an active market exist for the transfer of
the obligation?

No

Determine if sufficient information exists to
apply an expected present value technique.

Y 4

}

Has the settlement date and method of
settlement for obligation been specified
by others?

Can the settlement date or range of
potential settlement dates be reasonably
estimated?

Can the method of settlement or
potential methods of settlement be
reasonably estimated?

Yes

Can the probabilities associated with
the potential settlement dates and
potential methods of settlement be
reasonably estimated?

Liablity for fair value of ARO must be ’
Yes——®  recognized at the time the liablilty is

incurred.
1 1

Sufficient information exists to apply present
value technique. ARO is reasonably -
estimable.

Yes——¥

Sufficient information does not exitst to apply
present value technique. Therefore, ARO
cannot be reasonably estimated. Disclose

No——— description of obligation, the fact/reasons that

the fair value cannot be reasonably estimated.

Liability should be recognized in period that

sufficient information does become available.

4 [y

No

No—

Yes—
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Decision Tree Notes Continued:

6.

10.

Paragraph 5a of the Interpretation states that uncertainty about whether performance will be
required does not defer the recognition of an asset retirement obligation because a legal
obligation to stand ready to perform the retirement activities still exists, and it does not
prevent the determination of a reasonable estimate of fair value because the only uncertainty is
whether performance will be required.

There are two possible outcomes in situations in which the only uncertainty is whether
performance will be required—the entity will be required to perform or the entity will not be
required to perform. If there is no information about which outcome is more probable,
paragraph A23 of Statement 143 requires 50 percent likelihood for each outcome to be used
until additional information is available.

In certain cases, determining the settlement date for the obligation that has been specified by
others is a matter of judgment that depends on the relevant facts and circumstances. For
example, a contract that provides the entity with an ability to extend its term through renewal
should be evaluated to determine whether the settlement date should take into consideration
renewal periods.

Paragraph 5b of the Interpretation states that the estimated economic life of the asset might
indicate a potential settlement date for the asset retirement obligation. However, the original
estimated economic life of the asset might not establish, in and of itself, that date because the
entity may intend to make improvements to the asset that could extend the life of the asset or
the entity could defer settlement of the obligation beyond the economic life of the asset. In
those situations, the entity would look beyond the economic life of the asset in determining
the settlement date or range of potential settlement dates to use when estimating the fair value
of the asset retirement obligation.

Paragraph 5b gives examples of information that is expected to provide a basis for estimating
the potential settlement dates, potential methods of settlement, and the associated
probabilities. Examples include, but are not limited to, information that is derived from an
entity’s past practice, industry practice, management’s intent, or the asset’s estimated economic
life.

Paragraph 5b of the Interpretation limits “potential methods of settlement” to those methods
that are currently available to the entity. Therefore, uncertainty about future methods yet to
be developed would not prevent the entity from estimating the fair value of the asset
retirement obligation.

Paragraph 5b of the Interpretation states that the entity should have a reasonable basis for
assigning probabilities to the potential settlement dates and potential methods of settlement to
reasonably estimate the fair value of the asset retirement obligation. If the entity does not have
a reasonable basis of assigning probabilities, it is expected that the entity would still be able to
reasonably estimate fair value when the range of time over which the entity may settle the
obligation is so narrow and (or) the cash flows associated with each potential method of
settlement are so similar that assigning probabilities without having a reasonable basis for
doing so would not have a material impact on the fair value of the asset retirement obligation.
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Specific Property Considerations

Four examples were included in FIN 47. This white paper discusses those examples in the context of the
Electric and Gas utility business. The examples are as follows:

1 Telecommunication poles

2 Bricks in a kiln

3. Factory with asbestos and regulations go into effect after purchase
4

Factory with asbestos and regulations are in place at acquisition

Basically, the premise put forward by the FASB in this Interpretation was that no tangible asset, except
land, would last forever and accordingly, asset retirement activities will eventually be performed. In
completing the retirement work, if a company is required to dispose of the asset in a specific manner or
could be required to perform any one of a number of different methods of settlement, to be chosen at
some later date, the company will need to evaluate the asset’s retirement obligations. The four examples
provided were meant to cover various situations a company may face. To bring the examples into the
context of the energy industry, the list has been tailored to the potential issues for the Electric and Gas
business. The following are the asset issues discussed in the remaining document:

1. Mass assets, electric and gas (Telecommunication poles)
2. Minor Items (Bricks in a kiln)

3. Asbestos, PCBs, and other contaminants (Factory with asbestos and regulations go into
effect after purchase or in place at acquisition)

4. Rights-of-Way and franchises
5. General equipment

6.  Hydro generation

Mass Assets, Electric and Gas

Example 1 of Appendix A, Illustrative Examples, provides specific discussion on wood pole treated with
certain chemicals. However, the circumstances may be comparable to other utility property generally
described as mass asset property. The following summarizes Example 1, followed by a discussion of
comparability and applicability to other mass assets, and finally a discussion of various issues for utilities to
consider in their implementation of FIN 47.

Summary of Example 1 of Appendix A

Example 1 discusses a situation in which a utility is using treated wood poles and where there is existing
legislation that requires special disposal procedures in the state in which the utility operates. The example
recognizes that the poles may be removed from the ground for a variety of operational reasons other than
disposal, and further recognizes that the disposal obligation is not triggered by removal of the pole. Once
a pole is removed from the ground, it may be disposed of, sold, or reused as part of other activities. In
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this example, the disposal obligation is not triggered by removal of the pole. Based on that premise,
Example 1 includes specific guidance that requires an assessment of AROs related to treated wood poles.
That guidance suggests assessing the ARO and related accounting based on the following:

1. The recognition point begins with the purchase of the pole, rather than when the pole was
placed into service (in-service date is when the pole first became a long-lived fixed asset). See
obligating event and materiality above.

2. That reuse does not change the obligation, only defers it (common industry practice is to
retire the pole at time of removal, not track it while in inventory, and considered a new
addition when reused and placed in the ground again).

3. The utility already has the information necessary to estimate a range of settlement dates,
methods of settlement, and the related probabilities based on entity-specific practices,
industry practices, management’s intent, or the asset’s estimated economic life. (It is
important to note that only in the example did the entity have sufficient information to
estimate the fair value of the liability for the ARO. FEach entity will have to make their own
determination as to whether they have sufficient information.)

4. The utility is not relieved of the obligation by selling the pole to another party through the
assertion that the exchange price reflects the estimated fair value of the obligation.

Impact On Asset Retirement Obligations Accounting

Example 1 of FIN 47 represents a utility that has a legal requirement to follow special procedures for
disposal of treated wood poles. In this example, the utility is presumed to have all the information
necessary to calculate an asset retirement obligation and is expected to make appropriate disclosure.
Therefore, the asset retirement obligation should be recognized when the entity purchases the pole. This
may result in a significant change from the requirements under FAS 143, where previous estimates and
disclosures were not made because: 1) most disposal activities were performed by third parties so there
were no future direct costs to be expended by the utility, 2) it was not reasonable to track the obligation
(and settlement) due to reuse and different options for disposal, or 3) that the obligation was conditional
due to circumstances known only at the time of removing the pole from the ground. There were no future
costs because most utilities could give the poles away to third parties at no cost to the utility, but under
FIN 47 even the ultimate disposal cost to a third party is to be considered (that net zero would be
bifurcated into the avoided future disposal removal cost and the salvage — remember salvage is not
recognizable for ARO purposes.)

Example 1 could apply to other mass asset property where a portion of the asset may be subject to special
disposal procedures. Some examples might be property containing PCBs, mercury, lead, or any chemical
considered hazardous. In the case of natural gas pipelines, specific activities are legally mandated for
abandonment or removal and disposal. The ARO may include the cost of testing, removal, disposal or
decontamination of pipeline segments and liquids. In other words, FIN 47 requires that if a utility has a
special procedure requirement at ultimate disposal, then the utility either would have a measurable ARO
with all the related accounting requirements, which should be recognized if the entity has sufficient
information to estimate the fair value of the obligation. If the entity does not have sufficient information
to reasonably estimate the obligation, the entity only has a disclosure requirement until sufficient
information becomes available.
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Concerns and Issues

This raises several concerns and issues for both the individual utility and for the industry:

1.

Initial determination of legal obligation — The language seems to indicate that if there is a
special disposal procedure, that there will be a cost of performing that disposal activity and
therefore, an asset retirement obligation. The legal obligation review may need to be expanded
to other assets containing materials, which are considered hazardous with special disposal
procedures required by some legal mandate.

Record keeping and reporting changes — Many if not most utilities track poles as assets from
the date put in the ground until the next time it is removed rather than from purchase to
disposal. Time in inventory (initially and upon salvage for reuse) is often not tracked — much
less details on how many were treated and what happened to the treated portion at disposal.
An individual utility may have to develop such tracking details.

Third party disposal — Example 1 states that the “ability to sell the poles prior to disposal does
not relieve the entity of its ...obligation”, and states that “the assumption of the obligation
affects the exchange price”. This could be a significant issue in compliance for some utilities. It
implies that the utility is not relieved of the obligation; and, therefore, should attempt to
measure the ARO.

The use of the pole would affect disposal requirements, as Example 1 cleatly requires a
company to identify future disposal costs. Therefore, unless there is a market price available,
the company would need to apply present value techniques, estimating the life of the pole
before disposal. Such information about that future transaction may be particularly hard to
estimate when the utility purchases the pole and needs to record the obligation.

SEC transfer of other provisions for accrued cost of removal — Any change because of
reassessing the ARO for treated wood poles also would affect any recognition of the SEC
interpretation on depreciation accruals for future removal costs.

Background: SFAS 143 does not allow a provision for future removal costs to be included in
depreciation reserves. FERC Order 631 provides that utilities that qualify to apply SFAS 71
and if the requirements for Order 552 are met, any provisions for future removal cost would
be transferred to a regulatory liability. However, FERC Order 631 continues to allow
provision for future removal costs for assets that do not have an existing legal retirement
obligation. A conflict may exist because many utilities also have adopted the unofficial SEC
interpretation that SFAS 143 does not allow for any accrual of future removal costs, and all
provisions for future removal costs should be excluded from accumulated reserves (or
transferred to a regulatory liability if eligible for SFAS 71). There is inherent contradiction for
many utility assets whereby it needs to be recognized in two different ways for reporting the
same activity to the two different entities.

FERC Otder 631 requires that only for accounts where an ARO is recognized, then previous
provisions for future removal costs should be transferred from the accumulated reserve (and
carried as a regulatory obligation under SFAS 71, if the requirements for Order 552 are met).
Many utilities have also adopted the unofficial SEC interpretation that SFAS 143 does not
allow for any accrual of future removal costs, and all provisions for future removal costs
should be excluded from accumulated reserves (or transferred to a regulatory liability if eligible
for SFAS 71).
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The cumulative effect adjustment for SEC reporting will be the difference between the
amount previously recognized prior to FIN 47 and the amount recognized following the
advice in FIN 47 (as mentioned under Transition Accounting below). FERC reporting will be
governed by any new advice that FERC may issue prior to adoption of FIN 47.

Recommendation

Since ARO compliance for this category of plant type, mass assets, may be quite onerous, a
recommendation is offered for consideration to achieve the intent of the Interpretation without excess
burden to the company and the accounting personnel. FEach company will need to decide if the
recommendation is feasible for their books and records. SFAS 143 (paragraph A22) permits the use of
estimates and computational shortcuts that are consistent with the fair value measurement objective when
computing an aggregate asset retirement obligation for assets that are components of a larger group of
assets. 'This is appropriate for large transmission and distribution utilities that use group accounting.
Therefore, the recommendation is to approximate the literal compliance with FIN 47 with an
approximation that uses a statistical based method in order to achieve the intent of the statements
without incurring undue burden on the accounting personnel.

1. Statistical Method — There are varying levels of information available to the individual utility
from their depreciation studies from Simulated Plant Record to Equal Life Group study
methods applied property data from individual accounts/sub accounts to functional categories
like distribution plant. Even availability of details (such as separating net salvage into removal
cost or into removal cost just for treated poles) will vary for different utilities. The following
are general descriptions of possible approximation procedures that might be used:

a.  Modified group property/modified depreciation study. Using the latest available
depreciation study, the utility could develop the percentage adjustments to indicated life
and negative salvage estimates to approximate the timing and the amount of the future
removal cash flow. Many utilities have property records that provide the age of existing
property and combined with average age, a future cash flow estimate could be prepared
for each vintage of property (average age less current age result in the time to expected
removal). There may be a standard length of time between removal from service until
actual disposal and that could be added to remaining life.

It may be necessary to analyze the property in the pole account as not all the units may be
part of the retirement obligation and to identify a percentage adjustment to approximate
the proportion of obligating poles that are treated to all others and adjust the future cash
flows to represent only the legally required disposal.

If dispersion curves were used in the study, the related retirement curves also could be
used to approximate the period of disposal. When time estimates and future cash flows
are estimated, then one can compute the various ARO elements (ARC, depreciation and
accretion tables, and associated regulatory assets). For the first year, monthly entries are
made based on that estimate only. In subsequent years and if vintaged retirements are
available, it would be possible to go through the individual settlement calculations for
each ARO vintage group plus recognize any layers if disposal cost estimates change or a
new study is performed. If vintage retirement data is not available, do exactly the same
calculation, but true up the components (which would eliminate all the subsequent
measurements and layering).
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Fin 47 requires the use of current assumptions. It may be necessary to perform a new
depreciation study to obtain current information on expected lives and removal costs for
existing property. Negative salvage estimates that have been taken from depreciation
studies reflect previous assumptions. In other words, the study reflects removal costs that
have already happened and may not even reflect costs or methods of disposal under a
new or recent legal requirement (or only partially reflect it). To the extent that previous
assumptions are the same as current assumptions, the depreciation study may be used.

The gross removal portion of the negative net salvage amount also may contain a removal
component that may or may not be part of the retirement obligation. Use of the
approved rate to determine the obligation under this Interpretation could result in an
inflated obligation. In either case, it should be updated to reflect current assumptions,
based on management’s intent, the asset’s estimated economic life as well as entity and
industry practices. Be sure to exclude gross salvage value from estimated removal costs
and to split the removal costs into its components in order to identify only those pieces
that represent the retirement obligation.

Snapshot. If immaterial or one is unable to modify or perform annual studies, work with
what is available at the end of each year. Then compute the ARO by taking a snapshot
each year and true up for differences.

2. Detail Method — If detailed records exist or it is feasible to create detailed records and

reporting just for treated wood poles (or like mass assets), and then it would be possible to
fully comply with SFAS 143 and FIN 47.

3. For either method, one may want to:

a.

Re-examine the legal obligation to determine if there is a specific obligation due to the
type of treatment on the poles along with other mass assets and that complying will result
in a cost. For some locations, there are no “special” disposal tracking or fees. Examine
the disposal fee for poles to determine if it is related to special facilities or just additional
cost for garbage service. No cost means no accruals need to be booked.

Determine if the future fee could qualify as immaterial. For example, a $5 fee or a 50-
cent information sheet to buyers could be immaterial on the surface. However, balance
sheet materiality would apply and it is the fair value of the ARO items as grouped that
may determine materiality.

Review the additional reporting and record keeping requirements of the full application to
determine if the cost of keeping records is unreasonable for the effort and that an
alternative method may yield a reasonable estimate. For example, if one can match
disposal to vintaged purchases, then one should be able to comply using the Detailed
Method instead of developing a statistical approximation.

Similar to above, review whether the depreciation studies are reasonably compatible.
Remember FIN 47 “example 17 is concerned with “purchase to disposal” total life versus
studies based upon “site life” and in-service time (does not recognize reuse.) Similarly,
then, approximation methods might be reasonable. Paragraph 2 of SFAS 143 states that
this “applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement’ of a tangible long-lived asset
that results from the acquisition, construction or development...” This sentence has
two interpretations - the first half indicates it only applies to plant in-service, while the
second half adds the purchase or construction to the point of application. This review
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may want to include making a determination on the reasonableness and materiality of the
difference between in-service date versus the date of construction or purchase.

e. Alternative approaches also may be justified if one qualifies as a regulated utility. As a
regulated utility, the entire ARO compliance effort may result only in balance sheet
adjustments with no earning impacts. The most reasonable application of managerial
judgment might involve only a high-level, rough estimate of the current obligation
without all the various kinds of offsetting regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities. It
may be that all those offsetting line items and calculations provides only confusion and a
good description of the circumstances is the most appropriate disclosure, especially if
preliminary efforts indicate that full compliance results in an immaterial impact.

An example of a possible “snapshot” follows. Ultilities with recent, extensive, and detailed studies may
have such particulars and resources to develop a very close approximation of full ARO accounting. Many
utilities will have very limited information available from latest depreciation studies and property records.
This example is intended to show how to approximate an ARO calculation with the bare minimum of
information.

Assuming that the utility depreciation study only provides an average service life and net salvage (no basis
for a split for removal costs), has a count or estimate of treated poles in service, and vintage or estimate of
age of those poles:

For Year 1 (2005) the following applies:

Surviving plant is equal to 100,000 poles,
Average service life is estimated to be 50 years,

Average age of existing poles is 30 years (assume the average remaining life is 20 years even
though it most likely would be closer to 25 years using Iowa Curves)

Disposal cost is $15 per pole fee set by law in 2000 at a local waste management facility.

Future removal cost in 20 years would be $1.5 million ($15 times 100,000). Note, apply an
inflation factor as well if disposal fee can increase due to inflation,

Apply a current discount rate (credit adjusted risk free rate) back to the year that the obligation
began (in this example it is the year 2000) to determine ARC,

Set up schedules to determine ARC depreciation, accumulated reserve, accretion table, and
current value of ARO in year 2005 (also determine regulatory accounting to offset any
expenses or income if eligible for SFAS 71 treatment — FERC Accounts 182.3 and 407.4 for
regulatory assets, FERC Accounts 254 and 407.3 for regulatory liabilities).

For Year 2 (it is now 2000) the following occurs:

Surviving plant has been reduced to 95,000 poles (additions and retirement led to a net
reduction,

Average service life is still estimated to be 50 years,
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Average age of existing poles has changed due to the additions and retirements — and is now
29.5 years (average remaining life is now 21.5 years)

Disposal cost is still $15 per pole fee set by law at a local waste management facility back in
year 2000 (watch for whether this should be inflated),

Future removal cost in 21.5 years would be $1.425 million (15 times 95,000),

Apply a current discount rate (credit adjusted risk-free rate) back to year 2000 to determine
ARC (FERC account 359.1 or 374),

Set up schedules to determine ARC depreciation, accumulated reserve, accretion table, and
current value of ARO now in year 2006 (also determine regulatory accounting to offset any
expenses or income if eligible for SFAS 71 treatment — FERC Accounts 182.3 and 407.4 for
regulatory assets, FERC Accounts 254 and 407.3 for regulatory liabilities).

Compare the Year 2 (2000) results to Year 1 (2005) results:
1. Adjust both the ARC asset, ARC accumulated reserve, and the ARO liability to the new

numbers.

2. The remaining differences (accretion, depreciation, and affect of the change upon the
current) will be recognized as a gain or loss or deferred under regulatory accounting
(adjust previously recorded amount — difference may change the amount from an asset to
a liability which should be a reversal of the prior year entry and a new entry in order to
keep the connection between 407.3 and 254 or 407.4 and 182.3 as appropriate).

3. Layering is being ignored for both because this is only an approximation and this does
recognize that the forecast future date of cash flows has changed for all assets and in the
long run will achieve a more appropriate obligation at the time of disposal.

In the situation where more information is available (such as vintage data), and the effort reasonable, then
the above “snapshot” approach could be applied to each vintage. If service life is estimated using
dispersion curves such as Iowa Curves, another enhancement would be to use the “retirement rate”
percentages from those curves to develop the estimated time for future retirements. Such an enhancement
may be unreasonable (especially if being computed manually) because it would be many times more
complicated with the number of vintages involved and it may result in an immaterial difference to the
results. These are issues subject to that managerial judgment discussed at the beginning of this document.

Questions for Review: Mass Assets, Electric and Gas
1.
2.

Which mass assets are subject to this section?

What actuarial assumptions has the company been using with those assets identified as
falling within FIN 477

Are the state laws or federal ones defining the disposal restrictions related to any of
these minor items?

Can one determine a reasonable estimate the current disposal costs and does that apply
to all or most in the mass asset group?

Can one estimate the retirement possibilities such that the choices would meet current
audit and accounting standards for supporting evidence?
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6.  Is the ARO associated with this mass assets material enough to spur recognition in the
books and records or should its presence just be disclosed?

Minor Items

SFAS 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset that
result from the acquisition, construction, development, or normal operations of the asset itself. In the
utility business, property accountants break the huge investment in fixed assets into retirement units,
whereby anything less than a retirement unit is not significant enough to be a unit of property. These
items that are less than a retirement unit are often called minor items. When construction ensues to install
one or more retirement units, minor items directly associated with the retirement units are often part of
the construction cost. However, a minor item is not replaced with future construction dollars just because
its original cost was part of fixed assets. These items are replaced using maintenance dollars or the
replacement is expensed at that time. Minor items to the utility business are basically our “bricks in a
kiln”.

So it can easily be seen that these minor items can be a quandary when determining a conditional ARO.
In some respects, these minor items can consist of the contaminants discussed below. Replacing these in
the course of normal operations may be construed as impossible to determine as not enough facts are
available to measure the conditional ARO. One would need to know when in the course of operations
these minor items will be replaced. However, a more routine maintenance replacement may not be as
difficult to predict than an item that perchance could fail. For example, if oil is replaced after every certain
number of hours of operation, then one may be able to estimate the disposal obligation. The bricks
example infers that the disposal of these bricks, because it is known and routine, may constitute an ARO.
A company needs to decide if any of the minor items, those that are part of the asset on installation, but
are replaced on maintenance throughout the life of the asset, qualify for conditional ARO treatment.
Minimally, the proper removal of oil may be a legal obligation upon retirement of the asset.

However, one keeps coming back to the idea that these items are not fixed assets in exclusion of the
retirement unit. Oil sitting on the shelf (i.e. inventory not specifically a property unit) does not fall within
the scope of SFAS 143. If the installation of the oil is expensed at the time it is added to the fixed asset,
one could conclude that it is not part of the fixed asset cost and perhaps the only retirement obligation is
the one associated with the retirement of the asset either interim or final. Assuming this conclusion, the
replacement of a minor item during operation in exclusion of the retirement unit would be considered
normal maintenance and not subject to ARO accounting. Whereas, the retirement of the asset including
the minor item could constitute an ARO, conditional or otherwise, if the minor item causes the asset
retirement to meet the rules of SFAS 143 or FIN 47.

Recommendation

Before minor items are recognized as an ARO, make sure that the component is not part of an ARO
established for the asset to which the minor item relates. For example, the bricks in the kiln were replaced
many times over the life of the kiln’s useful life. If an ARO exists for the final disposal of the kiln in its
entirety, one would not want to set up an ARO for the disposal of the final set of bricks. Clearly define
the minor items that should be included and test eatly on in this process for materiality. One may have
bricks, but the bricks represent such a small component of one’s balance sheet and income statement that
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the inclusion of such in the ARO process may be immaterial at all times, especially if the asset (the kiln)
has no ARO. Keep track of the asset to which these minor items relate in order to determine if a future
ARO will be warranted by association. Lastly, document the minor items with possible AROs that are
routinely replaced versus those where replacement cannot be predicted.

Some Questions for Review: Minor Items

1. Can the minor items be identified that could cause an ARO situation to occur when it is
removed with the asset retirement?

Does the company have a definitive list of minor units of property?

3. Are the state laws or federal ones defining the disposal restrictions related to any of
these minor items?

4. Can a one make a reasonable estimate of when the asset will be retired and whether the
minor item will exist as part of the asset at that retirement date?

5. Does any of the guidance from AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 96-1,
“Environmental Remediation Liabilities” supersede the application of SFAS 143 or FIN
477

6. Can one estimate the retirement possibilities such that the choices would meet current
audit and accounting standards for supporting evidence?

7. Is the ARO associated with this minor item material enough to spur recognition in the
books and records?

Asbestos, PCBs, and Other Contaminants

Asbestos

Assets constructed before 1980 may have used asbestos as insulation or fire retardant. Typical removal of
this substance involves extensive effort to protect workers and the environment from harm along with
very specific disposal rules. For that matter, any asset with asbestos may have an ARO associated with it.
The determination of whether the removal is performed as a part of normal ongoing maintenance during
the life of the asset or is present at the time of retirement may need to be factored into the fair value
analysis.

For non-real property, the ability to determine the amount of contamination may be an issue and a costly
one at that. The engineering staff generally can determine if the asset being worked on contains asbestos,
but determining the amount of contamination may not be feasible. This may make the process more
difficult in applying FIN 47, but it may not preclude recognition in the financial statements. At the
minimum, disclosure may be necessary for specific assets that are contaminated. For instance, the amount
of existing asbestos in a generating facility may not be known and the timing of the removal of it during
normal maintenance may be difficult to forecast. The obligation, in this circumstance may be measurable
only after the work has been defined. If the ARO is known, measurable, and satistied all during the same
accounting period, then perhaps only a disclosure is necessary for these instances.

Real estate may be easier to estimate if one knows the extent of the contamination. It may be that when
the building was first constructed asbestos was throughout every floor. Many years later, some of the
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asbestos may have been removed in past maintenance on various sections of the building. The engineers
familiar with the building should know the relative extent of the contamination. If the building has been
through a recent assessment, it may be possible to estimate the loss in market value of the building
because of the asbestos. However, asbestos abatement may not be comparable to the loss in market
value, and this loss should be weighed with the potential for undertaking the removal oneself.

Estimation of retirement, as with all assets falling within the scope of this Interpretation, can be quite
difficult as some of the assets contaminated also are the longest living assets. Even with the loss in value
due to selling the building with the contamination, one still may have a difficult time determining
retirement parameters. Non-real property may be easier to estimate, as there often exists a manufacturing
life on most retirement units.

Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)

PCBs are man-made chemical compounds previously used in the manufacture of products to make them
flexible and heat resistant. Because of these fire retardant qualities, manufacturers sometimes used it in
the insulating oil of capacitors, transformers and other electrical equipment. PCBs also can be found in
hydraulic fluids, lubricants, paints, sealants, carbonless paper, ink, caulking compounds, and plastics.

PCBs are very stable and do not readily break down in the environment and therefore require special care
during handling and disposal. The use of PCBs is regulated under the Federal Toxic Substances Control
Act (TSCA). The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has set strict regulations regarding the
manufacture, use, storage, transportation and disposal of specific levels of PCBs. PCB concentrations
below specified levels are not regulated under TSCA.

The existence of regulations related to disposal of PCBs creates a duty to dispose of PCBs in a prescribed
manner. The obligation to perform this asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty
may exist about the timing and (or) method of settlement.

The Interpretation states an entity shall recognize a liability for the fair value of the conditional Asset
Retirement Obligation (ARO) if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. If one has
assets that contain PCBs and one has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of the
ARO, then the PCB ARO must be recorded. Sufficient information needed to reasonably estimate the
fair value includes:

o Settlement date, or information to estimate a range of potential settlement dates

. Method of settlement or potential method of settlement, and

e  The probability associated with the potential settlement dates and method of settlement.

The ability to defer settlement, such as storing PCB containing equipment, does not relieve the entity of
the obligation. The PCB will eventually need to be disposed of following EPA prescribed procedures.
The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty may exist
about the timing or method of settlement. The PCB ARO is the cost to dispose of the PCBs as required
by the EPA.

Example 1 included in Appendix A of the Interpretation indicates that the ability to sell the PCB
containing equipment or facility prior to disposal does not relieve the entity of its present duty to settle the
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obligation. The sale of the equipment or facility transfers the obligation to another entity. The
assumption of the obligation by the buyer affects the sale price. Therefore, an ARO should be recorded
once known; when the asset is sold, the ARO liability is debited and the sale price is adjusted to reflect the
transfer of the ARO obligation. Itis assumed that the utility has factored into the calculation of the ARO,
the probability that not all of the assets may be contaminated upon sale.

An entity does not have sufficient information to estimate the fair value of the ARO if:

o The settlement date is indeterminate (the range of time over which the entity may settle the
obligation is unknown or cannot be estimated),

° Method of settlement is unknown, and

o Sufficient information is not available to apply an expected present value technique

In this case, an entity will record an ARO when sufficient information exists. It currently qualifies as an
ARO, albeit not measurable, and it would be subject to certain accounting and disclosure requirements
related to reserves and provisions for cost of future removal. Example 3 included in Appendix A of the
Interpretation illustrates this point. However, paragraph 22 of Statement 143 requires that if the liability’s
fair value cannot be reasonably estimated, that fact and the reasons shall be disclosed.

Electrical equipment damaged by a car, lightning or other incident, which result in a spill of insulating oil
containing PCBs will be out-of-scope of this Interpretation since the spill is not considered normal
operations. Paragraph 2 of the Interpretations states that “Statement 143 applies to legal obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction,
or development and (or) the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except as explained in paragraph 17 of
that Statement for certain obligations of lessees.”

Other Contaminants

As part of the normal operations for a utility, other contaminants may exist in fixed assets that would
require “special” disposal procedures under federal and state regulations. Below are examples of these
assets that may contain other contaminants:

Generation
o Groundwater contamination in ash ponds from metals such as nickel, chromium and arsenic
o Groundwater and soil contamination from unlined chemical cleaning basins (i.e. boiler

cleaning waste basins)

o Soil and ground water contamination associated with above and below ground storage
tanks (i.e. petroleum or other contamination)

° Solid waste landfills that require installation of a final cover system, grading the final cover,
and establish vegetation on the final cover

° Septic tanks that must be drained and filled with sand prior to closure

o Wastewater and sewage treatment facilities that may contain hazardous wastewater
treatment sludge or sewage
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Transmission & distribution

Other

Soil contamination from arsenic at substations

Soil contamination from mineral oil at substations from non-PCB transformetrs

Equipment containing sulfur hexafluoride (SFy) gas

This is not an exhaustive list of potential contaminates resulting from normal operations of utilities. Each
company should consult with environmental experts and legal counsel to properly assess these and other
contaminants for potential AROs. Care should be given to ensure that contaminants at these facilities do
not fall under the scope of SOP 96-1, Environmental Remediation Liabilities, and that these contaminants
resulted from normal operations.

Recommendation

EEI and AGA issued a White Paper entitled Assez Retirement Obligation Implementation White Paper late 2002,
which recommended a team approach to identifying and estimating AROs. That approach can be used
for the implementation of FIN 47. Listed below are some of the main points included in the White Paper:

e Use a team approach, ARO team members should include representatives from various company
operating departments,

e Develop an inventory of potential AROs,

e Accounting and Legal departments must review and discuss these potential AROs to determine if
a legal obligation exists,

e Once it is determined that the obligation falls within the scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47, the next
step is measurement of the ARO liability. The amount of the ARO liability is to be measured at
fair value.

Refer to the 2002 EEI and AGA White paper section entitled “Calculation Process Overview” for
suggested ARO calculation guidelines and examples. The White Paper also includes journal entry
examples and record keeping suggestions.

Questions for Review: Asbestos, PCBs, and Other Contaminants
1.

AR

Can all the assets be identified that contain asbestos, PCBs, or other contaminants and
can the amount of asbestos that is contained in the asset be determined?

Does the company treat these contaminants as a major or minor unit of property?
Are the state laws more onerous than the federal ones?
Can a market value of the asset be determined with and without the contaminant?

Does any of the guidance from AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 96-1,
“Environmental Remediation Liabilities” supersede the application of SFAS 143,
Accounting for Retirement Obligations or FIN 47?

Can one estimate the retirement possibilities such that the choices would meet current
audit and accounting standards for supporting evidence?
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Rights-of-Way and Franchises

Land, although not specifically excluded from scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47, is perhaps the one asset
that can live forever. Rights of way and easements are land related intangible assets that also are excluded
from the scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47. However, consideration should be given to whether there is a
conditional obligation that can be associated to specific, existing, long-lived assets within rights-of-way
and franchise areas. It should be noted that there is no asset retirement obligation associated with the
franchise (or right-of-way) itself. If it is determined that there is an ARO, it only will be with the assets
located within that franchise (or right-of-way). Similar situations may exist with leased land or leasehold
improvements, however this section is dealing with the intangible asset created by the right-of-way or
franchise agreement. An ARO associated with a lease may be more determinable due to the language of
the legal agreement.

Typically, utilities are granted franchises by each local jurisdiction in which they have distribution and
transmission assets. Typically, the local jurisdiction retains the right to require the removal of the utility’s
assets, at the discretion of the local jurisdiction. Consequently, the wording in the franchise imposes
certain requirements due to revocation of ordinances and road relocations. Just as typically, however, the
intent of the utility and the local jurisdiction is for the utility to continue to provide service on a
permanent basis in the service area, and the utility is required to remove its assets only when necessary to
allow the local jurisdiction to perform some public work.

Generally, the wording in such franchises indicates that there is a possibility that any individual asset could
be required to be moved at any time, but the wording neither identifies specific assets to be removed nor
sets a specific time that the removal is required. Furthermore, the franchise wording typically indicates
that the franchise is either perpetual or renewable.

Paragraph 3 of FASB Interpretation No. 47 states:

“The term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in paragraph A23 of Statement 143 refers
to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or)
method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the
control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional
even though uncertainty exist about the timing and (or) method of settlement.”

This definition identifies three variables: “If”’, “When” and “How/How Much”.
. The “If” is satisfied if it has been determined that an asset will have to be retired at some
future date’; i.e. the obligating event has occurred.
o The “When” is the date or range of dates when the retitement will/must occur.

o The “How” is the method (and by extension, the cost) associated with the retirement.

In the case of franchises, the obligating event would be the determination by the local jurisdiction that an
asset or group of assets must be removed. In granting a franchise, however, the presumption by both the
utility and the local jurisdiction is that this event will never occur. The fact that this event does occur on
occasion (road widening, for example) is not sufficient to negate this presumption.
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In a franchise situation, a conditional ARO does not exist, because the obligating event has not yet
occurred. The possibility exists that the obligating event will occur, but the possibility alone is not itself an
obligating event. The questions of “when” and “how/how much” do not even come into play, because it
has not been established that any asset or group of assets will have to be removed. It is impossible to
calculate an asset retirement amount, so journal entries are not required. Furthermore, the possibility that
an ARO could come into existence need not be disclosed in a footnote.

It should be noted that franchise language typically requires a utility to remove its assets from a given
location, not retire those assets. Theoretically, the utility could satisfy the requirements of the franchise by
simply moving those assets. In the case of a road widening, for example, the utility could just pick up all
of its poles and wires and move them. In reality, new poles and wire are installed and the old poles and
wire are removed. But, the decision to install the new and then remove the old is a management decision,
to allow for continuous service while the assets are being “relocated”. And in some cases, those assets
being removed could be re-used elsewhere (poles, for example). There is no asset retirement obligation,
because there is no obligation to retire assets.

This situation can change for major projects, however. If a jurisdiction notifies a utility that it must
remove specific assets, for any reason, and assuming the utility will retire those assets, the obligating event
for those specific assets will have occurred, and an ARO would exist at that point. If the timing and
method of removal can be reasonably estimated (and it probably could be), then the utility would be
required to calculate and record an ARO. For example, if the utility is notified that a given section of a
subway system is to be extended in five years, and that the utility will have to relocate its poles, wires,
buried cable or gas mains along the route of the subway extension, all of the requirements of an ARO will
have been met. At this point the utility would be required to record an asset retirement obligation for
these assets.

It is not uncommon for local jurisdictions to reimburse the utility some or all of the cost of removal when
that local jurisdiction requires that assets be relocated. Such reimbursements are not salvage; they are, in
fact, a reduction of the cost of removal. Since the cost of removal is the basis for calculating the amount
of the asset retirement obligation, any such reimbursement must be reflected (as a reduction) in the ARO
calculation. This could substantially reduce the amount of the ARO (or in the case of a 100%
reimbursement, totally eliminate it).

Rights-of-Way are similar to franchises, but on a smaller scale. Rights-of-Way typically are granted by
individual citizens or companies, cover smaller areas of land, and may be for shorter periods than
franchises. The logic in applying the criteria for establishing an ARO is the same, however. If and when
an obligating event occurs, an ARO would have to be recognized if sufficient information exists to
estimate the fair value of the obligation or disclosed (if sufficient information does not exist). The
determination that a Right-of-Way will not be renewed would be an obligating event. Until that time, no
calculations or disclosure by the utility would be required.

If it is determined that an asset retirement obligation does exist, it is important that companies do not
double-count or double-record the ARO amount. For example, companies may have a program to
identify and track asset retirement obligations for the disposal of treated poles. If a treated pole is in a
franchise area or right-of-way and must be removed, and it is deemed that an ARO does exist, the cost of
disposing of the treated pole should not be counted twice — once under the program to identify costs of
disposing of treated poles, and then again as part of the cost of removing an asset from a franchise area or
right-of-way. Property accounting personnel should take care to coordinate the ARO identification and
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measurement efforts to ensure that all ARO costs are recorded, but that those costs are recorded only
once.

Recommendation

The costs of franchises and rights-of-way do not themselves incur an asset retirement obligation.
Generally, the assets within the franchise area or right-of-way do not incur an asset liability solely because
those assets are subject to the franchise or right-of-way. Under certain circumstances, however, those
assets could incur an asset retirement obligation. If it is deemed that an asset retirement obligation does
exist for certain assets in a franchise area or right-of-way, care should be taken not to include costs that
have been included under another ARO identification program within the company.

Questions for Review: Rights-of-Way and Franchises
1. Who maintains the file of all franchises and rights-of-way agreements?

2. What is the exact wording in the franchises and rights-of-way agreements? (Specifically,
what do it require the company to do?)

3. Can one identify al of the assets in the franchise and rights-of way areas?

Are the assets in the franchise and rights-of way areas covered under some other ARO
identification program within the company?

5. Do the company have procedures in place to make sure that one is not double-counting
the ARO?

6. Can one reasonably estimate the amount of reimbursements the company will receive
for any required cost of removal?

General Property

The possible changes in ARO accounting as indicated in the guidance and examples provided in FIN 47
also may apply to utility property classified under the General Plant function. Recently, the lead and
mercury content in personal computers have been drawing attention of lawmakers, environmental
agencies, and disposal sites. There are other potential issues like the mercury in fluorescent light bulbs and
chemicals in common batteries. Individual utilities may want to assess ARO requirements as modified by
FIN 47.

It may be possible that each of the four examples could apply depending upon the circumstances of the
legal obligation and property accounting issues such as whether the obligation relates to a retirement unit,
a minor item, or a smaller portion of an asset. For example the coatings or trace elements in a personal
computer might be comparable to the chemicals in the treated wood poles in Example 1 in Appendix A
of FIN 47. If the obligation relates to specific components of the computer, Examples 3 and 4 may be
more applicable.

There may be an additional complication in applying FIN 47 to General Plant property. Many utilities
have adopted amortization accounting (such as allowed under Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Accounting Release No. 15, “Vintage Year Accounting For General Plant Accounts”). A main objective
of adopting amortization accounting was often to eliminate the relatively unreasonable cost of tracking the
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status of large volumes of low cost property. Under amortization accounting, the cost of the long-lived
asset is given an assumed life and reporting of movement or disposition of the property ceases.

While there may be insufficient information in the property records, there may be alternative sources of
information. In the personal computer circumstance, a utility may already have a policy of storing the PC
prior to disposal — possibly to be in compliance or anticipation of compliance with disposal obligation.
The assessment of application of FIN 47 might include evaluation of the existing availability of such
alternative information or of possibly creating such information to facilitate compliance with both the
legal obligation and the accounting requirements.

Recommendation

1. Review the circumstances for each account — identify the legal obligation, availability of the
information to determine the estimated future removal cost, and the property accounting
method (item property, group property, or amortization accounting).

2. Amortization accounting would represent a unique situation, because it was probably adopted
because of a determination that it was unreasonable to maintain detailed record keeping under
group or item property. There may still be a basis for recording an ARO, if alternative
information is available and the effort reasonable or not considered immaterial.

a. Por example, company using amortization accounting with a policy that requires that
unused PCs be returned to a central location for disposal with a known disposal cost. If
quantities are kept with the unamortized period, then it is possible to estimate a total
liability (quantity unamortized plus quantity waiting for disposal multiplied by the disposal
fee). All that is necessary is to estimate the timing of the disposals.

b. Some utilities may keep other records on such items outside of the accounting, which
may provide sufficient information to calculate the exposure quantity and approximate
timing of disposal.

c.  This accounting method is designed to alleviate the record keeping burden on small value,
high volume assets and one should attempt to maintain this simplicity in the ARO
analysis and calculation.

3. The possible situations are numerous, but if information is available and cost is large enough,
then one of the methods described above (such as used for mass assets) may be applicable for
making the calculation.

Questions for Review: General Property

1. Can one define the legal requirements for removal for the general assets?

2. Does the company use AR-15, amortization of general property?

3. Can one estimate potential future retirements?

4. Are the obligations for this category material?

5. If immaterial, is it appropriate to group these AROs with others to determine
materiality?

6.  Can you estimate the retirement possibilities such that the choices would meet current

audit and accounting standards for supporting evidence?
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Hpydro Generation

Hydro dams and facilities fall into conditional obligations primarily due to three factors:

1. An exceptionally long life of the total facility,
2. The large magnitude of costs and complications associated with removal, and

3. The uneven probabilities involved.

In some circumstances, however, the obligation may already provide the information to support recording
an estimate. In other circumstances, there may be legitimacy in asserting that too much uncertainty exists
to make a reasonable estimate.

Hydro facilities (generation equipment, dam, reservoir, and other plant) typically have an extremely long
life. That life may also involve multiple steps, in that the dam may continue to provide service long after
generation ceases, and may be rebuilt or repaired multiple times in order to maintain the reservoir for
conservation or flood control purposes. That combined total facility life may be so long that “there are no
boundaries of time or an extremely lengthy period of time, that bears on a person’s ability to make a
reasonable estimate of the timing and the amount of the cash flows” ' (Minutes of January 26, 2005 Board
Meeting, wwwifasb.org). Estimating life may be further complicated by whether the obligation is identified
(individually or overlapping) by multiple jurisdictions (a FERC license, a Corp of Engineers building
permit, an act of Congress, state law, or even promissory estoppel).

The exceptionally long life expectancy will typically represent the greatest obstacle to developing a
reasonable estimate of ARO. Many reservoirs can be traced to the early history of the United States, so it
is reasonable for a total life of a hydro facility to be measured in hundreds of years. Another complication
may be multiple legal jurisdictions involved in the obligation over different phases of that total life.
Further, economics may suppott a truly indefinite life since the magnitude of a repair/rebuild may be the
clear option of choice compared to the magnitude of the cost of removal of the facility - at any point in
time when a removal consideration is being faced.

The long-life combined with the economics favoring indefinite repair over removal creates a time frame in
which acts of gods (unprecedented floods, earthquake, etc.) would have to be included in setting
probabilities of life. Statistical models may not be applicable when a long life would also involve such
random factors — not only for the life, but also the wide range of possible methods of removal
complicated by varying relationships to the cause of removal.

Recommendation

Understanding the nature and timing of the current legal obligation is a critical first step, but one that may
be particularly difficult to determine. With Hydro licenses, the requirement to remove the dam and
flowage structure, albeit purportedly required by the FERC, may not occur if the environment has adapted
and become accustom to the dam. One may have to rely more on local data that is in relation to a legal
obligation to define the possible course of action.

A conditional ARO is a judgment-based process and if it results in no ARO recognition, then

documentation of such conclusion must be done. If a life or range of lives can be identified, the next step
is to review the extent of possible methods for meeting the obligation. If life and method of settlement
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can be identified, the next step would be to identify the availability of other critical elements in estimating
an ARO.

Questions for Review: Hydro Generation

1. What is the nature of the legal obligation(s) involved — does it apply to only a portion of
the hydro or to the full facility?

2. Can a life or a range of lives be reasonably identified with any degree of statistical
validity?

3. Can the methods of settlement be identified with reasonable estimates of probability?
Can a market value of the asset be determined with and without asbestos?

5. If all of the above exists, can costs and cash flows be reasonably estimable with any
degree of statistical validity?
And, can inflation be reliably predicted from present to the time of removal?

7. Does a risk-free interest rate exist for such a period and will credit adjustments be

applicable to determine the rate necessary to convert the ARO into the capitalized asset
retirement cost and accretion models necessary under SFAS 1437

8. Can one estimate the retirement possibilities such that the choices would meet current
audit and accounting standards for supporting evidence?

Opverall Recommendation

There will be no single way to estimate the conditional ARO on the property that was excluded in the
earlier review. Several recommendations have been provided within this white paper, but as always, each
company will need to decide the appropriate conditional ARO. This review includes the determination of
the potential liability, the costing and probability of occurrence, the method for calculating the liability and
asset, the materiality of the ARO, forward processing, and the appropriate disclosure. The basic concept
throughout was to define the property and to encourage one to find a way to provide for the intent of the
accounting without creating unbearable duress in doing the calculation. Also, the calculation for the first
recognition at the end of this year should be one consideration, but the process used should define the
ongoing revision of the conditional liability and the eventual settlement.

The whole process used should be defined and documented to support audit review and to satisfy any
Sarbanes/Oxley provisions within the company. Even if one chooses to disclose and not to account, the
documentation for the first and subsequent measurements must be such that it will completely support
that decision. Overall, proper management and design of the process keeping a keen site on the form and
intent should enable one to fully represent the conditional ARO without creating a nightmare of a process.
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Effective Date

Effective Date
Paragraph 8 of the Interpretation specifies the effective date and states:

The Interpretation shall be effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2005 (December 31, 2005, for calendar-year enterprises). Retrospective
application of interim financial information is permitted but is not required. Early adoption
of the Interpretation is encouraged.

Transition Accounting:

Paragraphs 9 and 10 of the Interpretation provide requirements for transitional accounting and state:

“For amounts recognized upon the initial application of the Interpretation, an entity shall
recognize the following items in its statement of financial position: (a) a liability for any
existing AROs adjusted for cumulative accretion to the date of adoption of the
Interpretation, (b) an asset retirement cost capitalized as an increase to the carrying amount
of the associated long-lived asset(s), and (c) accumulated depreciation on that capitalized
cost.”

“Amounts resulting from initial application of the Interpretation shall be measured using
current (that is, as of the date of adoption of the Interpretation) information, current
assumptions, and current interest rates. The amount recognized as an asset retirement cost
shall be measured as of the date the asset retirement obligation was incurred. Cumulative
accretion and accumulated depreciation shall be recorded for the time period from the date
the liability would have been recognized had the provisions of the Interpretation been in
effect when the liability was incurred to the date of adoption of the Interpretation.”

“An entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the Interpretation as a
change in accounting principle. The amount to be reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment
in the statement of operations is the difference between the amounts, if any, recognized in
the statement of financial position prior to the application of the Interpretation and the net
amount that is recognized in the statement of financial position pursuant to paragraph 9 of
the Interpretation.”

Thus, the recognition of new AROs due to adopting this Interpretation is similar to the first recognition
done for SFAS 143. Once the full accounting is established for an ARO, the change in estimate routine
from SFAS 143 is used for all subsequent layers. For mass assets and other AROs recognized in
aggregate, the change in the obligation acknowledged in the second and successive years may be defined as
a new layer. This would have to be discussed and agreed upon by management and your auditors as an
appropriate treatment.

Subsequent Accounting for Indeterminate AROs:

As has occurred throughout this issue, a quandary seems to exist relating to subsequent recognition if a
previously indeterminate ARO becomes measurable and material such that one must invoke the full
accounting treatment, not just the disclosure part. The question that has been difficult to get a consensus
on is as follows:
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Should transition accounting be used in future years to record the initial measurement of an ARO, which
was previously treated as indeterminate or would the measurement of this ARO constitute a change in
estimate and thus the accounting for a subsequent layer be applicable?

There does not seem to be agreement on this point and it may be a common occurrence. A survey of 18
EEI companies (by Constellation) showed responses that were split down the middle as to whether
transition accounting would apply when asset retirement costs were first being measured (previously
immeasurable) in years after adoption of FIN 47.

It would seem that transition accounting would not be used in years following adoption of FIN 47. Both
FAS 143’ paragraph 25 and FIN 47’s paragraph 9 on transitional accounting specifically refer to
measuring an asset retirement cost (as of the date the obligation was incurred) and provide for
accumulated depreciation “to the date of adoption of this Statement” or “Interpretation”. Neither FAS
143’s paragraph B19 nor Fin 47’s paragraph B27 specifically provide a method for asset retirement costs
when it states that obligations should be measured at the point where information becomes available.

FIN 47 paragraph 9 ends by stating: “Cumulative accretion and accumulated depreciation shall be
recorded for the time period from the date the liability would have been recognized had the provisions of
this Interpretation been in effect when the liability was incurred to the date of_adoption of this
Interpretation.” (Emphasis added.) Since the date of subsequent measurement of a specific ARO is not
the date of adoption of the pronouncement, it would seem that transition accounting would not be
applicable. To rely on this premise, it is assumed that the following is true:

1. An asset was defined as either having an ARO or not based on the legal review at time of
adoption
2. Of those assets with an ARO, the ones that were measurable and material were accounted for

and disclosed in the financial statements

3. The remaining assets with an ARO were immeasurable, immaterial, or indeterminate in nature,
such that only a disclosure was presented in the financial statements

4, A new legal obligation created in the current period for an asset would start the ARO
accounting in the current period and no transitional or layer would apply

5. An asset with an ARO would use the cumulative-effect accounting upon adoption of FIN 47
or did use this accounting upon adoption of SFAS 143

6.  Any change in estimate, a new layer is created. With an asset where only a disclosure existed,
the new layer is done based on a zero layer from adoption.

FIN 47 seems to constitute new rules regarding the determination of when an ARO exists, and how (or
what information can be used) to measure that ARO. When booking entries, which adopt these new
rules, it explicitly directs one to discount the asset retirement cost back to the origination of the obligation.
However, neither SFAS 143 nor FIN 47 requires this when new facts result in a change in the
measurement of an existing ARO. In future years, if an immeasurable ARO becomes measurable, this is
due to a change in facts rather than a change in the rules. Therefore, it seems more closely aligned with
the prospective treatment given to a new layer. It seems likely that if the FASB wanted transition
accounting for this situation, it would have explicitly required it in SFAS 143 paragraph B19 and FIN 47
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paragraphs B19 and 27. This elucidation has not been tested through any audit and each company will
need to decide if this accounting is appropriate for their financial statements.

Transition Disclosures:
Paragraph 11 of the Interpretation provides requirements for transitional disclosures and states:

In addition to disclosures required by paragraphs 19(c), 19(d), and 21 of APB Opinion No.
20, Accounting Changes, an entity shall compute on a pro forma basis and disclose in the
footnotes to the financial statements for the beginning of the earliest year presented and at
the end of all years presented the amount of the liability for AROs as if the Interpretation
had been applied during all periods affected. The pro forma amounts of that liability shall be
measured using the information, assumptions, and interest rates used to measure the
obligation recognized upon adoption of the Interpretation.

Until the Interpretation is implemented, there is a disclosure requirement for adoption of new accounting

pronouncements (SAB 74). Basically, an entity is to provide qualitative or quantitative information, when
available, about the expected impact of implementation, updated quarterly.
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DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission

18 CFR Parts 35, 101, 154, 201, 346,
and 352

[Docket No. RM02-7-000, Order No. 631]

Accounting, Financial Reporting, and
Rate Filing Requirements for Asset
Retirement Obligations

Issued April 9, 2003.
AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, DOE.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (Commission) is
amending its regulations to update the
accounting and financial reporting
requirements for asset retirement
obligations under its Uniform Systems
of Accounts for public utilities and
licensees, natural gas and oil pipeline
companies.

The Commission is establishing
uniform accounting and financial
reporting for the recognition and
measurement of liabilities arising from
retirement and decommissioning
obligations of tangible long-lived assets,
and related costs. More specifically, the
Commission is adding new balance
sheet accounts to record the liability
and the related asset, new income
statement accounts to record the
accretion of the liability and the
depreciation of the related asset, adding
and revising as necessary the
definitions, general and plant
instructions contained in the Uniform
Systems of Accounts. The Commission
is also revising the following Annual
Reports: FERC Form Nos. 1, 1-F, 2, 2—
A, and 6 to include the new accounts
contained in the Final Rule. Finally, the
Commission is revising its rate filing
requirements to address the above-
mentioned changes.

An important objective of the rule is
to provide sound and uniform
accounting and financial reporting for
the above types of transactions and
events. The new accounts and changes
to the FERC Forms will add visibility,
completeness and consistency of the
accounting and reporting of liabilities
for asset retirement obligations and the
related asset retirement costs, the
accretion expense on the liability and
the depreciation expense on the
capitalized asset retirement costs.
EFFECTIVE DATE: The rule will become
effective May 21, 2003.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Mark Klose (Project Manager), Office of
the Executive Director, Federal Energy

Regulatory Commission, 888 First
Street, NE., Washington, DC 20426,
(202) 502—-8283.

Raymond Reid (Technical Information),
Office of the Executive Director,
Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, 888 First Street, NE.,
Washington, DC 20426, (202) 502—
6125.

Robert T. Catlin (Technical
Information), Office of Markets,
Tariffs, and Rates, Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, 888 First
Street, NE., Washington, DC 20426,
(202) 502—-8754.

Julia A. Lake (Legal Information), Office
of the General Counsel, Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, 888
First Street, NE., Washington, DC
20426, (202) 502—8370.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
I. Introduction
II. Background
III. Discussion
A. Accounting for the Cumulative Effect
Adjustment
B. Recognition of Regulatory Assets and
Liabilities
C. Authority To Adjust Accumulated
Depreciation (Accounts 108 and 110)
D. Accounting for Cost of Removal That
Does Not Constitute a Legal Obligation
E. Accounts Established for Recording
Accretion of Asset Retirement
Obligations and Depreciation of Asset
Retirement Costs
F. Accounts for Recording Asset
Retirement Costs
G. Accounting for Gains and Losses for the
Settlement of Asset Retirement
Obligations Related to Electric and Gas
Utility Plant
H. Accounting for Gains and Losses for the
Settlement of Asset Retirement
Obligations Related to Nonutility Plant
I. Other Accounting Matters
J. Tariff Filing Requirements
1. Tariff Filing Requirements Under 18
CFR part 35 and 18 CFR part 154
2. Tariff Filing Requirements Under 18
CFR part 346
K. Implementation for Accounting and
Reporting Purposes
IV. FERC Annual Report Forms
V. Regulatory Flexibility Act Certification
VI. Environmental Impact Statement
VIIL Information Collection Statement
VIII. Document Availability
IX. Effective Date and Congressional
Notification
Regulatory Text
Appendix A—List of Commenters
Appendix B—Summary of Changes to
Schedules for Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and
6
Appendix C—Revised Schedules for Forms 1,
1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6

I. Introduction
1. The Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (Commission) is revising

its regulations to update the accounting,
reporting and rate filing requirements.

In a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking
(NOPR) issued on October 30, 2002,1 the
Commission proposed to revise its
Uniform Systems of Accounts 2 for
public utilities and licensees,? natural
gas companies 4 and oil pipeline
companies ° by establishing uniform
accounting requirements for the
recognition of liabilities for legal
obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets
and the associated capitalization of
these amounts as part of the cost of the
asset giving rise to the obligation.

2. An asset retirement obligation is a
liability resulting from a legal obligation
to retire or decommission a plant asset.
The types of work activities typically
include removing or dismantling the
asset. For example, public utilities have
a legal liability to decommission nuclear
plants under certain Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) regulations. The
type of activities may include the
dismantlement and removal of the
reactor vessel and the related
contaminated facilities.

3. After carefully considering the
comments received, the Commission
has determined that a Final Rule
revising its accounting regulations,
Annual Report Forms (FERC Form Nos.
1, 1-F, 2, 2—A and 6), and rate filing
requirements for asset retirement
obligations should be issued.

4. The purpose of this Final Rule is to
improve the usefulness and
transparency of financial information
provided to the Commission and other
users of the FERC Forms by establishing
uniform accounting and reporting
requirements for legal obligations
associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets. The
Commission is of the view that such

167 FR 69816 (Nov. 19, 2002) and 67 FR 70890
(Nov. 27, 2002), IV FERC Stats. & Regs. {32,565
(Oct. 30, 2002).

2 Section 301(a) of the Federal Power Act (FPA),
16 U.S.C. 825(a), section 8 of the Natural Gas Act
(NGA), 15 U.S.C. 717g and section 20 of the
Interstate Commerce Act (ICA) 49 App.U.S.C. 20
(1988), authorize the Commission to prescribe rules
and regulations concerning accounts, records and
memoranda as necessary or appropriate for the
purposes of administering the FPA, NGA and the
ICA. The Commission may prescribe a system of
accounts for jurisdictional entities and, after notice
and opportunity for hearing, may determine the
accounts in which particular outlays and receipts
will be entered, charged or credited.

3Part 101 Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees Subject
to the Provisions of the Federal Power Act. See 18
CFR part 101 (2002).

4Part 201 Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Natural Gas Companies Subject to the
Provisions of the Natural Gas Act. See 18 CFR part
201 (2002).

5Part 352 Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Oil Pipeline Companies Subject to
the Provisions of the Interstate Commerce Act. See
18 CFR part 352 (2002).
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requirements are needed because these
types of transactions and events are not
clearly or consistently reported. This
rule is part of the Commission’s ongoing
effort to address emerging accounting
developments within the context of the
Uniform Systems of Accounts.

5. The accounting for asset retirement
obligations in this rule is consistent
with the accounting and reporting
requirements that jurisdictional entities
will use in their general purpose
financial statements provided to
shareholders and the Securities
Exchange Commission (e.g., companies
will separately account and report the
liability for the asset retirement
obligations, capitalize the asset
retirement costs, charge earnings for
depreciation of the asset and charge
operating expense for the accretion of
the liability).

6. The Commission is also revising its
rate filing requirements to accommodate
the above-mentioned changes. In that
regard, the accounting for asset
retirement obligations will not affect
jurisdictional entities’ ability to seek
recovery of costs arising from asset
retirement obligations in rates.
However, if billings under formula rate
tariffs are affected by the adoption of
these accounting requirements, the
jurisdictional entity must obtain
approval from the Commission prior to
implementing the change for tariff
billing purposes.

7. Finally, the Commission is revising
the following Annual Reports: FERC
Form No. 1, Annual Report of Major
Public Utilities, Licensees and Others
(Form 1); FERC Form No. 1-F, Annual
Report of Nonmajor Public Utilities and
Licensees (Form 1-F); FERC Form No. 2,
Annual Report of Major Natural Gas
Companies (Form 2); FERC Form No. 2—
A, Annual Report of Nonmajor Natural
Gas Companies (Form 2—A); and FERC
Form No. 6, Annual Report of Oil
Pipeline Companies (Form 6) to include
the new accounts and the revised
schedules.®

II. Background

8. The recognition and measurement
of legal liabilities associated with the
retirement and decommissioning of
long-lived assets by various entities,
including Commission jurisdictional
entities, have been inconsistent over the
years. Some jurisdictional entities do
not recognize asset retirement

6 The FERC Annual Reports bear the following
OMB approval control numbers: Form 1 has OMB
approval number 1902-0021; Form 1-F has OMB
approval number 1902-0029; Form 2 has OMB
approval number 1902—-0028; Form 2—A has OMB
approval number 1902-0030; and Form 6 has OMB
approval number 1902-0022.

obligations in their accounts while other
jurisdictional entities only recognize the
amounts included in the rate setting
process as a component of accumulated
depreciation. The Commission, in an
effort to eliminate the inconsistencies in
accounting practices by jurisdictional
entities for asset retirement obligations,
issued its October 30, 2002 Notice of
Proposed Rulemaking to revise the
accounting regulations, FERC Annual
Report Forms and rate filing
requirements for asset retirement
obligations.?

9. The scope of the NOPR covered
certain legal obligations associated with
the future retirement of long-lived
assets. These obligations, generally
referred to as asset retirement
obligations, are legal obligations
associated with the retirement of a
tangible long-lived asset that an entity is
required to settle as a result of an
existing enacted law, statute, ordinance,
or written or oral contract or by legal
construction of a contract under the
doctrine of promissory estoppel.8

10. In the NOPR, the Commission
broadly set forth the proposed
accounting framework for asset
retirement obligations as follows:

11. An entity essentially recognizes a
liability for the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation at the time the
asset is constructed, acquired, or when
a change in the law creates a legal
obligation to perform the retirement
activities. Upon initial recognition of
that liability, an entity also increases the
cost of the related asset that gives rise
to the legal obligation by the same
amount. The liability is increased over
time until the actual retirement activity
commences. Additionally, the asset
retirement cost capitalized is
depreciated over the same life of the
related asset giving rise to the
obligation. An entity is required to re-
measure the liability due to the passage
of time and certain other changes in the
estimate of the liability.

12. Entities will be required to
recognize the liabilities for asset
retirement obligations and the related
costs as if the new standard had been in
effect for all prior periods. The
difference between the amounts at the
date of adoption and the amounts
previously recorded for these items are
to be included in net income unless the
criteria for recognition of regulatory

7 See supra note 1.

8 See Financial Accounting Standards Statement
(FAS) No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations, issued in June 2001. The accounting
publication may be obtained from FASB at http://
www.fasb.org/. Appendix A, paragraphs A2 through
A5, contains a discussion of legal obligations.

assets or liabilities are met under Order
No. 552.9

III1. Discussion

13. The Commission received 16
comments concerning various aspects of
the proposed rule.1° The majority of the
commenters were generally supportive
of the Commission’s effort to provide
interpretative guidance on the
application of generally accepted
accounting principles to jurisdictional
entities that presently file financial
information with the Commission in
Annual Report Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A,
and 6.11

14. After careful consideration of the
comments received, the Commission is
adopting the changes and revisions as
proposed with certain modifications
and clarifications as discussed below.

A. Accounting for the Cumulative Effect
Adjustment

15. Upon initial implementation of
the new accounting requirements for
asset retirement obligations the
Commission proposed that
jurisdictional entities establish in their
accounts all of the amounts that would
have been recorded therein had these
new requirements always been in effect.
The NOPR referred to the accounting
entries required to implement this part
of the proposal as “transition
adjustments.” In certain instances, the
transition adjustments could result in a
charge or credit to net income. This
charge or credit is referred to as the
“cumulative effect adjustment” because
it represents the cumulative difference
between all amounts charged to net
income for asset retirement obligations
in past periods under the prior
accounting method and what would
have been charged to net income in
those periods had these new accounting
requirements set forth in the NOPR
always been in effect. For rate regulated
entities the cumulative effect
adjustment amounts will be recognized
as a regulatory asset or liability if the
requirements of Commission Order No.
552 are met.12

16. The Commission proposed to
record the cumulative effect adjustment

9 See Order No. 552, 58 FR 17982 (Apr. 7, 1993),
FERG Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles January
1991-June 1996 30,967 at pp. 30,823-26 (Mar. 31,
1993) for guidance on the recognition of regulatory
assets and regulatory liabilities when certain
conditions are met.

10 See Appendix A for Listing of Commenters.

11 See Arkansas PSC at p. 2, Deloitte & Touche at
p. 1, FirstEnergy at p. 2, NASUCA at pp. 2-3,
NRECA at pp. 3—4, Progress Energy at p. 1 and
Southern at p. 1.

12 See Order No. 552, supra note 9, for guidance
on the recognition of regulatory assets and
regulatory liabilities when certain conditions are
met.
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in two separate amounts. The first
portion of the cumulative effect
adjustment assumes that all amounts
included in the accumulated
depreciation accounts for previously
recognized legal retirement obligations
will be considered depreciation of the
asset retirement costs capitalized under
the proposed rule. The difference
between the amount included in the
accumulated depreciation for previously
recognized legal retirement obligations
and the accumulated depreciation on
the capitalized asset retirement costs
recognized under the new accounting
requirements will be charged or
credited, as appropriate, to net income
or recognized as a regulatory asset or
liability if the requirements of Order No.
552 are met. The second portion of the
cumulative effect adjustment assumes
that all amounts related to the accretion
of the liability for the asset retirement
obligation under the new requirements
would be charged to net income or
recognized as a regulatory asset if the
requirements of Order No. 552 are met.

Comments Received

17. Two commenters assert that the
NOPR was unclear as to the initial
implementation details of the proposed
accounting rules and seek clarification
of this matter in the final rule.?3 The
commenters request the Commission to
clarify the components included in the
cumulative effect adjustment.
FirstEnergy asserts that the components
of the cumulative effect adjustment may
consist of the net of the cumulative
accretion on the asset retirement
obligation, the accumulated
depreciation on the related capitalized
asset retirement cost, and the reversal of
any previously accrued legal retirement
obligation.

18. FirstEnergy notes that the NOPR
only addresses amounts included in
accumulated depreciation for accruals
of previously recognized legal
retirement obligations of long-lived
assets. The commenter submits that the
Commission has permitted amounts
related to legal liabilities associated
with the retirement of assets to be
recorded in a deferred credit or liability
account rather than in accumulated
depreciation. The commenter asserts
further that accruals of previously
recognized legal retirement obligations
that were recorded in a deferred credit
or in a liability account should be
included in the computation of the
cumulative effect adjustment in the final
rule.

13 See FirstEnergy at p. 2 and Progress Energy at
p. 2.

Commission Response

19. The proposal to establish the
cumulative effect adjustment was
intended to simplify implementation of
the accounting for asset retirement
obligations. However, based on the
comments received the Commission
recognizes that the implementation
proposal may have been confusing
because the steps were somewhat
different than the ones contained in
FAS 143. However, the Commaission
notes that the cumulative effect
determination under FAS 143 and this
final rule will result in the use of the
same components and produce the same
cumulative effect adjustment amount.

20. The Commission finds that since
both approaches produce the same
cumulative effect adjustment for asset
retirement obligations, jurisdictional
entities may recognize the initial
application of the new accounting rules
for the cumulative effect adjustment as
the difference between the amounts of
previously accrued accumulated legal
obligations associated with the
retirement of the asset recognized in the
balance sheet prior to adopting the new
accounting requirements and the
amount that will be recognized on the
balance sheet under the new accounting
requirements. The Commission also
finds that in order to properly determine
the proper cumulative effect adjustment,
jurisdictional entities must include the
amounts of previously accrued
accumulated legal obligations associated
with the retirement of assets recorded in
other deferred credits accounts or other
liability accounts in the computation of
the cumulative effect adjustment.

B. Recognition of Regulatory Assets and
Liabilities

21. The Commission proposed that
public utilities, licensees and natural
gas companies recognize regulatory
assets and liabilities related to asset
retirement obligations if the accounting
requirements under Order No. 552 are
met. 14

Comments Received

22. Several commenters request that
the Commission clarify in the final rule
the accounting for the recognition of
regulatory assets and liabilities for the
effects on financial operations related to
the initial implementation and the
period-to-period accounting for any
difference between amounts charged to
net income for expenses related to asset
retirement obligations and the amounts

14 See Order No. 552, supra note 9, for guidance
on the recognition of regulatory assets and
regulatory liabilities when certain conditions are
met.

recovered in rates for asset retirement
obligation costs.1> The commenters
assert that the proposed accounting for
the recognition of the debit cumulative
effect adjustment in account 182.3,
Other regulatory assets, as a regulatory
asset is not consistent with the
accounting for the recognition of the
credit cumulative effect adjustment as a
regulatory liability in account 254,
Other regulatory liabilities.1® The
commenters suggest that inconsistency
arises because the Commission required
that a credit cumulative effect
adjustment must be recorded as a
regulatory liability in account 254,
Other regulatory liabilities, while a
debit cumulative effect adjustment must
be charged to net income in account
435, Extraordinary deductions, or
recorded as a regulatory asset in account
182.3, Other regulatory assets, for part
or all of the cumulative effect
adjustment if the requirements of Order
No. 552 are met. One commenter
suggests that the Commission should
provide for the recording of regulatory
assets for debit cumulative effect
adjustments as being probable of
recovery as a general rule consistent
with the Commission’s proposed
treatment of recording credit cumulative
effect adjustments as regulatory
liabilities.

23. Additionally, one commenter
recommends that the Commission
incorporate the accounting for the
recognition of regulatory assets and
liabilities for the initial adoption and
the period-to-period accounting for asset
retirement obligations in the
requirements of the Uniform Systems of
Accounts under Parts 101 and 201.17

Commission Response

24. The Commission declines to adopt
the commenter’s recommendation to
amend the Uniform System of Accounts
under part 101 and part 201 of the
Commission regulations to include
specific accounting instructions for the
recognition of regulatory assets and
liabilities for the initial adoption and
the period-to-period accounting for asset
retirement obligations. The accounting
instruction for regulatory assets and
liabilities as prescribed in the Uniform
Systems of Accounts in part 101 and
part 201 adequately addresses the
requirements for regulatory assets or
liabilities related to differences in the
timing of recognition of asset retirement
obligation expenses for financial

15 See Deloitte & Touche at p. 1, EEI at pp. 3—4,
Progress Energy at p. 2, and RUS at p. 3.

16 See Deloitte & Touche at p. 1, EEI at pp. 3—4,
Progress Energy at p. 2, and RUS at p. 3.

17 See EEI at p. 6.
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accounting purposes and their recovery
in rates.

25. The Commission established the
accounting requirements for recording
regulatory assets and liabilities as set
forth in the Uniform Systems of
Accounts in part 101 and part 201
pursuant to Commission Order No.
552.18 Under these requirements
regulatory assets and liabilities are
defined as assets and liabilities that
result from ratemaking actions of
regulators.19 Regulatory assets and
liabilities generally arise from specific
revenues, expenses, gains, or losses that
would have been included in net
income determinations in one period
under the general requirements of the
Uniform System of Accounts but for it
being probable they will be included in
a different period(s) for purposes of
developing the rates the utility is
authorized to charge for its utility
services or in the case of regulatory
liabilities, for refunds to customers, not
provided for in other accounts, that will
be required.2° The term “probable,” as
used in Order No. 552 for the definition
of regulatory assets or regulatory
liabilities, refers to that which can be
reasonably be expected or believed on
the basis of available evidence or logic
but is neither certain nor proved.2?

26. Jurisdictional entities will initially
recognize a cumulative effect
adjustment and thereafter record the
depreciation of the asset retirement
costs in account 403.1, Depreciation
expense for asset retirement costs, and
the accretion of the liability for the asset
retirement obligations in account
411.10, Accretion expense. The amounts
for depreciation and accretion expense
that will be recognized under the
general requirements of the Uniform
Systems of Accounts and the amount of
asset retirement obligation costs
included in cost of service for
ratemaking purposes may be different.
Recognition of such differences as
regulatory assets and liabilities may be
appropriate in some instances, but not
in others. This determination however
cannot be made in a generic accounting

18 See Order No. 552, supra note 9, for guidance
on the recognition of regulatory assets and
regulatory liabilities when certain conditions are
met.

19 See paragraph A of account 182.3, Other
regulatory assets, and paragraph A of account 254,
Other regulatory liabilities, in 18 CFR part 101
(Public Utilities and Licensees), and paragraph A of
account 182.3, Other regulatory assets, and
paragraph A of account 254, Other regulatory
liabilities, in 18 CFR part 201 (Natural Gas
Companies).

20 See Definition 30 in 18 CFR part 101 (Public
Utilities and Licensees), and Definition 30 in 18
CFR part 201 (Natural Gas Companies).

21 See FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles
January 1991-June 1996 q 30,967 at 30,826 (1993).

rulemaking proceeding. It must instead
be made by each individual entity
taking into consideration the
jurisdictional entity’s rate setting
bodies, the specific agreements entered
into between the jurisdictional entity
and certain customers regarding the
manner in which costs will be allocated
among the parties or other relevant
evidence. Therefore, if the requirements
of Order No. 552 are met, a
jurisdictional entity must recognize
regulatory assets and liabilities for the
cumulative effect adjustment and any
differences between the recognition of
asset retirement obligation expenses for
financial accounting purposes and their
recovery in rates.

C. Authority To Adjust Accumulated
Depreciation (Accounts 108 and 110)

27. The Commission proposed
granting public utilities, licensees and
natural gas companies the requisite
authority to remove any excess
amounts 22 from accounts 108 and 110
provided that the amounts were
transferred to account 254, Other
regulatory liabilities.23

Comments Received

28. Gertain commenters request that
the Commission clarify the authority
granted to jurisdictional entities to
adjust the balances in accounts 108 and
110 for existing long-lived assets with
legal retirement obligations.24 However,
one commenter requests that the
Commission provide explicit authority
to remove all of the previously accrued
amounts for legal obligations to retire or
dispose of the long-lived assets recorded
in accounts 108 and 110. Another
commenter requests the Commission
allow transferring from accounts 108
and 110 to the new proposed account
230, Asset retirement obligations, any
remaining amounts for previously
accrued legal obligations to retire or
dispose of the long-lived assets.

29. Another commenter agrees with
the Commission’s pregranting authority
to public utilities, licensees and natural
gas companies for the removal of
amounts from accumulated depreciation
accounts associated with asset

22 This excess amount results when the amount
of accumulated depreciation recognized for prior
accrued legal retirement obligations is greater than
the accumulated depreciation recognized on the
capitalized asset retirement costs under the new
requirements.

23 See paragraph E to account 108, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of electric utility plant
(Major only), and paragraph E to account 110,
Accumulated provision for depreciation and
amortization of electric utility plant (Nonmajor
only), in 18 CFR part 101 (Public Utilities and
Licensees).

24 See EEI at pp. 2—-3 and Progress Energy at p.

2.

retirement obligations. However, the
commenter asserts that the Commission
should still require public utilities,
licensees and natural gas companies to
notify the Commission by submitting a
description and journal entries related
to such adjustments to the Commission
for amounts transferred from accounts
108 and 110 to account 254, Other
regulatory liabilities, related to any
existing asset with a legal retirement
obligation.2°

Commission Response

30. After considering the comments,
the Commission will grant jurisdictional
entities the authority to adjust accounts
108, 110 and 253 to properly recognize
and record the liabilities for legal
retirement obligations for existing
assets, the asset retirement costs and
related accumulated depreciation on the
capitalized costs when the amounts that
would otherwise be included in net
income determinations meet the criteria
for recognition as regulatory asset or
liability.

31. The Commission notes that there
may be instances where adjustments to
accounts 108, 110 and 253 may be
required as a result of this final rule but
the criteria for the recognition of a
regulatory asset or liability for the net
income effect is not met. While we
permit jurisdictional entities to make
such adjustments our actions here
should not be construed as approval.26
Therefore, the Commission will require
that jurisdictional entities file with the
Commission their journal entries along
with supporting information to record
any adjustment that affects net income
within 60 days of the effective date of
this final rule. The filing must include
a description and explanation of the full
particulars for including the amounts in
net income.

32. The filing must also include a
statement by the public utility, licensee
or natural gas company of the facts and
circumstances and the explicit
determinations made by the
jurisdictional entity demonstrating that
the amounts credited to net income are
not required to be refunded to
customers or required to be recorded as
a regulatory liability and must be
credited to net income and not included
in account 254, Other regulatory
liabilities.

25 See MoPSC at p. 6.

26 The income accounts used to record the
cumulative effect adjustments are account 434,
Extraordinary income, and account 435,
Extraordinary deductions.
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D. Accounting for Cost of Removal That
Does Not Constitute a Legal Obligation

33. The Commission did not propose
to change its accounting under parts
101, 201 and 352 for the cost of removal
for amounts that result from other than
asset retirement obligations.

Comments Received

34. Several commenters request that
the Commission specify in the final rule
that any cost of removal for non-legal
retirement obligations remain in
accumulated depreciation.2” Certain
other commenters suggest that the
Commission should make certain
modifications to the Uniforms Systems
of Accounts under part 101 and part 201
to include the amount of cost of removal
for non-legal obligations as regulatory
liabilities in account 254, Other
regulatory liabilities, instead of
accumulated depreciation for public
utilities, licensees and natural gas
companies.28

35. One commenter recommends that
the Commission exclude the cost of
removal that does not qualify as a legal
retirement obligation from the
depreciation accrual and instead
capitalize any removal costs related to
the asset replaced as part of the costs of
replacing the utility plant and if no
replacement of the asset occurs, the cost
of removal for non-legal retirement
obligations should be expensed in the
income statement.29

Commission Response

36. As proposed in the NOPR, the rule
applies to legal obligations associated
with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets. Under the existing
requirements of the Uniform Systems of
Accounts removal costs that are not
asset retirement obligations are included
as a component of the depreciation
expense and recorded in accumulated
depreciation.3° The Commission notes
that certain jurisdictional entities may
have been receiving specific allowances
for cost of removal for non-legal
retirement obligations as a specific
component in their rates approved by
their regulators. The Commission did
not propose any changes to its existing
accounting requirements for cost of
removal for non-legal retirement
obligations. Accordingly, jurisdictional
entities are accounting for such costs
consistent with the requirements of the

27 See EEI at p. 3 and Southern at p. 2.

28 See Deloitte & Touche at p. 2 and NASUCA at
pp. 2-3.

29 See NASUCA at pp. 15-17.

30 See Definition 10 in 18 CFR part 101 (Public
Utilities and Licensees), Definition 10 in 18 CFR
part 201 (Natural Gas Companies), and Definition
12 in 18 CFR part 352 (Oil Pipeline Companies).

Uniform Systems of Accounts under
part 101 for public utilities and
licensees, part 201 for natural gas
companies and part 352 for oil pipeline
companies.

37. The purpose of this rule is to
establish uniform accounting
requirements for the recognition of
liabilities for legal obligations associated
with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets. The accounting for removal
costs that do not qualify as legal
retirement obligations falls outside the
scope of this rule. The Commission is
aware that there is an ongoing
discussion in the accounting
community as to whether the cost of
removal should be considered as a
component of depreciation. However,
this issue is beyond the scope of this
rule and we are not convinced that there
is a need to fundamentally change
accounting concepts at this time.

38. Instead we will require
jurisdictional entities to maintain
separate subsidiary records for cost of
removal for non-legal retirement
obligations that are included as specific
identifiable allowances recorded in
accumulated depreciation in order to
separately identify such information to
facilitate external reporting and for
regulatory analysis, and rate setting
purposes. Therefore, the Commission is
amending the instructions of accounts
108 and 110 in parts 101, 201 and
account 31, Accrued depreciation—
Carrier property, in part 352 to require
jurisdictional entities to maintain
separate subsidiary records for the
purpose of identifying the amount of
specific allowances collected in rates for
non-legal retirement obligations
included in the depreciation accruals.

39. Jurisdictional entities must
identify and quantify in separate
subsidiary records the amounts, if any,
of previous and current accrued
accumulated removal costs for other
than legal retirement obligations
recorded as part of the depreciation
accrual in accounts 108 and 110 for
public utilities and licensees, account
108 for natural gas companies, and
account 31 for oil pipeline companies.
If jurisdictional entities do not have the
required records to separately identify
such prior accruals for specific
identifiable allowances collected in
rates for non-legal asset retirement
obligations recorded in accumulated
depreciation, the Commission will
require that the jurisdictional entities
separately identify and quantify
prospectively the amount of current
accruals for specific allowances
collected in rates for non-legal
retirement obligations.

E. Accounts Established for Recording
Accretion of Asset Retirement
Obligations and Depreciation of Asset
Retirement Costs

40. The Commission proposed to add
a new income statement account
entitled account 411.10, Accretion
expense, in the Uniform Systems of
Accounts in part 101 and part 201 to
record the accretion of the liability for
the asset retirement obligation. The
Commission also proposed to add a new
income statement account entitled
account 403.1, Depreciation expense for
asset retirement costs, in part 101 and
part 201 to identify the depreciation
expense recorded for capitalized asset
retirement costs.

Comments Received

41. Certain commenters recommend
that the Commission’s proposed new
account 411.10, Accretion expense,
should be renumbered as either account
411.11 or an account number within the
range of account 405, Amortization of
other electric plant, through account
407, Amortization of property losses,
unrecovered plant and regulatory study
costs, which relate to the amortization
of utility plant.

42. Two commenters suggest that the
Commission renumber its proposed new
account 403.1 because it is already
being used in the Rural Utilities
Service’s (RUS) Uniform System of
Accounts.?! The commenters suggest
that the Commission use account 403.9
to accommodate the Uniform System of
Accounts of RUS for its electric
cooperatives.32

Commission Response

43. The Commission will not
renumber the chart of accounts. The
accounting structure of the Uniform
Systems of Accounts in part 101 and
part 201 is designed to meet the
accounting and reporting needs of this
Commission. Users are permitted to
adapt the Commission’s Uniforms
Systems of Accounts for their own
needs by allowing them to create new
accounts and subaccounts. Such
company generated accounts however,
must be reconciled if and when the
Commission subsequently determines to
use that account number for its
regulatory purposes. Therefore,
jurisdictional entities must reconcile
their account numbers accordingly, to

31 See RUS at p. 2 and NRECA at p. 6.

32 See Rural Utilities Service of the United States
Department of Agriculture (RUS) Uniform System
of Accounts, 7 CFR part 1767, Accounting
Requirements for RUS Electric Borrowers.
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the account numbers established by this
rule.33

F. Accounts for Recording Asset
Retirement Costs

44. The Commission proposed to add
new primary plant accounts within each
plant function to record the asset
retirement costs.

Comments Received

45. Certain commenters object to the
Commission’s proposed new primary
plant accounts within account 101 in
part 101 and part 20134 One commenter
suggests the Commission create a new
separate asset group called ““Asset
Retirement Costs” that separately
identifies asset retirement costs in
financial statements and would
facilitate the exclusion of the asset
retirement costs from the rate base in a
rate change filing.

46. Another commenter suggests that
capitalizing asset retirement costs in the
new primary plant accounts could result
in increasing personal property taxes for
three of its utility operating companies
that operate in one state. The
commenter recommends that the asset
retirement costs should be recorded as
an intangible cost within account 101
under part 101 and part 201 in primary
plant account 303, Miscellaneous
intangible plant. As an alternative, the
commenter also recommends that the
Commission include the word
“intangible” in the account instructions
of the new asset retirement cost primary
plant accounts proposed by the
Commission.

47. One commenter suggests that the
Commission’s proposed new primary
plant accounts entitled account 359.1,
Asset retirement costs for transmission
plant, and account 399.1, Asset
retirement costs for general plant,
should be renumbered to avoid leading
users to expect these are subaccounts of
account 359, Roads and trails, under the
transmission plant function and 399,
Other intangible plant, under the
general plant function in part 101.35 The
commenter suggests that the
Commission use account 351 which is
currently a reserved account in the list
of accounts for the transmission plant
function. The commenter also suggests
that the Commission use account 388
which is currently not an account used

33 See General Instruction 3.C, Account
Numbering System, in 18 CFR part 101 (Public
Utilities and Licensees) and 18 CFR part 201
(Natural Gas Companies).

34 See FirstEnergy at p. 1, MoPSC at pp. 4-5 and
RUS at p. 2.

35 See RUS at p. 2.

in the list of accounts for the general
plant function.

Commission Response

48. The Commission finds that these
recommendations are not consistent
with the view that asset retirement costs
are considered an integral part of the
costs of the particular asset that gives
rise to the asset retirement obligations,
rather than separate and distinct assets.

49. The Commission notes that
commenters’ suggestions will not result
in properly classifying asset retirement
costs within the utility plant function
associated with the actual plant assets
that give rise to the legal retirement
obligations. This result would be at
odds with one of the objectives of the
final rule, which is to provide proper
accounting for legal obligations
associated with the retirement costs.

G. Accounting for Gains and Losses for
the Settlement of Asset Retirement
Obligations Related to Electric and Gas
Utility Plant

50. The Commission proposed to
record gains or losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations for electric and gas utility
plant in account 411.6, Gains from
disposition of utility plant, and the
account 411.7, Losses from disposition
of utility plant, respectively.

Comments Received

51. Many of the commenters did not
object the Commission’s proposed
treatment for gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of asset retirement
obligations for electric and gas utility
plant.3¢ Two commenters believe that
the Commission’s proposed treatment is
inappropriate in the situation in which
a jurisdictional entity has recorded, at
the date of adoption of the final rule, a
regulatory asset or liability for the full
difference (including third party risk
factor) between the asset retirement
obligation determined for accounting
purposes and the asset retirement
obligation allowed for ratemaking
purposes.3? In this situation the
commenters assert it is appropriate to
offset any remaining regulatory asset or
liability balance associated with the
specific asset retirement obligation
against the remaining asset retirement
obligation liability balance before
recording a gain or loss.

Commission Response

52. The Commission notes that the
offsetting of any remaining regulatory

36 See EEI at p. 6 and Southern at p. 2.

37 See FAS 143, paragraph A20, for a discussion
of third party risk.

asset or liability balance associated with
the specific asset retirement obligation
against the remaining associated asset
retirement obligation liability balance
before recording a gain or loss on the
settlement is not appropriate because
each of these transactions is a separate
and distinct accounting transaction, and
accordingly, should be accounted for as
such. Therefore, the Commission will
adopt the accounting as provided for in
the NOPR.

H. Accounting for Gains and Losses for
the Settlement of Asset Retirement
Obligations Related to Nonutility Plant

53. The Commission proposed that
any gains or losses relating to the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations for nonutility plant must be
recorded directly in account 421,
Miscellaneous nonoperating income,
and account 426.5, Other deductions,
respectively. The Commission also
proposed to revise the text of accounts
421 and 426.5 in part 101 and part 201
of the Commission’s regulations.

Comments Received

54. One commenter suggests that,
although the use of these accounts are
not necessarily objectionable, it would
be more appropriate to record a gain or
loss resulting from the settlement of
asset retirement obligations for
nonutility plant directly in account
421.1, Gain on disposition of property,
or account 421.2, Loss on disposition of
property, respectively.38

Commission Response

55. The instructions to Accounts
421.1 and 421.2 provide for gains or
losses on the sale, conveyance,
exchange, or transfer of utility or other
property to another.3® The settlement of
an asset retirement obligation related to
nonutility property does not result in
the sale, conveyance, exchange, or
transfer of such property to another
party. Therefore, the Commission is of
the view that the accounting for gains or
losses resulting in the settlement of
asset retirement obligations for
nonutility property should be accounted
for in accounts 421 and 426.5 as
provided for in the NOPR.

L Other Accounting Matters

56. Certain commenters raised
concerns or seek Commission guidance
concerning the use of group
depreciation for asset retirement

38 See EEI at p. 6.

39 See account 421.1, Gain on disposition of
property, or account 421.2, Loss on disposition of
property, in 18 CFR part 101 (Public Utilities and
Licensees) and 18 CFR part 201 (Natural Gas
Companies).
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obligations, and on how a jurisdictional
entity should estimate a credit-adjusted
risk-free rate where an entity has not

found a need to obtain a credit rating.4°

57. The Commission will not make
policy calls in this final rule concerning
the above matters. These matters are
better resolved on a case-by-case basis
based on the facts and circumstances of
each jurisdictional entity. Additionally,
jurisdictional entities may seek
clarification from the Commission’s
Chief Accountant concerning the proper
application or implementation of any
accounting standard under the
Commission’s regulations.4?

58. Finally, one commenter suggests
that the NOPR does not address the
current accounting for realized earnings
from trust funds that have been
established for the purpose of ultimately
discharging the liability for asset
retirement obligations.42 The
commenter notes that jurisdictional
entities currently account for realized
earnings on trust funds by crediting
account 419, Interest and dividend
income. The commenter recommends
that the realized earnings on trust funds
should be recorded to an appropriate
above-the-line account.

59. The Commission notes that under
certain circumstances jurisdictional
entities have placed in a special fund
amounts deposited with a trustee for
future activities such as the
decommissioning of a nuclear plant.
Amounts placed in a special fund for
this type of activity are recorded in
account 128, Other special funds.
Additionally, under the requirements of
the Uniform Systems of Accounts,
interest revenues on securities, special
deposits, and all other interest bearing
assets included in other special fund
accounts are recorded in Account 419,
Interest and dividend income. Realized
earnings on trust funds are nonoperating
in nature and are properly included in
account 419. Therefore, the Commission
declines to amend the Uniform Systems
of Accounts.

J. Tariff Filing Requirements

1. Tariff Filing Requirements Under 18
CFR Part 35 and 18 CFR Part 154

60. In the NOPR, the Commission
stated that the proposed rule will
require public utilities, licensees or
natural gas companies for accounting

40 See Ferguson at p. 5 and NRECA at p. 6.

41 See General Instruction 5, Submittal of
Questions, in 18 CFR part 101 (Public Utilities and
Licensees), General Instruction 5, Submittal of
Questions, in 18 CFR part 201 (Natural Gas
Companies), and General Instruction 1-11,
Interpretation of rules, in 18 CFR part 352 (Oil
Pipeline Companies).

42 See EEI at p. 5.

purposes to recognize asset retirement
obligations. The Commission is not
requiring jurisdictional entities with
stated rate tariffs to make any tariff
filings with the Commission due to this
final rule at this time. However, public
utilities, licensees and natural gas
companies with formula rate tariffs
must not include any cost components
related to asset retirement obligations in
their formula rate billing tariffs for
automatic recovery in their billing
determinations without obtaining
Commission approval.

61. Various commenters have
expressed support and concerns or
asked for Commission decisions with
respect to issues concerning the possible
rate impact of the proposed rule. Two
commenters state their support for the
Commission’s proposed rate treatment
of asset retirement obligations.43 Other
commenters raised concerns or seek
Commission policy calls concerning
regulatory certainty for disposition of
transition costs, external funds for
amounts collected in rates for asset
retirement obligations, adjustments to
book depreciation rates for companies
collecting cost of removal through
current depreciation rates, the exclusion
of accumulated depreciation and
accretion for asset retirement obligations
from rate base, recognizing previously
established negative salvage allowances
whether or not these retirement costs
are recognized as asset retirement
obligations, and the requirement of a
detailed study in support of tariff filings
reflecting asset retirement obligations.44

62. The Commission finds that the
issue of whether, and to what extent, a
particular asset retirement cost must be
recovered through jurisdictional rates
should be addressed on a case-by-case
basis in the individual rate change filed
by public utilities, licensees, and
natural gas companies. To ensure that
all rate base amounts related to asset
retirement obligations can be identified
and excluded from the rate base
calculation in a rate change filing, the
Commission adds § § 35.18 and 154.315
to its rate change filing requirements.
These new regulations require that
public utilities, licensees, and natural
gas companies who have recorded an
asset retirement obligation on their
books in accordance with this rule must,
as part of any initial rate filing or
general rate change filing, provide a
schedule identifying all cost
components related to the asset
retirement obligation that are included

43 See MoPSC at p. 4 and NRECA at p. 7.

44 See Northern Natural at pp. 1-2, MoPSC at p.
5, Deloitte & Touche at pp. 1-2, EEl at p. 9,
Southern at pp. 2-3, and Ferguson at pp. 5 and 8.

in the book balances of all accounts
reflected in the cost of service
computation supporting the proposed
rates. In addition, the regulations
require that all asset retirement
obligations related rate base items be
removed from the rate base computation
through an adjustment. If the public
utility, licensee or natural gas company
is seeking recovery of an asset
retirement obligation in rates, it must
also provide a detailed study supporting
the amounts proposed to be collected in
rates. If the public utility, licensee or
natural gas company is not seeking
recovery of the asset retirement
obligation in rates, then it must remove
all asset retirement obligation related
cost components from its cost of service.

63. For natural gas companies
currently collecting a negative salvage
allowance in jurisdictional rates,
negative salvage allowances that are not
established due to an asset retirement
obligation must be identified for rate
making purposes separately from asset
retirement obligation allowances. The
current rate change filing requirement
for natural gas companies at
§ 154.312(d), Statement D, requires that
any authorized negative salvage must be
maintained in a separate subaccount of
account 108, Accumulated provision for
depreciation of gas utility plant. The
Commission is amending this section to
ensure that this subaccount does not
include any amounts related to asset
retirement obligations.

64. The Commission will decline to
make policy calls concerning regulatory
certainty for disposition of transition
costs, external funds for amounts
collected in rates for asset retirement
obligations, adjustments to book
depreciation rates, and the exclusion of
accumulated depreciation and accretion
for asset retirement obligations from rate
base are matters that are not subject to
a one size fits all approach and are
better resolved on a case-by-case basis
in rate proceedings. The Commission is
of the view that utilities will have the
opportunity to seek recovery of
qualified costs for asset retirement
obligations in individual rate
proceedings. This rule should not be
construed as pregranted authority for
rate recovery in a rate proceeding.

65. Finally this rule requires nothing
new and nothing more with respect to
the requirement for a detailed study.
Complex depreciation and negative
salvage studies are routinely filed or
otherwise made available for review in
rate proceedings. When utilities perform
depreciation studies, a certain amount
of detail is expected. It is incumbent
upon the utility to provide sufficient
detail to support depreciation rates, cost
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of removal, and salvage estimates
included in rates.45 To the extent a
utility believes materials are entitled to
be non-public, protective orders are
available to preserve confidentiality.

2. Tariff Filing Requirements Under 18
CFR Part 346

66. No comments were received
objecting to the Commission’s proposal
to add a new § 346.3 to cost-of-service
filing requirements for oil pipelines.
Therefore, the Commission is
implementing the provisions as noticed
in the NOPR.

K. Implementation for Accounting and
Reporting Purposes

67. The Commission proposed to
implement the rule January 1, 2003, for
accounting and reporting purposes for
public utilities, licensees, natural gas
companies and oil pipeline companies.
This is the date jurisdictional entities
that file FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A and
6, will measure the transition amounts
for the asset retirement obligations.*6
The Commission also proposed that the
reporting will be implemented for the
FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A and 6 for the
reporting year 2003.47

Comments Received

68. The majority of the commenters
did not object to the Commission’s
proposed implementation date of
January 1, 2003, for accounting and
reporting purposes for public utilities,
licensees, natural gas companies and oil
pipeline companies. Two commenters
assert that their fiscal year begins on
April 1, 2003, rather than January 1,
2003. The commenters request the
Commission clarify this requirement
given that their fiscal year does not
coincide with the calendar year, which
they use for FERC reporting purposes.
Both commenters request that the
Commission consider allowing them to
implement the proposed rule for
accounting and reporting purposes on
April 1, 2003, rather than the earlier

45 When an electric utility files for a change in its
jurisdictional rates, the Commission requires
detailed studies in support of changes in annual
depreciation rates if they are different from those
supporting the utility’s prior approved
jurisdictional rate. (18 CFR 35.13(h)(10)(iv)).

46 On February 20, 2002, the Commission’s Chief
Accountant issued interim guidance stating that
jurisdictional entities may not adopt FAS 143 for
financial accounting and reporting to the
Commission before Commission action on this
matter. See All Jurisdictional Public Utilities,
Licensees, Natural Gas Companies, and Oil Pipeline
Companies, 98 FERC { 62,222 (2002).

47 The FERC Forms 1-F and 2—A and 6 annual
reports for the year 2003 are due on or before March
31, 2004. The FERC Forms 1 and 2 annual reports
for the year 2003 are due on or before April 30,
2004.

date of January 1, 2003. The
commenters assert that this would avoid
the issue of retroactively applying the
accounting rule to fiscal years prior to
January 1, 2003.

69. One commenter recommends that
the Commission allow jurisdictional
entities to determine the differential in
amounts between the two
implementation dates, January 1, 2003
and the start of their fiscal year for FERC
reporting purposes and footnote the
difference in their FERC Annual Report.

Commission Response

70. The Commission is adopting the
provisions in the NOPR for
implementing the final rule for
accounting and reporting purposes on
January 1, 2003, except as clarified
below for jurisdictional entities whose
fiscal year begins after January 1, 2003.
Upon considering the comments on this
issue, the Commission will permit a
jurisdictional entity for whose fiscal
year begins after January 1, 2003, to
apply the final rule on the first day of
their fiscal year rather than on January
1, 2003 for accounting purposes and
reporting in the FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2,
2—A and 6 for the reporting year 2003.
In adopting this provision, the
Commission will require jurisdictional
entities to determine the differential in
amounts between the two
implementation dates, January 1, 2003
and the jurisdictional entity’s first day
of their fiscal year of the adoption of the
final rule in calendar year 2003 for
accounting and FERC reporting
purposes and footnote the difference in
the FERC Annual Report for the
reporting year 2003. Jurisdictional
entities with fiscal years will continue
to report to the Commission in FERC
Annual Reports on a calendar year
basis.

IV. FERC Annual Report Forms

71. The Commission proposed
changes revising the existing schedules
in the FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A, and
6 filed with the Commission. A table
summarizing the changes to the various
schedules is shown in Appendix B. The
Commission also proposed that
jurisdictional entities include certain
disclosure for asset retirement
obligations in the “Notes to Financial
Statements” in the FERC Forms 1, 1-F,
2, 2—A and 6.48

72. No commenters object to the
Commission’s proposed revisions to the
existing schedules in the FERC Annual

48 See the instructions to the Notes to Financial
Statements schedule for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2—
A and 6 that requires respondents to report
important notes and information related to the
financial statements.

Report and the proposed disclosure for
asset retirement obligations in the
“Notes to Financial Statements” in
FERC Annual Reports. Therefore, the
Commission will adopt the provisions
as noticed.

V. Regulatory Flexibility Act
Certification

73. The Regulatory Flexibility Act
(RFA) requires agencies to prepare
certain statements, descriptions, and
analyses of rules that will have a
significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities.4?
The Commission is not required to make
such analyses if a rule would not have
such an effect.

74. The Commission does not believe
that this rule will have such an impact
on small entities. Most filing companies
regulated by the Commission do not fall
within the RFA’s definition of a small
entity.5° Further, the Commission
concludes that this reporting would not
be a significant burden because the
information jurisdictional entities will
be required to report to the Commission
specifically focuses on the activities of
the jurisdictional entities that will be
captured in their accounting systems
and generally be reported to their
shareholders and others at a company,
or at a consolidated business level.
Therefore, the Commission certifies that
this rule will not have a significant
economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities.

75. However, if the reporting
requirements represent an undue
burden on small businesses, the entity
affected may seek a waiver of the
disclosure requirements from the
Commission.

VI. Environmental Impact Statement

76. Commission regulations require
that an environmental assessment or an
environmental impact statement be
prepared for any Commission action
that may have a significant adverse
effect on the human environment.>* No
environmental consideration is
necessary for the promulgation of a rule
that is clarifying, corrective, or
procedural or does not substantially
change the effect of legislation or
regulation being amended,>2 and also

495 U.S.C. 601-612.

505 U.S.C. 601(3), citing to section 3 of the Small
Business Act, 15 U.S.C. 632. Section 3 of the Small
Business Act defines a “small-business concern” as
a business which is independently owned and
operated and which is not dominant in its field of
operation.

51Regulations Implementing National
Environmental Policy Act, 52 FR 47897 (Dec. 17,
1987), FERC Stats. & Regs. { 30,783 (1987).

5218 CFR 380.4(a)(2)(ii).
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for information gathering, analysis, and
dissemination.>3 The rule updates the
Parts 35, 101, 154, 201, 346 and 352 of
the Commission’s regulations, and does
not substantially change the effect of the
underlying legislation or the regulations
being revised or eliminated. In addition,
the final rule involves information
gathering, analysis and dissemination.
Therefore, this final rule falls within
categorical exemptions provided in the
Commission’s regulations.
Consequently, neither an environmental
impact statement nor an environmental
assessment is required.

VII. Information Collection Statement

77. The Office of Management and
Budget’s (OMB) regulations in 5 CFR
1320.11 require that it approve certain
reporting and recordkeeping

requirements (collections of
information) imposed by an agency.
Upon approval of a collection of
information, OMB will assign an OMB
control number and an expiration date.
Respondents subject to the filing
requirements of this Rule will not be
penalized for failing to respond to these
collections of information unless the
collections of information display a
valid OMB control number.

78. The final rule will affect the
following current data collections: FERC
Form(s) 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A and 6, FERC-516
and FERC-545. In accordance with
Section 3507(d) of the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995,54 the data
requirements in the subject rule have
been submitted to OMB for review.

Public Reporting Burden: The
Commission provided burden estimates

in order to implement the proposed
requirements. Of the 16 commenters
who responded to the NOPR, only one
made specific comment concerning the
Commission’s burden estimates. This
one commenter has misconstrued the
intent of the rule to impose more time
consuming requirements (e.g., group
depreciation method) than the final rule
actually imposes. The Commission’s
responses to these comments are being
addressed elsewhere in the final rule.
The proposed requirements coincide
with procedures already established by
FAS 143 for companies to recognize a
liability at fair value on their financial
statements for a retirement obligation
when it has occurred. The Commission
is merely adjusting these industry
standards to coordinate with its
Uniform Systems of Accounts.

No. of re-
: No. of Hours per Total annual
Data collection sponses per
respondents respondent response hours

FOMM L ettt h et ettt e e b e e bt e bt e enbeebeeareaeas 216 216 17 3,672
27 27 8 216

57 57 13 741

53 53 8 424

159 159 10 1,590

TOLAIS ittt a e ettt e e be et e nheeenneenes 512 512 | i, 6,643

The total annual hours for these
collections is 6,643 hours.

Information Collection Costs: The
Commission is projecting only the costs
associated with implementing the
requirements of this rule.

Annualized Capital/Startup Costs:
6,643 hours + 2,080 hours x $117,041 =
$373,800.

Annualized Costs (Operations &
Maintenance): It should be noted that
the burden and corresponding costs of
this final rule are to be implemented by
jurisdictional entities to comply with
the Commission’s Uniform System of
Accounts. These entities must already
maintain much of this information in
order to implement generally accepted
accounting principles. The burden and
corresponding costs are to account for
only where there are differences
between the generally accepted
accounting principles and the Uniform
System of Accounts.

79. FERC Information Collections
FERC-516 and FERC-545 are also
referenced because jurisdictional
entities will be required to provide
supporting documentation for the
amounts to be collected in their rates
when an asset retirement obligation has
been recorded. This documentation is
no different than jurisdictional entities

5318 CFR 380.4(a)(5).

already prepare in their detailed studies
as currently required by the
Commission to support changes in
annual depreciation rates. The
Commission is not requiring additional
information as jurisdictional entities
already prepare this information when
quantifying studies and analyses on the
cost of removal of an asset retirement
obligation. Therefore, the Commission
does anticipate that additional burden
will be imposed under these two
information collections.

80. The Commission has assured
itself, by means of internal review, that
there is specific, objective support for
the burden estimates associated with the
information requirements.

Title: FERC Form 1 “Annual Report of
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees and
Others”; FERC Form 1-F “Annual
Report of Nonmajor Public Utilities and
Licensees”’; FERC Form 2 “Annual
Report of Major Natural Gas
Companies”’; FERC Form 2—A “Annual
Report of Nonmajor Natural Gas
Companies”; FERC Form 6 “Annual
Report of Oil Pipeline Companies”;
FERC-516 “Electric Rate Schedule
Filings”’; FERC-545 ““Gas Pipeline Rates:
Rate Change.”

Action: Proposed data collections.

5444 U.S.C. 3507(d).

OMB Control Nos.: 1902—0021; 1902—
0029; 1902-0028; 1902—-0030; 1902—
0022, 1902—0016 and 1902-0154.

Respondents: Public Utilities; Natural
Gas Companies; oil pipeline companies
(Business or other for profit, including
small businesses).

Frequency of the information:
Annually.

Necessity of the Information: The
final rule amends the Commission’s
regulations to revise parts 35, 101, 154,
201, 346 and 352 of its regulations. The
final rule amends the Commission’s
Uniform System of Accounts to revise or
create definitions, instructions, balance
sheet and income statement accounts.
The addition of new accounts and
changes to FERC Forms will add
visibility, completeness and consistency
of the accounting and reporting of
liabilities for asset retirement
obligations and the related asset
retirement costs capitalized. The
implementation of these requirements
will enable the Commission to carry out
its responsibilities under the FPA, NGA
and ICA to ensure the protection of
ratepayers. The Commission is of the
view that such requirements are needed
because the disclosures of these lack
uniformity. For example, jurisdictional
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entities subject to the Commission’s
requirements use different approaches
for accounting for retirement costs.
Public utilities perform depreciation
studies to support changes in their rates
for the decommissioning of a nuclear
facility as periodic depreciation expense
while oil pipeline companies have used
depletion rates for abandonment and
removal of offshore facilities. The final
rule will improve the consistency in the
accounting and reporting of legal
obligations to retire tangible long-lived
assets by requiring entities to recognize
at the onset the fair value of the liability.
This information will provide a more
transparent financial statement
disclosure of the costs related to the
legal obligation in the FERC Annual
Reports.

81. Interested persons may obtain
information on the reporting
requirements by contacting the
following: Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, 888 First Street, NE.,
Washington, DC 20426 [Attention:
Michael Miller, Office of the Executive
Director, ED-30, (202) 502—8415, or
michael.miller@ferc.gov] or by sending
comments on the collections of
information to the Office of
Management and Budget, Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Attention: Desk Officer for the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, 725
17th Street, NW., Washington, DC
20503. The Desk Officer can also be
reached at (202) 395-7856, or fax: (202)
395-7285.

VIII. Document Availability

82. In addition to publishing the full
text of this document in the Federal
Register, the Commission provides all
interested persons an opportunity to
view and/or print the contents of this
document via the Internet through
FERC’s Home Page (http://www.ferc.gov)
and in FERC’s Public Reference Room
during normal business hours (8:30
a.m., to 5 p.m. Eastern time) at 888 First
Street, NE., Room 2A, Washington, DC
20426.

83. From FERC’s Home Page on the
Internet, this information is available in
the Federal Energy Regulatory Records
Information System (FERRIS). The full
text of this document is available on
FERRIS in PDF and WordPerfect format
for viewing, printing, and/or
downloading. To access this document
in FERRIS, type the docket number of
this document, excluding the last three
digits in the docket number field. User
assistance is available for FERRIS and
the FERC’s Web site during normal
business hours from FERC Online
Support at
FERCOnLineSupport@FERC.gov or toll

free at (866) 208—3676 or for TTY,
contact (202) 502—8659.

IX. Effective Date and Congressional
Notification

84. This Final Rule will take effect
May 21, 2003. The Commission has
determined, with the concurrence of the
Administrator of the Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs of
the Office of Management and Budget,
that this rule is not a “major rule”
within the meaning of section 251 of the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement
Fairness Act of 1996.55 The Commission
will submit the Final Rule to both
houses of Congress and the General
Accounting Office.56

List of Subjects
18 CFR Part 35

Electric power rates, Electric utilities,
Electricity, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

18 CFR Part 101

Electric power, Electric utilities,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements, Uniform System of
Accounts.

18 CFR Part 154

Alaska, Natural gas, Natural gas
companies, Pipelines, Rate schedules
and tariffs, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

18 CFR Part 201

Natural gas, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements, Uniform
System of Accounts.

18 CFR Part 346

Pipelines, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

18 CFR Part 352

Pipelines, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements, Uniform
System of Accounts.

By the Commission.

Magalie R. Salas,
Secretary.

In consideration of the foregoing, the
Commission amends parts 35, 101, 154,
201, 346 and 352, Chapter I, Title 18,
Code of Federal Regulations, as follows.

Regulatory Text

PART 35—FILING OF RATE
SCHEDULES

» 1. The authority citation for part 35
continues to read as follows:

555 U.S.C. 804(2).
565 U.S.C. 801(a)(1)(A).

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 791a-825r, 2601—
2645; 31 U.S.C. 9701; 42 U.S.C. 7101-7352.

m 2. Section 35.18 is added to read as fol-
lows:

§35.18 Asset retirement obligations.

(a) A public utility that files a rate
schedule under § 35.12 or §35.13 and
has recorded an asset retirement
obligation on its books must provide a
schedule, as part of the supporting work
papers, identifying all cost components
related to the asset retirement
obligations that are included in the book
balances of all accounts reflected in the
cost of service computation supporting
the proposed rates. However, all cost
components related to asset retirement
obligations that would impact the
calculation of rate base, such as electric
plant and related accumulated
depreciation and accumulated deferred
income taxes, may not be reflected in
rates and must be removed from the rate
base calculation through a single
adjustment.

(b) A public utility seeking to recover
nonrate base costs related to asset
retirement costs in rates must provide,
with its filing under § 35.12 or § 35.13,

a detailed study supporting the amounts
proposed to be collected in rates.

(c) A public utility that has recorded
asset retirement obligations on its books,
but is not seeking recovery of the asset
retirement costs in rates, must remove
all asset-retirement-obligations-related
cost components from the cost of service
supporting its proposed rates.

PART 101—UNIFORM SYSTEM OF
ACCOUNTS PRESCRIBED FOR
PUBLIC UTILITIES AND LICENSEES
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
THE FEDERAL POWER ACT

» 3. The authority citation for part 101
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 791a-825r, 2601—
2645; 31 U.S.C. 9701; 42 U.S.C. 7101-7352,
7651-76510.

» 4. In Definitions, Definition 10 is
revised to read as follows:

Definitions

* * * * *

10. Cost of removal means the cost of
demolishing, dismantling, tearing down
or otherwise removing electric plant,
including the cost of transportation and
handling incidental thereto. It does not
include the cost of removal activities
associated with asset retirement
obligations that are capitalized as part of
the tangible long-lived assets that give
rise to the obligation. (See General

Instruction 25).
* * * * *
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= 5. In General Instructions, Instruction
20, paragraphs C. and D. are redesignated
as paragraphs D. and E. and new para-
graph C. is added; and a new Instruction
25 is added to read as follows:

General Instructions

* * * * *

20. Accounting for leases.
* * * * *

C. The utility, as a lessee, shall
recognize an asset retirement obligation
(See General Instruction 25) arising from
the plant under a capital lease unless
the obligation is recorded as an asset
and liability under a capital lease. The
utility shall record the asset retirement
cost by debiting account 101.1, Property
under capital leases, or account 120.6,
Nuclear fuel under capital leases, or
account 121, Nonutility property, as
appropriate, and crediting the liability
for the asset retirement obligation in
account 230, Asset retirement
obligations. Asset retirement costs
recorded in account 101.1, account
120.6, or account 121 shall be amortized
by charging rent expense (See Operating
Expense Instruction 3), or account 518,
Nuclear fuel expense (Major only), or
account 421, Miscellaneous
nonoperating income, as appropriate,
and crediting a separate subaccount of
the account in which the asset
retirement costs are recorded. Charges
for the periodic accretion of the liability
in account 230, Asset retirement
obligations, shall be recorded by a
Charge to account 411.10, Accretion
expense, for electric utility plant, and
account 421, Miscellaneous
nonoperating income, for nonutility
plant and a credit to account 230, Asset
retirement obligations.

* * * * *

25. Accounting for asset retirement
obligations.

A. An asset retirement obligation
represents a liability for the legal
obligation associated with the
retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
that a company is required to settle as
a result of an existing or enacted law,
statute, ordinance, or written or oral
contract or by legal construction of a
contract under the doctrine of
promissory estoppel. An asset
retirement cost represents the amount
capitalized when the liability is
recognized for the long-lived asset that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
amount recognized for the liability and
an associated asset retirement cost shall
be stated at the fair value of the asset
retirement obligation in the period in
which the obligation is incurred.

B. The utility shall initially record a
liability for an asset retirement

obligation in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, and charge the
associated asset retirement costs to
electric utility plant (including accounts
101.1 and 120.6), and nonutility plant,
as appropriate, related to the plant that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
asset retirement cost shall be
depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset that gives rise to the
obligations. For periods subsequent to
the initial recording of the asset
retirement obligation, a utility shall
recognize the period to period changes
of the asset retirement obligation that
result from the passage of time due to
the accretion of the liability and any
subsequent measurement changes to the
initial liability for the legal obligation
recorded in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, as follows:

(1) The utility shall record the
accretion of the liability by debiting
account 411.10, Accretion expense, for
electric utility plant, account 413,
Expenses of electric plant leased to
others, for electric plant leased to
others, and account 421, Miscellaneous
nonoperating income, for nonutility
plant and crediting account 230, Asset
retirement obligations; and

(2) The utility shall recognize any
subsequent measurement changes of the
liability initially recorded in account
230, Asset retirement obligations, for
each specific asset retirement obligation
as an adjustment of that liability in
account 230 with the corresponding
adjustment to electric utility plant,
electric plant leased to others, and
nonutility plant, as appropriate. The
utility shall on a timely basis monitor
any measurement changes of the asset
retirement obligations.

C. Gains or losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations associated with utility plant
resulting from the difference between
the amount of the liability for the asset
retirement obligation included in
account 230, Asset retirement
obligations, and the actual amount paid
to settle the obligation shall be
accounted for as follows:

(1) Gains shall be credited to account
411.6, Gains from disposition of utility
plant, and;

(2) Losses shall be charged to account
411.7, Losses from disposition of utility
plant.

D. Gains or losses on the settlement of
asset retirement obligations associated
with nonutility plant resulting from the
difference between the amount of the
liability for the asset retirement
obligation in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, and the amount
paid to settle the obligation, shall be
accounted for as follows:

(1) Gains shall be credited to account
421, Miscellaneous nonoperating
income, and;

(2) Losses shall be charged to account
426.5, Other deductions.

E. Separate subsidiary records shall be
maintained for each asset retirement
obligation showing the initial liability
and associated asset retirement cost, any
incremental amounts of the liability
incurred in subsequent reporting
periods for additional layers of the
original liability and related asset
retirement cost, the accretion of the
liability, the subsequent measurement
changes to the asset retirement
obligation, the depreciation and
amortization of the asset retirement
costs and related accumulated
depreciation, and the settlement date
and actual amount paid to settle the
obligation. For purposes of analyses a
utility shall maintain supporting
documentation so as to be able to
furnish accurately and expeditiously
with respect to each asset retirement
obligation the full details of the identity
and nature of the legal obligation, the
year incurred, the identity of the plant
giving rise to the obligation, the full
particulars relating to each component
and supporting computations related to
the measurement of the asset retirement

obligation.
* * * * *

= 6. In Electric Plant Instructions, para-
graph 3.A.(17)(a) the W element is
revised; and a new paragraph 3.A.(21) is
added to read as follows:

Electric Plant Instructions

* * * * *

3. Components of construction cost.
A. L

(1 7) I

(a) I

W = Average balance in construction
work in progress plus nuclear fuel in
process of refinement, conversion,
enrichment and fabrication, less asset
retirement costs (See General
Instruction 25) related to plant under
construction.

* * * * *

(21) Asset retirement costs. The costs
recognized as a result of asset retirement
obligations incurred during the
construction and testing of utility plant
shall constitute a component of

construction costs.
* * * * *

m 7. Balance Sheet Accounts are
amended as follows:

= (a) Account 101.1 is amended by
adding a sentence to the end of para-
graph C.;

» (b) Account 103 paragraph C. is
revised;
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= (c) Account 108 paragraph A.(2)
through A.(7) are redesignated as para-
graphs A.(3) through A.(8), a new para-
graph A.(2) is added, and paragraph C. is
amended by adding a sentence to the end
of the paragraph;
» (d) Account 110 paragraph A.(2)
through A.(4) are redesignated as para-
graphs A.(3) through A.(5), a new para-
graph A.(2) is added, and paragraph C. is
amended by adding a sentence to the end
of the paragraph;
= (e) Account 121, paragraph A. is
amended by adding a sentence to the end
of the paragraph; and
n (f) Account 2301is added.

The revision and additions read as
follows:

Balance Sheet Accounts

* * * * *

101.1 Property under capital leases.

* * * * *

C. * * * Records shall also be
maintained for plant under a lease, to
identify the asset retirement obligation
and cost originally recognized for each
lease and the periodic charges and
credits made to the asset retirement

obligations and asset retirement costs.
* * * * *

103 Experimental electric plant
unclassified (Major only).

* * * * *

C. The depreciation on plant in this
account shall be charged to account 403,
Depreciation expense, and account
403.1, Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs, as appropriate, and
credited to account 108, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of electric
utility plant (Major only). The amounts
herein shall be depreciated over a
period which corresponds to the
estimated useful life of the relevant
project considering the characteristics
involved. However, when projects are
transferred to account 101, Electric
plant in service, a new depreciation rate
based on the remaining service life and
undepreciated amounts, will be
established.

* * * * *

108 Accumulated provision for
depreciation of electric utility plant
(Major only).

A. I

(2) Amounts charged to account
403.1, Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs, for current
depreciation expense related to asset
retirement costs in electric plant in
service in a separate subaccount.
* * * * *

C. * * * Separate subsidiary records
shall be maintained for the amount of

accrued cost of removal other than legal
obligations for the retirement of plant
recorded in account 108, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of electric
utility plant (Major only).

* * * * *

110 Accumulated provision for
depreciation and amortization of
electric utility plant (Nonmajor only).

A. * *x %

(2) Amounts charged to account
403.1, Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs, in electric utility plant

in service in a separate subaccount.
* * * * *

C. * * * Separate subsidiary records
shall be maintained for the amount of
accrued cost of removal other than legal
obligations for the retirement of plant
recorded in account 110, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of electric
utility plant (Nonmajor only).

* * * * *

121 Nonutility property.

A. * * * This account shall also
include, where applicable, amounts
recorded for asset retirement costs

associated with nonutility plant.
* * * * *

230 Asset retirement obligations.

A. This account shall include the
amount of liabilities for the recognition
of asset retirement obligations related to
electric utility plant and nonutility
plant that gives rise to the obligations.
This account shall be credited for the
amount of the liabilities for asset
retirement obligations with amounts
charged to the appropriate electric
utility plant accounts or nonutility plant
account to record the related asset
retirement costs.

B. The utility shall charge the
accretion expense to account 411.10,
Accretion expense, for electric utility
plant, account 413, Expenses of electric
plant leased to others, for electric plant
leased to others, or account 421,
Miscellaneous nonoperating income, for
nonutility plant, as appropriate, and
credit account 230, Asset retirement
obligations.

C. This account shall be debited with
amounts paid to settle the asset
retirement obligations recorded herein.

D. The utility shall clear from this
account any gains or losses resulting
from the settlement of asset retirement
obligations in accordance with the
instructions prescribed in General

Instruction 25.
* * * * *

» 8. In Electric Plant Accounts, new pri-
mary plant accounts, 317, 326, 337, 347,

359.1, 374, and 399.1 are added to read
as follows:

Electric Plant Accounts

* * * * *

317 Asset retirement costs for steam
production plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the steam production function.
* * * * *

326 Asset retirement costs for nuclear
production plant (Major only).

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the nuclear production function.
* * * * *

337 Asset retirement costs for
hydraulic production plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the hydraulic production function.
* * * * *

347 Asset retirement costs for other
production plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the other production function.
* * * * *

359.1 Asset retirement costs for
transmission plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the transmission plant function.
* * * * *

374 Asset retirement costs for
distribution plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the distribution plant function.
* * * * *

399.1 Asset retirement costs for
general plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the general plant function.
* * * * *

= 9. Amend Income Accounts as follows:
= a. Account 403.1 is added,
= b. Accounts 411.6 and 411.7 are
amended by designating the current
paragraph as A., and adding a new para-
graph B.,
= c. Account 411.10 is added,
= d. In account 421, paragraphs 4.
through 6. are added, and
= e. In account 426.5 paragraph 6 is
added.

The additions read as follows:

Income Accounts

* * * * *
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403.1 Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs.

This account shall include the
depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs included in electric

utility plant in service.
* * * * *

411.6 Gains from disposition of utility
property.

A. I

B. The utility shall record in this
account gains resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to utility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 25.
* * * * *

411.7 Losses from disposition of
utility property.

A. I

B. The utility shall record in this
account losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to utility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 25.
* * * * *

411.10 Accretion expense.

This account shall be charged for
accretion expense on the liabilities
associated with asset retirement
obligations included in account 230,
Asset retirement obligations, related to

electric utility plant.
* * * * *

421 Miscellaneous nonoperating
income.

* * * * *

4. This account shall include the
accretion expense on the liability for an
asset retirement obligation included in
account 230, Asset retirement
obligations, related to nonutility plant.

5. This account shall include the
depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs related to nonutility
plant.

6. The utility shall record in this
account gains resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to nonutility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 25.
* * * * *

426.5 Other deductions.

* * * * *

6. The utility shall record in this
account losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to nonutility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 25.
* * * * *

PART 154—RATE SCHEDULES AND
TARIFFS

» 10. The authority citation for part 154
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 15 U.S.C. 717-717w; 31 U.S.C.
9701; 42 U.S.C. 7102-7352.

m 11.In § 154.312 paragraph (d),
introductory text, is amended by
removing the sentence “Any authorized
negative salvage must be maintained in

a separate subaccount of account 108,”
and adding in its place the following sen-
tence to read as follows:

§154.312 Composition of Statements.
* * * * *

(d)* * * Any authorized negative
salvage must be maintained in a
separate subaccount of account 108, and
shall not include any amounts related to

asset retirement obligations. * * *
* * * * *

m 12. Section 154.315 is added to subpart
D to read as follows:

§154.315 Asset retirement obligations.

(a) A natural gas company that files a
tariff change under this part and has
recorded an asset retirement obligation
on its books must provide a schedule, as
part of the supporting workpapers,
identifying all cost components related
to the asset retirement obligations that
are included in the book balances of all
accounts reflected in the cost of service
computation supporting the proposed
rates. However, all cost components
related to asset retirement obligations
that would impact the calculation of
rate base, such as gas plant and related
accumulated depreciation and
accumulated deferred income taxes,
may not be reflected in rates and must
be removed from the rate base
calculation through a single adjustment.

(b) A natural gas company seeking to
recover nonrate base costs related to
asset retirement obligations in rates
must provide, with its filing under
§154.312 or § 154.313, a detailed study
supporting the amounts proposed to be
collected in rates.

(c) A natural gas company who has
recorded asset retirement obligations on
its books but is not seeking recovery of
the asset retirement costs in rates, must
remove all asset retirement obligations
related cost components from the cost of
service supporting its proposed rates.

PART 201—UNIFORM SYSTEM OF
ACCOUNTS PRESCRIBED FOR
NATURAL GAS COMPANIES SUBJECT
TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE
NATURAL GAS ACT

» 13. The authority citation for part 201
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 15 U.S.C. 717-717w, 3301—
3432; 42 U.S.C. 7101-7352, 7651-76510.

m 14. In Definitions, Definition 10 is
revised to read as follows:

Definitions

* * * * *

10. Cost of removal means the cost of
demolishing, dismantling, tearing down
or otherwise removing gas plant,
including the cost of transportation and
handling incidental thereto. It does not
include the cost of removal activities
associated with asset retirement
obligations that are capitalized as part of
the tangible long-lived assets that give
rise to the obligation. (See General

Instruction 24).
* * * * *

m 15. In General Instructions, Instruction
20 paragraphs C. and D. are redesignated
as paragraphs D. and E. and a new para-

graph C. is added; and a new Instruction
24 is added to read as follows:

General Instructions
* * * * *

20. Accounting for leases.
* * * * *

C. The utility, as a lessee, shall
recognize an asset retirement obligation
(See General Instruction 24) arising from
the plant under a capital lease unless
the obligation is recorded as an asset
and liability under a capital lease. The
utility shall record the asset retirement
cost by debiting account 101.1, Property
under capital leases, or account 121,
Nonutility property, as appropriate, and
crediting the liability for the asset
retirement obligation in account 230,
Asset retirement obligations. Asset
retirement costs recorded in account
101.1 or account 121 shall be amortized
by charging rent expense (See Operating
Expense Instruction 3) or account 421,
Miscellaneous nonoperating income, as
appropriate, and crediting a separate
subaccount of the account in which the
asset retirement costs are recorded.
Charges for the periodic accretion of the
liability in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, shall be recorded
by a charge to account 411.10, Accretion
expense, for gas utility plant, and
account 421, Miscellaneous
nonoperating income, for nonutility
plant and a credit to account 230, Asset
retirement obligations.

* * * * *

24. Accounting for asset retirement
obligations.

A. An asset retirement obligation
represents a liability for the legal
obligation associated with the
retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
that a utility is required to settle as a
result of an existing or enacted law,
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statute, ordinance, or written or oral
contract or by legal construction of a
contract under the doctrine of
promissory estoppel. An asset
retirement cost represents the amount
capitalized when the liability is
recognized for the long-lived asset that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
amount recognized for the liability and
an associated asset retirement cost shall
be stated at the fair value of the asset
retirement obligation in the period in
which the obligation is incurred.

B. The utility shall initially record a
liability for an asset retirement
obligation in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, and charge the
associated asset retirement costs to gas
utility plant and nonutility plant, as
appropriate, related to the plant that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
asset retirement cost shall be
depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset that gives rise to the
obligations. For periods subsequent to
the initial recording of the asset
retirement obligation, a utility shall
recognize the period to period changes
of the asset retirement obligation that
result from the passage of time due to
the accretion of the liability and any
subsequent measurement changes to the
initial liability for the legal obligation
recorded in account 230, Asset
retirement obligations, as follows:

(1) The utility shall record the
accretion of the liability by debiting
account 411.10, Accretion expense, for
gas utility plant, account 413, Expenses
of gas plant leased to others, for gas
plants leased to others, and account 421,
Miscellaneous nonoperating income, for
nonutility plant and crediting account
230, Asset retirement obligations; and

(2) The utility shall recognize any
subsequent measurement changes of the
liability initially recorded in account
230, Asset retirement obligations, for
each specific asset retirement obligation
as an adjustment of that liability in
account 230 with the corresponding
adjustment to gas utility plant, gas plant
leased to others, and nonutility plant, as
appropriate. The utility shall on a
timely basis monitor any measurement
changes of the asset retirement
obligations.

C. Gains or losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations associated with utility plant
resulting from the difference between
the amount of the liability for the asset
retirement obligation included in
account 230, Asset retirement
obligations, and the actual amount paid
to settle the obligation shall be
accounted for as follows:

(1) Gains shall be credited to account
411.6, Gains from disposition of utility
plant, and;

(2) Losses shall be charged to account
411.7, Losses from disposition of utility
plant.

D. Gains or losses on the settlement of
the asset retirement obligations
associated with nonutility plant
resulting from the difference between
the amount of the liability for the asset
retirement obligation in account 230,
Asset retirement obligations, and the
amount paid to settle the obligation,
shall be accounted for as follows:

(1) Gains shall be credited to account
421, Miscellaneous nonoperating
income, and;

(2) Losses shall be charged to account
426.5, Other deductions.

E. Separate subsidiary records shall be
maintained for each asset retirement
obligation showing the initial liability
and associated asset retirement cost, any
incremental amounts of the liability
incurred in subsequent reporting
periods for additional layers of the
original liability and related asset
retirement cost, the accretion of the
liability, the subsequent measurement
changes to the asset retirement
obligation, the depreciation and
amortization of the asset retirement
costs and related accumulated
depreciation, and the settlement date
and actual amount paid to settle the
obligation. For purposes of analyses a
utility shall maintain supporting
documentation so as to be able to
furnish accurately and expeditiously
with respect to each asset retirement
obligation the full details of the identity
and nature of the legal obligation, the
year incurred, the identity of the plant
giving rise to the obligation, the full
particulars relating to each component
and supporting computations related to
the measurement of the asset retirement

obligation.
* * * * *

= 16. In Gas Plant Instructions, para-
graph 3.A.(17)(a) the W element is
revised; and new paragraph 3.A.(23) is
added to read as follows:

Gas Plant Instructions

* * * * *

3. Components of construction cost.

A' * *x %

(1 7] * k%

(a] * % %

W = Average balance in construction
work in progress less asset retirement
costs (See General Instruction 24)
related to plant under construction.

* * * * *

(23) ““Asset retirement costs.” The

costs recognized as a result of asset

retirement obligations incurred during
the construction and testing of utility
plant shall constitute a component of

construction costs.
* * * * *

= 17. Balance Sheet Accounts are
amended as follows:
= (a) Account 101.1, is amended by
adding a sentence to the end of para-
graph C,;
= (b) Account 103, paragraph C. is
revised;
= (c) Account 108, paragraphs A.(2)
through A.(7) are redesignated as para-
graphs A.(3) through A.(8), a new para-
graph A.(2) is added, and paragraph C. is
amended by adding a sentence to the end
of the paragraph;
» (d) Account 121, paragraph A. is
amended by adding a sentence to the end
of the paragraph; and
= (e) Account 230 is added.

The additions and revisions read as
follows:

Balance Sheet Accounts

* * * * *

101.1 Property under capital leases.

* * * * *

C. * * * Records shall also be
maintained for plant under a lease, to
identify the asset retirement obligation
and cost originally recognized for each
lease and the periodic charges and
credits made to the asset retirement

obligations and asset retirement costs.
* * * * *

103 Experimental gas plant
unclassified.

* * * * *

C. The depreciation on plant in this
account shall be charged to account 403,
Depreciation expense, and account
403.1, Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs, as appropriate, and
credited to account 108, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of gas utility
plant. The amounts herein shall be
depreciated over a period which
corresponds to the estimated useful life
of the relevant project considering the
characteristics involved. However,
when projects are transferred to account
101, Gas plant in service, a new
depreciation rate based on the
remaining service life and
undepreciated amounts, will be

established.

* * * * *

108 Accumulated provision for
depreciation of gas utility plant.

A' * * %

(2) Amounts charged to account
403.1, Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs, for current
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depreciation expense related to asset
retirement costs in gas plant in service

in a separate subaccount.
* * * * *

C. * * * Separate subsidiary records
shall be maintained for the amount of
accrued cost of removal other than legal
obligations for the retirement of plant
recorded in account 108, Accumulated
provision for depreciation of gas utility

plant.
121 Nonutility property.

A. * * * This account shall also
include, where applicable, amounts
recorded for asset retirement costs

associated with nonutility plant.
* * * * *

230 Asset retirement obligations.

A. This account shall include the
amount of liabilities for the recognition
of asset retirement obligations related to
gas utility plant and nonutility plant
that gives rise to the obligations. This
account shall be credited for the amount
of the liabilities for asset retirement
obligations with amounts charged to the
appropriate gas utility plant accounts or
nonutility plant accounts to record the
related asset retirement costs.

B. This account shall also include the
period to period changes for the
accretion of the liabilities in account
230, Asset retirement obligations. The
utility shall charge the accretion
expense to account 411.10, Accretion
expense, for gas utility plant, account
413, Expenses of gas plant leased to
others, for gas plant leased to others, or
account 421, Miscellaneous
nonoperating income, for nonutility
plant, as appropriate, and credit account
230, Asset retirement obligations.

C. This account shall be debited with
amounts paid to settle the asset
retirement obligations recorded herein.

D. The utility shall clear from this
account any gains or losses resulting
from the settlement of asset retirement
obligations in accordance with the
instructions prescribed in General

Instruction 24.
* * * * *

= 18.In Gas Plant Accounts, new pri-
mary plant accounts, 321, 339, 348, 358,
363.6, 372, 388, and 399.1 are added to
read as follows:

Gas Plant Accounts

* * * * *

321 Asset retirement costs for
manufactured gas production plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the manufactured gas production plant
function.
* * * * *

339 Asset retirement costs for natural
gas production and gathering plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in
the natural gas production and gathering

plant function.
* * * * *

348 Asset retirement costs for
products extraction plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the products extraction plant function.
* * * * *

358 Asset retirement costs for
underground storage plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the underground storage plant function.
* * * * *

363.6 Asset retirement costs for other
storage plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the other storage plant function.
* * * * *

372 Asset retirement costs for
transmission plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in
the transmission plant function.

* * * * *

388 Asset retirement costs for
distribution plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in
the distribution plant function.

* * * * *

399.1 Asset retirement costs for
general plant.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plant included in

the general plant function.
* * * * *

= 19. Income Accounts are amended as
follows:
= a. Account 403.1 is added,
= b. Accounts 411.6 and 411.7 are
amended by designating the current
paragraph as A. and adding a new para-
graph B.,
= c. Account 411.10 is added,
= d. In Account 421, paragraphs 4.
through 6. are added, and
» e. In Account 426.5 paragraph 6. is
added.

The additions read as follows:

Income Accounts

* * * * *

403.1 Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs.

This account shall include the
depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs included in gas utility

plant in service.
* * * * *

411.6 Gains from disposition of utility
property.

A' * *x %

B. The utility shall record in this
account gains resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to utility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 24.
* * * * *

411.7 Losses from disposition of
utility property.

A. L

B. The utility shall record in this
account losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to utility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 24.
* * * * *

411.10 Accretion expense.

This account shall be charged for
accretion expense on the liabilities
associated with asset retirement
obligations included in account 230,
Asset retirement obligations, related to
gas utility plant.

* * * * *

421 Miscellaneous nonoperating
income.

* * * * *

4. This account shall include the
accretion expense on the liability for an
asset retirement obligation included in
account 230, Asset retirement
obligations, related to nonutility plant.

5. This account shall include the
depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs related to nonutility
plant.

6. The utility shall record in this
account gains resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to nonutility plant in
accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 24.
* * * * *

426.5 Other deductions.

* * * * *

6. The utility shall record in this
account losses resulting from the
settlement of asset retirement
obligations related to nonutility plant in
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accordance with the accounting

prescribed in General Instruction 24.
* * * * *

PART 346-OIL PIPELINE COST-OF-
SERVICE FILING REQUIREMENTS

m 20. The authority citation for part 346
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 42 U.S.C. 7101-7352; 49 U.S.C.
60502; 49 App. U.S.C. 1-85.
= 21. Section 346.3 is added to read as
follows:

§346.3 Asset retirement obligations.

(a) A carrier that files material in
support of initial rates or change in rates
under § 346.2 and has recorded asset
retirement obligations on its books must
provide a schedule, as part of the
supporting workpapers, identifying all
cost components related to the asset
retirement obligations that are included
in the book balances of all accounts
reflected in the cost of service
computation supporting the proposed
rates. However, all cost components
related to asset retirement obligations
that would impact the calculation of
rate base, such as carrier property and
related accumulated depreciation and
accumulated deferred income taxes,
may not be reflected in rates and must
be removed from the rate base
calculation through a single adjustment.

(b) A carrier seeking to recover
nonrate base costs related to asset
retirement costs in rates must provide,
with its filing under § 346.2 of this part,
a detailed study supporting the amounts
proposed to be collected in rates.

(c) A carrier who has recorded asset
retirement obligations on its books but
is not seeking recovery of the asset
retirement costs in rates, must remove
all asset retirement obligations related
cost components from the cost of service
supporting its proposed rates.

PART 352—UNIFORM SYSTEMS OF
ACCOUNTS PRESCRIBED FOR OIL
PIPELINE COMPANIES SUBJECT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF THE
INTERSTATE COMMERCE ACT

» 22. The authority citation for part 352
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 60502; 49 App. U.S.C.
1-85 (1988).

m 23.In List of Instructions and
Accounts, under Definitions, Definition
12 is revised to read as follows:

Definitions. * * *

12. Cost of removal means cost of
demolishing, dismantling, tearing down,
or otherwise removing property
including costs of handling and
transportation. It does not include the

cost of removal activities associated
with asset retirement obligations that
are capitalized as part of the tangible
long-lived assets that give rise to the
obligation. (See General Instruction 1—
19).

* * * * *

m 24. In General Instructions, paragraph
1-19 is added to read as follows:

General Instructions

* * * * *

1-19 Accounting for asset retirement
obligations.

(a) An asset retirement obligation
represents a liability for the legal
obligation associated with the
retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
that a utility is required to settle as a
result of an existing or enacted law,
statute, ordinance, or written or oral
contract or by legal construction of a
contract under the doctrine of
promissory estoppel. An asset
retirement cost represents the amount
capitalized when the liability is
recognized for the long-lived asset that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
amount recognized for the liability and
an associated asset retirement cost shall
be stated at the fair value of the asset
retirement obligation in the period in
which the obligation is incurred.

(b) The carrier shall initially record a
liability for an asset retirement
obligation in account 67, Asset
retirement obligations, and charge the
associated asset retirement costs to
account 30, Carrier property, and
account 34, Noncarrier property, as
appropriate, related to the property that
gives rise to the legal obligation. The
asset retirement cost shall be
depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset that gives rise to the
obligations. For periods subsequent to
the initial recording of the asset
retirement obligation, a carrier shall
recognize the period to period changes
of the asset retirement obligation that
result from the passage of time due to
the accretion of the liability and any
subsequent measurement revisions to
the initial liability for the legal
obligation recorded in account 67, Asset
retirement obligations, as follows:

(1) The carrier shall record the
accretion of the liability by debiting
account 591, Accretion expense, for
carrier property, account 620, Income
(net) from noncarrier property, for
noncarrier property and crediting
account 67, Asset retirement
obligations; and

(2) The carrier shall recognize any
subsequent measurement changes of the
liability initially recorded in account 67,
Asset retirement obligations, for each

specific asset retirement obligation as an
adjustment of that liability in account
67 with the corresponding adjustment to
carrier property and noncarrier property
accounts, as appropriate. The utility
shall on a timely basis monitor any
measurement changes of the asset
retirement obligations.

(c) Gains or losses resulting from the
final settlement of asset retirement
obligations for carrier plant resulting
from the difference between the amount
of the liability for the asset retirement
obligation in account 67, Asset
retirement obligations, and the actual
amount to settle the obligation, shall be
recorded in account 592, Gains or losses
on asset retirement obligations.

(d) Gains or losses resulting from the
final settlement of asset retirement
obligations for noncarrier plant resulting
from the difference between the amount
of the liability for the asset retirement
obligation in account 67, Asset
retirement obligations, and the actual
amount to settle the obligation, shall be
recorded in account 620, Income (net)
from noncarrier property.

(e) Separate subsidiary records shall
be maintained for each asset retirement
obligation showing the initial liability
and associated asset retirement cost, any
incremental amounts of the liability
incurred in subsequent reporting
periods for additional layers of the
original liability and related asset
retirement cost, the accretion of the
liability, the subsequent measurement
changes to the asset retirement
obligation, the depreciation and
amortization of the asset retirement
costs and related accumulated
depreciation, and the settlement date
and actual amount paid to settle the
obligation. For purposes of analyses a
carrier shall maintain supporting
documentation so as to be able to
furnish accurately and expeditiously
with respect to each asset retirement
obligation the full details of the identity
and nature of the legal obligation, the
year incurred, the identity of the plant
giving rise to the obligation, the full
particulars relating to each component
and supporting computations related to
the measurement of the asset retirement

obligation.
* * * * *

= 25. In Instructions for Carrier Property
Accounts, Instruction 3-3, paragraph
(11)(iii) and paragraph (13) are added to
read as follows:

Instructions for Carrier Property
Accounts

* * * * *

3-3 Cost of property constructed.
* %

*
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(11) * % %

(iii) Interest during construction shall
not be recognized on the asset
retirement costs incurred during the
construction of carrier and noncarrier
property.
* * * * *

(13) Asset retirement costs that are
recognized as a result of asset retirement
obligations incurred during construction
shall be included in the cost of

construction costs.
* * * * *

m 26. In Balance Sheet Accounts,

account 31 is amended by adding a sen-
tence to the end of paragraph, account 34
is amended by adding a sentence to the
end of paragraph and account 67 is
added to read as follows:

Balance Sheet Accounts

* * * * *

31 * * * Separate subsidiary records
shall be maintained for the amount of
accrued cost of removal other than legal
obligations for the retirement of
property recorded in account 31,
Accrued depreciation—Carrier property.
* * * * *

34 * * * This account shall also
include, amounts recorded for asset
retirement costs associated with

noncarrier property.
* * * * *

67 Asset retirement obligations.

(a) This account shall include
liabilities arising from the recognition of
asset retirement obligations. The carrier
shall credit account 67, Asset retirement
obligations, for the liabilities for asset
retirement obligations and charge the
appropriate carrier property accounts or
noncarrier property accounts to record
the related asset retirement costs.

(b) This account shall also include the
period to period changes for the
accretion of the liabilities in account 67,
Asset retirement obligations. The carrier
shall charge the accretion expense to
account 591, Accretion expense, for
carrier property, and account 620,

Income (net) from noncarrier property,
for noncarrier property, as appropriate,
and credit account 67, Asset retirement
obligations.

(c) This account shall be debited with
amounts paid to settle the asset
retirement obligations recorded herein.

(d) The utility shall clear from this
account any gains or losses resulting
from the settlement of asset retirement
obligations in accordance with the
instructions prescribed in General

Instruction 1-19.
* * * * *

m 27.In Carrier Property Accounts,
accounts 117, 167, and 186.1 are added
to read as follows:

Carrier Property Accounts

* * * * *

117, 167, 186.1 Asset retirement costs.

This account shall include asset
retirement costs on plans included in
carrier property.

* * * * *

» 28. In Operating Expenses, accounts
541, 591 and 592 are added to read as fol-
lows:

Operating Expenses

* * * * *

541 Depreciation expense for asset
retirement costs.

This account shall include charges for
the depreciation of asset retirement
costs related to transportation property.
* * * * *

591 Accretion expense.

This account shall be charged for
accretion expense on the liabilities
associated with asset retirement
obligations included in account 67,
Asset retirement obligations. The carrier
shall record in this account the
settlement amounts for asset retirement
obligations related to carrier property in
accordance with the accounting
prescribed in General Instruction 1-19.

592 Gains or losses on asset
retirement obligations.

The carrier shall record in this
account gains or losses resulting from
the settlement amounts for asset
retirement obligations related to carrier
property plant. (See General Instruction
1-19).

* * * * *

Note: The following appendices will
not be published in the Code of Federal
Regulations.

APPENDIX A

LIST oF COMMENTERS

Respondent Abbreviation

1. Arkansas Public Arkansas PSC.

Service Commis-

sion.
2. Don Bjerke ............ Bjerke.
3. Deloitte & Touche Deloitte & Touche.
LLP.
4. Edison Electric In- EEI.
stitute.
5. FirstEnergy Corp. .. | FirstEnergy.
6. John S. Ferguson Ferguson.
7. K. C. Martin ........... K.C. Martin.
8. Missouri Public MoPSC.
Service Commis-
sion.
9. National Associa- NASUCA.
tion of State Utility
Consumer Advo-
cates.
10. National Grid National Grid.
USA.
11. National Rural NRECA.

Electric Coopera-
tive Assn..
12. Northern Natural
Gas Company.
13. PacifiCorp
14. Progress Energy,
Inc..

15. Rural Utilities
Service.

16. Southern Com-
pany.

Northern Natural.

PacifiCorp.
Progress Energy.

RUS.

Southern.

Appendix B

SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO SCHEDULES FOR FORMS 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A AND 6

Schedule title

Forms 1 and 1-F public utilities
and licensees

Forms 2 and 2A natural gas
companies

Form 6 oil pipeline companies

1 List of Schedules Revise
2 Comparative Balance Sheet

3 Statement of Income for the

Year

pense.

to
changes.

Add new account 230 to report
asset retirement obligations.

Add new accounts 403.1, to re-
port depreciation expense and
411.10, to report accretion ex-

show  schedule

censees.

censees.

censees.

Same as Public Utilities and Li-

Same as Public Utilities and Li-

Same as Public Utilities and Li-

Same as Public Utilities and Li-
censees.

Add account 67 to report asset
retirement obligations.

Add accounts 541, to report de-
preciation expense, 591, to re-
port accretion expense, and
592, to report gains or losses
on asset retirement obligations.
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SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO SCHEDULES FOR FORMS 1, 1-F, 2, 2—A AND 6—Continued

Schedule title

Forms 1 and 1-F public utilities
and licensees

Forms 2 and 2A natural gas
companies

Form 6 oil pipeline companies

4 Plant in Service

5 Undivided Joint Interest Prop-
erty

6 Accumulated Provision for De-
preciation of Utility Plant

7 Accrued Depreciation—Carrier
Property

8 Accrued Depreciation—Undi-
vided Joint Interest Property

9 Depreciation and Amortization
of Plant (Except Amortization of
Acquisition Adjustments)

10 Amortization Base and Re-
serve

11 Steam-Electric Generating
Plant Statistics (Large Plants)

12 Hydroelectric Generating Plant
Statistics (Large Plants)

13 Pumped Storage Generating
Plant Statistics (Large Plants)

14 Generating Plant Statistics
(Small Plants) (Continued)

15 Transmission Lines Added

During the Year

Add new Instruction 4. For revi-
sions to the amount of initial
asset retirement costs capital-
ized, included by primary plant
account, increases in column
(c) addition and reductions in
column (e) adjustments.

Add new primary asset retirement
accounts, 317, 326, 337, 347,
359.1, 374 and 399.1, for each
plant function.

N/A

Added lines to report “403.1 De-
preciation Expense for Asset
Retirement Costs” and “Book
Cost of Asset Retirement Costs
Retired.”

N/A

N/A

Add new Column (c), Deprecia-
tion Expense for Asset Retire-
ment Costs (403.1).

N/A

Form 1—Revise to
Retirement Costs.
A

Form 1—Revise to
Retirement Costs.
A

Form 1—Revise to
Retirement Costs.
A

Form 1—Revise Column (g), to
read “Plant Cost (Including
Asset Retirement Costs) Per
MW Installed Capacity.” Form
1-F N/A

Form 1—Add column (0) “Asset
Retirement Costs” to report
asset retirement costs as part
of line cost. Form 1-F N/A

report Asset
Form 1-F N/

report Asset
Form 1-F N/

report Asset
Form 1-F N/

Same as Public Utilities and Li-
censees.

Add new primary asset retirement
accounts, 339, 348, 358, 363.6,
364.9, 372, 388, 399.1, for
each plant function.

N/A

Same as Public Utilities and Li-
censees.

N/A

N/A

Same as Public Utilities and
Licenses.

Form 2—-A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Add new primary asset retirement
accounts, 117, 167, and 186.1,
for each carrier property ac-
count function.

N/A

Add new primary asset retirement
accounts, 117, 167, and 186.1,
for each carrier property ac-
count function and revise col-
umn (c) to read Debits to Ac-
counts 540 and 541 of USofA
(in dollars).

Same as above for Accrued
Depreciation—Carrier Property.

N/A

Revise header over columns (b),
(c), (d) and (e) to read (Base
540 and 541).

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

BILLING CODE 6717-01-P
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Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6

-87-

Name of Respondent This Report is:

(1 O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report

(Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

Enter in column (d) the terms "none,” *not applicable,”
or “NA,” as appropriate, where no information or amounts

have been reported for certain pages. Omit pages where the
respondents are “none,” “not applicable,” or “NA”.

Title of Schedule Reference Date Remarks
Page No. Revised
(a) (b) (e (d)
GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General Information .......... .. .. . e 101 Ed. 12-87
Control Over Respondent . . ... . ... .ttt 102 Ed. 12-96
Corporations Controlled by Respondent . .......................... 103 Ed. 12-86
Officars . ..o i 104 Ed. 12-96
[>T o) £ 105 Ed. 12-95
Security Holders and VotingPowers .. ........... ... ... i, 106-107 Ed. 12-96
Important Changes Duringthe Year .......... ... ... ... .o, 108-109 Ed. 12-96
Comparative Balance Sheet .. .. ... ... ... . . i i 110-113 Rev. 12-02
Statement of Income forthe Year . ... ... .. .. ... .. ... . L 114-117 Rev. 12-02
Statement of Retained Earnings forthe Year ....................... 118-119 Ed. 12-96
StatementofCashFlows ...... ... ... ... .. .. ... i i i, 120-121 Ed. 12-96
Statement of Accumulated Comprehensive Income and Hedging Activities 122 {a) (b} New 12-02
Notes to Financial Statements .......... ... .. ... . ... . o, 123 Ed. 12-02
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES (Assets and Other Debits)
Summary of Utility Plant and Accumulated Provisions for
Depreciation, Amortization, and Depletion .......ccoeeee .o 200-201 Ed. 12-89
Nuclear Fuel Materials ...............cc.ccooins 202-203 Ed. 12-89
Electric Plant in Service ........ccococviicvvvenenns 204-207 Rev. 12-02
Electric Plant Leased to Others . . . 213 Rev. 12-85
Electric Plant Held for Future Use ..........ccccceuven. 214 Ed. 12-89
Construction work in Progress -- Electric .... 216 Ed. 12-87
Construction Overheads -- Electric . 217 Ed. 12-89
General Description of Construction Overhead Procedure ............. 218 Ed. 12-88
Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant. 219 Ed. 12-02
Nonutility Property ......c.ccovvecermnenccceneiniaens 221 Rev. 12-85
investment in Subsidiary Companies . 224-225 Ed. 12-89
Materials and Supplies 227 Ed. 12-87
Allowances 228-229 Ed. 12-89
Extraordinary Property LOSSeS ...cccoooviiicciccccs e e 230 Ed. 12-88
Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs ........... .............. 230 Ed. 12-88
Other Regulatory ASSets ..........ccococviininiiiniiies 232 Ed. 12-95
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits . ......... ... . . ... .. ... .. 233 Ed. 12-94
Accumulated Deferred income Taxes {Account 190} 234 Ed. 12-88
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES (Liabilities and Other
Credits)
Capital Stock ..... . 250-251 Ed. 12-91
Capital Stock Subscribed, Capital Stock Liability for
Conversion, Premium on Capital Stock, and installments
Received on Capital StOCK ...oviiiicieicciiiiries e 252 Rev. 12-95
Other Paid-in Capital 253 Ed. 12-87
Discount on Capital Stock 254 Ed. 12-87
Capital Stock EXPENSE ..o e i 254 Ed. 12-86
Long-Term Debt 256-257 Ed. 12-96
FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03) Page 2
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Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6

_88-

Generating Plant Statistics (SmallPlants) . .........................

Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec31,
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (Continued)
Title of Schedule Reference Date Remarks
Page No. Revised
(@) (b) (©) (d)
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Liabilities and Other Credits) (Continued)

Reconciliation of Reported Net income with

for Federal Income Taxes . .. ... iiiiiei i i, 261 Ed. 12-96
Taxes Accrued,.Prepaid and Charged During Year . .................. 262 - 263 Ed. 12-96
Accumulated Deferred Investment TaxCredits ... .................... 266 - 267 Ed. 12-89
Other Deferred Credits. . ... ... o 269 Ed. 12-88
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes -- Accelerated Amortization

PIOpeMY . e 272-273 Ed. 12-96
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes -~ Other Property ............... 274 -275 Ed. 12-96
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes Other ........................ 276 - 277 Ed. 12-96
Other Regulatory Liabilities - . ........ .. .. ... i 278 Ed. 12-94

INCOME ACCOUNT SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Electric Operating Revenues . .. .......vt e it 300 - 301 Ed. 12-96
Sales of Electricity by Rate Schedules ........... .. ... ........... 304 Ed. 12-95
Salesof Resale . ...t 310- 311 Ed. 12-88
Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses  ..................... 320 - 323 Ed. 12-95
Number of Electric Department Employees . . ............c..oeneennnn 323 Ed. 12-93
Purchased Power .. .. ... . .. ... . 326 - 327 Ed. 12-85
Transmission of Electricity for Others . . ................ ... ... .... 328 - 330 Ed. 12-90
Transmission of Electricity by Others . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... 332 Ed. 12-90
Miscellaneous General Expenses - Electric ........................ 335 Ed. 12-94
Depreciation and Amortization of Electric--Plant . ................... 336 - 337 Rev. 12-02
Particulars Concerning Certain Income Deduction and Interest

Charges ACCOUNME . . .ottt ettt e et 340 Ed.12-87

COMMON SECTION
Regulatory Commission Expenses ........... ..., 350 - 351 Ed. 12-96
Research, Development and Demonstration Activities . ............... 352 - 353 Ed. 12-87
Distribution of SalariesandWages .............. .. ... ... .. ... 354 - 355 Ed. 12-88
Common Utility Plantand Expenses ............ ... ..., 356 Ed. 12-87
ELECTRIC PLANT STATISTICAL DATA
Electric Energy Account ... ... .. e 401 Rev. 12-90
Monthly Peaks and Output . . ....... ... ... . i 401 Rev. 12-90
Steam-Electric Generating Plant Statistics (Large Plants) . ............. 402 - 403 Rev. 12-02
Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics (large Plants) ............... 406 - 407 Ed. 12-02
Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics (Large Plants) ............ 408 - 409 Ed. 12-02
410 -411 Ed. 12-02

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03) Page 3
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
@) O A Resubmission Dec31,
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (Continued)
Title of Schedule Reference Date Remarks
Page No. Revised
(a) (b) (c) (d)
ELECTRIC PLANT STATISTICAL DATA (Continued)
Transmission Lines Statistics .. ....................... 422-423 Ed. 12-87
Transmission Lines Added DuringYear .. ............... 424-425 Ed. 12-02
Substations . ...... .. 426-427 Ed. 12-96
Electric Distribution Meters and Line Transformers ........ 429 Ed. 12-88
Environmental protection Facilities . . ................... 430 Ed. 12-88
Environmental Protection Expenses . .................. 431 Ed. 12-88
FootnoteData.......... ... i, 450 Ed. 12-87
Stockholders’ Reports Check appropriate box:
[ 1Four copies will be submitted.
[ ]1No annual report to stockholders is prepared.
FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03) Page 4
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
2) O A Resubmission Dec3t,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Title of Account Ref. Balance at Balance at
No Page Beginning of End of Year
(a) No. year (d)
(b) ()
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 | Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251
3 | Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251
4 | Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252
5 | Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206) 252
6 | Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252
7 | Other Paid in Capital (208-211) 253
8 | Installments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 | (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254
10 | (Less) Capital Stock expense (214) 254
11 | Retained Earnings (215, 215.1, 216) 118-118
12 | Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings {216.1) 118-119
13 | (Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217) 250-251
14 | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122 (a) (b)
15 | TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Enter Total of Lines 2 thru 14) -
17 | Bonds (221) 256-257
18 | (Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256-257
19 | Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257
20 | Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257
21 | Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) -
22 | (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) -
23 | TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Enter Total of Lines 16 thru 21) -
24 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
25 | Obligations Under Capital Leases-Noncurrent (227) -
26 | Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1) -
27 | Accumulated Provision for Injuries and damages (228.2) -
28 | Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) -
29 }| Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provision (228.4) -
30 | Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) -
31 | Asset Retirement Obligations (230) -
32 gg)TAL OTHER Noncurrent Liabilities (Enter Total of Lines 24 thru
33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
34 | Notes Payable (231) -
35 | Accounts Payable (232) -
36 | Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) -
37 | Account Payable to Associated Companies (234) -
38 | Customer Deposits (235) -
39 | Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263
40 | Interest Accrued (237) -
41 | Dividends Declared (238) -
42 | Matured Long-Term Debt (239) -
43 1 Matured interests (240) -
44 | Tax Collections Payable (241) -
45 | Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities(242)
46 | Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current (243)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REVISED 12-02)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) & An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS) (Continued)

Title of Account

(@)

Ref.
Page No.
(b)

Balance at
Beginning of year

©

Balance at
End of Year

(@

Derivative Instrument Liabiiities (244)

Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedging (245)

TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabilities (Enter Total of
Lines 34 thru 48)

DEFERRED CREDITS

Customer Advances for Lonstruction (252)

E————

Accumulate Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255)

266-267

Deterred Gains from Disposition ot Utility Plant (256)

Other Deterred Credits (253)

269

Other Regulatory Liabilities {254)

213

Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257)

269

Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283)

2/2-211

TOTAL Deferred Credits (Enter Total of Lines 48 thru 54}

TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Enter Total of Lines
15, 23, 32,49 and 57)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REVISED 12-03)
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-92.

Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) 0 An Original
(2) 3 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenue and Expenses
from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another Utility column {i,k,m,o) in
a similar manner to a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over Lines
02 thru 24 as appropriate. include these amounts in columns (c) and (d)
totals.

2. Report amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating income, in the
same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above.

3. Report data for lines 8, 10, and 11 for Natural Gas companies using
accounts 404.1, 404.2, 404.3, 407.1 and 407.2.

4. Use page 123 for important notes regarding the statement of income
or any account thereof.

5. Give concise explanations concerning unsettied rate proceedings
where a contingency exists such that refunds of a material amount may
need to be made to the utility's customers or which may result in a
material refund to the utility with respect to power or gas purchases.
State for each year affected the gross revenues or costs to which the
contingency relates and the tax effects together with an explanation of
the major factors which affect the rights of the utility to retain such
revenues or recover amounts paid with respect to power and gas
purchases.

6. Give concise explanations concerning significant amounts of any
refunds made or received during the year.

Line Title of Account Ref. Balance at Balance at
No Page No. Beginning of year End of Year
(@) (b) (¢} (d)
1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2 Operating Revenues {400) 300-301
3 Operating Expenses
4 Operation Expenses (401) 320-323
5 Maintenance Expenses (402) 320-323
6 Depreciation Expenses (403) 336-337
7 Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-337
8 Amortization. & Depletion of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-337
9 Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustment {406) 336-337
10 Amortization of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant and
Regulatory Study Costs (407)
11 Amortization of Conversion Expenses (407)
12 Regulatory Debits (407.3)
13 (Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4)
14 Taxes Other than Income Taxes (408.1) 262-263
15 Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) 262-263
16 - Other {(409.1) 262-263
17 Provision for deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234,272-277
18 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Cr. (411.1) 234,272-277
19 Investment Tax Credit Adj. - Net (411.4) 266
20 (Less) Gains from Disp. Of Utility Plant (411.6)
21 Losses from Disp. Of Utility Plant (411.7)
22 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8)
23 Losses from Disposition of Aliowances (411.9)
24 Accretion Expense (411.10)
25 TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses {Enter Total of Lines 4 thru 24)
26 Net Utility Operating Income (Enter Total of
line 2 less 25) (Carry forward to page 117, line 25)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O3 A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

resulting from settlement of any rate proceeding affecting revenues
received or costs incurred for power or gas purchases, ard a
summary ofthe adjustments made to balance sheet, income, and
expense accounts.

7. if any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are
applicable to this Statement of Income, such notes should be
included on page 123.

B. Enter on page 123 a concise explanation of only those
changes in accounting methods made during the year

which had an effect on net income, including the basis of
allocations and apportiorunents from those used in the precedingl
year. Also give the approximate dollar effect of such changes.
9. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's figures are different
from that reported in prior reports.

10. If the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utility
departments, supply the appropriate account titles, lines 2 to 23,
and report the information on page.123 or in a footnote.

ELECTRIC UTILITY

GAS UTILITY

OTHER UTILITY

Current Year Previous Year Current Year

(€) (f) (9)

Previous Year Current Year Previous Year | Line

(h) (i 0 No.

-03.

L%

o ©| oo | oo U

i

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec31,
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
OTHER UTILITY OTHER UTILITY OTHER UTILITY
Line Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Yar Previous Year
No. (k) (1 (m) (n) (0) (p)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03) Page 116
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) J A Resubmission Dec31,
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR {Continued)
Account (Ref.) TOTAL
Line Page No. Current Year Previous Year
No (a) () () (d)
27 Net Utility Operating Income (Carried forward from page 114) -
28 Other Income and Deductions
29 Other Income
30 Nonutility Operating Income
31 Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415}
32 (Less) Costs and Exp. Of Merchandising, Job & Contract Work
(416)
33 Revenues From Nonutility Operations (417)
34 {Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417.1)
35 Nonoperating Rental Income (418)
36 Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119
37 Interest and Dividend Income (419)
38 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1)
39 Miscellaneous Nonoperating income (421)
40 Gain on Disposition of Property (421.2)
41 TOTAL Other income (Enter Total of Lines 31 thru 40)
42 Other income Deductions —
43 Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2)
44 Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 340
45 Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1-426.5) 340
46 TOTAL Other Income Deductions (Total of Lines 43 thru 45)
47 Taxes Applicable To Other Income and Deductions —
48 Taxes Other than income Taxes (408.2) 262-263
49 Income Taxes - Federal (409.2) 262-263
50 Income Taxes - Other (409.2) 262-263
51 Provision for Deferred Inc. Taxes (410.2) 234,272-277
52 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Credit (411.2) 234,272-277
53 Investment Tax Credit Adj. - Net (411.5)
54 {Less) Investment Tax Credits (420)
55 TOTAL Taxes on Other Income and Deductions (Total of 48 thru 54)
56 Net Other Income and Deductions (Enter Total of Lines 41, 46, 55)
57 Interest Charges —
58 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427)
59 Amort. Of Debt Disc. And Expense {428)
60 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1)
61 (Less) Amort. Of Premium on Debt - credit (429)
62 (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt - Credit (429.1)
63 Interest on Debt to Assoc. Companies (430) 340
64 Other Interest Expense (431) 340
65 {Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432)
66 Net Interest Charges (Enter Total of Liens 58 thru 65)
67 Income Before Extraordinary ltems (Total of Lines 27, 56 and 66)
68 Extraordinary ltems
69 Extraordinary Income (434)
70 (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435)
71 Net Extraordinary ltems (Enter Total of Line 69 less Line 70)
72 Income Taxes-Federal and Other (409.3) 262-263
73 Extraordinary ltems After Taxes (Enter Total of Line 71 less Line 72)
74 Net income (Enter Total of Lines 67 and 73)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Originat
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106)

1. Report below the original cost of electric plant in service according
to the prescribed accounts.

2. In addition to Account 101, Electric Plant in Service (Classified), this
page and the next include Account 102, Electric Plant Purchased or Soid;
Account 103, Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified; and Account 106,
Completed Construction Not Classified-Electric.

3. Include in column (¢} or {d), as appropriate, corrections of additions
and retirements for the current or preceding year.

4. For revisions to the amount of initial asset retirement costs capitalized,
included by primary plant account, increases in column (c) additions and
reductions in column {e) adjustments.

5. Enclose in parentheses credit adjustments of plant accounts to
indicate the negative effect of such accounts.

6. Classify Account 106 according to prescribed ac- counts, on an
estimated basis if necessary, and include the entries in column (c). Also
to be included in column (c) are entries for reversals of tentative
distributions of prior year reported in column (b). Likewise, if the
respondent has a significant amount of plant retirements which have not
been classified to primary accounts at the end of the year, include in
column (d) a tentative distribution of such retirements, on an estimated
basis, with appropriate contra entry to the account for accumulated
depreciation provision. Include also in

Line Balance at
Account Beginning of year Addition
@ 5 )
1 1. INTANGIBLE PLANT
2 (301) Organization
3 (302) Franchises and Consents
4 (303) Miscellaneous intangible Plant
5 TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter Total of Lines 2, 3, and 4)
6 2. PRODUCTION PLANT
7 A. Steam Production Plant
8 (310) Land and Land Rights
9 (811) Structures and Improvements
10 (312) Boiler Plant Equipment
11 {313) Engines and Engine-Driven Generators
12 (314) Tubogenerator Units
13 (315) Accessory Electric Equipment
14 - | (316) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
15 (317) Asset Retirement Costs for Steam Production
16 TOTAL Steam Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 8 thru 15)
17 B. Nuclear Production Plant
18 {320} Land and Land Rights
19 (321) Structures and Improvements
20 (322) Reactor Plant Equipment
21 {323) Turbo generator Units
22 (324) Accessory Electric Equipment
23 (325) Misc. Power Pilant Equipment
24 (326) Asset Retirement Costs for Nuclear Production
25 TOTAL Nuciear Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 18 thru 24)
26 C. Hydraulic Production Plant
27 (330) Land and Land Rights
28 (331} Structures and Improvements
29 (332) Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
30 (333) Water Wheels, Turbines, and Generators
31 (334) Accessory Electric Equipment
32 (335) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
33 (336) Roads, Railroad, and Bridges
34 (337) Asset Retirement Costs for Hydraulic Production
35 TOTAL Hydraulic Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 27 thru 34)
37 (340) Land and Land Rights
38 (341) Structures and Improvements
39 (342) Fuel Holders, Products, and Accessories
40 (343) Prime Movers
41 (344) Generators
42 (345) Accessory Electric Equipment

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report

(Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106) (Continued)

column (d) reversals of tentative distributions of prior year of unclassified
retirements. Show in a footnote the account distributions of these tentative
classifications in columns (c} and {d), inciuding the reversals of the prior
years tentative account distributions of these amounts. Careful observance
of the above instructions and the texts of Accounts 101 and 106 will avoid
serious omissions of the reported amount of respondent's plant actually in
service at end of year.

7. Show in column (f) reclassifications or transfers within utility plant
accounts. Inciude also in column (f)

the additions or reductions of primary account classifications arising from
distribution of amounts initially recorded in Account 102, include in column

(e)

the amounts with respect to accumulated provision for depreciation,
acquisition adjustments, etc., and show in column(f) only the offset to the
debits or credits distributed in column (f) to primary account classifications.

8. For Account 399, state the nature and use of plant included in this
account and if substantial in amount submit a supplementary statement
showing subaccount classification of such plant conforming to the
requirement of these pages.

9. For each amount comprising the reported balance and changes in
Account 102, state the property purchased or sold, name of vendor or
purchase, and date of transaction. if proposed journal entries have been
filed with the Commission as required by the Uniform System of Accounts,
give also date of such filing.

Balance at Line
Retirements Adjustments Transfers End of Year No.
(d) (e) () (9)

1
(301) 2
(302) 3
(303) 4
5
6
7
(310) 8
(311) 9
312) 10
(313) 11
(314) 12
(315) 13
(316) 14
(317) 15
16
17
(320) 18
(321) 19
(322) 20
(323) 21
(324) 22
(325) 23
(326) 24
25
- | 2
(330) 27
(331) 28
(332) 29
(333) 30
(334) 31
(335) 32
(336) 33
(337) 34
35
36
{340} 37
(341) 38
(342) 39
(343) 40
(344) 41
(345) 42

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec31,
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106)
Line Balance at
No Account Beginning of year Addition
) ) ©)

43 {346) Misc. Power Piant Equipment

44 (347) Asset Retirement Costs for Other Production

45 TOTAL Other Prod. Plant (Enter Total of Lines 37 thru 44)

46 TOTAL Prod. Plant (Enter Total of Lines 16, 25, 35, and 45)

48 (350) land and Land Rights

49 (352) Structures and Improvements

50 (353)Station Equipment

51 (354)Towers and Fixtures

52 (355)Poles and Fixtures

53 (356) Overhead Conductors and Devices

54 (357) Underground conduit

55 (358) Underground Conductors and Devices

56 (359) Roads and Trails

57 (359.1) Asset Retirement Costs for Transmission Plant

58 TOTAL Transmission Plant (Enter Total of Lines 44 thru 52)

59 4. DISTRIBUTION PLANT

60 {360} Land and Land Rights

61 (361) Structures and improvements

62 (362) Station Equipment

63 (363) Storage Battery Equipment

64 (364) Poles, Towers, and Fixtures

65 (365) Overhead Conductors and Devices

66 {366) Underground Conduit

67 (367) Underground Conductors and Devices

68 (368} Line Transformers

69 (369) Services

70 (370) Meters

71 (371) Installations on Customer Premises

72 (372) Leased Property on Customer Premises

73 (373) Street Lighting and Signal Systems

74 (374) Asset Retirement Costs for Distribution Plant

75 Total Distribution Plant (Enter Total of Lines 60 thru 74)

77 (389) Land and Land Rights

78 (390) Structures and improvements

79 (391) Office Furniture and Equipment

80 (392) Transportation Equipment

81 (393) Stores Equipment

82 (394) Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment

83 {395) Laboratory, Equipment

84 (396)Power Operated Equipment

85 (397) Communication Equipment

86 (398) Miscellaneous Equipment

87 SUBTOTAL (Enter Totat of Lines 77 thru 86)

88 (399) Other Tangible Property

89 (399.1) Asset Retirement Costs for General Plant

90 TOTAL General Piant (Enter Total of Lines 87, 88, and 89)

91 TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106) (Lines 5, 16, 25, 35, 45, 58, 75,90)

92 (102) Electric Plant Purchased (See Instr. 8)

93 (Less) (102) Electric Plant Sold (See Instr. 8)

94 (103) Experimentat Plant Unclassified

95 TOTAL Electric Plant in Service (Enter Total of Lines 91 thru 94)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

(2) O A Resubmission Dec3t,
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106) (Continued)
Balance at Line
Retirements Adjustments Transfers End of Year No.
(d) (e) ) (9)
{346) 43
(347) 44
45
46
47
(350) 48
(352) 49
(353) 50
(354) 51
(355) 52
(356) 53
(357) 54
(358) 55
(359) 56
(359.1) 57
58
59
(360) 60
(361) 61
(362) 62
(363) 63
(364) 64
(365) 65
(366) 66
(367) 67
(368) 68
(369) 69
(370} 70
(371) 71
(372} 72
(373) 73
(374) 74
75
76
(389) 77
(390) 78
(391) 79
(392) 80
(393) 81
(394) 82
(395) 83
{396) 84
(397) 85
(398) 86
87
(399) 88
(398.1) 89
90
91
(102) 92
93
(103) 94
95
FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03) Page 207 Next page is 213
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT (Account 108)

1. Explain in a footnote any important adjustments during year.

2. Explain in a footnote any difference between the amount for book cost
of plant retired, Line 11, column (c), and that reported for electric plant in
service, pages 204-207, column (d), excluding retirements of
nondepreciable property.

3. The provisions of Account 108 in the Uniform System of Accounts
require that retirements of depreciable plant be recorded when such plant
is removed from service.

If the respondent has a significant amount of plant retired at year end
which has not been recorded and/or classified to the various reserve
functional classifications, make preliminary closing entries to tentatively
functionalize the book cost of the plant retired. In addition, include all costs
included in retirement work in progress at year end in the appropriate
functional classifications.

4. Show separately interest credits under a sinking fund or similar
method of depreciation accounting.

Section A. Balances and Changes During Year

Line Item Total Electric Plant in Electric Plant Held Electric Plant
No (a) (c+d+e) Service for Future Use Leased to Others
(b) © (d) )

1 Balance Beginning of Year
2 Depreciation Provisions for Year,

Charged to:
3 (403) Depreciation Expense

(403.1) Depreciation Expense for

Asset Retirement Costs
5 (413) Expense of Electric Plant

Leased to Others
6 Transportation Expenses-Clearing
7 Other Clearing Accounts
8 Other Accounts (Specify):
9
10 Total Depreciation, Provision For Year

(Enter Total of Lines 3 thru 9)
11 Net Charges for Plant Retired:
12 Book Cost of Plant Retired
13 Cost of Removal
14 Salvage (Credit)
15 TOTAL Net Charges For Plant

Retired (Enter Total of Lines 12 thru 14)
16 Other Debit or Credit Items (Describe):
17
18 Book Cost of Asset Retirement Costs

Retired
19 Balance End of Year éEnter Total of

lines 1, 10, 15, 16 and 18)

Section B. Balances at End of Year According to Functional Ciassifications

20 Steam Production
21 Nuclear Production
22 Hydraulic Production-Conventional
23 Hydraulic Production-Pumped Storage
24 Other Production
25 Transmission
26 Distribution
27 General
28 TOTAL (Enter Totai of Lines 20 thru 27)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF ELECTRIC PLANT (Accounts 403, 403.1, 404, 405)
{Except Amortization of Acquisition Adjustments)

1. Report in Section A for the year the amounts for: (a)
Depreciation Expense (Account 403); (b} Amortization of Limited-
Term Electric Plant (Account 404); and (¢) Amortization of Other
Electric Plant (Account 405).

2. Report in section 8 the rates used to compute amortization
charges for electric plant (Accounts 404 and 405). State the basis
used to compute charges and whether any changes have been
made in the basis or rates used from the preceding report year.
3. Report all available information called for in section C every fifth
year beginning with report year 1971, reporting annually only
changes to columns (¢) through (g) from the complete report of the
preceding year.

Unless composite depreciation accounting for total depreciable
plant is followed, list numerically in column (a) each plant
subaccount, account or functional classification, as appropriate, to
which a rate is applied. Identify at the bottom of section C the type
of plant included in any subaccount used.

In column (b) report all depreciable plant balances to which rates
are applied showing subtotals by functional

Classifications and showing composite total. Indicate at the
bottom of section C the manner in which column balances are
obtained. If average balances, state the method of averaging
used.

For columns (c), (d), and (e) report available information for
each plant subaccount, account or functional classification
Listed in column (a). If plant mortality studies are prepared to
assist in estimating average service Lives, show in column (f)
the type mortality curve selected as most appropriate for the
account and in column (g), if available, the weighted average
remaining life of surviving plant.

If composite depreciation accounting is used, report
available information called for in columns (b) through (g) on
this basis.

4. if provisions for depreciation were made during the year
in addition to depreciation provided by application of reported
rates, state at the bottom of section C the amounts and nature
of. the provisions and the plant items to which related.

-101-

A. Summary of depreciation and Amortization Charges

Line Functional Classification Depreciation Depreciation Amortization Amortization of Total
No Expense Expense for Asset of Limited- Other Electric f)
(Account Retirement Costs | Term Electric Plant (Account
(@) 403) (Account 403.1) Plant 405)
(b) (c) (Account 404) (e)
(d)

1 Intangible Plant

2 Steam Production Plant

3 Nuclear Production Plant

4 Hydraulic Production Plant --

Conventional

)]

Hydraulic Production Plant --
Pumped Storage

Other Production Plant

Transmission Plant

Distribution Plant

General Plant

Common Plant -- Electric

=1 O] ©] 0o N o

-]

TOTAL

B. Basis for Amortization Charges

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec 31,
STEAM-ELECTRIC GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Large Plants)
1.  Report data for plant in Service only. approximate average number of employees assignable to each
2. lLarge plants are steam plants with installed capacity (name plate plant
rating) of 25,000 Kw or more. Report in this page gas-turbine and 6. I!f gas is used and purchased on a therm basis report the Btu
internal combustion plants of 10,000 KW or more, and nuclear content of the gas and the quantity of fuel burmed converted to
lants. Mct.
3. IFr:dicate by a footnote any plant leased or operated as a joint facility. 7. Quantities of fuel burned (line 38) and average cost per unit of fuel
4. If net peak dernand for 60 minutes is not available. Give data which burned (line 41) must be consistent with charges to expense
is available, specifying period. accounts 501 and 547 (line 42) as show on fine 20.
5. If any employees attend more than one plant, report on line 11 the 8. If more than one fuel is burned in a plant furnish only the
composite heat rate for all fuels burmned.
Line item Plant Name: Plant Name:
No (a) (b) (c)
1 Kind of Plant (Steam, Internal Combustion, Gas
Turbine or Nuclear,
2 Type of Plant Construction (Convention, Outdoor Boiler,
Full Qutdoor, Etc.)
3 | Year Originally Constructed
4 | Year Last Unit was Installed
5 Total Instalied Capacity (Maximum Generator Name
Plate Ratings in MW) )
6 | Next Peak Demand on Plant -- MW (80 minutes)
7 Piant Hours Connected to Load
8 | Net Continuous Plant Capability (Megawatts)
9 When not Limited by Condenser Water
10 When Limited by Condenser Water
11 Average Number of Employees
12 Net Generation, Exclusive of Plant Use --KWh
13 | Cost of Plant: Land and Land Rights
14 Structures and Improvements
15 Equipment Costs
16 Asset Retirement Costs
17 Total Cost
18 | Cost cFer KW of Installed Cagacity (Line 17/ Line 5)
including Asset Retirement Costs
19 Production Expenses: Oper. Supv. & Engr.
20 Fuel
21 Coolants and Water (Nuclear Plants Only)
22 Steam Expenses
23 Steam From Other Sources
24 Steam Transferred (Cr.}
25 Electric Expenses
26 Misc. Steam (or Nuclear) Power Expenses
27 Rents
28 Allowances
29 Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
30 Maintenance of Structures
31 Maintenance of Boiler (Or Reactor) Plant
32 Maintenance of Electric Plant
33 Maintenance Misc. Steam {or Nuclear) Plant
34 Total Production Expenses
35 Expenses per Net KWh
36 | Fuel: Kind {Coal, Gas, Oil, or Nuclear)
37 Unit: (Coal-tons of 2,000 Ib.) (Oil-barrels
of 42 gals.) (Gas=Mcf) (Nuclear-indicate)
38 Quantity (Units) of Fuel Burned
39 Avg. Heat Cont. Of Fuel Burned éB’gu per Ib. Of coal
per gal. Of oil or per Mcf of gas) (Give unit if nuclear)
40 Average Cost of Fuel per Unit, as Delivered
f. 0. b. Plant During Year
41 Average Cost of Fuel per Unit Burned
42 Avg. Cost of Fuel Buned per Million Btu
43 Avg. Cost of Fuel Burned per Kwh Net Generation
44 Average Btu per Kwh Net Generation

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV.. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) © An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec 31,

STEAM-ELECTRIC GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Large Plants) (Continued)

9. ltems under Cost of Plant are based on U.S. of A. Accounts. -turbine unit functions in a combined cycle operation with a
Production expenses do not include Purchased Power, System conventional steam unit, include the gas-turbine with the steam
Control and Load Dispatching, and Other Expenses Classified as plant.

Other Power Supply Expenses. 12. If a nuclear power generating plat, briefly explain by footnote (a)

10. ForIC and GT plants, report Operating Expenses, Account Nos. 547 accounting method for cost of power generated inciuding any
and 549 on line 25 “Electric Expenses,” and Maintenance Account excess costs attributed to research and development; (b} types
Nos. 553 and 554 on line 32. “Maintenance of Electric Plant.” Indicate of cost units used for the various components of fuel cost; and (c)
plants designed for peak load service. Designate automaticatly any other informative data concerning plant type fuel used, fuel
operated plants. enrichment type and quantity for the report period and other

11. For a plant equipped with combinations of fossil fuel steam, nuclear physical and operating characteristics of plant.
steam, hydro, internal combustion or gas-turbine equipment, report
each as a separate plant. However, if a gas

Plant Name: Plant Name: Plant Name: Line
(d) (e) M No.
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Name of Respondent

(1)
(2)

This Report is:

O An Original
O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
Dec 31,

HYDROELECTRIC GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Large Plants)

1.

2.
Energy Regulatory Commission, or operated as a jointfacility, indicate such
facts in a footnote. If licensed project, give project number.

Large plants are hydro plants of 10,000 Kw or more of installed
capacity (name plate ratings).

3. If net peak demand for 60 minutes is not available, give that
which is available specifying period.
If any plant is leased, operated under a license from the Federal 4. If a group of employees attends more than one generating
plan, report on line 11 the approximate average number of
employees assignable to each plant.

Line ltem FERC Licensed Project No. FERC Licensed Project No.
No Plant Name: Plant Name:
(a) (b) ()
1 Kind of Plant {Run-of-River or Storage)
2 | Type of Plant Construction (Conventional or Outdoor)
3 Year Originally Constructed
4 Year Last Unit was Installed
5 Total Installed Capacity (Generator Name Plate Rating in MW)
6 Net Peak Demand on Plant-Megawatts (60 minutes)
7 Plant Hours Connected to Load
8 Net Plant Capability (in megawatts)
9 {@) Under the Most Favorable Operating Conditions
10 {(b) Under the Most Adverse Operating Conditions
11 Average Number of Employees
12 Net Generation, Exclusive of Plant Use-KWh
13 | Cost of Plant:
14 Land and Land Rights
15 Structures and Improvements
16 Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
17 Equipments Costs
18 Roads, Railroads, and Bridges
19 Asset Retirement Costs
20 TOTAL Cost (Enter Total of Lines 14 thru 19)
21 Cost per KW _of Installed Capacity (Line 5) including Asset
Retirement Costs
22 Production Expenses:
23 Operation Supervision and Engineering
24 Water for Power
25 Hydraulic Expenses
26 Electric Expenses
27 Misc. Hydraulic Power Generation Expenses
28 Rents
29 Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
30 Maintenance of Structures
31 Maintenance of Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
32 Maintenance of Electric Plant
33 Maintenance of Misc. Hydraulic Plant
34 Total Production Expenses (Total lines 23 thru 33)
35 Expenses per net KWh
FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV.. 12-03) Page 406
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) OO An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) [0 A Resubmission

HYDROELECTRIC GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (large Plants) (Continued)

5. The items under Cost of Plant represent accounts or 6. Report as a separate plant any plant equipped with
combinations of accounts prescribed by the uniform System of combinations of steam, hydro, internal combustion engine,
Accounts. Production Expenses do not include Purchased Power, or gas turbine equipment.

System control and Load Dispatching, and Other Expenses
classified as "Other Power Supply Expenses.”

FERC Licensed Project No. FERC Licensed Project No. FERC Licensed Project No.
Plant Name: Plant Name: Plant Name:

(d) () (f)

Dec 31,
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

PUMPED STORAGE GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Large Plants)

1. Large plants and pumped storage plants of 10,000 Kw or
more of installed capacity (name plate ratings).

2. If any plant is leased, operating under a license from the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or operated as a joint
facility, indicate such facts in a footnote. Give project number.

3. If net peak demand for 60 minutes is not available, give
the which is available, specifying period.

4. If a group of empioyees attends more than one generating
plant, report on line 8 the approximate average number of
employees assignable to each plant.

5. The items under Cost of Plant represent accounts or
combinations of accounts prescribed by the Uniform System of
Accounts. Production Expenses do not include Purchased
Power System Control and Load Dispatching, and Other
Expenses classified as “Other Power Supply Expenses.”

Line ltem FERC Licensed Project No.
No Plant Name:
(a) (b)
1 | Type of Plant Construction (Conventional or Outdoor)
2 | Year Originally Constructed
3 | Year Last Unit was Installed
4 | Total Installed Capacity (Generator Name Plate Ratings in MW)
5 | Net Peak Demand on Plant-Megawatts (60 minutes)
6 | Plant Hours Connected to Load While Generating
7 | Net Plant Capability (In megawatts):
8 | Average Number of Employees
9 | Generation Exclusive of Plant Use-KWh
10 | Energy Used for Pumping-KWH
11 | Net Output for Load (Line 9 minus Line 10)-KWh
12 | Cost of Plant
13 Land and Land Rights
14 Structures and Improvements
15 Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
16 Water Wheels, Turbines, and Generators
17 Accessory Electric Equipment
18 Miscellaneous Powerplants Equipment
19 Roads, Railroads, and Bridges
20 Asset Retirement Costs
21 TOTAL Cost (Enter Total of Lines 13 thru 20)
22 Cost per KW of installed Capacity (Line 21 + Line 4) including
Asset Retirement Costs
23 | Production Expenses
24 Operation Supervision and Engineering
25 Water for Power
26 Pumped Storage Expenses
27 Electric Expenses
28 Misc. Pumped Storage Power Generation Expenses
29 Rents
30 Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
31 Maintenance of Structures
32 Maintenance of Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
33 Maintenance of Electric Plant
34 Maintenance of Misc. Pumped Storage Plant
35 Production Exp. Before Pumping Exp. (Enter Total of Lines 24
thru 34)
36 Pumping Expenses
37 Total Production Expenses (Enter Total of Lines 35 and 36)
38 Expenses per Kwh (Enter result of line 37 divided by Line 9)

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original

(2) [J A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

PUMPED STORAGE GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Large Plants) (Continued)

the-plant for pumping purposes.

storage reservoir. When this item cannot

energy from each station or other source

6. Pumping energy (line 10) is that energy measured as input to
7. Include on line 35 the cost of energy used in pumping into the

leave Lines 35, 36 and 37 blank and footnote the company's
principal sources of pumping power, the estimated amounts of

contract.

that individually provides more than 10 percent of the total
energy used forpumping, and production expenses per net
MWH as reported herein for each source described. Group
be accurately computed together stations and other resources which individually
provide less than 10 percent of total pumping energy. If
contracts are made with others to purchase power for
pumping, give the supplier contract number, and date of

FERC Licensed Project No.
Piant Name:
(d)

FERC Licensed Project No.
Plant Name:
(e)

FERC Licensed Project No.
Plant Name:
()

Line
No

O] 0o | Of L] ) Lof NOf =

10

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1Y O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission

GENERATING PLANT STATISTICS (Small Plants) (Continued)

3. List plants appropriately under subheadings for steam, 5. If any plant is equipped with combinations of steam,

hydro, nuclear, internal combustion and gas turbine plants. hydro internal combustion or gas turbine equipment, report

For nuclear, see instruction 11, page 403: each as a separate plant. However, if the exhaust heat

4. If net peak demand for 60 minutes is not available, give from the gas turbine is utilzed in a steam turbine

the which is available, specifying period. regenerative feed water cycle, or for preheated combustion
air in a boiler, report as one plant.

Dec 31,

Plant Cost Operation Production Expenses Fuel Cost
&Includmg Asset Excludmg (In_cents per
etirement Costs) . Fuel million Btu)

| tall d C it Kind of Fuel Li
ns e( )apacny (h) Fuel Maintenance nge
g

. ) (K 0]
0] (0]

CONOON A WN =
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:

(1) O An Original

(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

TRANSMISSION LINES ADDED DURING YEAR

7. Report below the information called for concerning
Transmission lines added or altered during the year. Itis
not necessary to report minor revisions of lines.

2. Provide separate subheadings for overhead and under-

ground construction and show each transmission line
separately. If actual costs of competed construction are not
readily available for reporting columns (I) to (p), it is permissible
to report in these columns the estimated final completion.

Line
No

LINE DESIGNATION

SUPPORTING
STRUCTURE

CIRCUITS PER
STRUCTURE

From

To

(b)

Line
Length
in Miles

(<)

Type

(d)

Average
Number Present
Per
Miles
e

(e) {f)

Ultimate

(9)

OONOOTHAWN

TOTAL

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:

(1) O An Original
(2) 1 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

TRANSMISSION LINES ADDED DURING YEAR (Continued)

costs. Designate, however, if estimated amounts are

reported. Inciude costs of Clearing Land and Rights-
of-Way, and Roads and Trails, in column (l) with
appropriate footnote, and costs of Underground

Conduit in column (m)

3. If design voltage differs from operating voltage,

indicate such fact by footnote; also where line is other
than 60 cycle, 3 phase,
characteristic.

indicate such other

CONDUCTORS

Configuration
and Spacing
1)

Size Specification

(h) (i

(Opé(%/ting)

LINE COST

Voltage Lan

an
RIanes
(1)

oles,
owers

.an
Fixtures

(m)

Conductors
and Device

(n)

Asset
Reiirement

Total

Line
No.

QWONOOUAWN =
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Name of Respondent This Report is:

(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

PART ill: COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

Liabilities and Other Credits
(a)

Balance at Beginning
of year

)

Balance at End of
Year

(©

01

Common Stock Issued (2071)

02

Preferred Stock Issued (204)

03

Miscellaneous Paid-in Capital (2171)

04

Instaliments Received on Capital Stock (212)

05

Discount on Capital Stock - Debit (213)

06

Capital Stock Expenses - Debit (274)

07

Retained Earnings (215-216)

08

Reacquired Capital Stock - Debit (217)

09

Noncorporate Proprietorship (2718)

10

Accumuiated Other Comprehensive Income (219)

11

TOTAL PROPRIETARY CAPITAL (Enter total of lines 01 thru 10)

12

Bonds (221)

13

Advances From Associated Companies (223)

14

Other Long-term Debt (Specify in footnote) (224)

15

Unamortized Premium on Long-term Debt (225)

16

Unamortized Discount on Long-term Debt - Debit (226)

17

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT (Enter total of lines 12 thru 16)

18

Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

19

Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227)

20

Accumulated Provision tor Property Insurance (228, 1)

21

Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2)

22

Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3)

23

Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228.4)

24

Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229)

25

Asset Retirement Obligations {230)

26

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES (Enter Total of Lines 19 thru 25)

27

Current and Accrued Liabilities:

28

Notes and Accounts Payable (Report amounts applicable to associated companies in a
footnote) (231 to 234)

29

Customer Debits (235)

30

Taxes Accrued (236)

31

interest Accrued (237)

32

Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242)

33

Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current (243)

34

Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244)

35

Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)

36

TOTAL CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES (Enter total of lines 28 thru 35)

37

Deferred Credits:

38

Customer Advances for Construction (252)

39

Other Deferred Credits (253)

40

Other Regulatory Liabilities (254)

41

Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255)

42

Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256}

43

Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257)

44

Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283)

45

TOTAL DEFERRED CREDITS (Enter total of lines 38 thru 44)

46

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS (Enter total of lines 11, 17, 26, 36 and 45)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED 12-03) Page 5
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
.. (Mo, Da, Yr)
(1) O An Original Dec 31,
(2) O A Resubmission

PART IV: STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

1. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenues and proceedings where a contingency exists that refunds of a
expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in the Other Utility material amount may need fo be’'made to the utility's
column (h, | orj, k)'in a similar manner to a utility department. customers or which may result in a material refund to the
Spread the amount(s) over lines 01 to 22 as appropriate. Include utility with respect to power or gas purchases. State for
these amounts in column (b) and (CX totals. each year affected the gross revenues or costs to which the

2. Report amounts for account 414, Other Utilit‘\{ Operating contingency relates and the tax effects; include an
Income, In the same manner as accounts 412 and 413. explanation for the major factors which affect the rights of

3. Provide an explanation in Part VII. Notes to Financial State- the utility to retain such revenues or to recover amounts
ments, of such unsettled rate paid with respect to power or gas purchases.
Account Total (d to k) Electric Utility
(a) Current Change Current Year Change From
Year From @) previous
(b) Previous Year
Year (e)
(c)

01 | UTILITY OPERATING INCOME

02 | Operating Revenues (400)

03 | Operating Expenses:

04 | Operating Expenses (401)

05 | Maintenance Expense (402)

06 | Depreciation Expense (403)

07 | Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1)
08 | Amortization Expense (Specify by account)

09
10 | Reguiatory Debits (407.3)

11 | (Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4)

12 | Taxes Other Than income Taxes (408.1)

13 | Federal Income Taxes (409.1)

14 | Other Income Taxes (409. 1)

15 | Provision For Deferred Income Taxes (410.1)

16 | Provision For Deferred Income Taxes - Credit (411.1)
17 | Investment Tax Credit Adjustments - Net (411.4)

18 | Gains From Disposition of Utility Plant (411.6)

19 | Losses From Disposition of Utility Plant (411.7)

20 | Gains From Disposition of Allowances (411.8)

21 | Losses From Disposition of Allowances (411.9)

22 | Accretion Expense (411.10)

23 | TOTAL UTILITY OPERATING EXPENSES
(Enter total of lines 04 thru 22)

24 | Net Utility Operating Income
(Enter total of line 02 less 23)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED 12-03) Page 6
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
n (Mo, Da, Yr)
(1) O An Original Dec 31,
(2) [J A Resubmission

PART IV: STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

4. Provide an explanation in Part Vil, Notes to Financial 6. Provide an explanation in Part VII, Notes to Financial
Statements, of significant amounts of any refunds made or Statements of only those changes in account methods made durin
received during the year resulting from settlement of any rate the year which had an effect on net income, including the basis o
proceeding affecting revenued received for costs incurred for allocations and apportionments from those used in the preceding
power or gas purchases and a summary of the adjustment made year. Also, give the approximate dollar effects of such changes.
to balance sheet, income, and expense accounts.

5. If any note appearing in the report to stockholders are
applicable to the statement of income, either include such note
in an attachment, or enter such data in Part VILI.

Gas Utility Other Utility Other utility

Change From Current Year Change From Current Change From Account
Previous Year (h) Previdus Year Yg)ar Previo(ulg Year

(9) (i)

Current Year
4]

(401) 04
(402) 05
(403) 06
403.1) | 07
08

09

(407.3) | 10
“407.4 | 11
(408.1) | 12
(409.1) | 13
(409.1) | 14
(410.1) | 15
(411.1) | 16
(411.4) | 17
(411.6) | 18
(411.7) | 19
(411.8) | 20
(411.9) | 21
(411.10) | 22
TOTAL | 23
NET 24

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED 12-03) Page 7
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Federal Register/Vol. 68, No. 76 / Mon@hs nApril 21, 2003 /Rules and Regulations 19655
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report

Dec 31,

PART IV: STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Account

(@)

Total

Current Year
(b)

Change From
Prewo(u§ Year
C

24 | Net Utility Operating Income (Carrier Forward from line 24, page 6)
25| OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

26 | Other Income:

27| Nonutility Operating income (415-418)

28| Interest and Dividend Income (419)

29} Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1)

30| Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421)

31 Gain on Disposition of Property (415-418)

32| TOTAL OTHER INCOME (Enter Total of lines 27 thru 31)

33| Other Income Deductions:

34| Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2)

35| Miscellaneous Amortization (425)

36| Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1 - 426.5)

37 | TOTAL OTHER INCOME DEDUCTIONS (Enter total of lines 34 thru 36)

38 | Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions:

39| Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions:

40| Federal Income Taxes (409.2)

41| Other Income Taxes (409.2)

421 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.2)

43} Provision for Deferred Income (411.2)

441 Investment Tax Credit Adjustments - Net (4711.5)

45| Investment Tax Credits (420)

46 | TOTAL TAXES APPLICABLE TO OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

(Enter total of lines 40 thru 45)

47

Net Other Income and Deductions (Enter total of line 32 less 37 and 46)

48

INTEREST CHARGES

49

interest on Long-term Debt (427)

50

Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428)

51

Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1)

52

Amortization of Premium on Debt - Credit (429)

53

Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt - Credit (429. 1)

54

Interest on Debt to Associated Companies (430)

55

Other Interest Expense (431)

56

Allowance For Borrowed Funds Used During Construction - Credit (432)

57

Net Interest Charge (Enter total of lines 49 thru 56)

58

Income Before Extraordinary ltems (Enter total of lines 24 and 47, less 57)

59

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

60

Extraordinary Income (434)

61

Extraordinary Deduction - Debit (435)

62

Net Extraordinary items (Enter total of line 60 less 61)

63

Income Taxes - (409.3)

64

Extraordinary ltems After Taxes (Enter total of line 62 less 63)

85

Net Income (Enter total of lines 58 and 64)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED 12-03) Page 8
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec31,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Title of Account Ref Page No. | Balance at Beginning of Year Balance at End of Year
No. (a) (o) (©) (d)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252
5 | Stock Liabitity for Conversion {203, 2086) 252
6 Premium on-Capital Stock (207) 252
7 | Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253
8 Installments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 (Less) Discount on Capitai Stock (213) 254
10 | (Less ) Capital Stock Expense {214) 254
" Retained Earnings (215, 215.1, 216) 118-119
12 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Eamings (216.1) 118-118
13 | {Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217) 250-251
14 | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122 (a) (b)
15 | TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Enter Total of lines 2 thru 14) -
16 LONG-TERM DEBT
17 -1 Bonds (221) 256-257
18 {Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256-257
19 | Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257
20 | Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257
21 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt {225) -
22 | (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) -
23 TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Enter Total of lines 17 thru 22) -
24 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
25 | Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent {227) -
26 | Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1) -
27 | Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2) -
28 Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) -
29 | Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228.4) -
30 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) -
31 Asset Retirement Obligations (230) -
32 | TOTAL Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Enter Total of lines 25 thru 31)
33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
34 Notes Payable (231) -
35 Accounts Payable (232) -
36 | Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233} -
37 | Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) -
38 Customer Deposits {235) -
39 Taxes Accrued {236) 262-263
40 Interest Accrued (237) -
41 Dividends Declared (238) -
42 Matured Long-Term Debt (239) -
43 | Matured Interest (240} -
44 Tax Collections Payable (241) -
45 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) -
46 | Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current {(243) -

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (ED 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

(2) O A Resubmission Dec 31,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS) (Continued)
Line Ref Balance at Balance at
No. Title of Account Page No. Beginning of Year End of Year
(@) (b) () (d)
a7 Derivative instrument Liabilities (244)
48 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedging (245)
49 TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabitities (Enter Total of lines 34 thru 48)
51 Customer Advances for Construction (252)
52 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 266-267
53 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256)
54 Other Deferred Credits (253) 269
55 Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278
56 Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257)
57 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283) 272-277
58 TOTAL Deterred Credits (Enter Total of lines 51 thru 57)
58
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72 TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Enter Total of lines 15, 23, 32, 49 and 58)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
2 [ A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of
(Mo, Da, Yr) Report
Dec 31,

-117-

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenue and
Expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utili
column (I, k, m, o) in a similar manner to a utility department.
Spread the amount(s) over lines 02thru 24 as appropriate. Include
these amounts in columns (c) and (d) totals. . .

. Report amounts in account 474, Other Utili Ogeratmg
Income, in the same manner as accounts 472 and 473 above..

3. Report data for lines 8, 10, and 11 for Natural Gas companies
using accounts 404. 1,,404.2, 404.3, 407. 1, and 407.2.

. 4. Usepage 122 for important notes regarding the statement of
income or any account thereof.

5. Give concise explanations concerning unsettled rate
proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a
material amount may need to’be made to the utility's customers or
which may result in a material refund to the utility with respect to
power or gas purchases. State for each year affected the gross
revenues or costs to which the contingency relates and the tax
effects together with an explanation of the’ major factors which
affect the rights_of the utility to retain such revenues or recover
amounts paid with respect to power and gas purchases.

6. Give concise explanations concerning significant amounts of
any refunds made or received during the year

TOTAL
Line Ref Current Year Previous Year
No. Titie of Account Page No
(@) () (d)
(b)

1 | UTILITY OPERATING INCOME

2 | Operating Revenues (400) 300-301

3 | Operating Expenses

4 Operation Expenses (401) 320-325

5 Maintenance Expenses (402) 320-325

6 Depreciation Expense (403) 336-338

7 Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-338

8 Amortization & Depletion of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-338

9 Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustment (406) 336-338
10 Amortization of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant and

Regulatory Study Costs (407)
11 Amortization of Conversion Expenses (407)
12 Regulatory Debits (407-3)
13 " {Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4)
14 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.1) 262-263
15 Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) 262-263
16 - Other (409.1) 262-263
17 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234, 272-277
18 (Less) Provision for Deferred income Taxes-Cr. (411.1) 234, 272-277
19 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment - Net (411.4) 266
20 {Less) Gains from Disp. of Utility Plant (411.6)
21 Losses from Disp. of Utility Plant (411.7)
22 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8)
23 Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)
24 Accretion Expense (411.10)
25 TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Enter Total of lines 4 thru 24)
26 Net Utility Operating Income (Enter Total of line 2 less 25) (Carry forward to
page 117, line 27)
FERC FORM NO. 1-F (REVISED. 12-03) Page 114
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31,
(2) O A Resubmission
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
TOTAL )
Line Ref Current Year Previous Year
No. Title of Account Page No.
(a) (b) (c) (@)

27 Net Utility Operating income (Carried forward from page 114) -

28 Other Income and Deductions

29 Other Income

30 Nonutiity Operating Income

31 Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415)

32 (Less) Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing & Contract

Work (416)

33 Revenues From Nonutlity Operations (417)

34 (Less) Expenses of Nonutility operations (417.1,)

35 Nonoperating Rental Income (418)

36 Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119

38 Interest and Dividend Income (419)

33 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (411.1)

40 Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1)

41 TOTAL Other income (Enter Total of lines 31 thru 40)

42 Other Income Deductions

43 Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2)

44 Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 340

45 Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1 thru 426.5) 340

46 TOTAL Other Income Deductions(Total of lines 43 thru 45)

47 Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions _

48 Taxes Other Than income Taxes (408.2) 262-263 i

49 Income Taxes-Federal (409.2) 262-263 :

50 Income Taxes-Other (409.2) 262-263

51 Provision for Deferred Inc. Taxes (410.2) 234,272-277

52 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes--Cr. (411.2) 234,272-277

53 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment - Net (411.5)

54 (Less) Investment Tax Credits (420)

55 th‘gA‘il)_ Taxes on Other Income and Deductions (Enter Total of 48

ru

56 Net Other income and Deductions (Enter Total of lines 41, 46, 55)

58 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427)

59 Amort. of Debt Disc. and Expense {428)

60 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1)

61 (Less) Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit (429)

62 (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit (429.1)

63 Interest on Debt to Assoc. Companies {430) 340

64 Other interest Expense (431) 340

65 {Less) Aliowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction--Cr. (432)

66 Net Interest Charges (Enter Total of lines 58 thru 65)

67 Income Before Extraordinary items (Enter Total of lines 27, 56 and 66)

69 Extraordinary income (434)

70 (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435)

71 Net Extraordinary Items (Enter Total of line 69 less line 70)

72 income Taxes-Federal and Other (409.3) 262-263

73 Extraordinary Items After Taxes (Enter Total of line 71 less line 72)

74 Net Income (Enter Total of lines 67 and 73)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (ED. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) O A Resubmission Dec31,
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106)
1. Report below the original cost of electric plant in service according to to indicate the negative effect of such accounts.
the prescribed accounts. 5. Classify Account 106 according to prescribed accounts, on an
2. In addition to Account 101, Electric Plant in Service (Classified), this estimated basis if necessary, and inciude the entries in column (c). Also
page and the next include Account 102, Electric Plant Purchased or Sold; to be included in column {(c) are entries for reversais of tentative
Account 103, Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified; and Account 106, distributions of prior year reported in column (b). Likewise, if the
Completed Construction Not Ciassified-Electric. respondent has a significant amount of plant retirements which have not
3. Include in column (c) or (d), as appropriate, corrections of additions been classified to primary accounts at the end of the year, include in
and retirements for the current or preceding year. column (d) a tentative distribution of such retirements, on an estimated
4, For revisions to the amount of initial asset retirement costs capitalized, basis, with appropriate contra entry to the account for accumulated
included by primary plant account, increases in column (c) additions and depreciation provision. Include also in column (d) reversals of tentative
reductions in column (e) adjustments 5. Enclose in parentheses credit distributions of prior year of unclassified retirements.
adjustments of plant accounts
Line Balance at
No Account Beginning of year Addition
@ 5 ©
1 1. INTANGIBLE PLANT
2 (301) Organization
3 (302) Franchises and Consents
4 (303) Miscellaneous Intangible Plant
5 TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter Total of Lines 2, 3, and 4)
6 2. PRODUCTION PLANT
7 A. Steam Production Plant
8 (310) Land and Land Rights
9 (311) Structures and Improvements
10 (312) Boiler Plant Equipment
1 (313) Engines and Engine-Driven Generators
12 (314) Tubogenerator Units
13 (315) Accessory Electric Equipment
14 (3186} Misc. Power Plant Equipment
15 (317) Asset Retirement Costs for Steam Production
16 TOTAL Steam Production Plant {Enter Total of Lines 8 thru 13}
17 B. Nuclear Production Plant
18 (320) Land and Land Rights
19 (321) Structures and Improvements
20 (322) Reactor Plant Equipment
21 (323) Turbo generator Units
22 (324) Accessory Electric Equipment
23 {325) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
24 (326) Asset Retirement Costs for Nuclear Production
25 TOTAL Nuclear Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 18 thru 24}
26 C. Hydraulic Production Plant
27 (330} Land and Land Rights
28 (331) Structures and Improvements
29 (332) Reservoirs, Dams, and Waterways
30 (333) Water Wheels, Turbines, and Generators
31 (334) Accessory Electric Equipment
32 (335) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
33 (336) Roads, Railroad, and Bridges
34 {337) Asset Retirement Costs for Hydraulic Production
35 TOTAL Hydraulic Production Plant {Enter Total of Lines 27 thru 34)
36 D. Other Production Plant
37 (340) Land and Land Rights
38 (341) Structures and Improvements
39 (342) Fuel Holders, Products, and Accessories
40 {343) Prime Movers
41 (344) Generators
42 (345) Accessory Electric Equipment

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (ED. 12-03)

Page 204



Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 169 of 1053

Federal Register/Vol. 68, No. 76 / Mon@hs nApril 21, 2003 /Rules and Regulations

Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6

(SUBSTITUTE PAGE FOR PART XX)

Name of Respondent This Report is:

Date of Report Year of Report

(1) O An originat (Mo, Da, Yr} Dec 31,
2) [J A Resubmission

ELETTRHIC PLANT IN SERVICE {Accounts 10T, T0Z, 703, and T0o) (Lontinued)

Show in a footnote the account distributions of these tentative
classifications in columns (¢} and (d), including the reversals of the prior
years tentative account distributions of these amounts. Careful
observance of the above instructions and the texts of Accounts 101
and 106 will avoid serious omissions of the reported amount of
respondent’s plant actually in service at end of year.

7. Show in column (f) reclassifications or transfers within utility
plant accounts. Include also in column (f) the additions or
reductions of primary account classifications arising from
distribution of amounts nitially recorded in Account 102, include in
column (e) the amounts with respect to accumulated provision for
depreciation, acquisition adjustments, etc., and show in column

%f) only the offset to the debits or credits distributed in column (f)
o primary account classifications.

. 8. For Account 398, state the nature and use of plant included
in this account and if substantial in amount, footnote and provide
a supplementary statement showing subaccount classification of
such plant contorming to the requirement of these pages.

9. For each amount comprising the reported balance and
changes in Account 102, state the property purchased or sold
name of vendor or purchase, and date of transaction. If propose
ournal entries have been filed with the Commission as required

y the Uniform System of Accounts, give aiso date of such filing.

19661

-120

Balance at Line
Retirements Adjustments Transfers End of Year No.
(d) (e) (f) (g)

1

(301) 2
(302) 3
(303) 4
5

6

7

(310) 8
311) 9
(312) 10
(313) 11
{314) 12
(315) 13
(316) 14
(317) 15
16

17

(320) 18
(321) 19
(322) 20
(323) 21
(324) 22
(325) 23
(326) 24
25

26

(330) 27
(331) 28
(332) 29
(333) 30
(334) 31
{335) 32
(3386) 33
(337) 34
35

36

(340) 37
(341) 38
(842) 39
(343) 40
(344) 41
(345) 42

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (ED. 12-03) Page 205
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec31,
(2) O A Resubmission
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE (Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106}
Line Account Balance at Beginning of year Addition
No @ (b) ©
43 (346) Misc. Power Plant Equipment
44 (347) Asset Retirement Costs for Other Production
45 TOTAL Other Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 37 thru 44)
46 TOTAL Production Plant (Enter Total of Lines 16, 25, 35, and 45)
48 (350} Land and Land Rights
49 (352) Structures and improvements
50 (353) Station Equipment
51 (354) Towers and Fixtures
52 (355) Poles and Fixtures
53 (356) Overhead Conductors and Devices
54 (857) Underground conduit
55 (358) Underground Conductors and Devices
56 (359) Roads and Trails
57 {359.1) Asset Retirement Costs for Transmission Plant
58 TOTAL Transmission Plant {Enter Total of Liens 48 thru 57)
60 {360) Land and Land Rights
61 (361) Structures and Improvements
62 (362) Station Equipment
63 (363) Storage Battery Equipment
64 (364) Poles, Towers, and Fixtures
65 (365) Overhead Conductors and Devices
66 (366) Underground Conduit
67 (367) Underground Conductors and Devices
68 (368) Line Transformers
69 (369) Services
70 (370) Meters
71 (371) Installations on Customer Premises
72 (372) Leased Property on Customer Premises
73 (373) Street Lighting and Signal Systems
74 (874) Asset Retirement Costs for Distribution Plant
75 Total Distribution Plant {Enter Total of lines 80 thru 75)
76 5. GENERAL PLANT
77 (389) Land and Land Rights
78 (390) Structures and Improvements
79 (391} Office Furniture and Equipment
80 (392} Transportation Equipment
81 (393) Stores Equipment
82 (394) Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment
83 (395) Laboratory, Equipment
84 (396)Power Operated Equipment
85 (397) Communication Equipment
86 (398) Miscellaneous Equipment
87 SUBTOTAL (Enter Total of Lines 77 thru 86)
88 (399) Other Tangible Property
89 (399.1) Asset Retirement Costs for General Plant
90 TOTAL General Plant (Enter Total of Lines 87, 88, and 89)
91 TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106} (Lines 5, 16, 25, 35, 45, 58, 75, and 90)
92 (102) Electric Plant Purchased (See Instr. 8)
93 ({Less) {102} Electric Plant Sold (See Instr. 8)
94 (103) Experimental Piant Unclassified
95 TOTAL Electric Plant in Service (Enter Total of Lines 91 thru 94)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of
(1) O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Report
(2) O A Resubmission Dec3t,
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE {Accounts 101, 102, 103, and 106) (Continued)
Balance at Line
Retirements Adjustments Transfers End of Year No.
(@) © 0] ©

(346) 43
(347) 44

45

46

47
(650) 48
(352) 49
(353) 50
(354) 51
(355) 52
(356) 53
(357) 54
(358) 55
(359) 56
(359.1) 57

58
e e A %
(360) 60
(361) 61
(362) 62
(363) 63
(364) 64
(365) 65
(366) 66
(367) 67
(368) 68
(369) 69
(370) 70
(371) 71
(372) 72
(373) 73
(374) 74
75
— 7e
(389) 77
(390) 78
(391) 79
(392) 60
(393) 81
(394) 82
(395) 83
(396) 84
(397) 85
(398) 86
87
(399) 88
(399.1) 89
90
91
I e |
93
(103) 94
1 95
FERC FORM NO. T-F (ED. 7203} Page 207 Next page is 219
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-123.

Name of Respondent

This Report is:
(1) O An Original
(2) O A Resubmission

ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF ELECTRIC UTILITY

Date of Report Year of
(Mo, Da, Yr) Report

Dec 31,
LANT (Account 108)

1._ Explain in a footnote any important adjustments durin? year.
2. Explain in a footnote any difference between the amount for book cost
of plant retired, Line 11, column (c), and that reported for electric plant in

service, pages 204-207, column 9d), excluding retirements of
nondepreciable proper‘?’. . )
3. The provisions of Account 108 in the Uniform System of accounts

require that retirements of depreciable plant be recorded when such piant
is removed from service.

If the respondent has a significant amount of plant retired at year end
which has not been recorded and/or classified to the various reserve
functional clagsifications, make preliminary closing entries to tentatively
functionalize the book cost of the plant retiréd. In addition, include all costs
included in retirement work in progress at year end in the appropriate
functional classifications,

4. Show separately interest credits under a sinking fund or similar
method of depreciation accounting.

Section A. Balances and Changes During Year

Line ltem Total Electric Plant in Electric Plant Held Electric Plant
No (@) (c+d+e) Service for Future Use leased to Others
(b) ©) (d) (e)
1 Balance Beginning of Year
2 Depreciation Provisions for Year,
Charged to
3 (403) Depreciation Expense
4 (403.1) Depreciation Expense for Asset
Retirement Costs
5 (413) Expenses of Electric Plant
Leased to Others
6 Transportation Expenses - Clearing
7 Other Clearing Accounts
8 Other Accounts (Specify):
9
10 Total Depreciation Provision For Year
(Enter Total of Lines 3 thru 9)
1 Net Charges for Plant Retired:
12 Book Cost of Plant Retired
13 Cost of Removal
14 . Salvage (Credit)
15 TOTAL Net Charges For Plant Retired
(Enter Total of Lines 12 thru 14)
16 Other Debit or Credit items (Describe):
17
18 Book Cost of Asset Retirement Costs
19 Balance End of Year {Enter Total of lines
1,10, 15, 16, and 18)
Section B. Balances at End of Year According to Functionai Classifications
20 Steam Production
21 Nuclear Production
22 Hydraulic Production-Conventional
23 Hydraulic Production-Pumped Storage
24 Other Production
25 Transmission
26 Distribution
27 General
28 TOTAL (Enter Total of Lines 20 thru 27)

FERC FORM NO. 1-F (ED. 12-02)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Criginal (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31,
O A Resubmission
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Natural Gas Company)
Enter in column (d) the terms "none,” “not applicable," or "NA" as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for certain pages Omit
pages where the responses are "none,"” "not applicabie,” or "NA
Line Title of Schedule Reference Date Revised Remarks
No Page No
(b) ()
GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 General Information 101
2 Control Over Respondent 102
3 Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103
4 Security Holders and Voting Powers 107
5 Important Changes During the Year 108
6 Comparative Balance Sheet 110-113
7 Statement of income for the Year 114-116
8 Statement of Accumulated Comprehensive Income and Hedging Activities 117(a)(b)
9 Statement of Retained Eamings for the Year 118-119
10 | Statements of Cash Flows 120-121
11 Notes to Financial Statements 122
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Assets and Other Debits)
12 Summary of Utility Plant and Accumulated Provisions for Depreciation, 200-201
Amortization, and Depletion
13 Gas Plant in Service 204-209
14 Gas Property and Capacity Leased from Others 212
15 Gas Property and Capacity Leased to Others 213
16 Gas Plant Held for Future Use 214
17 Construction Work in Progress-Gas 216
18 General Description of Construction Overhead Procedure 218
19 Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Gas Utility Plant 219
20 Gas Stored 220
21 Investments 222-223
22 Investments in Subsidiary Companies 224-225
23 Prepayment 230
24 Extraordinary Property Losses 230
25 Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230
26 Other Regulatory Assets 232
27 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 233
28 Accumulated Deferred income Taxes 234-235
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Liabilities and Other Credits}
29 Capital Stock 230-251
30 Capital Stock Subscribed, Capital Stock Liability for Conversion, Premium on 252
Capital Stock, and [nstaliments Received on Capital Stock
31 Other Paid-in Capital 253
32 Discount on Capital Stock 254
33 Capital Stock Expense 254
34 Securities issued or Assumed and Securities Refunded or Retired During the 255
Year
35 Long-Term Debt 256-257
36 Unamortized Debt Expense, Premium, and-Discount on Long-Term Debt 258-259
37 Unamortized Loss and Gain on Reacquired Debt 260
38 Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxable Income for Federal 261
Income Taxes

FERC FORM NO. 2 (12-02)

Page 2



Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 174 of 1053

19666 Federal Register/Vol. 68, No. 76 / Mon@hs nApril 21, 2003 /Rules and Regulations
Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6 -125-
Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
00 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
0 A Resubmission Dec 31,
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Natural Gas Company)
Enter in column (d) the terms "none," "not applicable," or “NA" as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for certain pages Omit
pages where the responses are “none,” "not applicable,” or "NA
Line Title of Schedule Reference Date Revised Remarks
No Page No d
(b) (c)
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Liabilities and Other Credits) (Continued)
39 Taxes Accrued, Prepaid, and Charged During Year 262-263
40 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 268
41 Other Deferred Credits 269
42 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property 274-275
43 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Other 276-277
44 Other Regulatory Liabilities 278
INCOME ACCOUNT SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
45 Gas Operating Revenues 300-301
46 Revenues from Transportation of Gas of Others Through Gathering Facilities 302-303
47 Revenues from Transportation of Gas of Others Through Transmission
Facilities 304-305
48 Revenues from Storage Gas of Others
49 Other Gas Revenues 306-307
50 Gas Operation and Maintenance Expenses 308
51 Exchange and Imbalance Transactions 317-325
52 Gas Used in Utility Operations 328
53 Transmission and Compression of Gas by Others 331
54 Other Gas Supply Expenses 332
55 Miscellaneous General Expenses-Gas 334
56 Depreciation, Depletion, and Amortization of Gas Plant 335
57 Particulars Concerning Certain income Deduction and Interest 336-338
Charges Accounts 340
COMMON SECTION
58 Regulatory Commission Expenses
59 Distribution of Salaries and Wages 350-351
60 Charges for Outside Professional and Other Consuiltative Services 354-355
357
GAS PLANT STATISTICAL DATA
61 Compressor Stations 508-509
62 Gas Storage Projects 512-513
63 Transmission Lines 514
64 Transmission System Peak Deliveries 518
65 Auxiliary Peaking Facilities 519
66 Gas Account-Natural Gas 520
67 System Map 522
68 Footnote Reference 551
69 Footnote Text 552
70 Stockholders’ Reports (check appropriate box)
] Four copies will be submitted
2 No annual report to stockhoiders is prepared
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
0 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
O A Resubmission Dec31,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Title of Account Reference Balance at End Balance at End
No. Page Number of Current Year of Previous Year
(in dollars) (in dollars)
(a) () () (d)
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251
4 Capita! Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252
5 Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206) 252
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252
7 Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253
8 Instaliments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213} 254
10 (Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254
11 Retained Eamings (215, 215 1, 216) 118-119
12 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings {(216.1) 118-119
13 (Less) Reacquired Capital (217) 250-251
14 Accumulated Other Comprehensive income (219) 118 (a) (b)
15 TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Total of line 2 thru 14)
16 LONG TERM DEBT
17 Bonds (221) ) 256-257
18 (Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256-257
19 Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257
20 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257
21 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) 258-259
22 {Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Dr (226) 258-259
23 (Less) Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
24 TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Total of lines 17 thru 23)
25 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
26 Obligations Under Capital Leases -- Noncurrent (227)
27 Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228 1)
28 Accumulated provision for Injuries and Damages (228 2)
29 Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228 3)
30 Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provision (228 4)
31 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229)
32 Asset Retirement Obligations (230)
33 TOTAL Other Noncurrent Liabilities (total of lines 26 thru 32)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
O An Original

0 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of
Report

Dec 31,

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS) (Continued)

Balance at End
of Current Year
(in dollars)

(e

Line Title of Account Reference

No. Page Number
(@) (b)

34 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

35 Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Balance at End
of Previous Year
(in dollars)

{d)

36 Notes Payabie (231)

37 Accounts Payable (232)

38 Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233)

39 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234)

40 Customer Deposits (235)

41 Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263
42 Interest Accrued (237)

43 Dividends Declared (238)

44 Matured Long-Term Debt (239)

45 Matured Interest (240)

46 Tax Collections Payable (241)

47 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 268
48 Obligations Under Capital Leases -- Current (243)

49 Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244)

50 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)

51 TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabilities (Total of lines 35 thru 50)

52 DEFERRED CREDITS

53 Customer Advances for Construction (252)

54 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255)

55 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256)

56 Other Deferred Credits (253) 269
57 Other Regulatory Liabilities {(254) 278
58 Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257) 260

59 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283)

60 TOTAL Deferred Credits (Total of lines 53 thru 59)

61

TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Total of lines 15, 24, 33, 51, and 60)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)

Dec 31,

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1 Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenue and
Expenses from Ulility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility column
(i,j) in a simitar manner to a utility department Spread the amount(s) over
lines 2 thru 24 as appropriate Include these amounts in columns (¢) and

2 Report amounts in discount 414, Other Utility Operating Income,
in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above

3 Report data for lines 7, 9, and 10 for Natural Gas companies using
accounts 404.1, 404.2, 404.3, 407 1, and 407. 2

(d) totals
Line Title of Account -Reference Balance at End Balance at End
@ Ve | ARG | TR
(b) (©) (d)
1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2 Gas Operating Revenues {400} 300-301
3 Operating Expenses
4 Operation Expenses {401) 317-325
5 Maintenance Expenses (402) 317-325
6 Depreciation Expenses (403) 336-338
7 Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-338
8 Amortization and Depletion of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-338
g Amortization of Utility Plant Acu Adjustment (406) 336-338
10 Amortization of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study
Costs (407.1)

11 Amortization of Conversion Expenses (407.2)

12 Regulatory Debits (407.3)

13 (Less) Regulatory Credits (407 .4)

14 Taxes Other than income Taxes (408.1) 262-263
15 Income Taxes -- Federal (409.1) 262-263
16 Income Taxes -- Other (408.1) 262-263
17 | Provision of Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234-235
18 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes -- Credit (411.1) 234-235
18 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment -- Net (411.4)

20 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.6)

21 Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.7)

22 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8)

23 Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)

24 Accretion Expense (411.10)

25 TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Total of lines 4 thru 24)

26 Net Utility Operating Income (Total of lines 2 less 24)

(Carry forward to page 116, line 27)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report ‘Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
O A Resubmission Dec31,
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Line Title of Account Reference | Balance at End Balance at End
@ Nober | W | e
(b) ©) (@)
27 Net Utility Operating Income (Carrier forward from page 114)
28 OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
29 Other Income
30 Nonutility Operating Income
31 Revenues form Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work {415)
32 (Less) Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing & Contract Work (416)
33 Revenues from Nonutility Operations {417)
34 (Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations {417.1)
35 Nonoperating Rental income
36 Equity in Eamings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119
37 Interest and Dividend income (419)
38 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1)
39 Miscellaneous Nonocperating Income {421)
40 Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1)
41 TOTAL Otherincome (Total of lines 31 thru 40)
42 Other Income Deductions
43 Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2}
44 Miscellaneous Amortization (425)
45 Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1 thru 426.5) 340
46 TOTAL Other Income Deductions (Total of lines 43 thru 45) 340
47 Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions
48 Taxes Other than Income Taxes (406.2) 262-263
49 - Income Taxes -- Federal (409.2) 262-263
50 Income Taxes -- Other {409.2) 262-263
51 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.2) 234-235
52 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes- Credit (411.2) 234-235
53 Investment Tax Credit Adjustments--Net (411.5}
54 (Less) Investment Tax Credits (420)
55 TOTAL Taxes on Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 48-54)
56 Net Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 41, 46, and 55)
57 INTEREST CHARGES
58 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427)
59 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense (428) 258-259
60 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1)
61 (Less) Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit (429) 258-259
62 (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt- Credit (429.1)
63 Interest on Debt to Associated Companies (430) 340
64 Other Interest Expense (431) 340
65 {Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Credit (432)
66 Net Interest Charges (Total of lines 58 thru 65)
67 Income Before Extraordinary items (Total of lines 27, 56 and 66)
68 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS —
69 Extraordinary Income (434)
70 (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435)
71 Net Extraordinary items (Total of line 69 less 70)
72 Income Taxes--Federal and Other (409.3) 262-263
73 Extraordinary Items after Taxes (Total of line 71 less line 72)
74 Net Income (Total of lines 67 and 73)
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Name of Respondent This Report js: Date of Report Year of Report
g //:\\nRgggll)r;rallilssion (Mo, Da, Y1) Dec31,
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE {ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106)
ity T o e il cost of gas plant 5. Classify Account 106 according to prescribed
In addition fo Account 101, Gas Plant in Service et AL eenstf,'irgsa}g% gl%?Tl‘snl(C?ecessary,
E@ggggﬁ g,ztrgaga lgr%nngigseédd 'gflggﬁj Also to be included in column (c) are entries for
Account 103, Experimental Gas Plant ' ﬁgggﬁg&ﬂggﬁﬁﬁg"&fEgg’%’ggsiﬂfhgr for year
ggﬁgfjg{%% ﬁg‘tj égzg%?;‘;_%%sComplete respondent has a significant amount of plant
* 3 Include in column © and (d), as appropriate E’er}:_lr"earpyegé&mgl;}shaatvt%g g%gec?fnﬂ%a)slgglre?ngude
C&T%Aiogfp?gggfﬂgwseg?d retirements for the in column (d) a tentative distribution of such
4. include subsequent measurement revisions retirement, on an estimated basis, with
to the asset retirement costs capitalized in ggg{fr’rﬁ’ﬂ'gtgé’%'gr?e%?;tl 0}10 tp&%?gﬁ‘fﬂéﬁé R
column (e) adjustments ] also in column (g) reversals of tentative
5. Enclose in parenthesis credit ad{_ustments of distributions of prior year’s unclassified retirement
plant accounts to indicate the negative effect of Attach supplemental statement showing the
such accounts account distributions of these tentative
classifications in column (c) and (d),
Line Account Balance at Additions
No (a) Beginning of ©
Year
(b)
1 INTANGIBLE PLANT
2 301 Organization
3 302 Franchises and Consents
4 303 Miscellaneous Intangible Plant
5 TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter Total of lines 2 thru 4)
6 PRODUCTION PLANT
7 Natural Gas Production and Gathering Plant
8 325.1 Producing Lands
9 325.2 Producing Leaseholds
10 325.3 Gas Rights
1 3254 Rights-of-Way
12 325.5 Other Land and Land Rights
13 326 Gas Well Structures
14 327 Field Compressor Station Structures
15 328 Field Measuring and Reguiating Station Equipment
16 329 Other Structures
17 330 Producing Gas Wells-Well Construction
18 331 Producing Gas Weils-Well Equipment
19 332 Field Lines
20 333 Field Compressor Station Equipment
21 334 Field Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment
22 335 Drilling and Cleaning Equipment
23 336 Purification Equipment
24 337 Other Equipment
25 338 Unsuccessful Exploration and Development Costs
26 339 Asset Retirement Costs for Natural Gas Production and Gathering Piant
27 TOTAL Production and Gathering Plant (Enter Total of lines 8 thru 26)
28 PRODUCTS EXTRACTION PLANT
29 340 Land and Land Rights
30 341 Structures and Improvements
31 342 Extraction and Refining Equipment
32 343 Pipe Lines
33 344 Extracted Products Storage Equipment
34 345 Compressor Equipment
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
0O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec31,
O A Resubmission
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106} {Continued)
Line Account Balance at Additions
No (a) Beginning of ©
Year
(b)

35 346 Gas Measuring and Regulating Equipment

36 347  Other Equipment

37 348 Asset Retirement Costs for Products Extraction Plant

38 TOTAL Products Extraction Plant (Enter Total of lines 29 thru 37)

39 TOTAL Natural Gas Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 27 and 38)

40 Manufactured Gas Production Plant (Submit Supplementary Statement)

41 TOTAL Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 39 and 40)

42 NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND PROCESSING PLANT

43 Underground Storage Plant

44 350.1 Land

45 350.2 Rights-of-Way

46 351 Structures and improvements

47 352 Wells

48 352.1 Storage Leaseholds and Rights

48 352.2 Reservoirs

50 352.3 Non-recoverable Natural Gas

51 353 Lines

52 354  Compressor Station Equipment

53 355  Measuring and Regulating Equipment

54 356  Purification Equipment

55 357  Other Equipment

56 - 358 Asset Retirement Costs for Underground Storage Plant

57 TOTAL Underground Storage Plant (Enter Total of lines 43 thru 56)

58 359  Other Storage Plant

59 360 Land and Land Rights

60 361 Structures and Improvements

61 362 Gas Holders

62 363  Purification Equipment

63 363.1 Liquefaction Equipment

64 363.2 Vaporizing Equipment

65 363.2 Compressor Equipment

66 363.4 Measuring and Regulating Equipment

67 363.5 Other Equipment

68 363.6 Asset Retirement Costs for Other Storage Plant

69 TOTAL Other Storage Plant (Enter Total of lines 58 thru 68)

70 Base Load Liquefied Natural Gas Terminaling and Processing Plant

71 364.1 Land and Land Rights

72 364.2 Structures and Improvements

73 364.3 LNG Processing Terminal Equipment

74 364.4 LNG Transportation Equipment

75 364.5 Measuring and Regulating Equipment

76 364.6 Compressor Station Equipment

77 364.7 Communications Equipment

78 364.8 Other Equipment

79 364.9 Asset Retirement Costs for Base Load Liguefied Natural Gas Terminaling

and Processing Plant
80 TOTAL Base Load Liquefied Natural Gas Terminaling and Processing Plant
(Lines 71 thru 79)

81 TOTAL Natural Gas Storage and Processing Plant (Total of lines 57, 69 and 80)

82 TRANSMISSION PLANT

83 365,1 Land and Land Rights

84 365.2 Right-of-Way

85 366 Structures and Improvements
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec31,__
0 A Resubmission
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106) (Continued)
Line Account Balance at Additions
No (@) Beginning of Year ©
(b)
86 367 Mains
87 368 Compressor Station Equipment
88 369 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment
89 370 Communication Equipment
90 371 Other Equipment
91 372  Asset Retirement Costs for Transmission Plant
92 TOTAL Transmission Piant (Enter Totals of lines 83 thru 91)
94 374 Land and Land Rights
95 375 Structures and Improvements
96 376 Mains
97 377 Compressor Station Equipment
98 378 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment-General
99 379 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment-City Gate
100 380 Services
101 381 Meters
102 382 Meter Installations
103 383 House Regulators
104 384 House Regulator Installations
105 385 Industrial Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment
106 386 Other Property on Customers’ Premises
107 387 Other Equipment
108 388 Asset Retirement Costs for Distribution Plant
109 TOTAL Distribution Plant {Enter Total of lines 94 thru 108)
1110 GENERAL PLANT
111 389 Land and Land Rights
112 390 Structures and Improvements
113 391 Office Furniture and Equipment
114 392 transportation Equipment
115 393 Stores Equipment
116 394 Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment
117 395 Laboratory Equipment
118 396 Power Operated Equipment
119 397 Communication Equipment
120 398 Miscellaneous Equipment
121 Subtotal (Enter Total of lines 111 thru 120)
122 399 Other Tangible Property
123 399.1 Asset Retirement Costs for General Plant
124 TOTAL General Plant (Enter Total of lines 121, 122 and 123)
125 TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106)
126 Gas Plant Purchased (See instruction 8)
127 (Less) Gas Plant Sold {See Instruction 8)
128 Experimental Gas Plant Unclassified
129 TOTAL Gas Plant in Service (Enter Total of lines 125 thru 128)

FERC FORM NO. 2 (12-03)
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Name of Respondent

This Report is:
0 An Original
0 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report
Dec 31,

ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF GAS UTILITY PLANT (ACCOUNT 108)

3 The provisions of Account 108 in the Uniform System of

such plant is removed from service [f the respondent has a

1 Explain in a footnote any important adjustments during year
2 Explain in a footnote any difference between the amount for book cost of
plant retired, line 11, column (c), and that reported for gas piant in service,
page 204-209, column (d), excluding retirements of nondepreciable property

Accounts require that retirements of depreciable plant be recorded when

significant amount of piant retired at year end which had not been
recorded and/or classified to the various reserve functional
classifications, make preliminary closing entries to tentatively
functionalize the book cost of the plant retired in addition, include all
costs included in retirement work in progress at year end in the
appropriate functional classifications

4 Show separately interest credits under a sinking fund or similar
method of depreciation accounting

5 Atlines 8 and 15, add rows as necessary to report all data
Additional rows should be numbered in sequence, e g, 8. 01, 8.02, etc.

Line tem Total Gas Plant in Gas Plant Gas Plant Leased
No c+d+e) Service Heid for to Others
(a) (b) c) Future Use (e)
(d)
Section A. BALANCES AND CHANGES DURING YEAR
1 Balance Beginning of Year
2 Depreciation Provisions for Year, Charged to
3 (403) Depreciation Expense
4 (403.1& Depreciation Expense for Asset
etirement Costs

5 (413) Expense of Gas Plant Leased to Others
6 Transportation Expenses - Clearing
7 Other Clearing Accounts
8 Other Clearing (Specify):
8.01
9 TOTAL Depreciation Provision For Year (Total of

Lines 3 thru 8)
10 Net Charges for Plant Retired:
1 Book Cost of Plant Retired
12 Cost of Removal
13 Salvage (Credit)
14 TOTAL Net Char%es for Plant Retirements (Total

of Lines 11 thru13)
15 Other Debit or Credit Items (Describe):
15.01
16 Book Cost of Asset Retirement Costs
17 Balance End of Year (Total of lines 1, 9, 14, 15,

and16)

Section B. BALANCES AT END OF YEAR ACCORDING TO FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS
18 Productions-Manufactured Gas
19 Production and Gathering -Natural Gas
20 Products Extraction-Natural Gas
21 Underground Gas Storage
22 Other Storage Plant
23 Base Load LNG Terminating and Processing
Plant

24 Transmission
25 Distribution
26 General
27 TOTAL (Total of lines 18 thru 26)

FERC FORM NO. 2 (12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
0O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31
O A Resubmission ’
DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION, AND AMORTIZATION OF GAS PLANT (ACCOUNTS 403, 403.1,
404 1, 404 2, 404 3, 405)(Except Amorﬁzation of Acquisition Adjustments)
1, Report.in Section A éhe amounts of eport | ec |on , column éb\k/ all degrecnable
depreciation ex ense letion or a omz ant alances 1
ap?o *za ion tor the acci1 un}s in lcated a?d e an a com osite tota f more
classitie accordmg 1o the plant functiona |ra Ie r %coug Lh account or
groups shown unctional c ss o sot er than 1 seg%
prlnte in co nd l% te in a foot the
manner in w umn (b) balances are
Section A. Summary of Depreciation, Depletion, and Amortlzahon Charges
Line Functional Classification Depreciation Depremah\gn Amortlzatxon Amortization
ense Tor
No Expense xe-\sset Depleuon of Underground
(a) (Account Retirement Production %_
403) osts Natural Gas Land and and
(5 (Account Land and Land Rights
403.1) Rights (Account 404.2)
(c) (Account 404.1) (e)
(d)
1 Intangible plant
2 Production plant, manufactured gas
3 Production and gathering plant, natural gas
4 Products extraction plant
5 Underground gas storage plant
6 Other storage plant
7 Base load LNG terminaling and processing
plant
8 Transmission plant
9 Distribution plant
10 General plant
11 Common plant-gas
12 TOTAL
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-135-

Name of Respondent

This Report is:
[J An Original

[0 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report
Dec 31,

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION, AND AMORTIZATION OF GAS PLANT (ACCOUNTS 403, 403.1
404 1, 404 2, 404 3, 405) (Except Amortization of Acquisition Adjustments) (Continued)

obtained if average balances are used, state the method of
averaging used For column (q? report available information
for each plant functional classificati }
composite depreciation accounting is used, report available
information called for in columns ( ]
Where the unit-of-production method is used

ication listed in column (a) If
) and (d) on this basis

to determine depreciation charges, shown in a footnote any
revisions made 1o estimated gas reserves. .

3 If provisions for depreciation were made during the year in
addition to depreciation provided by application of reported
rates, state in a footnote the amounts and nature of the
provisions and the plant items to which related.

Section A. Summary of Depreciation, Depletion, and Amortization Charges

Amortization of Amortization of Total Functional Classification Line

Other Limited- Other Gas Plant (btog) No

term Gas Plant (Account 405) (h (@)

(Account 404 3) o)

U]
Intangible plant 1
Production plant, manufactured gas 2
Production and gathering plant, natural gas 3
Products extraction plant 4
Underground gas storage plant 5
Other storage plant 6
Base Load LNG terminaling and processing plant 7
Transmission plant 8
Distribution plant 9
General plant 10
Common plant-gas 11
TOTAL 12
FERC FORM NO. 2 (12-03) Page 337




Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 185 of 1053

Federal Register/Vol. 68, No. 76 / Mon@hs nApril 21, 2003 /Rules and Regulations 19677
Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6 -136-
Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of R eport Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Y7)
OO A Resubmission Dec31,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Line Title of Account Reference Balance at End Balance at End
No. Page Number of Current Year of Previous Year
(in dollars) (in dollars)
(@) (b} (] (d)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252
5 Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206) 252
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252
7 Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253
8 Installments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254
10 (Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254
11 Retained Earnings (215, 215 1, 216) 118-118
12 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118-119
13 (Less) Reacquired Capital (217) 250-251
14 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 117
15 TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Total of line 2 thru 14)
17 Bonds (221) 256-257
18 (Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256-257
19 Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257
20 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257
21 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) 258-259
22 (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Dr (226) 258-259
23 {Less) Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
24 TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Total of lines 17 thru 23)
25 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES —
26 Obligations Under Capital Leases -- Noncurrent (227)
27 Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1)
28 Accumulated provision for injuries and Damages (228.2)
29 Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3)
30 Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provision (228.4)
31 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229)
32 Asset Retirement Obligations (230)
33 TOTAL Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Total of lines 26 thru 32)

FERC FORM NO. 2-A (12-03) Page 112
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
O A Resubmission Dec31,
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS) (Continued)
Line Title of Account Reference Balance at End Balance at End
No. Page Number of Current Year of Previous Year
(in dollars) (in dollars)
(@ (®) © @
34 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
35 Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
36 Notes Payable (231)
37 Accounts Payable (232)
38 Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233)
39 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234)
40 Customer Deposits (235)
41 Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263
42 Interest Accrued (237)
43 Dividends Declared (238)
44 Matured Long-Term Debt (239)
45 Matured Interest (240)
46 Tax Collections Payable (241)
47 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 268
48 Obligations Under Capital Leases - Current (243)
49 Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244)
50 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)
51 TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabilities (Total of lines 35 thru 50)
53 . | Customer Advances for Construction (252)
54 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255)
55 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256)
56 Other Deferred Credits (253) 269
57 Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278
58 Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257) 260
59 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (281-283)
60 TOTAL Deferred Credits (Total of lines 53 thru 59)
61 TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Total of lines 15, 24, 33, 51, and 60)

FERC FORM NO. 2-A (12-03)
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-138-

Name of Respondent

This Report is:
O an Original
(0 A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec 31,

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1 Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenue and
Expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility column (i,j)
in a similar manner to a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over
lines 2 thru 26 as appropriate. Include these amounts in columns (¢) and

2 Report amounts in discount 414, Other Utility Operating Income,
in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above
3 Report data for lines 8, 10, and 11 for Natural Gas companies using

accounts 404 1, 404 2, 404.3, 407.1, and 407.2

(Carry forward to page 1186, line 27)

(d) totals
Line Title of Account Reference Balance at End Balance at End
No. @ Mol | Clumeear | offrevous vear
(b) () (d)
1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2 Gas Operating Revenues (400) 300-301
3 Operating Expenses
4 Operation Expenses (401) 317-325
5 Maintenance Expenses (402) 317-325
6 Depreciation Expense (403) 336-338
7 Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 336-338
8 Amortization and Depletion of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-338
9 Amortization of Utility Plant Acquisition Adjustment (406) 336-338
10 Amort of Prop Losses, Unrecovered Plant and Reg Study Costs
(407.1)
11 Amortization of Conversion Expenses (407.2)
12 Regulatory Debits (407.3)
13 (Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4)
14 Taxes Other than Income Taxes (408.1) 262-263
15 Income Taxes -- Federal (409.1) 262-263
16 Income Taxes -- Other (409.1) 262-263
17 Provision of Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234-235
18 ({Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes -- Credit (411.1) 234-235
19 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment -- Net (411.4)
20 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.6)
21 Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.7)
22 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8)
23 Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)
24 Accretion Expense (411.10)
25 TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Total of lines 4 thru 24)
26 Net Utitity Operating Income (Total of lines 2 less 25)

FERC FORM NO. 2-A (12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
7 A Resubmission Dec 31,

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

4 Exﬁlain in a footnote if the previous year's figures are different 5 If the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utili
from those reported in prior reports departments, supply the appropriate account titles, lines 2 to 26, and
report the information on page 122 or in a supplemental statement.

Electric Utility Electric Utility Gas Utility Gas Utility Other Utility Other Utility
Current Yea Previous Year Current Year Current Year Current Tear Previous Year
{in dollars) (in doliars) (In dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars)

Ol O] N O] O ] W O] -

iy
=lo

-
N

s
w

-y
-

-
(&)

16

23

24

25

26
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
D An Original (Mo, Da, Y1) Dec31,
[0  AResubmission
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR {Continued)
Line Title of Account Reference Balance at End Balance at End
@ - S LG A
(b) (c) (d)

27 Net Utility Operating Income (Carrier forward from page 114)

28 OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

29 Other Income

30 Nonutility Operating Income

31 Revenues form Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415)

32 (Less) Costs and Expense of Merchandising, Job & Contract Work (415.1)

33 Revenues from Nonutility Operations (417)

34 (Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417.1)

35 Nonoperating Rental Income

36 Equity in Eamnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119

37 Interest and Dividend Income (419)

38 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (418.1)

39 Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income {421)

40 Gain on Disposition of Property {421.1)

41 TOTAL Other Income (Total of lines 29 thru 40)

42 Other Income Deductions —
43 Loss on Disposition of Property (421 2)

44 Miscellaneous Amortization {(425)

45 Miscellaneous Income Deductions (426.1 thru 426.5) 340

46 TOTAL Other Income Deductions (Total of lines 43 thru 45) 340

47 Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions

48 Taxes Other than income Taxes {406.2) 262-263

49 Income Taxes -- Federal (409.2) 262-263

50 income Taxes -- Other (409.2) 262-263

51 Provision for Deferred income Taxes (410.2) 234-235

52 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Credit (410. 2) 234-235

53 Investment Tax Credit Adjustments--Net (411.5)

54 (Less) Investment Tax Credits (420)

55 TOTAL Taxes on Other income and Deductions (Total of lines 48-54)

56 Net Other Income and Deductions (Total of lines 41, 46, and 55)

57 INTEREST CHARGES

58 Interest on Long-Term Debt (427)

59 Amortization of Debt Disc and Expense (428) 258-259

60 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1)

61 (Less) Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit (429) 258-259

62 (Less) Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit (429.1)

63 Interest on Debt to Associated Companies (430) 340

64 Other interest Expense (431) 340

65 (Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction- Credit

66 Net Interest Charges (Total of lines 58 thru 65)

67 Income Before Extraordinary Items (Total of lines 27, 56 and 66)

68 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

89 Extraordinary Income (434)

70 (Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435)

71 Net Extraordinary ltems (Total of line 69 less 70}

72 Income Taxes--Federal and Other {409.3) 262-263

73 Extraordinary items after Taxes (Total of line 71 less line 72)

74 Net Income {Total of lines 67and 73)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
% ﬁnﬂce)gu"}%;ssion (Mo, Da, Y1) Dec3t,
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106)
;ccorgagot% ?ﬁéogéggr%'ie%n;éggjég gas plant in service 5 Classify Account 106 according to prescribed accounts,

2" In addition to Account 101, Gas Plant in Service (Classified), 83]&’T‘ﬁs(gg"ffggt%agésigc'?fgggﬁg’g'éﬁrll‘?n"(‘g”gr% tg&ﬁgg‘}gﬁ in
ihis page and the next include Account 102, Gas Plant reversals of tentative distributions of prior year reported i
Purchased or Sold, Account 103, Experimental Gas Plant Colurmm (b) Like wise, 1 the respondegt s sigr%(f)icaent n
8{;%'2%%2?8'32@ Account 106, Completed Construction Not amount of plant_ retirement wl}lch have not beef_classified o
aclingna 05 eolumn €} o (5, s Sppropriatg corections o el Sictbion of i el et O esimated bads

 Por <ubsequent meastrement revisiors o Tl dsset A appropriate contra ety 1o the acedunt fr accumulated
geeﬁcrreergsegta?r?ghsnggslﬁiﬁ? mclg:rgjeaaé% J}%‘%’f{ﬁéﬁ% gertnet tentative distributions of prior year's unclassified retirement
refirement costs in column (¢} additions. S ABUTORE o Thesa tontatve CIacehaaions o Safimn (c) and

Enclose in parenthesis credit adjustments of plant
accounts to indicate the negative effect of such accounts .

Line Account Balance at Additions

No (a) Beginning of Year (©)

(b)
1 INTANGIBLE PLANT
2 301 Organization
3 302 Franchises and Consents
4 303 Miscellaneous Intangible Plant
5 TOTAL Intangible Plant (Enter Total of lines 2 thru 4)
6 PRODUCTION PLANT
7 Natural Gas Production and Gathering Plant
8 325.1 Producing Lands
9 325.2 Producing Leaseholds
10 325.3 Gas Rights
1 325.4 Rights-of-Way
12 325.5 Other Land and Land Rights
13 326 Gas Well Structures
14 327 Field Compressor Station Structures
15 328 Field Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment
16 329 Other Structures
17 330 Producing Gas Wells-Well Construction
18 331 Producing Gas Wells-Well Equipment
19 332 Field Lines

20 333 Field Compressor Station Equipment

21 334 Field Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment

22 335 Drilling and Cleaning Equipment

23 336 Purification Equipment

24 337 Other Equipment

25 338 Unsuccessful Exploration and Development Costs

26 339 Asset Retirement Costs for Natural Gas Production & Gathering Plant

27 TOTAL Production and Gathering Plant (Enter Total of lines 8 thru 26)

28 PRODUCTS EXTRACTION PLANT “

29 340 Land and Land Rights

30 341 Structures and Improvements

31 342 Extraction and Refining Equipment

32 343 Pipe Lines

33 344 Extracted Products Storage Equipment

34 345 Compressor Equipment

FERC FORM NO. 2-A (12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31
O A Resubmission ’
PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106 {Continued)
including the reversals of the prior years tentative account And show in column (f) only the offset to the debits or credits to
distributions of these amounts Caréful observance of the primary account classifications
above instructions and the texts of Account 101 and 106 will . 8. For Account 399, state the nature and use of plant
avoid serious omissions of respondent’s reported amount for included in this account and if substantial in amount submit a
plant actually in service at end of year. o supplementary statement showing subaccount classification of
7. Show irf column (f? reclassifications or transfers within sucl glant conformm? to the requirements of these pages
utility plant accounts " Include also in column (f) the additions 8. For each amount comprising the reported balance and
or reductions of primary account classifications arising from changes in Account 102, state the propert¥ purchased or sold,
distribution of amounts’initially recorded in Account 102. | name of vendor or purchaser, and date of transaction if
showing the clearance of Account 102, include in column {e) proposed journal entries have been filed with the commission
the amounts with respect to accumulated provision for as re?ulred by the Uniform System of Accounts, give date of
depreciation, acquisition adjustments, etc., such filing.
Retirements Adjustments Transfers Balance at Line
() (e) M End of Year No
()
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

EERC FORM NO. 2-A (12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original {Mo, Da, Yr) Dec31,
O A Resubmission
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106) (Continued)
Line Account Balance at Additions
No (a) Beginning of (c)
Year
(b)

35 346  Gas Measuring and Regulating Equipment

36 347  Other Equipment

37 348  Asset Retirement Costs for Products Extraction Plant

38 TOTAL Products Extraction Plant (Enter Total of lines 29 thru 37)

39 TOTAL Naturat Gas Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 27 and 38)

40 Manufactured Gas Production Plant (Submit Supplementary Statement)

41 TOTAL Production Plant (Enter Total of lines 39 and 40)

42 NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND PROCESSING PLANT

43 Underground Storage Plant

44 350.1 Land

45 350.2 Rights-of-Way

46 351 Structures and improvements

47 352 Wells

48 352.1 Storage Leaseholds and Rights

49 352.2 Reservoirs

50 352.3 Non-recoverable Natural Gas

51 353  Lines

52 354  Compressor Station Equipment

53 355  Measuring and Regulating Equipment

54 356  Purification Equipment

55 357  Other Equipment

56 358  Asset Retirement Costs for Underground Storage Plant

57 TOTAL Underground Storage Plant (Enter Total of lines 44 thru 56) -
58 Other Storage Plant —
59 360 Land and Land Rights

60 361  Structures and improvements

61 362 Gas Holders

62 363  Purification Equipment

63 363.1 Liguefaction Equipment

64 363.2 Vaporizing Equipment

65 363.2 Compressor Equipment

66 363.4 Measuring and Regulating Equipment

67 363.5 Other Equipment

68 363.6 Asset Retirement Costs for Other Storage Plant

69 TOTAL Other Storage Plant (Enter Total of fines 59 thru 68}

70 Base Load Liquefied Natural Gas Terminating and Processing Plant *
71 364.1 Land and Land Rights

72 364.2 Structures and Improvements

73 364.3 LNG Processing Terminal Equipment

74 364.4 LNG Transportation Equipment

75 364.5 Measuring and Regulating Equipment

76 364.6 Compressor Station Equipment

77 364.7 Communications Equipment

78 364.8 Other Equipment

79 364.9 Asset Retirement Costs for Base Load Liquefied Natural Gas Terminaling and Processing Plant

80 TOTAL Base Load Liquefied Natural Gas, Terminating and Processing Plant (Lines 71 thru 79)

81 TOTAL Natural Gas Storage and Processing Plant (Total of lines 57, 69 and 80)

82 TRANSMISSION PLANT _
83 365.1 Land and Land Rights

84 365.2 Rights-of-Way

85 366 Structures and Improvements
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
0 An Original (Mo, Da, Y1) Dec 31,

0 A Resubmission

GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106} (Continued)

Retir?dr}wents Adjustments Transfers Balance at
(e ® End of Year
(9)

Line
No

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42
43
44

45

456

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57
e e
59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69
70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83

84

85
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Name of Respondent This Report 1s: Date of Report Year ot Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31
O A Resubmission T
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106) (Continued
Line Account Balance at Additions
No (a) Beginning of Year ©
(b)

86 367 Mains

87 368 Compressor Station Equipment

88 369 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment

83 370 Communication Equipment

90 371 Other Equipment

91 372 Asset Retirement Costs for Transmission Plant

92 TOTAL Transmission Plant (Enter Totais of lines 83 thru 91)

94 374 Land and Land Rights

a5 375 Structures and Improvements

96 376 Mains

97 377 Compressor Station Equipment

98 378 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment-General

99 379 Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment-City Gate

100 380 Services

101 381 Meters

102 382 Meter Installations

103 383 House Regulators

104 384 House Regulator Instailations

105 385 Industrial Measuring and Regulating Station Equipment

106 386 Other Property on Customers’ Premises

107 387 Other Equipment

108 - 388  Asset Retirement Costs for Distribution Plant

109 TOTAL Distribution Plant (Enter Total of lines 94 thru 108)

111 389 Land and Land Rights

112 390 Structures and Improvements

113 391 Office Furniture and Equipment

114 392 transportation Equipment

115 393 Stores Equipment

116 394 Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment

117 395 Laboratory Equipment

118 396 Power Operated Equipment

119 397 Communication Equipment

120 398 Miscellaneous Equipment

121 Subtotal (Enter Total of lines 111 thru 120)

122 398 Other Tangible Property

123 399.1 Asset Retirement Costs for General Plant

124 TOTAL General Plant (Enter Total of lines 121, 122 and 123)

125 TOTAL (Accounts 101 and 106)

126 Gas Plant Purchased (See Instruction 8)

127 (Less) Gas Plant Sold (See Instruction 8)

128 Experimental Gas Plant Unclassified _

129 TOTAL Gas Plant in Service (Enter Total of lines 125 thru 128)
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Name of Respondent This Report is: Date of Report Year of Report
O An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31
O A Resubmission i —
GAS PLANT IN SERVICE (ACCOUNTS 101, 102, 103, AND 106 {Continued)
Retir(e&;wents AdjuszéTents Trarzgfers Balance at Line

End of Year No
(@

86
87
88
89

91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
127
128
129
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Name of Respondent ‘This Report Is: Date of Report Year ot Report
0 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec 31,
0 A Resubmission
ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION OF GAS UTILITY PLANT (ACCOUNT 108)

1 Explain in a footnote any important adjustments during year significant amount of plant retired at year end which had not

2 Explain in a footnote any difference between the amotint for been recorded and/or classified to the various reserve
book cost of plant retired, line 11, column (c), and that reported functional classifications, make preliminary closing entries to
for gas plant in service, page 204-208, column (d), excluding tentatively functionalize the book cost of the plantretired In
retirements of nondepreciable proge R . addition, include all costs included in retirement work in

3 The provisions of Account 108 in the Uniform System of progress at year end in the appropriate functional
Accounts require that retirements of depreciable plant be classitications i i .
recorded when such plant is removed from service If the 4 Show separately interest credits under a sinking fund or
respondent has a similar method of depreciation accountin:

At lines 8 and 15, add rows as necessary to report all
data Additional rows should be numbered in Sequence, e g,
8.01, 8.02, etc.
Line Item Total Gas Gas Plant Gas Plant
No (@) c+d+e) Plant Held Leased
in for Future to Others
(b) Service se (e
(c) (d) €
Section A. BALANCES AND CHANGES DURING YEAR
1 Balance Beginning of Year
2 Depreciation Provisions for Year, Charged to
3 (403) Depreciation Expense
4 (403.1) Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs
5 (413) Expense of Gas Plant Leased to Others
6 Transportation Expenses - Clearing
7 Other Clearing Accounts
8 Other Clearing (Specify):
8.01
9 TOTAL Depreciation Provision For Year (Total of lines 3 thru 7)
10 Net Charges for Plant Retired:
11 Book Cost of Plant Retired
12 Cost of Removal
13 Salvage (Credit)
14 TOTAL Net Charges for Plant Ret. (Total of lines 11 thru 13)
15 Other Debit or Credit [tems (Describe):
15.01
16 Book Cost of Asset Retirement Costs Retired
17 Balance End of Year (Total of lines 1, 8, 14, 15 and 186)
Section B. BALANCES AT END OF YEAR ACCORDING TO FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS

18 Productions-Manufactured Gas
19 Production and Gathering -Natural Gas
20 Products Extraction-Natural Gas
21 Underground Gas Storage
22 Other Storage Plant
23 Base Load LNG Terminating and Processing Plant
24 Transmission
25 Distribution
26 General
27 TOTAL (Total of lines 18 thru 26)
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‘Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) a An Original (Mo, Da, Yr) Dec. 31,20___
(2) 0 A Resubmission
LIST OF SCHEDULES
Enter in column (d) the terms "none,” "not applicable,” or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts
have been reported for certain pages. Omit pages where the responses are "none," "not applicable," or "NA.”
i Reterence Date Remarks
Title of Bhedule Page No. Revised (@
(b) (c)

GENERAL CORPORATEAINFORMATION AND
General Information FINANC!AL ST TEMENTS ................. 101 ED 12-91
Control OverRespondent . .. ... . i i 102 REV 12-95
Companies Controlled by Respondent . . ........................ 103 NEW 12-95
Principal General Officers ....... ... ... .. .. . ... . ... . ... 104 ED 12-91
1971 =T o3 (o] ¢ O 105 REV 12-95
Important Changes Duringthe Year . ........... ... ... .. .. ..... 108-109 REV 12-95
Comparative Balance Sheet Statement . ............. ... ... ... 110-113 REV 12-02
Income Statement ...... Comrehensive s A g 114 REV 12-02
Statement of Accumulated Comprehensive Income and Hedgin
Activities .................. pgg 115 (a) (b) NEW 12-02
Appropriated RetainedIncome . ... ........ ... ... L L. s REV 12-95
Unappropriated Retained Income Statement . .................... 19 REV 12-95
Dividend Appropriations of Retained Income ..................... 119 REV 12-95
Statement of Cash FIOWS . . ... ....uwereneneee i aeaenans. 120-121 REV 12-95
Notes to Financial Statements .. ............ccovueeeeanneann... 122-123 REV 12-95

BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

(Assets and Other Debts)
Receivables From Affiliated Companies ........................ 200 REV 12-00
General Instructions Concerning Schedules 202 thru205........... 201 REV 12-95
Investments in Affiliated Companies ............... ... ... . ... 202-203 ED 12-91
Investments in Common Stocks of Affiliated Companies ........... 204-205 ED 12-91
Companies Controlled Directly by Respondent Other Than Through
Titleto Securities . ...... ... i e 204-205 ED 12-02

Instructions for Schedules 212 Thru 217 ......... ... ... ... .. ... 211 REV 12-00
Carmier PrOPeMY ..ottt e e 212-213 REV 12-02
Undivided Joint Interest Property ............ ... ... ... ... ..., 214-215 REV 12-02
Accrued Depreciation-Carrier Property . ........ ... ... .. ... .... 216 REV 12-02
Accrued Depreciation-Undivided Joint Interest Property ............ 217 REV 12-02
Amortization Baseand Reserve .. ...... .. ... ... . . oo, 218-219 REV 12-02
Noncarrier Property . ...t s 220 REV 12-00
Other Deferred Charges . ... ..o cvvie e et e aan 221 REV 12-00

BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

(Liabilities and Other Credits)

Payables to Affiliated Companies . .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... 205 REV 12-00
Long-TermDebt ... ... .. ... . . ... . 226-227 ED 12-00
Analysis of Federal Income and Other Taxes Deferred .. ........... 230-231 REV 12-00
Capital StIoCK . ... e e 250-251 REV 12-95
Capital Stock Changes Duringthe Year . ........................ 252.053 ED 12-94
Additional Paid-in Capital ........ ... . i 254 ED 12-87
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
L Mo, Da, Yr,
(1) O An Original ( ) Dec. 31,20
(2) B A Resubrmission
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT - LIABILITIES (Continued)
For instructions covering this schedule, see the text and instructions pertaining to Balance Sheet Accounts in the USofA. The entries
in this balance sheet should be consistent with those in the supporting schedules on the pages indicated.
Reference | Balance at End Balance at End
Line ltem Page No. | of Current Year | of Previous Year
No. (In dollars) (In dollars)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
47 Notes Payable (50)
48 Payables to Affiliated Companies (51)
49 Accounts Payable (52)
50 Salaries and Wages Payable {53)
51 Interest Payable (54)
52 Dividends Payable (55)
53 Taxes Payable (56)
54 Long - Term Debt - Payable Within One Year (57) 226-227
55 Other Current Liabilities (58)
56 Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (59) 230-231
57 TOTAL Current Liabilities (Total of lines 47 thru 56)
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
58 Long-Term Debt - Payable After One Year (60) 226-227
59 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (61)
60 (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Dr. (62)
61 . | Other Noncurrent Liabilities (63)
62 Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (64) 230-231
63 Derivative Instrument Liabilities (65)
64 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (66)
65 Asset Retirement Obligations (67)
66 TOTAL Noncurrent Liabilities (Total of lines 58 thru 65)
67 TOTAL Liabilities (Total of lines 57 and 66)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

68 Capital Stock (70) 250-251
69 Premiums on Capital Stock (71)
70 Capital Stock Subscriptions (72)
71 Additional Paid-in Capital (73) 254
72 Appropriated Retained Income (74) 118
73 Unappropriated Retained Income (75) 119
74 (Less) Unrealized Loss on Noncarrier Marketable Equity-Securities (75.5)
75 (Less) Treasury Stock (76)
76 TOTAL Stockholders' Equity (Total of lines 68 thru 75)
77 TOTAL Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Total of lines 67 and 76)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SCHEDULES 212-213

1)

3)

Give an analysis of changes during the year in Account No. 30,
Carrier Propenty, by carrier property accounts, excluding investments
in undivided joint interest property reported on pages 214 and 215.
The total carrier property reported on page 213 (column i, line 44) and
the total undivided joint interest property reported on all pages 215
(column i, line 44) should represent all carrier property owned by the
reporting entity at year end.

Enter in column (c) the cost of newly constructed property, additions,
and improvements made to existing property. Include amounts
distributed to carrier property accounts during the year which were
previously charged to Account No. 187, Construction Work in
Progress. In column (d) enter expenditures for existing pipeline
property purchased or otherwise acquired. Enter in column (e) -
property sold, abandoned, or otherwise retired during the year. This
will generally be a positive number, so that the calculation in column
(f) works properly.

4.)

5.)

if pipeline operating property was acquired from or sold to some other ~ 6.)

company during the year, footnote the acquisition

or sale if it exceeded $250,000. inctude the following in the footnote:
the name of the company the property was acquired from or sold to,
the mileage acquired or sold, and the date of acquisition or sale.
Include termini, the original cost of property acquired from an affiliate
or other common carrier (see Instruction 3-1, Property acquired,
Instructions for Carrier Property Accounts in Uniform System of
Accounts), and the cost of the property to the respondent. Also give
the amount debited or credited to each company account representing
such property acquired or disposed of.

Enter in column (g) for each account the net of all other accounting
adjustments, transfers, and clearances applicable to prior years'
accounting.

Explain fully each adjustment, clearance, or transfer in excess of
$500,000 in a footnote. Explain transfers to or from Account No. 34,
Noncarrier Property, in Scheduie 219.

Indicate in parenthesis any entry in columns (f), (g), or (h) which
represents an excess of credits over debits.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SCHEDULES 214-215

Give an analysis of changes during the year in Account No. 30, Carrier
Property, by carrier property accounts, for investments in undivided
joint interest property. The respondent will only report its portion of the
carrier property of any undivided joint interest pipeline in which it has
an interest. [f the respondent owns an interest in multiple undivided
joint interest pipelines, prepare and submit a separate schedule 214-
215 for each undivided joint interest pipeline in which it has an interest.
If multiple schedules 214-215 are submitted, number all schedules
subsequent to the first with a number and letter page designator (For
example ... 214, 215; 214a, 215a; 214b, 215b; etc...).

Enter in column (c) the cost of newly constructed property, additions,  4.)
and improvements made to existing property. inciude amounts
distributed to carrier property accounts during the year which were
previously charged to Account No. 187Construction Work in Progress.
In column (d} enter expenditures for existing pipeline property
purchased or otherwise acquired. Enter in column (e) property
sold, abandoned, or otherwise retired during the year. This will
generally be a positive number so that the calculation in column (f)
works properly.

5.)

6.)

If pipeline operating property was acquired from or sold to some other

company during the year, footnote the acquisition or sale if it
exceeded $250,000. Include the following in the footnote: the name
of the company the property was acquired from or sold to, the
mileage acquired or sold, and the date of acquisition or sale.

Include termini, the original cost of property acquired from an affiliate
or other common carrier (see Instruction 3-1, Property acquired,
Instructions for Carrier Property Accounts in Uniform System of
Accounts), and the cost of the property to the respondent. Also give
the amount debited or credited to each company account
representing such property acquired or disposed of.

Enter in column (g) for each account the net of all other accounting
adjustments, transfers, and clearances applicable to prior years’
accounting.

Explain fully each adjustment, clearance, or transfer in excess of
$500,000 in a footnote. Explain transfers to or from Account No. 34,
Noncarrier Property, in Schedule 219.

Indicate in parenthesis any entry in columns (f}, (g), or (h) which
represents an excess of credits over debits.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SCHEDULES 216-217

1.)  Onschedule 216, give an analysis of changes during the year in 2.) Incolumn (c), enter debits by carrier property account to Account
Account No. 31, Accrued Depreciation - Carrier Property, by carrier No. 540, Depreciation and Amortization, and 541, Depreciation
property accounts, excluding depreciation on undivided joint interest Expense for Asset Retirement Costs , during the year.
property reported on page 217.

3.)  Incolumn (d), enter all debits to Account No. 31, Accrued

On schedule 217, give an analysis of changes during the year in Depreciation - Carrier Property, during the year resulting from the

Account No. 31, Accrued Depreciation - Carrier Property, by carrier retirement of carrier property.

property accounts for property owned as part of an undivided joint

interest pipeline. If the respondent owns an interest in multiple 4.)  incolumn (e), enter the net of any other debits and credits made to

undivided joint interest pipelines, prepare and submit a separate Account No. 31, Accrued Depreciation - Carrier Property, during the

schedule 217 for each undivided joint interest pipeline in which it has year.

an interest. If multiple schedules 217 are submitted, number all

schedules subsequent to the first with a number and letter page 5.) If composite annual depreciation rates are prescribed, enter those in

designator (For example ... 217, 217a, 217b, etc...). effect at the end of the year in column (g). If component rates are
prescribed, the composite rates entered in column (g) should be
computed from the charges developed for December by using the
prescribed component rates. Whether component or composite
rates are prescribed, the entries on lines 17, 34, 42, and 43 of
column (g) shouid be computed from December depreciation
charges.

FERC FORM NO. 6 (REV. 12-03) Page 211



19692

Attachment to Responseto L GE KIUC-2 Question No. 44
Attachment 1 of 2 Page 200 of 1053
Federal Register/Vol. 68, No. 76 / Mon@hs nApril 21, 2003 /Rules and Regulations

Appendix C Revised Schedules for FERC Forms 1, 1-F, 2, 2-A, and 6

-151.

Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) © An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) o A Resubmission Dec. 31,20__
CARRIER PROPERTY
PROPERTY CHANGES DURING THE
YEAR (In dollars)
Balance Expenditures for Expenditures for
Line at Beginning New Cor_1_struction, Existing Property
No. Account of Year Additions, Purqhased or
(In dollars) and Improvements Otherwise Acquired
(a) (b) (c) (d)

GATHERING LINES
1 Land (101)
2 Right of Way (102)
3 Line Pipe (103)
4 Line Pipe Fittings (104)
5 Pipeline Construction {105)
6 Buildings (106)
7 Boilers (107)
8 Pumping Equipment (108)
9 Machine Tools and Machinery {109}
10 Other Station Equipment (110)
11 Oil Tanks {111)
12 Delivery Facilities (112)
13 Communication Systems (113)
14 Office Furniture and Equipment (114)
15 Vehicles and Other Work Equipment {115)
16 Other Property (116)
17 Asset Retirement Costs for Gathering Lines (117)
18 TOTAL (Lines 1 thru 17)

TRUNK LINES
19 Land (151)
20 Right of Way {152)
21 Line Pipe (153)
22 Line Pipe Fittings {154)
23 Pipeline Construction (155)
24 Buildings (156)
25 Boilers (157)
26 Pumping Equipment (158)
27 Machine Tools and Machinery (159)
28 Other Station Equipment (160)
29 Oil Tanks {161)
30 Delivery Facilities (162)
31 Communication Systems (163)
32 Office Furniture and Equipment (164)
33 Vehicles and Other Work Equipment (165)
34 Other Property (166)
35 Asset Retirement Costs for Trunk Lines (167)
36 TOTAL (Lines 19 thru 35)
GENERAL
37 Land (171)
38 Buildings (176)
39 Machine Tools and Machinery (179)
40 Communication Systems (183)
41 Office Furniture and Equipment (184)
42 Vehicles and Other Work Equipment (185)
43 Other Property (186)
44 Asset Retirement Costs for General Property (186.1)
45 Construction Work in Progress (187)
46 TOTAL (Lines 37 thru 45}
47 GRAND TOTAL (Lines 18, 36 and 46)
FERC FORM NO. 6 (REV. 12-03) Page 212
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) & An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) 0 A Resubmission Dec. 31,20___

CARRIER PROPERTY (Continued)

PROPERTY CHANGES DURING

Property Sold, Net Other Adjustments, Increase or Decrease Balance at End
Abandoned, or Otherwise {(c+d-e) Transfers and During the Year of Year
Retired During the Year [{]] Clearances f+g) (b+h) No.
(e) (In dollars) (In dolars) (In doltars)
@ h) {0

Line

i P R I R L ES I N

37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
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Name of Respondent

This Report Is:
(1) O An Original

(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec. 31,20

UNDIVIDED JOINT INTEREST PROPERTY (Continued)

PROPERTY CHANGES DURING THE
YEAR (in dolfars)

Property Sold,
Abandoned, or Otherwise
Retired Du(rir}g the Year
e

o
C+0-¢,
"

Other Adjustments,
Transfers, and
Clearances
(In dollars)

(@

Increase or Decrease
During the Year (f + g}

(In dollars)
(h)

Balance at End of Year
(bxh)

(In dollars)
(i)

Line
No.

@) wf N o a] &) w] o] -

ey
[=]

-
-

—
\V]

-
w

—
£

—
v

Y
(o)

17

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47
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Name of Respondent This Report [s: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) © An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
(2) © A Resubmission Dec. 31,20
ACCRUED DEPRECIATION - CARRIER PROPERTY
(EXCLUSIVE OF DEPRECIATION ON UNDIVIDED JOINT INTEREST PROPERTY REPORTED IN SCHEDULE 217)
Give particulars (detaits) of the credits and debits to Account No. 31, Accrued Depreciation - Carrier Property, during the year.
Balance Debits to Net Debit Other Balance at Annual
Account at Accounts From Debits End of Year Composite/
Beginning No. 540 Retirement and b+c+d+ Component
Line of Year and 541 of Carrier Credits- e Rates
No. (a) do. /Igrs) (?:5 ggl%fé) (ﬁ,r%ﬁ;)’s) ’\Jlerjrl fin dﬁ)llars) tin p‘(e_c;fem)
(b} (c) (d) doglars)
(e)
GATHERING LINES
1 Right of Way (102)
2 Line Pipe (103)
3 Line Pipe Fittings (104)
4 Pipeline Construction (105)
5 Buildings (106)
6 Boilers (107)
7 Pumping Equipment (108)
8 Machine Toois and Machinery (109)
9 Other Station Equipment (110)
10 | Oil Tanks (111)
11 Delivery Facilities (112)
12 Communication Systems (113)
13 | Office Furniture and Equip (114)
14 Vehicles and Other Work Equip (115)
15 Other Property (116)
16 Asset Retirement Costs for Gathering Lines (117)
17 TOTAL (Lines 1 thru 16)
TRUNK LINES
18 | Right of Way (152)
19 Line Pipe (153)
20 Line Pipe Fittings (154)
21 Pipeline Construction (155)
22 | Buildings (156)
23 Boiters (157)
24 Pumping Equipment (158)
25 Machine Tools and Machinery (159)
26 Other Station Equipment (160)
27 | Oil Tanks (161)
28 Delivery Facilities (162)
29 Communication Systems (163)
30 Office Fumiture and Equip (164)
31 Vehicies and Other Work Equip (165)
32 Other Property (166)
33 | Asset Retirement Costs for Trunk Lines (167)
34 TOTAL (Lines 18 thru 33}
GENERAL
35 | Buildings {176}
36 Machine Tools and Machinery (179)
37 Communication Systems (183}
38 Oftice Furniture and Equip (184)
39 | Vehicles and Other Work Equip (185)
40 Other Property (186)
41 Asset Retirement Costs for General Property (186.1)
42 TOTAL (Lines 35 thru 41)
43 GRAND TOTAL (Lines 17, 34, 42)
FERC FORM NO. 6 (REV. 12-03) Page 216
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Name of Respondent

This Report Is:
(1) © An Original

(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report
Dec.31,20___

ACCRUED DEPRECIATION - UNDIVIDED JOINT INTEREST PROPERTY

Give particulars (details) of the credits and debits to Account No. 31, Accrued Depreciation - Carrier Property, during the year.

Name of Undivided Joint Interest Pipeline:

Balance at Debits to Net Debit Other Debits Balance at Annual
. Account Beginning Accounts From Retirement and Credits- End of Year | Composite/
Line of Year No. 540 and 541 of Carrier Net b+c+d+ Component
No. (In doliars) of USofA Property (In dollars) e) ates
(b) (In dollars) (In dollars) (e) (In dollars) (In percent)
(a) (c) (d) ® (9
GATHERING LINES
1 Right of Way (102)
2 Line Pipe {103)
3 Line Pipe Fittings (104)
4 Pipeline Construction (105)
5 Buildings (106}
6 Boilers (107)
7 Pumping Equipment (108)
8 Machine Tools and Machinery (109)
9 Other Station Equipment (110)
10 | Oil Tanks (111}
1 Delivery Facilities (112}
12 | Communication Systems (113)
13 | Office Fumiture and Equip. (114)
14 Vehicles and Other Work Equip. (115)
15 Other Property (116)
16 Asset Retirerent Costs for Gathering
Lines (117)
17. TOTAL (Lines 1 thru 16)
TRUNK LINES
18 | Right of Way (152)
19 Line Pipe (153)
20 | Line Pipe Fittings (154)
21 Pipeline Construction (155}
22 Buildings (156)
23 Boilers (157)
24 Pumping Equipment (158)
25 Machine Tools and Machinery {159)
26 Other Station Equipment (160)
27 | Oil Tanks (161)
28 | Delivery Facilities (162)
29 Communication Systemns (163)
30 Office Fumiture and Equip. (164)
31 Vehicles and Other Work Equip. (165)
32 Other Property (166)
33 Gsss%t Retirement Costs for Trunk Lines
34 TOTAL (Lines 18 thru 33)
GENERAL
35 Buildings (176)
36 Machine Tools and Machinery (179)
37 Communication Systems (183)
38 QOffice Furniture and Equip. (184)
39 Vehicles and Other Work Equip. (185)
40 Other Property (186)
41 Asset Retirement Costs for General
Property (186.1)
42 TOTAL (Lines 35 thru 41)
a3 GRAND TOTAL (Lines 17, 34, 42)
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Name of Respondent

This Report Is:
(1) O An Original

(2) O A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report

(Mo, Da, Yr)
Dec. 31,20

AMORTIZATION BASE AND RESERVE

Enter in columns (b) thru (e) the cost of pipeline property used
as the base in computing amortization charges included in

Account 540, Depreciation and Amortization, and Account 541, 3)

Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs of the

accounting company.

Enter in columns (f) thru (i) the balances at the beginning and
end of the year and the total credits and debits during

4)

the year in Account No. 32, Accrued Amortization -
Carrier Property.

The information requested for columns (b) thru (i)
may be shown by projects or for totals only.

if reporting by project, briefly describe in a foot-

Line
No.

Items

BASE (540 and 541)

Balance at
Beginning of Year
(In dollars)

(b)

Debits During Credits During Balance at End
Year ear of Year

(In dollars) (in dollars) (In doliars)

() (@) (e)

O ONOU A WN

TOTAL

FERC FORM NO. 6 (REV. 12-03)
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) © An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
(2) o A Resubmission Dec. 31,20___

OPERATING EXPENSE ACCOUNTS (Account 610)

Report the respondent's pipeline operating expenses for the year, classifying them in accordance with the USofA.
CRUDE OIL (In dollars)

Line
No. Operating Expense Accounts Gathering Trunk Delivery Total
(b+c+d)

(@) (b) () (d) (e
OPERATIONS and MAINTENANCE

Salaries and Wages (300)

Materials and Supplies (310)

Outside Services (320)

Operating Fuel and Power (330)

Qil Losses and Shortages (340)

Rentals (350)

Other Expenses (390)

TOTAL Operations and Maintenance Expenses

GENERAL

9 Salaries and Wages (500)
10 Materials and Supplies (510)

11 Outside Services (520)
12 Rentals (530)
13 Depreciation and Amortization (540)

14 Depreciation Expense for Asset Retirement Costs
(541)

15 Employee Benefits (550)

16 Insurance (560)

17 Casualty and Other Losses (570)

18 Pipeline Taxes (580)

19 Other Expenses (590)

20 Accretion Expense (591)

21 Gains or losses on Asset Retirement Obligations

| Nl Al w|O} =

(592)
22 TOTAL General Expenses
23 GRAND TOTALS
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Name of Respondent

This Report Is:
(1) @ An Original
(2) o A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

Year of Report

Dec. 31,20____

OPERATING EXPENSE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Products (in dollars)

Line
No.

Trunk

(f)

Delivery

(9)

Total
(t+g)
(n

Grand Total
(e+h)
0]

ol ~N{olop W] —

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

FERC FORM NO. 6 (REV. 12-03)
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Shannon Charnas
Sara Wiseman -- E.ON U.S. Accounting Dept

COPY: Patricia Leenerts
FROM: John Fendig -- E.ON U.S. Law Dept.
DATE: January 16, 2006

SUBJECT: FASB Financial Interpretation No. 47

This memorandum provides initial legal input in connection with LG&E Energy LLC’s and
subsidiaries’ (collectively “LEL’s”) analysis and implementation of FASB Financial
Interpretation No. 47 (March 2005). Reference is also made to the EEI/AGA Industry White
Paper (July 2005) regarding FIN 47.

This memorandum also makes reference to the earlier legal memorandum (March 18, 2003)
delivered in connection with LEL’s original analysis and implementation of FASB SFAS 143
during 2002-2003.

The analysis and conclusions hereunder are provided solely for the purposes of SFAS 143 and
FIN 47 and related uses, should not be deemed binding or conclusive for any other purpose and
are not intended to constitute a waiver of right or admission against interest in any other context.

COAL DOCKS

Western Kentucky Energy “Sebree or Energy” Dock -- It was previously determined that a
legal obligation exists due to the lease with Powell Holdings, as well as under the Kentucky
Division of Water, Coast Guard and Army Corps of Engineers permits.

No change is proposed in this analysis. This legal obligation suggests that an ARO should be
established.

LG&E and KU Coal Docks -- Coal docks exist on navigable waterways at a number of LG&E
and KU plants, including Mill Creek, Trimble County and Ghent. After reasonable inquiry to
line-of-business and shared-service departments which may have historical information or
documents, we are unable to locate definitive data (ground leases, permits, etc.) or applicable
rules (USCG, ACOE, etc.) positively indicating any legal obligations exist upon non-use. Due to
this fact, it is appropriate to conclude that no known legal obligation exists.
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(At appropriate times, we will continue our investigation on this issue and, if and when, any
indications of legal obligations are found, we will so report.)

BRIDGES AND TUNNELS

It was previously determined that state and federal regulation generally imposes discretionary,
rather than obligatory remediation requirements upon abandonment. That is, the state or federal
regulator may require removal or other remediation, at its option, but equally might not.

Due to this substantial uncertainty as to fact or type of remediation, it is reasonable to state that
no current legal obligation exists.

GAS STORAGE WELLS AND PIPES

Prior analysis indicates that legal obligations exist due to state and federal regulations requiring
purging and capping (sealing) of abandoned gas pipes and plugging of wells.

No change is proposed in this analysis. This legal obligation suggests that an ARO should be
established.

GAS STORAGE COMPRESSOR STATIONS

Prior analysis indicates that (except for the Riggs site), no definitive legal obligation exist upon
non-use. The lease forms appear to give LG&E the option, but not the requirement, to remove
equipment or simply allow it to become the property of the USA. Regarding a 1 acre portion of
the Riggs site, a 1979 letter appears to requires a return to prior condition upon any
abandonment. Thus, LG&E should determine what (if any) structures exist upon this parcel and
the potential cost for removal, etc..

No change proposed in analysis. The Riggs document indicates a legal obligation for one parcel
of our compressor station properties. This legal obligation suggests that an ARO should be
established regarding the site on this parcel.

GAS DISTRIBUTION ASSETS
ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION ASSETS

Prior analysis indicated that no legal obligations generally existed upon abandonment, other than
(a) the purging and capping of gas lines and (b) normal maintenance of unused electric lines.
Historically, both of the above have been accounted for as current costs, rather than ARO-type
liabilities.
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For gas distribution, the purging and capping represents a legal obligation. As these pipes and
their retirement may be a “mass asset” or reoccurring event, it may be possible to set up an ARO
similar to that of electric poles, using average lifespan or retirement calculations.

For electric transmission and distribution, the maintenance requirement of unused lines is the
same as regarding active lines, so this would not constitute a new legal obligation upon
retirement.

HYDRO FACILITIES

Prior analysis indicated that although hydro U.S. Army Corps of Engineers permits and FERC
licenses do not list or enumerate specific or detailed remediation steps upon abandonment,
general regulatory or statutory rules and frameworks, and certain permits, do clearly allow for
agencies to require remediation in the discretion of the agency. Thus, legal obligations may and
likely do exist. However, due to the uncertainty as to the actual regulatory decisions, if any,
upon retirement, it may not be possible to reasonably estimate the settlement periods, methods or
costs.

Regarding obligations to private parties, Ohio Falls rests in a public waterway and lands, so no
private leases exist. Dix Dam and the resulting lake are on KU-owned property, so no private
leases exist. Thus, there are no legal obligations upon retirement due to any contracts with
private parties.

WATER PUMP STRUCTURES

Prior analysis focused on the Brown water pump structures, which are located in a lake owned
by KU so no legal obligations were found to exist. No change is suggested in this analysis.

Regarding water pump/intake structures which may exist in navigable waterways (Ohio River,
Green River, etc.) at other LG&E, KU or WKE sites. After reasonable inquiry to line-of-
business and shared-service departments which may have historical information or documents
(USCG, ACOE, etc.), we are unable to locate any data positively indicating any legal obligations
exist upon non-use. Due to this fact, it is appropriate to conclude that no known legal obligation
exists.

(At appropriate times, we will repeat our investigation on this issue and, if and when, any
indications of legal obligations are found, we will so report.)
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Wiseman, Sara
From: Scott, Valerie
Sent: Wednesday, February 02, 2005 7:42 PM
To: Wiseman, Sara; Strange, Vicki; Conrad, Teresa,; Dalton, LaStacia; Williams, Scott; Clark,
Lynda; Newton, Gretchen
Cc: Hudson, Rusty; Miller, Ron
Subject: FW: FASB Agenda Discussion - February 2

Attachménts: 02-02-05 FASB Handouts.pdf; footer

FYI

Valerie

----- Original Message----- ,

From: Stringfellow, David [mailto:DStringfellow@eei.org]
Sent: Wednesday, February 02, 2005 5:03 PM

To: Accounting Standards Committee

Subject: FASB Agenda Discussion - February 2

TO: EE! Accounting Standards Committee Members

The Financial Accounting Standards Board had a discussion at today's (February 2) meeting on whether to add a
project to its agenda based on the recommendations from the Accounting Standards Executive Committee
(ACSEC) that the Board issue some stand alone, near-term guidance on accounting for property, plant, and
Equipment (PP&E). The short handout on this Board discussion item is the last page of the attachment.

Specifically the Board was asked to add a project on accounting for planned major maintenance activities. The
Board did not agree to add this as an agenda item at today's meeting - but directed the Staff to rescope and
redefine the proposed project to ensure that the project is a narrow one and not a project on depreciation. This
will be brought back for a discussion and agenda decision at a future Board meeting.

Three other possible topics for inclusion in a property, plant and equipment Board project were presented by the

Staff for Board decisions - accounting for rental costs that are incurred during construction, accounting for

liquidated damages, and the threshold for beginning to capitalize PP&E. The Board decided not to take up any of
- those three topics in an accounting for property, plant and equipment project.

David-Stringfellow
Edison Electric Institute

2/28/2008
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Financial Accounting Standards Board

Board Meeting Handout
Fair Value Option
February 2, 2005

The purpose of this meeting is to discuss whether the fair value option project
should be expanded to permit entities to elect to recognize the change in fair
value attributable to only certain selected risks (rather than the total change in
fair value).

As background for today’s meeting, the staff will briefly discuss the fundamental
objectives of the fair value project, which include the following:

a. To mitigate problems for reported earnings caused by the mixed-attribute
model

b. To enable entities to achieve an offset accounting effect for the changes in

the fair values of related assets and liabilities without having to apply more

complex hedge accounting provisions, thereby providing some simplicity in

the accounting guidance for this area

To achieve further convergence with the IASB

To expand the use of the fair value measurement attribute, particularly for

financial instruments.

ao

The Principal Issue

The principal issue to be discussed by the Board at today’s meeting is whether
the fair value project should be expanded to permit entities to elect (outside of
Statement 133’s hedge accounting) to recognize in earnings the change in an
asset’s or liability's fair value attributable to only certain selected risks (rather
than the total change in fair value).

A principal advantage of such an expansion would be to enable entities to
continue obtaining hedging-like results related to only the designated hedged
risks but without all of the complex requirements of Statement 133. Many entities
use derivatives to hedge only selected risks under Statement 133, not the risk of
total changes in the hedged item’s fair value or the hedged transaction’s cash
flows. They may also use other derivatives and nonderivatives to economically
hedge only selected risks. The proposed expansion would enable entities to
avoid exposure to volatility in earnings attributable to recognizing the effect of
changes in an unhedged risk.

A principal disadvantage of such an expansion would likely be losing this
opportunity for simplicity in the accounting guidance through the use of the fair
value measurement attribute. It is expected that the proposed expansion of this
project to permit recognizing fair value changes attributable to only certain

The staff prepares Board meeting handouts to facilitate the audience's understanding of the issues to be
addressed at the Board meeting. This material is presented for discussion purposes only; it is not intended
to reflect the views of the FASB or its staff. Official positions of the FASB are determined only after
extensive due process and deliberations.
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selected risks will create a less restrictive, effectiveness-test-free approach that
would still require resolution of numerous standard-setting and impiementation
issues. In addition, the proposed expansion would undermine convergence
efforts with the IASB because it would expand the differences with international
standards because the fair value option for financial instruments in IAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, uses only the fair value
measurement attribute.
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Financial Accounting Standards Board

Board Meeting Handout

Potential Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. B38:
Evaluation of Net Settlement with Respect to Embedded
Prepayment Options in Certain Debt Instruments

February 2, 2005

At the February 2, 2005, Board meeting, the staff will discuss with the Board
Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. B38, “Evaluation of Net Settlement with
Respect to Embedded Prepayment Options in Certain Debt Instruments” (Issue
B38). The objective of this meeting is for the Board to discuss Issue B38 and
decide whether the staff should expose the tentative guidance in Implementation
Issue B38 for public comment. If the Board decides the staff should expose
Implementation Issue B38 for public comment, the Board will also discuss the
appropriate transition and effective date guidance.

Background

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting For Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (as amended), an embedded derivative is
required to be bifurcated and accounted for separately as a derivative instrument
pursuant to Statement 133 if and only if a/l of the requirements in paragraph 12 are
met, as follows:

a. The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract....

b. The contract (“the hybrid instrument”) that embodies both the
embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not
remeasured at fair value under otherwise applicable
generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair
value reported in earnings as they occur.

C. A separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative instrument would, pursuant to
paragraphs 6—-11, be a derivative instrument subject to the
requirements of this Statement. (The initial net investment

The staff prepares Board meeting handouts to facilitate the audience's understanding of the issues
to be addressed at the Board meeting. This material is presented for discussion purposes only; it
is not intended to reflect the views of the FASB or its staff. Official positions of the FASB are
determined only after extensive due process and deliberations.
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for the hybrid instrument shall not be considered to be the
initial net investment for the embedded derivative.) However,
this criterion is not met if the separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would
be classified as a liability (or an asset in some
circumstances) under the provisions of Statement 150 but
would be classified in stockholders’ equity absent the
provisions in Statement 150. [Footnote reference omitted.]

Paragraph 13 of Statement 133 provides guidance as to whether an embedded
derivative instrument in which the underlying is an interest rate or interest rate
index that alters net interest payments that otherwise would be paid or received on
an interest-bearing host contract is considered to be clearly and closely related to
the host contract.

Paragraph 9(a) of Statement 133 states, in part:

Neither party is required to deliver an asset that is
associated with the underlying and that has a principal amount,
stated amount, face value, number of shares, or other
denomination that is equal to the notional amount (or the notional
amount plus a premium or minus a discount).

Guidance in Issue B38

Issue B38 provides guidance with respect to the application of paragraph 12(c) to
a prepayment option embedded in a debt instrument and focuses specifically on
the net settlement criterion in paragraph 9(a). In the assumed situation cited in the
question, an analysis under paragraph 12(c) is required because the embedded
prepayment option is not considered to be clearly and closely related to the debt
host under paragraph 12(a) based on an analysis performed in paragraph 13. The
question addressed in Implementation Issue B38 is whether the potential
settlement of the debtor’s obligation to the creditor that would occur upon exercise
of the prepayment option meets the net settiement criterion in paragraph 9(a) of
Statement 133. The tentative guidance in Implementation Issue B38 concludes
that the potential settlement of the debtor’'s obligation to the creditor that would
occur upon exercise of the prepayment option meets the net settlement criterion in
paragraph 9(a). The debtor’s settlement of its liability by prepaying the debt should
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be considered as not involving the delivery of an asset associated with the
underlying.
Transition Alternatives

If the Board decides the staff should expose Issue B38 for public comment, there
are two alternatives with respect to transition guidance that the staff believes the
Board should consider:

Alternative A—Cumulative Effect Adjustment:

Follow the transition guidance in Section Il.A of Statement 133 Implementation
Issue No. K5, Transition Provisions for Applying the Guidance in Statement 133
Implementation Issues, which states (in part):

An entity that has or has not separately accounted for an
embedded derivative in a manner that is different from the
requirements of the newly issued cleared implementation guidance
should account for the effects of initially complying with that new
implementation guidance prospectively, for all existing contracts and
future transactions, as of the effective date, except for the existing
contracts that qualify for the grandfathering provisions of
paragraph 50 that exempt certain hybrid instruments from the
embedded derivative provisions of Statement 133 on an all-or-none
basis.

Alternative B—Prospective Only.

This guidance should be applicable prospectively to all new or modified
instruments, without a cumulative effect adjustment.
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Financial Accounting Standards Board

Board Meeting Handout
Agenda Decision: Property, Plant, and Equipment
February 2,2005

The Board will consider whether to add a project to its agenda based on AcSEC’s
recommendations that the Board issue certain stand alone, near-term guidance on the

accounting for property, plant, and equipment (PP&E). Specifically, the Board will

consider the following topics:
(1) Accounting for planned major maintenance activities
(2) Accounting for rental costs that are incurred during construction
(3) Accounting for liquidated damages

(4) The threshold for beginning to capitalize PP&E.

The staff prepares Board meeting handouts to facilitate the audience's understanding of the issues to be
addressed at the Board meeting. This material is presented for discussion purposes only; it is not intended
to reflect the views of the FASB or its staff. Official positions of the FASB are determined only after
extensive due process and deliberations.
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Wiseman, Sara
From: Scott, Valerie
Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2005 7:06 PM
To: Charnas, Shannecn; Wiseman, Sara
Subject: FW: FASB Interpretation No. 47 Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

Attachments: FIN 47.pdf, footer

Shannon & Sara,

It's finally out! This could be ugly. It requires adoption by 12/31/05 so we are not overdone with time.
We need to get on top of this ASAP to figure out how we will identify the affected assets and work with
legal, operations and other personnel to determine the removal costs. The calculations should be
consistent with the original AROs, but we'll need to verify this point.

The fun continues!

Valerie

From: Stringfellow, David [mailto:DStringfellow@eei.org]

Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2005 1:33 PM

To: Accounting Standards Committee

Subject: FASB Interpretation No. 47 Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

TO: EEI Accounting Standards Committee Members

The FASB has now issued its Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
(attached) . There will be an EEI white paper prepared to help with the implementation of FIN 47. Please let me
know if you wish to be a part of the group preparing that white paper.

David Stringfellow
Edison Electric Institute

2/28/2008
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For additional copies of this Interpretation and information on applicable prices and
discount rates contact:

Order Department

Financial Accounting Standards Board
401 Merritt 7

PO Box 5116

Norwalk, Connecticut 06856-5116

Please ask for our Product Code No. 147.

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SERIES (ISSN 0885-9051) is published monthly by the
Financial Accounting Foundation. Periodicals---postage paid at Norwalk, CT and at
additional mailing offices. The full subscription rate is $185 per year, POSTMASTER:
Send address changes to Financial Accounting Standards Board, 401 Memitt 7, PO
Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116.
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Accounting for Conditional Asset
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an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143
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Financial Accounting Standards Board
of the Financial Accounting Foundation
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Copyright © 2005 by Financial Accounting Standards Board. All rights reserved. No
part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in
any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or other-
wise, without the prior written permission of the Financial Accounting Standards Board.
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Summary

This Interpretation clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used
in FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, refers to a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of
settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the
entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though
uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing and (or)
method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is
required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation
if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The fair value of a liability for
the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when incurred—generally
upon acquisition, construction, or development and (or) through the normal operation of the
asset. Uncertainty about the timing and (or) method of settlement of a conditional asset
retirement obligation should be factored into the measurement of the liability when
sufficient information exists. Statement 143 acknowledges that in some cases, sufficient
information may not be available to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement
obligation. This Interpretation also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient informa-
tion to rcasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation.

Reason for Issuing This Interpretation

Diverse accounting practices have developed with respect to the timing of liability
recognition for legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
when the timing and (or) method of settlcment of the obligation are conditional on a future
event. For example, some entities recognize the fair value of the obligation prior to the
retirement of the asset with the uncertainty about the timing and (or) method of settlement
incorporated into the liability’s fair value. Other entities recognize the fair value of the
obligation only when it is probable the asset will be retired as of a specified date using a
specified method or when the asset is actually retired. This Interpretation clanifies that an
entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement
obligation when incurred if the liability’s fair value can be reasonably estimated. Questions
also arose about when sufficient information may not be available to make a reasonable
estimate of the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. This Interpretation clarifics when
an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation.
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How This Interpretation Will Improve Financial Reporting

Application of this Interpretation will result in (a) more consistent recognition of
liabilities relating to asset retirement obligations, (b) more information about expected
future cash outflows associated with those obligations, and (c¢) more information about
investments in long-lived assets because additional asset retirement costs will be recognized
as part of the carrying amounts of the assets.

How the Conclusions in This Interpretation Relate to the Conceptual Framework

FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, Elements of Financial Statements, states that “liabilities
are probable future sacrifices of economic benefits arising from present obligations of a
particular entity to transfer assets or provide services to other entities in the future as a result
of past transactions or events.” The Board concluded that asset retirement obligations within
the scope of Statement 143 that meet the definition of a liability in Concepts Statement 6
should be recognized as a liability at fair value if fair value can be reasonably estimated. The
Board believes that when an existing law, regulation, or contract requires an entity to
perform an asset retirelment activity, an unambiguous requirement to perform the retirement
activity exists, even if that activity can be deferred indefinitely. At some point, deferral is no
longer possible, because no tangible asset will last forever (except land). Therefore, the
obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty
exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. The use of an expected value
technique to measure the fair value of the liability reflects any uncertainty about the amount
and timing of fiture cash outflows. The clarification of when an entity would have sufficient
information to reasonably cstimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation should
improve the relevance, reliability, and comparability of the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

The Effective Date of This Interpretation

This Interpretation is cffective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after Decem-
ber 15, 2005 (December 31, 2005, for calendar-year enterprises). Retrospective application
for interim financial information is permitted but is not required. Early adoption of this
Interpretation is encouraged.
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FASB Interpretation No. 47
Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143

March 2005

INTRODUCTION

1. Paragraph 3 of FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Assel Retirement Obligations,
states, “An entity shall recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be
made.”! Diverse accounting practices have developed with respect to the timing of liability
recognition for legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
when the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event. For
example, some entities recognize the fair value of the obligation prior to the retirement of
the asset with the uncertainty about the timing and (or) method of settlement incorporated
into the liability’s fair value. Other entities recognize the fair value of the obligation only
when it is probable the asset will be retired as of a specified date using a specified method
or when the asset is actually retired. Questions also arose about when an entity would have
sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation.

INTERPRETATION

2. Statement 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible
long-lived asset that result from the acquisition, construction, or development and (or) the
normal operation of a long-lived asset, except as explained in paragraph 17 of that
Statement for certain obligations of lessees. The term retiremens? encompasses sale,
abandonment, recycling, or disposal in some other manner.

![Under Statement 143.] if'a tangible long-lived asset with an existing asset retirement obligation is acquired,
a liability for that obligation shall be recognized at the asset’s acquisition date as if that obligation were
incurred on that date.

2In Statement 143, the torm retirement is defined as the other-than-temporary removal of a long-lived asset
from service. The term does not encompass the temporary idling of a long-lived asset.
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3. The term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in paragraph A23 of State-
ment 143 refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the
timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not
be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is
unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) imethod of
settlement. Thus, the timing and (or) method of settlement may be conditional on a future
event. Accordingly, an entity shall recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional
asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated.
Statement 143 requires an entity to recognize the fair value of a legal obligation to perform
asset retirement activities when the obligation is incurred—generally upon acquisition,
construction, or development and (or) through the normal operation of the asset.

4. An entity shall identify all its asset retirement obligations. If an entity has sufficient
information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation, it must
recognize a liability at the time the liability is incurred. An asset retirement obligation would
be reasonably estimable if (a) it is evident that the fair value of the obligation is embodied
in the acquisition price of the asset, (b) an active market exists for the transfer of the
obligation, or (¢) sufficient information exists to apply an expected present value technique .4
An expected present value technique incorporates uncertainty about the timing and method
of settlement into the fair value measurement. However, in some cases, sufficient
information about the timing and (or) method of settlement may not be available to
reasonably estimate fair value. Examples 1 and 2 in Appendix A illustrate the application of
this Interpretation when an entity has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair
value of an asset retirement obligation at the time the obligation is incurred.

5. An entity would have sufficient information to apply an expected present value
technique and therefore an asset retirement obligation would be reasonably estimable if
cither of the following conditions exists:

a. The settlement date and method of settlement for the obligation have been specified by
others. For example, the law, regulation, or contract that gives rise to the legal obligation
specifies the settlement date and method of settlement. In this situation, the settlement

3l’aragraph 17 of FASB Concepts Statement No. 7, Using Cash Flow I[nformation and Present Value in
Accounting Measurements, states, “If a price for an asset or liability ot an essentially similar asset or liability
can be observed in the marketplace, there is no need to use present value measurements. The marketplace
assessment of present value is already embodied in such prices.”

“If the fair value of the liability cannot be estimated based on the acquisition price or on an observable market
price, the entity should apply the present value techniques discussed in paragraphs 39-54 and 75-88 of
Concepts Statement 7. Paragraph 5 of this Interpretation discusses those situations in which an entity would
have sufficient information to apply an expected present value technique.
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date and method of settlement are known and therefore the only uncertainty is whether
the obligation will be enforced (that is, whether performance will be required).
Uncertainty about whether performance will be required does not defer the recognition
of an asset retirement obligation because a legal obligation to stand ready to perform the
retirement activities still exists, and it does not prevent the determination of a reasonable
estimate of fair value because the only uncertainty is whether performance will be
required.” In certain cases, determining the settlement date for the obligation that has
been specified by others is a matter of judgment that depends on the relevant facts and
circumstances.%

b. The information is available to reasonably estimate (1) the settlement date or the range
of potential settlement dates, (2) the method of settlement or potential methods of
settlement,’ and (3) the probabilities associated with the potential settlement dates and
potential methods of settlement.8 Examples of information that is expected to provide a
basis for estimating the potential settlement dates, potential methods of settlement, and
the associated probabilities include, but are not limited to, information that is derived
from the entity’s past practice, industry practice, management’s intent, or the asset’s

5There are two possible outcomes in situations in which the only uncertainty is whether performance will be
required-—the entity will be required to perform or the entity will not be required to perform. If there is no
information about which outcome is more probable, paragraph A23 of Statement 143 requires a 50 percent
likelihood for cach outcome to be used until additional information is available.

SFor example, a contract that provides the entity with an ability to extend its term through renewal should
be evaluated to determine whether the settlement date should take into consideration renewal periods.

"The term potential methods of seftlement refers to methods of settling the obligation that are currently
available to the entity. Therefore, uncertainty about future methods yet to be developed would not prevent the
entity from estimating the fair value of the asset retirement obligation.

#The entity should have a reasonable basis for assigning probabilities to the potential settlement dates and
potential methods of settlement to reasonably estimate the fair value of the asset retirement obligation. If the
entity does not have a reasonable basis of assigning probabilities, it is expected that the entity would still be
able to reasonably estimate fair value when the range of time over which the entity may settle the obligation
is so narrow and (or) the cash flows associated with each potential method of settlement are so similar that
assigning probabilities without having a reasonable basis for doing so would not have a material impact on
the fair value of the assct retircment obligation.
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estimated economic life.? In many cases, the determination as to whether the entity has
the information to reasonably estimate the fair value of the asset retirement obligation is
a matter of judgment that depends on the relevant facts and circumstances. !°

6. If sufficient information is not available at the time the liability is incurred, paragraph 3
of Statement 143 requires a liability to be recognized initially in the period in which
sufficient information becomes available to estimate its fair value. Paragraph 22 of
Statement 143 requires that if the liability’s fair value cannot be reasonably estimated, that
fact and the reasons shall be disclosed. Example 3 in Appendix A illustrates the application
of this Interpretation when an entity does not have sufficient information to reasonably
estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. Example 4 in Appendix A illustrates
the application of this Interpretation when an emntity initially does not have sufficient
information but later has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an
asset retirement obligation.

7. Statement 143 provides guidance for adjusting the liability for revisions to either the
timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows.

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TRANSITION

8. This Interpretation shall be effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2005 (December 31, 2005, for calendar-year enterprises). Retrospective
application of interim financial information is permitted but is not required. Early adoption
of this Interpretation is encouraged.

9. For amounts recognized upon the initial application of this Interpretation, an entity shall
recognize the following items in its statement of financial position: (a) a liability for any
existing asset retirement obligation(s) adjusted for cumulative accretion to the date of
adoption of this Interpretation, (b) an asset retircment cost capitalized as an increase to the
carrying amount of the associated long-lived asset(s), and (¢) accumulated depreciation on

The estimated economic life of the asset might indicate a potential settlement date for the asset retirement
obligation. However, the original estimated cconomic life of the assct may not, in and of itself, establish that
date because the entity may intend to make improvements to the asset that could extend the life of the asset
or the entity could deter settlement of the obligation beyond the economic life of the asset. In those situations,
the entity would look beyond the economic life of the asset in determining the settlement date or range of
potential settlement dates to use when estimating the fair value of the asset retirement obligation.

107, i expected that the narrower the range of time over which the entity may settle the obligation and the
fewer potential methods of settlement the entity has available to it, the more likely it is that the entity will
have the information to reasonably estimatc the fair value of an asset retirement obligation.
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that capitalized cost. Amounts resulting from initial application of this Interpretation shall be
measured using current (that is, as of the date of adoption of this Interpretation) information,
current assumptions, and current interest rates. The amnount recognized as an asset
retirement cost shall be measured as of the date the asset retirement obligation was incurred.
Cumulative accretion and accumulated depreciation shall be recorded for the time period
from the date the liability would have been recognized had the provisions of this
Interpretation been in effect when the liability was incurred to the date of adoption of this
Interpretation.

10. An entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying this Interpretation
as a change in accounting principle. The amount to be reported as a cumulative-cffect
adjustment in the statement of operations is the difference between the amounts, if any,
recognized in the statement of financial position prior to the application of this Interpretation
and the net amount that is recognized in the statement of financial position pursuant to

paragraph 9.

11. In addition to disclosures required by paragraphs 19(c), 19(d), and 21 of APB Opinion
No. 20, Accounting Changes, an entity shall compute on a pro forma basis and disclose in
the footnotes to the financial statements for the beginning of the earliest year presented and
at the end of all years presented the amount of the liability for asset retirement obligations
as if this Interpretation had been applied during all periods affected. The pro forma amounts
of that liability shall be measured using the information, assumptions, and interest rates used
to measure the obligation recognized upon adoption of this Interpretation.

The provisions of this Interpretation need
not be applied to immaterial items.

This Interpretation was adopted by the unanimous vote of the seven members of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board:

Robert H. Herz, Chairman
George J. Batavick

G. Michael Crooch
Katherine Schipper

Leslie F. Seidman

Edward W. Trott

Donald M. Young
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Appendix A

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES

Al. This appendix includes four examples that illustrate the application of this Interpreta-
tion specifically relating to when an entity would be required to recognize the fair value of
an asset retirement obligation. The examples do not provide specific guidance for
determining when an entity has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value
of the asset retirement obligation. The determination as to when an entity has sufficient
information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation should be
based on the guidance in paragraphs 4 and 5 of this Interpretation. Examples 1 and 2
illustrate the recognition provisions when an entity has sufficient information to reasonably
estimate the fair valuc of an asset retirement obligation at the time the obligation is incurred.
Example 3 illustrates the application of this Interpretation when an entity does not have
sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation
at the time the obligation is incurred. Example 4 illustrates the recognition provisions when
an entity initially does not have sufficient information and later has sufficient information to
reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. The examples illustrate
the initial recognition of a conditional asset retirement obligation based on the facts
presented. Any differences in facts from those presented in the examples may result in
different conclusions.

Example 1

A2. Atelecommunications entity owns and operates a communication network that utilizes
wood poles that are treated with certain chemicals. There is no legal requirement to remove
the poles from the ground. However, the owner may replace the poles periodically for a
number of operational reasons. Once the poles are removed from the ground, they may be
disposed of, sold, or reused as part of other activities. There is existing legislation that
requires special disposal procedures for the poles in the particular state in which the entity
operates.

A3. At the date of purchase of the treated poles, the entity has the information to estimate
a range of potential settlement dates, the potential methods of scttlement, and the
probabilities associated with the potential settlement dates and methods based on estab-
lished industry practice. Therefore, at the date of purchase, the entity is able to estimate the
fair value of the liability for the required disposal procedures using an expected present
value technique.
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A4, Although the timing of the performance of the asset retirement activity is conditional
on removing the poles from the ground and disposing of them, existing legislation creates
a duty or responsibility for the entity to dispose of the poles in accordance with special
procedures, and the obligating event occurs when the entity purchases the treated poles.
Although the entity may decide not to remove the poles from the ground or may decide to
reuse the poles and thereby defer settlement of the obligation, the ability to defer settlement
does not relieve the entity of the obligation. The poles will eventually need to be disposed
of using special procedures, because the poles will not last forever. Additionally, the ability
of the entity to sell the poles prior to disposal does not relieve the entity of its present duty
or responsibility to settle the obligation. The sale of the poles transfers the obligation to
another entity. The assumption of the obligation by the buyer affects the exchange price. The
bargaining of the exchange price reflects the buyer’s and seller’s individual estimates of the
timing and (or) amount of the cost to extinguish the obligation.

AS. The asset retirement obligation should be recognized when the entity purchases the
poles because the entity has sufficient information to estimate the fair value of the asset
retirement obligation. Because the legal requirement relates only to the disposal of the
treated poles, the cost to remove the poles is not included in the asset retirement obligation,
However, if there was a legal requirement to remove the treated poles, the cost of removal
would be included.

Example 2

A6. An entity recently purchased several kilns lined with a special type of brick. As of the
date of purchase, the kilns had not yet been used in any smelting processes. The kilns have
a long useful life, but the bricks are replaced periodically. Because the bricks become
contaminated with hazardous chemicals while the kiln is operated, a state law requires that
when the bricks are removed, they must be disposed of at a special hazardous waste site.
The entity has the information to estimate a range of potential settlement dates, the method
of settlement, and the probabilities associated with the potential settlement dates based on
its past practice of replacing the bricks to maintain the efficient operation of the kiln.
Therefore, at the date the bricks become contaminated because of the operation of the kiln,
the entity is able to estimate the fair value of the liability for the required disposal procedures
using an expected present value technique.

A7. Although performance of the asset retirement activity is conditional on removing the
bricks from the kiln, existing legislation creates a duty or responsibility for the entity to
dispose of the bricks at a special hazardous waste site, and the obligating event occurs when
the entity contaminates the bricks. As of the purchase date, the kilns have not yet been used
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in any smelting processes, and the bricks have not yet been contaminated. Therefore, at the
date of purchase, no obligation exists because the bricks have not been contaminated and
could be disposed of without performing any special disposal activities.

A8. The fair value of the asset retirement obligation should be recognized once the kilns
have been placed into operation and the bricks are contaminated. Although the entity may
decide not to remove the bricks from the kiln and thereby defer settlement of the obligation,
the ability to defer settlement does not relieve the entity of the obligation. The contaminated
bricks will eventually need to be removed and disposed of at a special hazardous waste site,
because a kiln will not last forever. Therefore, the obligation to perform the asset retirement
activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing of settlement. An
asset retirement obligation should be recognized once the kilns have been placed into
operation and the bricks are contaminated because the entity has sufficient information to
estimate the fair value of the asset retirement obligation. The asset retirement obligation is
the requirement to dispose of the contaminated bricks at a special hazardous waste site. The
cost to remove the bricks is not part of the obligation and should be accounted for as a
maintenance or replacement activity.

Example 3

A9. An entity acquires a factory that contains asbestos. After the acquisition date,
regulations are put in place that require the entity to handle and dispose of this type of
asbestos in a special manner if the factory undergoes major renovations or is demolished.
Otherwise, the entity is not required to remove the asbestos from the factory. The entity has
scveral options to retire the factory in the future including demolishing, selling, or
abandoning it. The entity belicves it does not have sufficient information to estimate the fair
value of the assct retirement obligation because the settlement date or the range of potential
settlement dates has not been specified by others and information is not available to apply
an expected present value technique. For example, there are no plans or expectation of plans
to undertake a major renovation that would require removal of the asbestos or demolition
of the factory. The factory is expected to be maintained by repairs and maintenance
activities that would not involve the removal of the asbestos. Also, the need for major
renovations caused by technology changes, operational changes, or other factors has not
been identified.

Al10. Although the timing of the performance of the asset retirement activity is conditional
on the factory undergoing major renovations or being demolished, existing regulations
create a duty or responsibility for the entity to remove and dispose of asbestos in a special
manner, and the obligating event occurs when the regulations are put in place. Therefore, an
asset retirement obligation should be recognized when regulations are put in place if the
entity can reasonably estimate the fair value of the liability. In this example, the entity
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believes that there is an indeterminate settlement date for the asset retirement obligation
because the range of time over which the entity may settle the obligation is unknown or
cannot be estimated. Therefore, the entity cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of the
liability. Accordingly, the entity would not recognize a liability for the asset retirement
obligation when regulations are put in place, but it should disclose (a) a description of the
obligation, (b) the fact that a liability has not been recognized because the fair value cannot
be reasonably estimated, and (¢) the reasons why fair value cannot be reasonably estimated.
The company would recognize a liability in the period in which sufficient information is
available to reasonably estimate its fair value.

Example 4

All. An entity acquires a factory that contains asbestos. At the acquisition date, regulations
are in place that require the entity to handle and dispose of this type of asbestos in a special
manner if the factory undergoes major renovations or is demolished. Otherwise, the entity
is not required to remove the asbestos from the factory. The entity has several options to
retire the factory in the future including demolishing, selling, or abandoning it. At the
acquisition date, it is not evident that the fair value of the obligation is embodied in the
acquisition price of the factory because both the seller and the buyer of the factory believed
the obligation had an indeterminate settlement date, an active market does not exist for the
transfer of the obligation, and sufficient information does not exist to apply an expected
present value technique. Ten years after the acquisition date, the entity obtains additional
information based on changes in demand for the products manufactured at that factory. At
that time, the entity has the information to estimate a range of potential scttlement dates, the
potential methods of settlement, and the probabilities associated with the potential
settlement dates and potential methods of settlement. Therefore, at that time the entity is able
to estimate the fair value of the liability for the special handling of the asbestos using an
expected present value technique.

A12. Although timing of the performance of the asset retirement activity is conditional on
the factory undergoing major renovations or being demolished, existing regulations create
a duty or responsibility for the entity to remove and dispose of asbestos in a special manner,
and the obligating event occurs when the entity acquires the factory.!! Although the entity
may decide to abandon the factory and thereby defer settlement of the obligation for the
foreseeable future, the ability to defer settlement does not relieve the entity of the obligation.
The asbestos will eventually need to be removed and disposed of in a special manner,

n this example, regulations are in place at the date of acquisition that require the entity to handle and
dispose of the asbestos in a special manner. Therefore, the obligating event is the acquisition of the factory.
If regulations were enacted after the date of acquisition, the obligating event would be the enactment of the
regulations. Refer to Example 3.
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because no building will last forever. Additionally, the ability of the entity to sell the factory
does not relieve the entity of its present duty or responsibility to settle the obligation. The
sale of the asset would transfer the obligation to another entity and that transfer would affect
the selling price. Therefore, the obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is
unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and method of settlement.

Al3. In this example, an asset retirement obligation is not recognized when the entity
acquires the factory because the entity does not have sufficient information to estimate the
fair value of the obligation. The entity would disclose (a) a description of the obligation,
(b) the fact that a liability has not been recognized because the fair value cannot be
reasonably estimnated, and (c) the reasons why fair value cannot be reasonably estimated. An
asset retirement obligation would be recognized by this entity 10 years after the acquisition
date because that is when the entity has sufficient information to estimate the fair value of
the asset retirement obligation.

11
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Appendix B

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND BASIS FOR CONCLUSIONS
Introduction

B1. This appendix summarizes considerations that Board members deemed significant in
reaching the conclusions in this Interpretation. It includes reasons for accepting certain
approaches and rejecting others. Individual Board members gave greater weight to some
factors than to others.

Background

B2. Diverse accounting practices have developed with respect to the timing of liability
recognition for legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
when the timing and (or) method of seftlement are conditional on a future event that may
or may not be within the control of the entity. Some entities recognize the fair value of the
obligation prior to the retirement of the asset with the uncertainty about the timing and (or)
method of settlement incorporated into the liability’s fair value. Other entities recognize the
fair value of the obligation only when it is probable the asset will be retired as of a specified
date using a specified method or when the asset is actually retired.

B3. The FASB staff issued a proposed FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 143-x, “Applica-
bility of FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, to
Legislative Requirements on Property Owners to Remove and Dispose of Asbestos or
Asbestos-Containing Materials,” in July 2003. That proposed FSP concluded:

a. The enactiment or existence of asbestos legislation creates a duty or responsibility to
remove and dispose of asbestos.

b. If such legislation already exists, the obligating event is the acquisition (or construction)
of the asset, or if the asset is owned when that legislation is enacted, then the enactment
of the legislation is the obligating event.

¢. An entity should recognize a liability for this obligation when the obligating event
occurs.

B4. The FASB staff evaluated the comment letters received on that proposed FSP. Because
of the diverse views expressed and constituents’ concerns that there is a broader issue
underlying the issue addressed in the proposed FSP, the FASB staff withdrew that proposed
FSP. The FASB staff confirmed the diversity in practice with a questionnaire to selected
constitients. Because of the diversity in practice and constituents’ concern about the broader
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nature of this issue, the Board added a project to its agenda to address the issue of whether
Statement 143 requires an entity to recognize a liability for a legal obligation to perform
asset retirement activities when the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on
a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity and, if so, the timing
of that recognition.

B5. On June 17, 2004, the Board issued an Exposure Draft, Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations. The Board received 34 comment letters on the Exposure
Draft. The Board considered all comments and concems raised by respondents and
constituents during its redeliberations of the issues addressed by the Exposure Draft in a
public meeting in August 2004, This Interpretation reflects the results of those deliberations.
The Board received comments requesting that the Board reconsider Statement 143 1n its
entirety. At a public meeting in January 2005, the Board decided not to reconsider
Statement 143. The Board decided to provide additional guidance for evaluating whether
sufficient information is available to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement
obligation.

Objective of This Interpretation

B6. The objective of this Interpretation is to clarify that the term conditional asset
retirement obligation as used in Statement 143 refers to a legal obligation to perform an
asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. In this situation,
the obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though
uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. Accordingly, an entity
should recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation
when incurred if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. This
Interpretation also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably
estimate the fair value of an assct retirement obligation.

Scope

B7. Statement 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible
long-lived asset that result from the acquisition, construction, or development and (or) the
normal operation of a long-lived asset, except as explained in paragraph 17 of State-
ment 143. As used in Statement 143, a legal obligation is an obligation that a party is
required to settle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance, or written or
oral contract or by legal construction of a contract under the doctrine of promissory
estoppel. As discussed in paragraphs A2-AS of Statement 143, whether a legal obligation
exists will usually be unambiguous. However, questions arose about whether a liability
should be recognized when a legal obligation exists but the timing and (or) method of

16
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settlement are conditional on future events. Based on diversity in practice and the broad
nature of this issue, the Board decided that this Interpretation should apply to all entities that
have legal obligations to perform asset retirement activities in which the timing and (or)
method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the
control of the entity.

B8. During the redeliberations of this Interpretation, questions also arose about when an
entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation. Paragraph A20 of Statement 143 states that “it is expected that
uncertainties about the amount and timing of future cash flows can be accommodated by
using the expected cash flow technique and therefore will not prevent the determination of
a reasonable estimate of fair valuc.” Some constituents believe paragraph A20 contradicts
paragraph 3 of Statement 143, which states that “if a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot
be made in the period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the lability shall be
recognized when a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.” As a result, the Board
decided that this Interpretation should clarify that uncertainties about the amount and timing
of future cash flows can be accommodated by using the expected cash flow technique when
sufficient information exists. The Board decided to provide additional guidance in this
Interpretation for cvaluating whether sufficient information is available to reasonably
estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation.

Recognition of a Liability for a Conditional Asset Retirement Obligation
Characteristics of a Liability

B9. FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, Elements of Financial Statements, defines liabilities
as “probable future sacrifices of economic benefits arising from present obligations of a
particular entity to transfer assets or provide services to other entities in the future as a result
of past transactions or events.” Probable is used with its usual general meaning, rather than
in a specific accounting or technical sense (such as that in FASB Statement No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies), and refers to that whiclt can reasonably be expected or
believed on the basis of available evidence or logic but is neither certain nor proved. Its
inclusion in the definition is intended to acknowledge that business and other economic
activities occur in an environment characterized by uncertainty. The Board concluded that
all asset retirement obligations within the scope of Statement 143 that meet the definition of
a liability in Concepts Statement 6 should be recognized as liabilities if the fair value of the
liabilities can be reasonably estimated.

B10. Concepts Statement 6 states that a liability has three essential characteristics. The first

characteristic of a liability is that an entity has a present duty or responsibility to one or more
other entities that entails settlement by probable future transfer or use of assets at a specified

17
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or determinable date, on occurrence of a specified event, or on demand. A duty or
responsibility becomes a present duty or responsibility when an obligating event occurs that
leaves the entity little or no discretion to avoid a future transfer or use of assets. A present
duty or responsibility does not mean that the obligation must be satisfied immediately.
Rather, if events or circumstances have occurred that give an entity little or no discretion to
avoid a future transfer or use of assets, that entity has a present duty or responsibility. If an
entity is required by current laws, regulations, or contracts to settle an asset retirement
obligation upon retirement of the asset, that requirement imposes a present duty.

BI11. The second characteristic of a liability is that the duty or responsibility obligates a
particular entity, leaving it little or no discretion to avoid the future sacrifice. The ability of
an entity to indefinitely defer settlement of an asset retirement obligation does not provide
the entity discretion to avoid the future sacrifice, nor does it relieve the entity of the
obligation. Implicit in this conclusion is the belief that no tangible asset will last forever
(except land) and, accordingly, the asset retirement activities will eventually be performed.
Furthermore, the ability of an entity to sell the asset prior to its disposal does not relieve the
entity of its present duty or responsibility to settle the obligation. In paragraph B47 of
Statement 143, the Board noted that “if the asset for which there is an associated asset
retirement obligation were to be sold, the price a buyer would consent to pay for that asset
would reflect an estimate of the fair value of the asset retirement obligation. Because that
asset retirement obligation meets the definition of a liability, however, the Board believes
that reporting it as a liability with a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the
asset for the asset retirement costs, which has the same net effect as incorporating the fair
value of the costs to settle the liability in the valuation of the asset, is more representationally
faithful and in concert with Concepts Statement 6.”

B12. The third characteristic of a liability is that the event obligating the entity has already
occurred. The definition of a liability distinguishes between present obligations and future
obligations. Only present obligations are liabilities under the definition, and they are
liabilities of a particular entity as a result of the occurrence of transactions or other events
affecting the entity. Identifying the obligating event may be difficult in situations that
involve a series of transactions or other events affecting the entity. For example, in the case
of an asset retirement obligation, a law or an entity’s promise